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Overview of the Company
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Harbin Electric Company Limited (the “Company”) was formed through
the restructuring of relevant entities including Harbin Electrical
Machinery Works, Harbin Boiler Works and Harbin Turbine Works (the
“three major power factories”).

The Company is located in Harbin, the PRC and was established on 6
October 1994. The Company was listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited on 16 December 1994, its stock code being
“01133".

As at 31 December 2015, the total share capital of the Company
comprised of 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 675,571,000 shares were
H shares traded on the HKSE.

The Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) are one of the largest
manufacturers of power plant equipment in the PRC, with a workforce
of around 20,000 current employees and power plant equipment of a
production capacity of 30 MW per annum. The Group's principal
activities include:

° Thermal power main equipments: boilers, steam turbines and
steam turbine generators with single unit capacity up to
1,000MW class, the largest manufacturing base in the PRC for
clean coal combustion equipment, accounting for over 30% of
the installed capacity of thermal power in the PRC;

o Hydro power main equipments: hydro power generators units
with single unit capacity up to 1,000MW class, accounting for
50% of the installed capacity of large-scale hydro power in the
PRC;

o Nuclear power main equipments: nuclear island and conventional
island equipments for nuclear power plants with single unit
capacity up to 1,400MW class;

° Complete set of steam power equipment: 9F/9H class gas
turbine and combined gas and steam cycle set;

° Clean energy: R&D and production of products such as solar
energy, hydro power and desalination;
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Overview of the Company (continued)
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o Other products: ancillary equipment for power stations, industrial
boilers, industrial steam turbines, control devices, AC/DC motors,
valves for power stations, pressure vessels and axial compressor,
etc;

o Turnkey construction of power station projects;

o Contract supply of complete sets of thermal and hydro power
equipment;

o Import and export of equipment for power stations;

o After-sales service for power station equipment products;

° R&D of engineering technology for turnkey power equipment;

o R&D of power equipment and its ancillary products;

o Technology transfer, technical consultation and services;

o Environmental protection engineering services, such as
desulfation, denitrification and dust removal.

As well as positioning itself in the PRC market, the Group actively
adopts an “outbound” strategy, exporting its main equipment and
ancillary equipment products for thermal power, hydro power and
nuclear power etc. to more than 40 countries and regions such as
India, Pakistan, Russia, Indonesia, Vietnam, Laos, the Philippines,
Sudan, Brazil, Iran and Bangladesh. At the same time, it is engaged in
the turnkey construction of thermal power stations, wind farms, hydro
power station equipment and power transportation and transformation
both in the PRC and overseas, as well as BOT and BOO businesses.

The Group possesses a pool of top talents in scientific research,
technology and management, as well as a comprehensive range of
advanced production and research facilities. Its capabilities in research
and development, production and manufacturing and power station
construction are among the best in the power plant equipment
manufacturing industry in the PRC.
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ATERRESES CORPORATE STRUCTURE AND MAIN BUSINESS LINE
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Financial Highlights (continued)

AFEXEE  BERBERR Summary of Results, Assets and Liabilities of the Past Five Years
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Unit Year ended 31 December,
By 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
(&%) (&%) (&%)
(restated) (restated) (restated)
BEIA ARETFT 25,097,225 24,026,534 20,752,889 26,267,910 28,869,259
Operating Income RMB’000
IbERE AREFTT 307,860 364,910 778,094 1,770,826 1,639,960
Total Profits RMB’000
SEBNEREFA &SR E ARETTT 196,212 566,409 705,814 1,420,947 1,228,661
Net profits attributable to RMB’000
owners of parent
AEHRT ARBT T 64,163,245 62,161,482 60,320,723 54,949,888 50,396,050
Total assets RMB'000
A ARBT T 50,246,364 48,156,430 46,026,474 41,083,704 37,872,816
Total Liabilities RMB'000
DEAR R M A ARBT T 1,209,491 1,329,180 1,767,166 1,842,189 1,921,614
Interests of minority RMB’000
shareholders
EENRARIFEEER ARETIT 12,707,391 12,675,872 12,527,084 12,023,995 10,601,620
Interests attributable to RMB'000
owners of parent
BRIFEE ARETT 9.230 9.207 9.099 8.733 7.700
Net assets per share RMB
TR A ARETT 0.143 0.411 0.513 1.032 0.892

Earnings per share RMB
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Financial Highlights (continued)

BZ2015F12831ALLFE
Year ended 31 December 2015
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Contribution to
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Year ended 31 December 2014

EXRMBER

Contribution to

Income operating income Income operating income
AREFR AR¥FTT ARETFT AR FT
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
NEF G 9,331,656 1,994,201 10,943,146 1,651,014
Main thermal power equipment
IKE F RS 2,705,715 47,336 2,906,874 388,715
Main hydro power equipment
%%E 1,723,865 191,650 1,367,023 166,306
Nuclear power
BIK TR 6,819,315 490,599 3,894,369 300,605
Engineering services for power stations
BHEEREE 1,747,544 280,938 1,556,343 360,615
Ancillary equipment for power stations
B B N A E R AR T 2,769,130 321,908 3,358,779 295,752
AC/DC motors and other products
and services
& 25,097,225 3,326,631 24,026,534 3,163,007
Total
RO FEEERZER -3,018,771 2,798,097
Expenses not allocated to major products
MEaE 307,860 364,910

Total Profits
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Chairman’s Statement
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Dear shareholders,

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the 2015 annual report of
Harbin Electric Company Limited and its subsidiaries (hereinafter
referred to as the “Group”).

In 2015, in the face of harsh external environment, the Group
deepened the implementation of its strategy of market-oriented,
performance-oriented and problem-oriented, adopting stringent control,
reform and innovation and governing according to the law in all aspects.
The Group focused on the three major battlegrounds in terms of the
market, quality and efficiency with its hardworking spirit and pragmatic
attitude, and achieved the annual production and operation targets.
During the year, the Group realized revenue of RMB25.097 billion, an
increase of 4.46% over the previous year, while the net profit
attributable to the parent company amounted to RMB196 million, a
decrease of 65.36% over the previous year.

During the reporting period, the Group strived to exploit the market of
its products by visiting target power plants. The Group implemented
measures including “8 principles of quality management” and
centralizing the sales of power generators with capacity over 600 MW
improved the quality of its products and enhanced its market image.
During the year, the Group realized RMB 33.102 billion worth of duly
signed contracts, of which double reheat boilers accounted for a
leading market share. Sales of 1,000MW ultra-supercritical double
reheat turbine generators to Phase 3 of Fengcheng Power Plant and
Guohua Qingyuan Power Plant achieved a breakthrough. In the
international market, the Group won the bid for Hassyan clean coal
power plant project in Dubai, marking a solid step towards investment
in electricity. In the nuclear market, the Group secured orders for

conventional island in Bailong nuclear power plant in Guangxi.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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During the reporting period, the Group actively implemented reforms
and adjustments, optimized resources and upgraded business
operation, so as to enhance our core production capabilities of nuclear
power equipment. The Group increased its investment in the Power
Equipment Company and the Turbine Company. While making
adjustments to the management of the nuclear power design institute,
the Group streamlined the system and pulled together our pool of
talents. The Environmental Protection Division underwent integration
with the relevant business of the Boiler Company to establish an
environmental engineering company to integrate the development of
denitrification, desulfation and dust elimination business. Modification
was made to the evaluation system for performance of executives,
highlighting the performance-oriented approach of the Group. Intensive
reform was introduced to the evaluation and allocation system and
new measures were established. The Group made efforts in promoting
technological innovation and established a research centre for
engineerisation technology of nuclear power main pump. The Group
completed the establishment of China’s first self-developed 300MW
nuclear power main pump. Boilers in Tangzhai Power Plant and steam
turbines in Qitaihe Power Plant underwent renovation, which acted as
a demonstration for the application of the above technology.

During the reporting period, the Group applied stringent management
and control on receivable and inventory levels. Net trade receivables
decreased by RMB1.591 billion as compared to the beginning of the
year, representing a decrease of 12.65%. Inventory level decreased by
RMB1.243 billion and the net amount of inventory decreased by 7.43%.
The Group's cash and bank balances achieved a significant
improvement. At the end of 2015, the Group's cash and bank balances
amounted to RMB18.237 billion, representing an increase of 24.83%
over the previous year. The Group carried out management consultancy
and implemented intensive reform on the management and control
models and organization structure, further enhancing the management
efficiency. The Group deepened the reform in three systems and
adopted measures to layoff excessive employees. Centralized
procurement management centre and electronic procurement trading
platform were established to commence outsourcing and out-

contracted business, resulting in the lowered cost of purchase and
subcontracting. The Group enhanced centralized capital management
and fully exerted the advantages of the Finance Company. Centralized
management on financial management, human resource and legal
affairs was adopted to further reinforce the Group's control over the
Finance Company and Engineering Research Centre.
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Chairman’s Statement (continued)
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Year 2016 is the opening year of the “Thirteen Five-Year Plan” and it
will also be a crucial year for the Group to deepen its reform,
transformation and adjustment. Persisting sluggish recoveries in the
global economy and the economic transition in China is in its low tide.
The competition in power equipment industry become high-end and
intensified, resulting in a tougher challenge to the enterprises. At the
same time, national strategies including “One Belt One Road"”, “Made
in China 2025", international capacity cooperation and the revitalization
for historical industrial bases of the northeast regions would bring new
development opportunities to the Group.

In 2016, the Group will continue to deepen the implementation of its 5

"

development ideologies “ innovation, performance, service, open-
minded, sharing” by coordinating both international and domestic
markets, devoting more efforts in turnkey projects and power station
service and carrying out reform on market development. More
emphasis will be placed on quality and efficiency to strengthen
governance of subsidiaries recording losses. The Group will make more
efforts in initiating innovation in terms of technology, management and
business models. The Group will also focus on the implementation of
reforms and adjustments to stimulate structural reform, industry
optimization and upgrade of our products. The Group will endeavor to
stimulate new development potential and momentum to push forward
the reformation and development of the Group.

| would like to express my gratitude to our shareholders for their trust
and support, to my colleagues on the Board of Directors and Board of
Supervisors for their assistance and contribution, and to all of our staff
members for their efforts and dedication.

Zou Lei
Chairman

Harbin, the PRC, 25 March 2016
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Please read this section in conjunction with financial statements and
notes set out in other sections in this annual report.

MACRO ECONOMY AND INDUSTRY
DEVELOPMENT

In 2015, the global economy was in deep consolidation during which
period new growth drivers had yet to form and the foundation for
recovery was weak. As a result, the recovery was slower than
expected. The pressure of a macroeconomic downturn was gathering
strength in the PRC, though still within a reasonable range. With the
ongoing optimization of economic structure and the changing growth
momentum, the economic development has entered a new normal.
Notwithstanding the active cooperation in terms of capacity among the
international players and the relatively high potential of the overseas
power market, the increasingly complicated and versatile political
situation around the globe as well as the rising demand and standard
on technology, instabilities and uncertainties remained. Drastic changes
in the demand/supply structure of the power market and energy
policies of the PRC presented challenges and opportunities. In 2015,
growth in power consumption slowed down with a year-on-year drop
of 3.3%. Investments in hydropower fell for two consecutive years.
Installed capacity and output capacity of the grid-connected wind-
power and solar-power generation recorded rapid growth. Output
capacity of nuclear power generation hit new high during the year.
Thermal power generation recorded negative growth for two
consecutive years and hit new low in terms of utilization hours. The
installed capacity and output capacity of non-fossil fuel generating units
grew by 8.1% and 8.3% respectively over 2010.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (continued)
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NEW CONTRACTS

Facing with a complex and challenging environment in both the PRC
and the rest of the world during the year 2015, Harbin Electric
Company Limited and its subsidiaries (hereinafter referred to as the
“Group”) managed to make progress in market development by
adopting well-thought strategies and overcoming obstacles, thereby
realizing RMB33.102 billion worth of duly signed contracts, of which
RMB15.591 billion (or 47.10% of total contract value) for thermal
power equipment, RMB3.386 billion (or 10.23% of total contract value)
for hydropower equipment, RMB257 million (or 0.78% of total contract
value) for nuclear power equipment, RMB942 million (or 2.84% of total
contract value) for hybrid equipment, RMB7.938 billion (or 23.98% of
total contract value) for power engineering, and RMB4.989 billion (or
15.07% of total contract value) for other products.

New breakthroughs were achieved in securing MW-grade projects.
Contracts were signed in connection with the 1,000 MW double reheat
generating units for Phase 3 of the Fengcheng Power Station and
Guohua Qingyuan Power Plant, achieving breakthrough in MW-grade
double reheat turbine generating units and taking a leading position in
the double reheat boiler market.

Turnkey projects realized new growth when contracts were signed for
600 MW generating units in connection with such projects as
Qixiaying, Phase Il of Jinzhou, Shenhua Huaidong, Huadian Xianghuan
and Xishangzhuang, enhancing customer recognition.

Progress was also made in the nuclear power market. The successful
bid of 2 conventional island turbine generating units of 1,260 MW each
for the nuclear power plant at Bailong, Guangxi strengthened the
Group's position in the AP1000 nuclear power market while the
successful bid of coolant pump support for nuclear power plants
Fuging 5 & Fuging 6 further expanded our capacity of supplying nuclear
island equipment.

New move was made in the international market and contracts were
signed in respect of the turnkey projects of combined cycle power
plant in Bhikki (1,180 MW) and Balloki (1,223 MW) of Pakistan with an
aggregate contract value of RMB7 billion. Besides, we won the bid of
Phase 1 and 2 of Hassyan clean coal power plant in Dubai, representing

a bold step into the investment segment of the power market.
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PRODUCTION AND SERVICES

Addressing the repeated suspension and disruption of projects and the
frequent occurrence of adversities, a comprehensive analysis of the
orders on hand was conducted so as to determine the production
volume of major product lines for each quarter and come up with a
more systematic and scientific production plan. We paid more visits to
customers for a timely understanding of the projects, took necessary
precautionary measures to manage risks and adjusted the production
plan in a flexible manner to improve utilization rate. We exercised
stricter process control to check on production targets for major
product lines and procured the responsible units to take measures to
accomplish the annual production targets.

In 2015, the total output of the Group's power equipment reached
20,950.3 MW, down by 7.41% over the previous year, representing
113.43% of the designed capacity. Total output of water turbine
generators amounted to 5,070.3 MW, down by 21.12% over the
previous year, representing 91.19% of the designed capacity. Total
output of steam turbine generators amounted to 15,880.0 MW, down
by 1.87% over the previous year, representing 123.01% of the
designed capacity. Total output of steam turbine for power stations
amounted to 13,836.0 MW, down by 21.29% over the previous year,
representing 105.78% of the designed capacity. Total output of boilers
for power stations amounted to 14,120.0 MW, up by 0.50% over the
previous year, representing 100.14% of the designed capacity.

R&D AND TECHNOLOGY INTRODUCTION

In 2015, the Group incurred a R&D expenditure of RMB1.47 billion to
complete 308 R&D projects and 83 new products, receiving 30 awards
for technology achievements and being granted 346 patent
authorizations (up by 10% over the previous year), 98 of which were

related to inventions, representing an year-on-year increase of 139%.
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Major nuclear power projects, namely the “key common technology
research of large scale half-speed saturated steam turbine and large
scale steam turbine generators” and the “research on local production
of stator bar for half-speed steam turbine nuclear power generator”,
were confirmed for acceptance. Our stator bar for half-speed steam
turbine nuclear power generator with independent intellectual property
rights is among the world's top performers. The 600 MW supercritical
“W" flame boiler No. 2 at Huadian Tangzhai power station in Guizhou
completed transformation, mastering the supercritical “W" flame
technology with independent intellectual property rights. Steam turbine
double reheat technology was optimized to be free from export
restrictions of equipment. The first proprietary made-in-China 300 MW
nuclear power main bump completed with satisfactory results. The
R&D of the “Hualong One"” steam generators is advancing with good
progress. The self-initiated “100T/H Modular Smart Microgrid —
integrated desalination system” is an original technology of the PRC
and the project has entered the test run phase.

REFORM AND MANAGEMENT

To speed up the reform of marketing mechanism, tendering function
for coal-fired steam turbine generating unit with a capacity of 600 MW
and above has shifted from the manufacturing entities to corporate
headquarters so as to centralize the function under the headquarters.

Management consultation is activated by engaging professional
consultants to consider the functions of the headquarters as well as
the division of authority between the headquarters and the entities.

For the companies engaged in modern industries, finance and research
centers, management of human resources and legal affairs is
centralized to enhance work standards.

Management of the nuclear power equipment design institute is
further consolidated to accentuate the support of production
technology and the enhancement of design capacity for nuclear island.

To integrate environmental protection with the industry , the
environmental protection division was scrapped and the operation and
staff of that division were transferred to the Boiler Company so as to
concentrate resources on the integration of denitrification, desulfation

and dust removal.
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PROFIT

In 2015, net profit attributable to the shareholders of the parent was
RMB196.21 million, a decrease of 65.36% over the previous year.
Earnings per share were RMBO0.14, a decrease of RMBO0.27 over the
previous year. The reduction in the Group’s profits is mainly due to the
fact that income from equity for the period was substantially realized
through fair value in the previous year, causing a significant drop in
gains from changes in fair value for the period.

DIVIDEND

A dividend of RMBO0.015 per share (appropriate tax included) for 2015
was proposed by the Board.

OPERATING INCOME

In 2015, the Group recorded an operating income of RMB25,097.22
million, an increase of 4.46% over the corresponding period last year,
of which operating income from the main thermal power equipment
was RMB9,331.66 million (or 37.18% of the total operating income),
representing an year-on-year decrease of 14.73%. Operating income
from main hydropower equipment was RMB2,705.71 million (or
10.78% of the total operating income), representing an year-on-year
decrease of 6.92%. Operating income from engineering services for
power stations was RMB6,819.32 million (or 27.17% of the total
operating income), representing an year-on-year increase of 75.11%.
Operating income from ancillary equipment for power stations was
RMB1,747.54 million (or 6.96% of the total operating income),
representing an year-on-year increase of 12.29%. Operating income
from AC/DC motors and other products and services was RMB2,769.13
million (or 11.04% of the total operating income), representing an year-
on-year decrease of 17.56%. Operating income from nuclear power
products was RMB1,723.86 million (or 6.87% of the total operating
income) , representing an year-on-year increase of 26.10%.

In 2015, the Group recorded an income of export of RMB6,616.86
million (or 26.36% of the total operating income), increasing by
RMB2,282.25 million over the previous year. The export was

dominated by Asia and South America.
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COSTS

In 2015, the operating costs of the Group were RMB21,770.59 million,
representing an increase of 4.35% over the previous year, mainly
attributable to the expansion of sales scale.

GROSS PROFIT AND GROSS PROFIT MARGIN

In 2015, the Group realized a gross profit from operating business of
RMB3,326.63 million, representing an year-on-year increase of 5.18%.
The gross profit margin was 13.25%, representing an year-on-year
increase of 0.09 %. The gross profit from main thermal power
equipment was RMB1,994.20 million, increasing by RMB343.19 million
over the previous year. The corresponding gross profit margin was
21.37%, representing an year-on-year increase of 6.28%.The gross
profit from main hydropower equipment was RMB47.33 million,
decreasing by RMB341.38 million over the previous year. The
corresponding gross profit margin was 1.75%, representing an year-on-
year decrease of 11.62%. The gross profit from engineering services
for power stations was RMB490.60 million, increasing by RMB189.99
million over the previous year. The corresponding gross profit margin
was 7.19%, representing an year-on-year decrease of 0.53%. The
gross profit from ancillary equipment and products for power stations
was RMB280.94 million, decreasing by RMB79.68 million over the
previous year. The corresponding gross profit margin was 16.08%,
representing an year-on-year decrease of 7.09%. The gross profit from
the AC/DC motors and other products and services was RMB321.91
million, increasing by RMB26.16 million over the previous year. The
corresponding gross profit margin was 11.62%, representing an year-
on-year increase of 2.86%. The gross profit from the nuclear products
was RMB191.65 million, increasing by RMB25.34 million over the
previous year. The corresponding gross profit margin was 11.12%,
representing an year-on-year decrease of 1.05%.

EXPENSES FOR THE PERIOD

In 2015, the Group's distribution expenses amounted to RMB678.80
million, representing an increase of RMB17.16 million or 2.59% over
the previous year. Administrative expenses incurred amounted to

RMB2,167.13 million, representing an year-on-year decrease of
RMB150.05 million or 6.48%. Finance costs incurred was RMB162.25
million, representing an year-on-year decrease of RMB21.63 million or
11.76%.
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The decrease in expenses during the period was mainly due to the
year-on-year decrease of staff salary included in administration
expenses for the year and the year-on-year increase in exchange gains
included in finance costs.

FUNDING SOURCES AND BORROWINGS
STATUS

The Group financed its operation and development with four major
funding sources, namely shareholder’s funds, trade receivables from
customers, bank borrowings and corporate bonds. The Group arranges
borrowings for each specific project. Except for some exceptions, loans
are usually raised individually by the Group's subsidiaries, while prior
approval from the parent company is required in respect of borrowings
raised for capital investments. As at 31 December 2015, the Group's
total borrowings amounted to RMB3,297.08 million(31 December
2014:RMB3,062.62 million) all of which amounts were borrowed from
various commercial banks at interest rates stipulated by the state.
Among those borrowings, the amount repayable within one year was
RMB3,297.08 million, representing an increase of RMB308.90 million
as compared to the beginning of the year. The amount due after one
year in the beginning of the year was RMB74.45 million.

MONETARY CAPITAL AND CASH FLOWS

As at 31 December 2015, the monetary capital of the Group was
RMB18,237.01 million, representing an increase of RMB3,627.26
million as compared to the beginning of the year. During the period, the
net cash flow generated from operating activities of the Group was
RMB4,410.62 million, while investing activities generated negative net
cash flow of RMB694.71 million and financing activities generated
negative net cash flow of RMB116.56 million.

ASSET STRUCTURE AND MOVEMENTS

As at 31 December 2015, total assets of the Group amounted to
RMB64,163.25 million, representing an increase of RMB2,001.77
million (or 3.22%) as compared to the beginning of the year, of which
current assets were RMB56,129.36 million, representing 87.48% of
the total assets, while non-current assets were RMB8,033.89 million,

representing 12.52% of the total assets.
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LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2015, total liabilities of the Group amounted to
RMB50,246.36 million, representing an increase of RMB2,089.93
million as compared to the beginning of the year, of which current
liabilities were RMB45,769.74 million, representing 91.09% of the total
liabilities, while non-current liabilities were RMB4,476.62 million,
representing 8.91% of the total liabilities. As at 31 December 2015, the
gearing ratio of the Group was 78.31%.

OWNERS’ INTERESTS

As at 31 December 2015, the total equity attributable to the owners of
the parent company amounted to RMB12,707.39 million, representing
an increase of RMB31.52 million as compared to the beginning of the
year; the net asset per share was RMB9.23, representing an increase
of RMBO0.02 as compared to the beginning of the year. During the
period, the net return rate on assets of the Group was 1.55%.

GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2015, gearing ratio of the Group (non-current
liabilities over total shareholders’ equity) was 0.35:1 as compared to
that of 0.36:1 at the beginning of the year.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND PLEDGES

As at 31 December 2015, the Group pledged its assets of RMB127.67
million to secure loans for liquidity.
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CAPITAL EXPENDITURES AND MAJOR
INVESTMENTS HELD

In 2015, the Group had a total capital expenditure of RMB516 million
being invested in major construction projects and technological
upgrades. The progress of those projects is as follows:

Phase | of the technology research base of HE Corporation, the
construction of information technology infrastructure for the technology
research base in Jiangbei (JT 3t) and the power system upgrades of
Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited were substantially
completed. HE International Trade Tower project of Harbin Power
Technology & Trade Inc. has completed protection measures for the
exterior of the building. The constructing technology upgrading project
for nuclear turbine core capacity of Harbin Turbine Company Limited
and manufacturing base improvement project for main nuclear pump
motor units of Harbin Electric Power Equipment Company Limited, the
manufacturing capacity enhancement project for key nuclear pump and
key equipment for long-distance natural gas pipeline of Harbin Electric
Power Equipment Company Limited, the technology development and
product manufacturing projects of HTR steam generator, reheater and
main body testing of Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy
Equipment Company Limited proceeded as scheduled.

In 2016, the Group intends to commit an investment of RMB1.460
billion, which will mainly finance the constructing technology upgrade
of nuclear turbine core capacity of Harbin Turbine Company Limited,
the improvement of manufacturing base of main nuclear pump motor
units for Harbin Electric Power Equipment Company Limited, the
enhancement of manufacturing capacity of key nuclear pump and long
distance pipe key equipment for natural gas of Harbin Electric Power
Equipment Company Limited, development and product manufacturing
projects of HTR steam generator, reheater and main body testing of
Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy Equipment Company Limited,
nuclear island main equipment manufacturing automation for nuclear
power of Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy Equipment
Company Limited, HE International Trade Tower project of Harbin
Power Technology & Trade Inc., acquisition of properties and land
items of Harbin Boiler Company Limited and the newly-built production

base of HE(Harbin) Haguo Boiler Manufacturing Technology Company
Limited.
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As at 31 December 2015, the Company ceased to hold any shares in
listed companies.

EXPOSURE TO FLUCTUATIONS IN EXCHANGE
RATES AND RELATED HEDGES

Some of the deposits of the Group are denominated in foreign
currencies. As at 31 December 2015, the amount of the Group's
deposits in foreign currencies was equivalent to RMB736.47 million.
The export business and foreign currencies settled businesses expose
the Group to exchange risk. The Group has adopted forward exchange
settlement in respect of foreign currency amounting to US$ 810
million.

USE OF FUND-RAISING PROCEEDS

Proceeds from equity fund-raising of the Company were fully utilised.

In March 2013, the Company issued the domestic corporate bonds
(first tranche) of RMB3.0 billion, of which RMB370 million (2013:
RMB2.63 billion) was applied to replenish working capital for production
in 2014. Proceeds from issuance of bonds were fully utilised.

STAFF AND REMUNERATION

As at 31 December 2015, the Group had a workforce of 18,691
employees and the total remuneration for 2015 amounted to
RMB1,674 million. The Group holds nurturing talents in high regard and
has been enhancing staff training. The Group has established a
systematic annual training programme according to its development
strategies and business needs. A total of 872 courses covering various
aspects have been organized with an accumulated attendance of over
50,000.
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PROSPECTS

In 2016, the global economy will remain in slow recovery amidst
uncertainties and instabilities. China's economic development has
entered the new normal, in which certain conflicts and issues remain
to be solved and downward pressure keeps growing. The complicated
and ever-changing global economic condition gives rise to enormous
challenges and opportunities. The new wave of technology innovation
and industry reform is creating a historic opportunity for intelligent
manufacturing as well as new technologies, new economic patterns
and new industries (such as Made-in-China 2025, Internet+, sharing
economy etc.) which promise significant business opportunities.
Entering the starting year of the 13th Five-year Plan, The Group is in
the critical moment of reform and development. It will adhere to its
innovation-led strategy, determination to start a new undertaking,
intensification of corporate reform, consolidation of development
foundation and ongoing pursuit of a healthy development so as to
reward the shareholders with even better operating results.

The Group will address the following areas in 2016:

Being customer-oriented while securing more orders from the
market

Stepping up marketing efforts. We will improve the mechanism of
classification of major projects. While coordination and planning rest
with the corporate headquarters, the Company makes all-out efforts to
achieve performance by analyzing the competition condition in a timely
manner, enhancing synergy in market development, modifying the
evaluation system for market development and establishing new
incentive measures.
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Focusing on securing orders. We will closely monitor updated market
demand, investigate into the change in customer composition and
analyze competitors’ new moves so as to supply turnkey projects of
ultra-supercritical generating unit with a capacity of 1,000MW to top
five power generation group enterprises. The Group will make all-out
efforts in the global market, striving for entering into major projects like
Yongxin Ill (;x # = #i) and Wandan Il (8 & — #), strengthen the
cooperation with state-owned enterprises and achieve new
development in joint overseas expansion, nuclear power market, fuel-
fired generator market, environmental protection market. We will
develop the market of renovation for in-use generators with the focus
being on the renovation project of Dateng Group.

Gaining reputation with punctual delivery. Aiming at improving
efficiency of contract performance and customer satisfaction, the
Group makes all-out efforts on the project management regarding
maijor projects: Jiujiang project (J1yTE B ), Baku project in Bangladesh
(F= MNP ETE B ), Dagang project in Tianjin (KEZEAXBEH ), and pilot
projects: Fengcheng Il (£ =Hf). We have attached great importance
to the delivery, dynamic monitor, prior warning alarm and attention to
details in order to ensure customer satisfaction.

Achieving breakthrough in quality while enhancing
competitiveness

The Group will strengthen its quality management by enhancing the
reliability, scientificity and trackability of quality data, establishing
regular reporting mechanism regarding quality issue, improving typical
quality-related issues, increasing purchasing quantity, coordinating and
outsourcing quality checks, raising the level of accountability for quality-
related issues and materializing the “veto by one vote” system in
addressing quality-related issues.

The Group will strive to fundamentally reverse the rejection and
dissatisfaction of customers by working diligently on the “Top 10
quality improvements” to realize its full potential and solve the
problems of performance and quality with technology innovation. More
efforts will be made to handle feedbacks obtained from customers by
paying them frequent visits and to make full use of the analysis results

and prevent reoccurrence of problems.
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We will improve the service mechanism, optimize service system as
well as workforce structure and enhance capability for on-site service
and contingency. For improving service capability, we will set up a
reliable and effective communication channel to accommodate a
“mutual back-up” function with customers.

Enhancing profitability based on effectiveness

Perfecting operating mechanism. We will establish a more effective
budget system to promote a comprehensive budget management,
better quality in operation and more powerful risk management. Step-
up measures will be taken to achieve cost control target in such areas
as technology, purchasing and manufacturing. The proportion of total
costs to operating income for 2016 targets at a reduction of more than
2 percentage points over the previous year.

Enhancing profitability. By managing targets, closely monitoring
performance and enhancing guidance and coordination, we will
implement a main responsibility system to achieve revenue growth
particularly in Turbine Company and Electric Machinery Company
capitalizing on the expansion of operation scale.

Ongoing process of cost reduction and effectiveness enhancement.
We will adhere to a two-prong approach to relieve pressure on
inventory and trade receivables, targeting at a continuous reduction as
compared with that of 2015. To avoid effectiveness downturn, we will
have better internal support, perfect the system and reinforce the
synergy. We will promote centralized procurement and complete an
e-commerce platform. In 2016, online purchasing ratio will reach 50%.
We will implement centralized cash management with a concentration
rate of over 75%.

Innovation development powered by technology

We will perfect the technology innovation system by focusing on the
establishment of R&D of nuclear main pump and improving self-
initiated innovation ability. We actively seek sponsorship for projects by
ensuring effective management of national research projects and
exercising strict control over project risks. We will rationalize the
technology development system to enhance advanced design and

protection.
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We will accelerate the development process of new products and new
technologies, further increase technology inputs and make additional
efforts to develop the clean coal power generators, products with
independent intellectual property rights such as “Hualong One", as
well as the double reheat generating units and Zhundong coal
technology. We will refine the renovation plan for in-use generators to
improve our technology level. The development and accumulation of
new technologies, such as photovoltaic and tidal current power
generation, will be speeded up.

The Group intends to accelerate the nurturing of high-level personnel of
the Company and promote the implementation of the “50 talents” plan
to nurture leaders for the technology industry and form an innovation
team. We will build up a systematic mechanism to nurture talents,
deepen the establishment of a Y-shaped channel and provide the staff
with more space for development. To accelerate the growth of staff,
we will strengthen talent training, raise the training standards and
enhance the effects.

Focusing on emerging industries while further intensifying
structure adjustment

We will formulate plans for the development of nuclear power and fuel-
fired generators in light of the “13th Five-Year-Plan” to advance the
development of nuclear power and fuel-fired generators business. We
will complete the upgrading plan for Power Equipment Company and
Turbine Company, ensure the timely delivery of Fuging power
generators no.5 and no.6, and Tianwan conventional island equipment
No. 4 in order to launch the nuclear power business into the
international markets. The formation of joint venture with GE in respect
of the fuel-fired generator segment will be speeded up. The target for
2016 is to command a 40% market share in the fuel-fired generator
product market.
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To facilitate its long-term development, the Group accelerates the
process of tapping into the environmental protection industry and
setting up an environmental protection company, as well as obtains top
level accreditation in design. We integrate our enterprise structure and
establish a comprehensive power station service system to perfect our
after sales service. We accomplish the industry development in relation
to solar energy, tidal current energy, containers for petrochemicals,
distributed energy, etc. and actively explore the new industry of
generator pumps.

Meanwhile, we will put more efforts into the projects in Dubai and
Indonesia as a general contractor and investor, turning ourselves into
an investor in the power industry.

Regulating the system by leveraging on reforms

Exercising the overall control, the corporate headquarters are
responsible for organizing the system reforms whereby functions and
responsibilities are clearly defined and authority delegated to enhance
the headquarters’ control and efficiency. Through planning,
arrangement and implementation, the optimization of workforce
structure at headquarters will be accelerated and the overall service
standards of headquarters can also be further improved.

We will deepen reforms in three levels. The reform in allocation is to
adopt a more scientific and reasonable remuneration system instead of
rigid uniformity, especially in Turbine Company, Electrical Machinery
Institute, Heavy Equipment Company, Power Equipment Company,
Valve Company, Modern Industry Company, etc.. The reform in labour
system is to implement a skimming plan, especially in Electrical
Machinery Institute and Turbine Company, laying off redundant
employees and cutting management assistance positions. We will
learn from the management philosophy and performance-oriented
culture of GE Company in order to promote a performance assessment

framework.
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#H—FREEREIR  ZUBETIRBRBUERK B E In order to further improve our risk management, we will closely
[ SEADIEEKERE  EWHIEESRN monitor the economic and political conditions around the globe, analyze
I AFHHAIREXRRR  EEMTFREREE the policy and environment of the regions where the projects are
NZ@/KEEE RBRIHIZE - NRESRERELE located, prevent risks arising from contract performance, labor and
MFESRFNRASLMER - BIgZESIAE RS exchange rates, especially the risks relating to HE International
FRERER  RETUTFHELENT  HERE Company's hydropower project in Ecuador. We will step up the capital
GT B 78 B SR S M AR st © risk control measures by monitoring the opening and management of

capital accounts, strictly controlling and regularly settling the
guarantees provided. We will enforce financial disciplines and strictly
control the collection and statistics of financial data.

R e GHBE —E—AFE=F-1+HH Harbin, PRC, 25 March 2016
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DIRECTORS

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Zou Lei, born in June 1966, a senior economist with a doctor'’s
degree, now the chairman and party secretary of HE, and chairman and
party secretary of the Company. Mr. Zou graduated from Jiamusi
Technical College in July 1988, and then he obtained a doctorate
degree from Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Zou joined HE in 1988
and was the dispatcher, Party office secretary, league deputy secretary,
secretary in dispatching room of production division in the former
Harbin Boiler Works, Party branch secretary of pipe first branch factory,
factory director of heavy vessel workshop, factory director of Pingshan
branch factory, production director, deputy general manager, chairman,
general manager and Party committee deputy secretary of Harbin
Boiler Company Limited. Since December 2008, Mr. Zou was elected
as standing committee member of the Party Committee, director and
general manager of HE. He has been a director of the Company since
February 2009 and the deputy chairman of the Company since
December 2009. He has been the chairman and party secretary of HE
since February 2015 and chairman and party secretary of the Company
since March 2015.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Wei-zhang, born in July 1962, is a senior engineer at
researcher level with a doctor’'s degree. He now serves as a deputy
general manager, a standing committee member of the Party
Committee of HE, and an executive director, President and a standing
committee member of the Party Committee of the Company. Majoring
in Hydraulics and River Dynamics, Mr. Wu graduated from Tsinghua
University with a master’s degree in 1988 and subsequently obtained a
doctorate degree at Tsinghua University in 2002.Mr. Wu joined HE in
1988. Mr. Wu has been a deputy director and deputy head of the
turbine department of Electrical Machinery Institute, a deputy manager
of hydropower workshop, a deputy chief engineer and a deputy
manager of the product design department of the Electrical Machinery
Company of the Group. Mr. Wu was appointed as the deputy general
manager of the Electrical Machinery Company since 1999 and then the
chairman and general manager since October 2000 respectively. He
also holds various social posts, including the director general of the
large electrical equipment branch of China Electrical Equipment
Industrial Association, a directorate member of the water turbine
special committee of China Power Project (/R g ) T 1) a
directorate member and secretary general of China Water Turbine
Standardized Technology Committee (1 B /K in&IZ &L KT E B <)
as well as an adjunct professor of Harbin Institute of Technology and
Huazhong University of Science and Technology. He was appointed as
an executive director of the Company since September 2000 and has
been serving as the general manager of the Company since February
2010. He has been the President of the Company since March 2013.
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Mr. Zhang Ying-jian, born in November 1964, a master's degree
holder and senior engineer, is currently the deputy general manager of
HE, an executive director and a senior Vice-president of the Company,
and a director of Jiamusi Electric Machine Company Limited. Mr. Zhang
graduated from the Department of Thermal Engineering at Tsinghua
University with a bachelor’'s degree in gas turbines in July 1988 and
subsequently obtained a master’'s degree from Harbin Institute of
Technology. Mr. Zhang joined HE in 1991. He was formerly a project
engineer, project manager, business representative, deputy controller
of Harbin Power Station Equipment Import and Export Company,
deputy chief engineer, deputy manager of financial planning division
and deputy general manager of Harbin Power Engineering Company
Limited. He became the deputy general manager of HE since
September 2007, a non-executive director of the Company since
January 2013, and an executive director and the senior Vice-president
of the Company since March 2013.

Mr. Song Shi-qi, born in December 1958, a senior engineer, is
currently the deputy general manager of HE, an executive director and
senior Vice-president of the Company. Mr. Song graduated from Harbin
Electrical Machinery Plant Technical School in 1980 and subsequently
attained post-graduate qualification in economic management from
Heilongjiang Provincial Committee Party School. Mr. Song joined HE in
1980. He was formerly a youth league committee member, deputy
secretary, secretary of Harbin Electrical Machinery Works and a
secretary of the party sub-division at the specialized equipment factory,
a party standing committee member of both Harbin Power Plant
Equipment Group Corporation and the Company, the head of the
Company's Organization Department, as well as an assistant to the
general manager of the Company. He has been the deputy party
secretary and a secretary of the disciplinary committee, director,
deputy managing director, party secretary and deputy chairman of the
machinery division of the Group since 1998. He became the deputy
general manager of HE since August 2009 and has been a non-
executive director of the Company since January 2013, and an

executive director and the senior Vice-president of the Company since
March 2013.
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Independent non-executive directors

Mr. Yu Bo, born in October 1960, is a professor with a doctor degree,
tutor for doctoral candidates, independent non-executive director of the
Company, director of the Development Strategy Research Centre and
director of Research Institute for Higher Education at Harbin Institute of
Technology. Mr. Yu graduated from industrial electric automation,
Harbin Institute of Technology in 1981, and began his career from
1982. He was a tutor, lecturer, associate professor, professor of School
of Management at Harbin Institute of Technology (SMHIT). He became
director of Management Department of SMHIT in 2000, director of
MBA School of SMHIT in 2002, and assistant to dean of SMHIT,
director of MBA School in 2003, dean of SMHIT in 2008. He has been
a director of the Development Strategy Research Centre and director
of Research Institute for Higher Education at Harbin Institute of
Technology since 2015. Mr. Yu is also a deputy director of Energy
System Engineering Committee of China Energy Research Society, a
member of National MBA Education Committee, a member of Military
Technology Administration of China Ordnance Society, a councilor of
Chinese Society of Technology Economics, a member of Space
Technology Committee of Beijing Society of Astronautics, a councilor
of Aerospace Research Society, a councilor of Heilongjiang Provincial
Budgetary Council, an industrial expert of Heilongjiang Science and
Technology Consultation Committee. He has been appointed as
independent non-executive director of the Company since December
2009.
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Mr. Liu Deng-qing, born in November 1970, is a doctor in
management studies of Tsinghua University, a CPV, CREA, and CMRA
(Certified Mining Rights Appraiser) of China. He is one of the first Top
Ten Youth Appraisers and an independent non-executive director of the
Company; a partner, vice president and chief appraiser of China
Enterprise Appraisal Company. He is a member of the Tenth China
Youth Federation; a councilor of China Appraisal Society; fellow
member of China Appraisal Society; a member of State-owned Assets
Supervision and Administration Commission under the State Council
(“SASAC"), and Project Appraisal Expert Group of the Ministry of
Finance; a member of the tenth and eleventh Issuance Verification
Committee of the China Securities Regulatory Commission; a member
of Appraisal Standard Committee of China Appraisal Society; a member
of Enterprise Valuation Committee, and Intangible Asset Appraisal
Committee, and Continuation Education Committee of CPV; a member
of Appraisal Committee of CPA Beijing, and Publicity Committee; a
member of Editorial Committee of CPA Beijing; an independent director
of China Spacesat Co Ltd. and an independent supervisor of Qingdao
Port International Co., Ltd. He has been appointed as independent non-
executive director of the Company since December 2009.
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Mr. Yu Wen-xing, born in October 1953, is a retired senior engineer at
professor level with a bachelor’'s degree, independent non-executive
director of the Company. Mr. Yu was graduated from North China
University of Water Resources and Electric Power, majoring in water
resources and hydropower engineering and construction. Mr. Yu
started his career in 1971. He has worked at “Wu-gi” Youth Farm
(Il 7+ | 54 EB) in Jiegou, Boai County, Henan Province, studied
geology at Changsha Metallurgy Industry College ()84 T 224
under the Ministry of Metallurgical Industry and worked at Handan-
Xingtai Administrative Bureau for Metallurgy and Mine (HB#F)A & 8& 1L
E12F) under the Ministry of Metallurgical Industry. He has also been
a cadre of academic exchange division of the China Water Resources
Association (F B 7K F| 173 & £2 i 22 /7t 4H), secretary of the secretariat
and engineer of general office at the Ministry of Water Resources and
Electric Power (K& 38), deputy secretary at division grade of general
office at the Ministry of Energy (#£JR2B), deputy director and director
of comprehensive office at the Agriculture and Electricity Department
(=¥ 7)) and chief secretary at division grade of Water Resources and
Electric Power Department of Ministry of Energy and Industry (&1 T
¥ Z8 7k E 7Al). He has served as a deputy director of Beijing
representative office of China Three Gorges Corporation since 1993,
and has subsequently been head of international cooperation
department, head of general management department, head of
construction department at Xiangjiaba Dam and assistant to the general
manager. He has also served as a party committee member and head
of discipline department of China Three Gorges Corporation since
March 2006 and party committee member, head of discipline

department and director of China Three Gorges Corporation since

December 2010, and retired in June 2014. He has been an independent
director of China XD Electric Co., Ltd. since December 2014. He has
been appointed as independent non-executive director of the Company
since March 2015.
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SUPERVISORS

Supervisors representing shareholders

Mr. Feng Yong-qgiang, born in September 1963, is a senior policy
advisor with a master degree. He is currently the vice secretary of the
Party Committee of HE and the Company and the Chairman of the
Supervisory Committee of the Company. He graduated from Harbin
Institute of Electrical Engineering specializing in Electric Machinery in
1985, and later obtained a master degree in Business Administration
from Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Feng joined HE in 1985, and
has worked as a technician of the machinery department of the Boiler
Company of the Group, the secretary of the Party Committee office,
the vice secretary of the Communist Youth League, secretary, director
of No. 1 Pipe Workshop, director of heavy vessel workshop, as well as
the vice secretary of the Party Committee, the secretary of the Party
Committee and vice chairman of the Boiler Company. He was
appointed as a standing committee member of the City Committee and
deputy mayor (acting) of Tongliao, Inner Mongolia Autonomous Region
since November 2001. He has been the deputy general manager of the
Company since April 2004, the vice secretary of the Party Committee
of HE since October 2008, and the vice secretary of the Party
Committee of the Company since January 2009. He has been
appointed as a supervisor representing shareholders and Chairman of
the Supervisory Committee of the Company since November 2014.

Mr. Chen Guang, born in August 1964, a senior engineer with a
postgraduate degree, is a supervisor representing shareholders of the
Company and director of the Corporate Management and Development
Department of the Boiler Company of the Group. Mr. Chen graduated
from Xi‘an Jiaotong University in 1986 and joined HE in the same year.
He was appointed as a designer of the Design Department of the
Boiler Company of the Group, secretary of factory office, deputy
manager of the spare parts company, deputy secretary and chairman of
Labor Union of No. 2 Pipe Workshop, secretary and head of Drum
Workshop, head, director of Security Department and secretary of No.1
Pipe Workshop. He has been appointed as the director of the Corporate
Management and Development Department of the Boiler Company
since August 2009. He has been a supervisor representing

shareholders of the Company since December 2009.
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Supervisors representing staff and workers

Mr. Zhang Wen-ming, born in September 1974, a senior engineer with
a master degree, now a supervisor representing staff and workers of
the Company and the head of Organization Department of the Party
Committee of the Turbine Company of the Group. Mr. Zhang graduated
from Anshan Institute of Iron and Steel Technology, majoring in metal
press processing. Then he obtained a master degree in engineering
from Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Zhang started his career in
July 2000. He was the engineer of the material research center,
secretary to the general manager, deputy director of the technology
and management division and deputy director and director of the
corporate development center of the Turbine Company of the Group.
He has been the head of Organization Department of the Party
Committee of the Turbine Company of the Group since January 2013
and has been a supervisor representing staff and workers of the
Company since January 2013.

Mr. Zhang Jun-quan, born in February 1964, is a senior engineer with
a bachelor degree. He is currently a supervisor representing staff and
workers of the Company and the head of the Party Committee of the
Organization Department of Electric Machinery Company of the Group.
Mr. Zhang graduated from Shenyang Architectural and Civil Engineering
Institute specializing in Machinery Engineering and Equipment. Mr.
Zhang joined HE in 1986, and has worked as a technician, the deputy
head of technical room, deputy director and director of the Coil Factory
of Electric Machinery Company of the Group and head of equipment
department of Electric Machinery Company. He has been the head of
the Organization Department of Party Committee of Electric Machinery
Company since March 2013 and a supervisor representing staff and

workers of the Company since November 2014.
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Independent Supervisor

Mr. Xu Er-ming, born in December 1949, a professor and supervisor of
Ph.D. candidates with a doctorate degree, is an independent supervisor
of the Company and Deputy Dean of the Graduate School of the
Renmin University of China. Mr. Xu graduated from the Department of
Industrial Economics of Renmin University of China in 1978 and stayed
at the university after his graduation, where he worked as a tutor,
lecturer, associate professor and professor. He was appointed as the
director of office for Canada-China Management Education Program of
the Renmin University of China in 1991, and later the deputy director of
the Department of Industrial Economics, the deputy director of the
Center for Business Administration Education and the deputy director
of Institute of Foreign Economic Management of the Renmin University
of China at the same time. He was appointed as the Deputy Dean of
Business Administration School of the Renmin University of China in
1996 and the Dean in 1997. He has been appointed as the Deputy
Dean of the Graduate School of the Renmin University of China since
June 2006. He is now Deputy Secretary-General of the Tenth Session
of the Academic Committee, and a member of the Third Session of the
University Affairs Committee of the Renmin University of China, a
member of the Sixth Session of the Business Administration Academic
Appraisal Group of the Academic Degree Committee of the State
Council, Vice Chairman of the Chinese Enterprise Management
Research Association, and Chairman of Beijing Contemporary
Enterprise Research Association, independent non-executive director
of China Telecom Corporation Limited. He is entitled to the State
Council’s special government allowances. He has also been appointed
as Associate Convener of the Fifth Session of the Business
Administration Academic Appraisal Group of the Academic Degree
Committee of the State Council, a member of the Advisory Committee
of National MBA Education, and a director of the Advisory Committee
for University Business Administration Education led by Ministry of
Education. Professor Xu is an adjunct professor at over 10 universities
in China including Zhejiang University, and has been teaching at New
York State University at Buffalo, the University of Scranton, the
University of Technology, Sydney, Australia, the Kyushu University,
Japan and Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He has been an

independent supervisor of the Company since December 2009.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. Miao Li-jie, born in June 1956, holds a doctorate degree and the
title of researcher-grade senior engineer. He is now a director, a deputy
general manager and a standing committee member of the Party
Committee of HE, and the senior Vice-president and a standing
committee member of the Party Committee of the Company. Mr. Miao
graduated from the Automatic Control Engineering Department of
Harbin University of Science and Technology (P4 BB R K2 8 Bhz 4
H ) in 1982, and obtained a master degree from Shenyang University
of Technology and a doctorate degree from Tsinghua University. He
obtained a post-doctorate diploma from the post-doctorate research
centre of Harbin University of Engineering. Mr. Miao joined HE in 1985,
and worked as the engineer, senior engineer, department supervisor,
manager of operation department, assistant to general manager and
deputy chief engineer of Harbin Electrical Machinery of the Group, and
general manager and chairman of Harbin National Engineering
Research Center Co., Ltd (FaBRBBIR TIRFAFH LAERAF), as well
as assistant to general manager, deputy general manager and a
standing committee member of the Party Committee of the Company.
He has been a director, a deputy general manager and a standing
committee member of the Party Committee of HE since 2009, and a
Senior Vice-President of the Company since March 2013.

Mr. Liu Zhi-quan, born in July 1968, is a senior accountant and
certified public accountant in China with a doctor’'s degree. He now
serves as the chief accountant of HE and Senior Vice-President of the
Company. Mr. Liu graduated from Harbin Institute of Technology,
majoring in industrial accounting with a bachelor's degree. He
subsequently obtained a doctorate degree from the same university.
Mr. Liu joined the Group in 1991. He has been an assistant to the
director of finance department of the Boiler Company of the Group, the
deputy director and the director, and the deputy chief accountant and
head of finance department of the Group. He was appointed as the
deputy general manager of the Harbin Boiler Company Limited in April
2001. Mr. Liu has been serving as deputy general manager of the
Company since September 2006, Vice-President of the Company since
March 2013 and Senior Vice-President of the Company since
November 2014. He assumed the post as the company secretary of

the Company from January 2012 to January 2013.
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Mr. Zhang Hai-quan, born in September 1961, is a senior engineer
with an MBA degree. He now serves as an assistant to the general
manager of HE and Vice-president of the Company. Mr. Zhang
graduated from Harbin Institute of Electrical Engineering in 1984 and
joined HE in the same year. He has been an engineer of the enginery
repairing workshop, the secretary and an assistant to the director of
the Communist Party Committee Office of the former Boiler Works of
the Group. In 1994, Mr. Zhang participated in the reorganization of HE
to be a shareholding enterprise and the issuance and listing of the
Company'’s shares. Since November 1994, he has been appointed as
the deputy director of the general manager office, the deputy director
of the planning department and director of the enterprise management
department, and the director of the auditing and law department of the
Boiler Company of the Group. Since 1998, he was a member of the
HE's and the Company’s Standing Communist Party Committee and
director of the organization department. Since 1999, Mr. Zhang was
appointed as the secretary of the Communist Party Committee and
vice chairman of Archeng Relay Group Company and Archeng Relay
Company Limited. He has been serving as the deputy general manager
of the Company since October 2000 and the Vice-President of the
Company since March 2013.

Mr. Qu Zhe, born in July 1962, is a senior engineer with a postgraduate
degree. He now serves as an assistant to the general manager of HE
and the Vice-president of the Company. Mr. Qu graduated from Harbin
Shipbuilding Engineering Institute with a master’s degree in August
1988 and joined HE in the same year. He has been an assistant
engineer, business representative in Pakistan and engineer of Harbin
Power Station Equipment Import And Export Company, and served as
the deputy general manager of the company since February 1994.
Since November 1994, he was appointed as the deputy manager of
operation and development department of Harbin Power Engineering
Company Limited, deputy general manager and deputy manager of
operation and development department of cycle power plant project in
UCH, Pakistan, deputy chief engineer, assistant to general manager of
the company. He served as the executive deputy general manager of
Harbin Power Engineering Company Limited since November 1999,
general manager of the company since April 2003, and chairman and
Party Secretary since September 2007 respectively. Mr. Qu has been
serving as deputy general manager of the Company since June 2010

and Vice-President of the Company since March 2013.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Ai Li-song, born in March 1970, is a senior economist with a
master degree. He is currently a company secretary, deputy manager
of the securities and legal department and a deputy director of the
secretariat of the Board of the Company. Mr. Ai graduated from Jilin
University of Technology majoring in technical economics and he
obtained a master degree from Harbin Institute of Technology. Mr. Ai
has been a staff of the former Harbin Electric Machinery Works, a
subsidiary of the Company, General Manager of the Sales Office of
Shenyin & Wanguo Securities Co., Ltd. (EF$REBEZ /A7) at Nanma
Road, Harbin, deputy manager of the investment and reforming
department and manager of investment management department of
HE Corporation, manager of the planning and development department
of HE Corporation and the Company, and director of the secretariat of
the Board. Mr. Ai has been a director of the secretariat of the Board
since March 2016, and a company secretary of the Company since
May 2015.
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The Directors of Harbin Electric Company Limited (the “Company”) are
pleased to submit the 2015 annual report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the
year ended 31 December 2015.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is mainly engaged in the manufacture and sales of various
kinds of power equipment and power station engineering services,
details of which are set out in the notes to the financial statements.

All the activities of the Group are based in the PRC, where
approximately 73.64% of the turnover is derived from.

As of 31 December 2015, the turnover from export of products of the
Group amounted to USD1,018.9815 million, representing 26.36% of
the Group's total turnover. The Group's major regions for export
included Asia and South America, which respectively accounted for
17.72% and 6.41% of the Group’s total turnover, while major countries
for export included Turkey, Ecuador and Indonesia, which respectively
accounted for 9.17%, 6.41% and 5.29% of the Group's total turnover.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December
2015 are set out in the Note VIl to financial statements in the annual
report.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2015 are set
out in the consolidated income statement on page 81 to 84 of the
annual report.

DIVIDEND

A dividend of RMBO0.015 per share (appropriate tax included) for 2015
was proposed by the board of directors.

Dividends payable to shareholders of H shares will be paid in Hong
Kong dollars at the average exchange rate as quoted by the People's
Bank of China for the five days preceding 25 March 2016, which is
RMB1 to HK$1.1949. Each shareholder of H shares will receive a
dividend of HK$0.0179 per H share.
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CLOSURE OF REGISTER

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 2 June
2016 to 6 June 2016 (both dates inclusive). Final dividends for 2015 wvill
be distributed on 28 July 2016 to shareholders whose names appear in
the register of members of the Company on 2 June 2016. In order to
qualify for the final dividends for 2015, all completed transfer
documents accompanied with the relevant share certificates must be
lodged with the Company's share registrar and transfer office in Hong
Kong, namely Hong Kong Registrars Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong
no later than 4:30 p.m. on 1 June 2016.

DIVIDEND TAX

Pursuant to the relevant requirement of “PRC Individual Income Tax
Law” ( B 2 A R 2 F1 B @ A BT 18 % % )), “PRC Implementation
Regulations of the Individual Income Tax Law” ({F & A B HF1EE A
FT 18 % & B 36 {& 5] )) and “Notice of the State Administration of
Taxation in relation to the Administrative Measures on Preferential
Treatment Entitled by Non-residents under Tax Treaties (Tentative)”
KBERBBEBENNECEEREX R UG FBERIDE(FT DN
BANY, the Company will withhold and pay the individual income tax in
respect of the dividend (bonus) received by individual shareholders of
H shares from the Company. Individual shareholders of H shares of the
Company may be entitled to certain tax preferential treatments
pursuant to the tax treaties between the PRC and the countries in
which the individual shareholders of H shares are domiciled and the tax
arrangements between Mainland China and Hong Kong (Macau). The
Company will determine the residence of the individual shareholders of
H shares based on the registered address as recorded in the register of
shareholders on the book closure date, i.e. 2 June 2016. The specific
arrangement will be as follows:

For individual shareholders of H shares who are residents of Hong
Kong or Macau and countries which entered into a tax treaty with the
PRC stipulating a dividend tax rate of 10%, the Company will withhold

and pay individual income tax at the rate of 10% on their behalf;
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DIVIDEND TAX (continued)

For individual shareholders of H shares who are residents of countries
which entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax
rate of less than 10%, the Company will withhold and pay individual
income tax at the rate of 10% on their behalf. Individual shareholders
of H shares may apply for refund of excess amount of individual
income tax withheld by providing relevant information for approval by
taxation authority;

For individual shareholders of H shares who are residents of countries
which entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax
rate of more than 10% but less than 20%, the Company will withhold
and pay individual income tax at the effective rate stipulated by the
relevant tax treaty on behalf of the relevant shareholders;

For individual shareholders of H shares who are residents of countries
which entered into a tax treaty with the PRC stipulating a dividend tax
rate of 20% or has not entered into any tax treaties with the PRC, the
Company will withhold and pay individual income tax at the rate of 20%
on behalf of the relevant shareholders;

According to the “PRC Individual Income Tax Law” ({FZE A RHFE
EAFTEHLED), the Company will withhold and pay dividend income
tax at the rate of 10% on behalf of the non-resident corporate
shareholders.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

Details of Directors and Supervisors are set out in the section headed
“Directors, Supervisors and Senior Management” in the annual report.
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INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS, SUPERVISORS
AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT IN THE SHARE
CAPITAL

As at 31 December 2015, none of the directors, supervisors and senior
management of the Company had any interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares and/or debentures (as the case may be) of
the Company and/or of any of its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (SFO))
which was required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO
(including interest or short position which any such director, supervisor
or senior management is taken or deemed to have under such
provisions of the SFO) or which was required to be recorded in the
Register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or
which was required to be notified to the Company and the Hong Kong
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers as contained in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the Directors of the Company has signed a service contract
with the Company. Apart from the service contracts mentioned, there
is no other contract between Directors of the Company and the
Company.

INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS IN CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

During 2015, none of the Directors or Supervisors has any interest,
whether directly or indirectly, in the contracts of significance entered
into by the Group.

REMUNERATION OF KEY MANAGEMENT
MEMBERS

Details of the remuneration of the key management members of the
Company as at 31 December 2015 are set out in note X.(V) to the
financial statements in the annual report.
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FIVE HIGHEST PAID PERSONNEL

All five highest paid personnel are senior management of subsidiaries
of the Company.

STAFF RETIREMENT AND BENEFITS SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement and benefits scheme are set out in Note
V(28) to the financial statements in the annual report.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in fixed assets of the Group are set out in
Note V(16) to the financial statements in the annual report.

PROFITS AVAILABLE FOR DISTRIBUTION

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s undistributed profits available
for distribution are RMB1,432.12 million. Movements in the
undistributed profits of the Company during the year are set out in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity to the financial
statements.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The financial highlights of the Group for the last five years are set out in
the section headed “Financial Highlights” in the annual report.

BORROWINGS

Details of bank loans and other borrowings of the Group are set out in
Notes V(23) and V(35) to the financial statements in the annual report.

PURCHASE, SALE AND REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company's listed securities.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or PRC Law, which would require the Company
to offer issuance of new shares to existing shareholders according to
their respective proportions of shareholding.
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MAJOR LITIGATION

Details of major litigation of the Group in 2015 are set out in the notes
to the financial statements in the annual report.

MATERIAL CONTRACTS

Details of the material contracts entered into by the Group during the
year are set out in the sections headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis” and “Disclosure of Significant Events” in the annual report.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

1. During the period, the Group's five largest suppliers attributed
7.08% of the Group's total purchases. Among which DMV
TNEIME A7 of Germany was the largest supplier, representing
1.96% of the total purchases.

2. During the period, the Group's five largest customers attributed
30.31% of the Group’s total turnover. Among which EREN
ENERJI ELEKTRIK URETIM A.S of Turkey and China Huaneng
Group the largest customer, each representing 8.49% of the
total turnover. Amongst the other major customers, National
Power Company (B & & /72 #& A 7]) of Ecuador, PT LESTARI
BANTEN ENERGI of Indonesia and China Datang Corporation
represent 5.42%, 4.86% and 3.04% respectively.

3. None of the Directors, Supervisors, their associates or any
shareholders of the Company (which to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has
any interest in the above-mentioned suppliers or customers.

USE OF PROCEEDS

Details on the use of proceeds by the Company during the period are
set out in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”.
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TAX POLICIES

According to the provisions of Administrative Measures with regard to
the Recognition of High and New Technology Enterprises (£ & # # iT
1 ¥R FE E 1’ ¥ %)) jointly issued by the Ministry of Science and
Technology, the Ministry of Finance and the State Administration for
Taxation of the PRC on 14 April 2008 and the Administrative Guidance
with Regard to the Recognition of High and New Technology
Enterprises ({5 3 Bl (b 2 2 E & I T{E$E 3] )) jointly issued by the
Ministry of Science and Technology, the Ministry of Finance and the
State Administration of Taxation on 8 July 2008, corporations including
the Company and its affiliates, including Harbin Electrical Machinery
Company Limited, Harbin Boiler Company Limited, Harbin Turbine
Company Limited, Harbin Electric Power Equipment Company Limited
and HE Harbin Power Plant Valve Company Limited were re-recognised
as High and New Technology Enterprises, and shall continue to enjoy a
15% preferential income tax rate, which is significant to their long-term
development.

In accordance with regulations of the State Administration of Taxation,
the rate for tax rebate applicable to the Group's new export products
contracts is 13% effective from 15 October 2003.

Pursuant to the Implementation Measures of the Provisional
Regulations of the PRC on Value-added Tax ({F %= A R 2L FI B S (EF
17 1& 5l B 5 40 8 )), the Group has been included in the general
framework of the value-added tax system reform, which allows the
Group to deduct the value-added tax incurred for the purchase of
equipment.

Under the Opinions of Central Committee of the Communist Party of
China and the State Council on the Revitalization Strategies for
Historical Industrial Bases of the Northeast Regions ({f #rh & « E#%
Br R B e SR L iR & 2 T Em iR BB RS &9 %5 T 8 R.)), the Group
will continue to enjoy the relevant favourable policies in supporting
such revitalization for historical industrial bases of the northeast
regions.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Details of connected transactions are set out Note IX to the financial
statements in the annual report.

The Group carried out the following connected transactions (other than
connected transactions that are exempted under Rule 14A.33 of the
Listing Rules) during the year ended 31 December 2015:

1. Framework Agreement with Harbin Electric Corporation
(IIHE")

On 31 December 2013, the Group entered into the continuing
connected transaction — the Framework Agreement with HE,
pursuant to which, (1) the Group and HE (together with its
subsidiaries excluding the Group, “the Parent Group”) will supply
multiple benefits and support services to each other; (2) the
Group and the Parent Group will purchase certain materials and
parts from each other during the three financial years from 1
January 2014 to 31 December 2016.

During the year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015, the
transaction cap for providing services and sales of material and
parts by the Company to the Parent Group was RMB70.30
million, while the actual transaction amount was RMB12.76
million. The transaction cap for receiving services and purchasing
material and parts by the Company from the Parent Group was
RMB343.52 million, while the actual transaction amount was
RMB198.89 million. The amounts of such transaction did not
exceed the cap.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2.

Financial Service Framework Agreement between HE
Finance Company Limited (the “Finance Company”), a
subsidiary of the Company, and Harbin Electric Corporation
(IIHE")

On 31 December 2013, the Finance Company and HE entered
into the continuing connected transaction — the Financial Service
Framework Agreement, pursuant to which, the Finance Company
will provide financial services to HE (together with its subsidiaries
excluding the Group, “the Parent Group"”), including deposit
services, loan services, clearance services and other financial
services from 31 December 2013 to 30 December 2016.

During the year from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015, the
transaction cap of loan services provided by the Finance
Company to the Parent Group was RMB250.00 million, while the
actual transaction amount was RMB20.00 million. The transaction
amount of such transaction did not exceed the cap.

Management Entrustment Agreement with Harbin Electric
Corporation (“HE”)

On 23 March 2013, the Company entered into the Management
Entrustment Agreement with HE, pursuant to which, the
Company will provide management services to HE, including but
not limited to administration management, human resources and
compensation management (including external affairs
management), technology and quality control, assets and
financial management, integrated organization management,
statistic and economic operations management, auditing and
internal control management, investments management,
strategic developments management, legal affairs management,
communications management, marketing management, projects
management, production safety management, procedure
monitoring management, political affairs and other affairs
management. HE will pay an annual management entrustment

fee of RMB3.28 million to the Company, and such fee was paid
in full in 2015.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (continued)

4.

Acquisition of the entire equity interest in Harbin Electric (HE)
Corporation (“Harbin Electric (HE)”) held by Harbin Electric
Corporation (“HE")

On 15 May 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company has
reviewed and approved the acquisition of the entire equity
interest in Harbin Electric (HE) held by HE by way of negotiated
assignment, and the consideration of the acquisition shall be
based on the valuation of RMB28.0770 million as confirmed by
the asset appraisal firm. In December 2015, the acquisition of the
equity interest in Harbin Electric (HE) has been completed, and
the Company holds the entire equity interest in Harbin Electric
(HE).

CONFIRMATION ON CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

The Independent Directors of the Company have reviewed the

connected transactions (as defined in the Listing Rules) set out in Note

IX to the financial statements and confirmed that:

Such transactions have been entered into by the Company in the
ordinary and usual course of its business;

Such transactions have been entered into either (i) on normal
commercial terms (which term shall be applied by reference to
transactions of a similar nature and to be made by similar entities
within the PRC) or (ii) (where there is no available comparison) on
terms that are fair and reasonable so far as the shareholders of
the Company are concerned;

Such transactions have been entered into either (i) in accordance
with the terms of the relevant agreements governing such
transactions or (i) (where there is no such agreement) on terms
no less favourable than those available to third parties.
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CONFIRMATION ON CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

The auditors of the Company have issued their unqualified letter
containing their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing
connected transactions disclosed above by the Group in accordance
with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditors’ letter has
been provided by the Company to the Stock Exchange.

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE OF THE
INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company has already received annual confirmation from each
independent non-executive director on his/her independence,
confirming that his/her independence was in compliance with all
independence criteria set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and that
he/she is an independent person.

SHAREHOLDING STRUCTURE

As at 31 December 2015, the total share capital of the Company
comprised 1,376,806,000 shares, of which 701,235,000 shares were
held by the promoter (representing 50.93% of the entire share capital)
and 675,571,000 shares were held by overseas holders of H shares
(representing 49.07% of the entire share capital).
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201512 A31H  AARIKRER A LFR=E As at 31 December 2015, the ten registered shareholders holding the
RZMETRRENFRIERLAT ¢ largest quantity of shares were as follows:
ERBEDE
a5 BRREB BRE Percentage of fasE
Number Name of Shareholder Number of Shares Shares Held Remarks
1~ BRREEREE AR 701,235,000 50.93% BB EAR
Harbin Electric Corporation state-owned equity
interest shares
2 HKSCC NOMINEES LIMITED 623,860,598 45.31% H % shares
3 TANG KEUNG LAM 24,000,000 1.74% H % shares
4 TANG 'S INVESTMENTS LIMITED 17,000,000 1.23% H % shares
G- HIGH SUMMIT GROUP LIMITED 8,000,000 0.58% H % shares
6 YIP CHOK CHIU 360,000 0.03% H [i% shares
7 e LU NIM KWOK ALBERT 250,000 0.02% H % shares
8- CHEUNG YUM TIN 200,000 0.01% H fi% shares
9 - HO YUN HUNG 200,000 0.01% H fi% shares

10~ NG KAM WAN 110,000 0.01% H A% shares
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A31MBREEM) OF H SHARES (AS RECORDED IN REGISTER OF
MEMBERS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015)
HE BT
A R HIRBEZ
Number of Number of Percentage to
£E Range Shareholders Shares Held Issued H Shares
1-1,000 1-1,000 4 402 0.00%
1,001-5,000 1,001-5,000 54 150,000 0.02%
5,001-10,000 5,001-10,000 43 348,000 0.05%
10,001-100,000 10,001-100,000 38 1,092,000 0.16%
100,001-LA = 100,001 and above 9 673,980,598 99.76%
BACEE) Rounding (to whole numbers) 0.01%
= Total 148 675,571,000 100%
RESFA MODEL CODE
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The Company, having made specific enquiry to the Directors, confirms
that all members of the Board complied with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules throughout the period.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

As set out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in
the annual report, the Company has throughout the year of 2015
complied with the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate
Governance Report contained in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of
the Hong Kong Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited financial statements
and connected transactions of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2015, and discussed with the Board the financial reporting
procedures as well as the internal control system of the Group.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

The 2015 Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the
Company will be disclosed separately in 2016.

AUDITORS

In 2015, the term of appointment of the original PRC auditors of the
Company, Ruihua Certified Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong
auditors, Crowe Horwath (HK) CPA Limited, has expired in accordance
with the financial auditing engagement period stipulated by the State-
owned Assets Supervision and Administration Commission of the State
Council of the People’'s Republic of China. In December 2015, BDO
China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP has been
appointed as the auditors for the 2015 financial statements of the
Company. The Company has not changed its auditors for the past three
years.

By order of the Board
Zou Lei
Chairman

25 March 2016
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To all shareholders:

For the year ended 31 December 2015 (“the Year"”), all members of
the Supervisory Committee (“the Supervisory Committee”) of Harbin
Electric Company Limited (“the Company"”) duly performed their
Supervisory Committee functions in the best interests of the Company
and all shareholders as a whole in accordance with the relevant
regulations of the PRC Company Law, the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and the
Articles of Association of the Company. The Supervisory Committee
has carried out an all-round supervision on areas including operation
management, financial conditions and senior management's
performance of the Company. In addition, the Supervisory Committee
actively participated in significant events of the Company, such as the
Company’s production and operation etc., which pushed forward the
Company's work in a smooth manner.

For the Company’s work during the Year, the Supervisory Committee
presents the following independent opinions:

1. During the Year, the Company strictly complied with the nation’s
laws and regulations, operated in accordance with the procedures
regulating listing companies, and duly executed various
resolutions passed at the general meetings. The Company
achieved satisfying results from all works during the year,
resulting in a strong and excellent company which laid a solid
foundation for the smooth and faster development.

2. The Supervisory Committee is aware that the directors and its
senior management of the Company have duly and actively
carried out their duties and protected the best interests of the
shareholders. They have seriously carried out the resolutions and
decisions passed at the general meetings and meetings of the
Board. In addition, no violation against the nation’s laws and rules
and the Articles of Association of the Company or acts against
the interests of the Company, the shareholders and the
employees were reported.
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3. The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the Company's
financial system and conditions and concludes that the
Company's financial system has an integrated structure and a
sound system, and the financial works have been operated
orderly according to the internal control system and risk
management. Relevant information such as the annual financial
report and the dividend payment scheme proposed by the Board
of Directors for approval at the Annual General Meeting, has
objectively and comprehensively reflected the financial position
and operating results of the Company. The dividend payment
scheme has taken into account both the interests of the
shareholders and the Company’s long-term development.
Statutory surplus reserve fund provided in the year have
observed the provisions of the laws and regulations and the
Articles of Association of the Company.

4. The Supervisory Committee has reviewed the Report of the
Directors and concludes that the report gives an objective and
true picture of the works performed by the Company during the
Year.

The Supervisory Committee sincerely appreciates the trust and support
from every colleague and the shareholders of the Company. While
continue to explore new supervisory approaches and methods, the
Supervisory Committee will further consolidate resources for
supervision so as to enhance our management, helping and ensuring
the realization of the Company'’s targets for all works in 2016.

By order of the Supervisory Committee
Feng Yong-giang
Chairman

Harbin, the PRC
25 March 2016
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has been actively enhancing the Company’s corporate
governing structure and standardized the Company's operations
through strictly complying with relevant provisions such as the
Company Law of the People’s Republic of China and the Securities
Law of the People’'s Republic of China.

During 2015, the Company has fully complied with all code provisions
set out in the Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance
Report in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, save that the rotation of the seventh Board of Directors
and Supervisory Committee has been delayed due to that the Company
is still in the process of finding the candidates for the new session of
Directors and Supervisors.
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EIEEE ORGANIZATION STRUCTURE
ARRAFR 20165 2 A E B EI T - A% The Company adjusted the organization structure in February 2016, the
BRMABEEDNT ¢ adjusted organization structure is as follows:
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SHAREHOLDERS

The Company safeguards interests of the shareholders, treats all
shareholders equally, and initiates active participation of shareholders
in corporate governance. As the stakeholders of the Company,
shareholders enjoy the rights provided by laws and regulations and
undertake commensurate obligations. Shareholders enjoy rights to
information and rights to decision-making in respect of the Company's
important matters. Shareholders may put forward their enquiries on
any relevant matters to the Board. The Board shall provide sufficient
information to enable these enquiries to be properly directed.

The controlling shareholder of the Company is Harbin Electric
Corporation, a state-owned company registered in the People's
Republic of China.

GENERAL MEETINGS

General meeting is the organ of authority of the Company, and it

exercises its functions and powers in accordance with the law.

In 2015, the Company held one Annual General Meeting, one H shares
class meeting, one domestic shares class meeting and one

Extraordinary General Meeting.

2015 FEEEHERETASIER Attendance of Directors at General Meetings in 2015
ESmEmR# B HERE

Number of Number of HE =

attendance attendance in Attendance
BEEHR Name of Director required person rate
BZEE Mr. Zou Lei 4 4 100%
RESHA Mr. Wu Wei-zhang 4 4 100%
REEEAE Mr. Zhang Ying-jian 4 4 100%
R BT A Mr. Song Shi-gi 4 4 100%
[Slaaki=pirte s Mr. Shang Zhong-fu 1 0 0%
Fak4E Mr. Yu Bo 4 4 100%
=B RE Mr. Liu Deng-ging 4 4 100%
FTXE%X%E Mr. Yu Wen-xing 4 4 100%
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The major duties of the Board of Directors of the Company are to
exercise the discretion in management decision according to the
authorization by the general meeting with respect to the development
strategies, management structure, investment and financing, planning
and management and financial control, which are set out in details in
the Articles of Association.

1. Composition

In 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company is the seventh
session Board since its establishment, which is comprised of
nine Directors, three of whom are independent non-executive

Directors. Members of the Board are:

Non-executive directors: Gong Jing-kun (former Chairman,
resigned), Zou Lei (current Chairman)

Executive directors: Wu Wei-zhang, Zhang Ying-jian,
Song Shi-qgi, Shang Zhong-fu (resigned)

Independent non- Yu Bo, Liu Deng-ging, Yu Wen-xing
executive directors:

During the period, Mr. Gong Jing-kun, former chairman, non-
executive director and chairman of the nomination committee of
the Company ceased to be Chairman of the Company’s
controlling shareholder, Harbin Electric Corporation, and party
secretary in accordance with the decision of state cadre
management, and at the same time tendered to the Company
his resignation from the position of chairman, non-executive
director and chairman of the nomination committee of the
Company. On 18 March 2015, the Company convened its 15th
Board meeting of the seventh session of Board of Directors, at
which Mr. Zou Lei was elected as the new Chairman of the
Company.
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On 18 March 2015, the Company convened its 15th Board
meeting of the seventh session of Board of Directors, at which
Mr. Yu Wen-xing was appointed independent non-executive
director of the Company.

On 26 August 2015, Mr. Shang Zhong-fu resigned from the
position of executive director, member of the strategy
development committee and vice president of the Company.

As at 31 December 2015, members of the Board of Directors of
the Company were:

Non-executive director: Zou Lei (Chairman)
Executive directors:

Wu Wei-zhang, Zhang Ying-jian,
Song Shi-qi

Independent Yu Bo, Liu Deng-ging, Yu Wen-xing
non-executive directors:

Biographies of the members of the Board of Directors are
included in the section headed "“Directors, Supervisors and
Senior Management” in the annual report.

Chairman and President

Positions of the Chairman and the President of the Company are
held by different individuals with distinct division of
responsibilities. The Chairman presides over meetings of the
Board of Directors and reviews on the implementation of matters
resolved by the Board of Directors. The President is responsible
for management and coordination of the operations of the
Company, implementation of the resolutions passed by the
Board of Directors and making day-to-day decisions.
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Independent non-executive directors

The Board of Directors of the Company is currently comprised of
3 independent non-executive directors. During the period from 1
January and 18 March 2015, the Board of Directors of the
Company had two independent non-executive directors, and the
number of independent non-executive directors had temporarily
fallen below the requirement under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A
of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules"”), which
stipulated that “the board of a listed issuer must include at least
three independent non-executive directors and independent non-
executive directors must represent at least one-third of members
of the Board"”. Accordingly, the Company has filed a description
regarding the number of directors and applied for a waiver from
compliance with the Listing Rules to the Hong Kong Stock
Exchange, and has issued announcements regarding relevant
matters. On 18 March 2015, the Company convened its 15th
Board meeting of the seventh session of Board of Directors, at
which Mr. Yu Wen-xing was appointed independent non-
executive director of the Company, and the requirement of the
Listing Rules in respect of independent non-executive directors
has been satisfied.

During the reporting period, all the Independent non-executive
Directors attended the meetings of the Board of Directors with a
prudent and responsible attitude. They fully utilized their
experiences and expertise, made substantial contribution
towards the improvement and perfection of the corporate
governance mechanism, the important decision-making process
and the review of connected transactions. They also provided
balanced and objective advice with regard to important decisions
and connected transactions of the Company, further standardized
the decision-making process of the Board of Directors and made
this process more scientific, thereby protecting the interests of
the Company and all shareholders as a whole.

The Company confirmed that it has received annual confirmation
from each independent non-executive director in respect of his/

her independence.
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Term of services

The Directors of the Company are appointed on a term of three
years.

Meetings of the Board of Directors

During 2015, the Company held 10 Board of Directors’ meetings
to discuss the overall strategies, investment plans, operation and
financial performance of the Company. The Independent non-
executive Directors of the Company did not have dissenting
opinions regarding any of the Company’s decisions. Attendances
of the meetings are as follows:

W4 FEEFHEEETESH L Attendances of Directors at meetings of the Board of
Directors in 2014
&2
EBEEERY B HERE

Number of Number of H =
Attendance Attendance in Attendance
BEHR Name of Director Required Person Rate
B=EE Mr. Zou Lei 10 10 100%
REZLE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang 10 10 100%
SR OLfE S A Mr. Zhang Ying-jian 10 10 100%
R A Mr. Song Shi-qi 10 10 100%
[kt Mr. Shang Zhong-fu 6 4 67%
Ak Mr. Yu Bo 10 9 90%
EllaCpiva Mr. Liu Deng-ging 10 10 100%
FxE%AE Mr. Yu Wen-xing 10 10 100%
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The relevant information and latest development of the statutory,
regulatory and other continuous responsibilities of the Company’s
Board of Directors can be obtained by all Directors through the
Company Secretary in a timely manner, so as to ensure all
Directors understand his/her duties, and the procedures of the
Board of Directors are consistently followed and applicable laws
and regulations are duly complied with. The Directors and the
Board of Directors’ special committees of the Company have the
right to engage independent professional organizations for their
service according to the requirement of their duties; reasonable
costs incurred therefrom are borne by the Company.
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Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix
10 of the Listing Rules of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong as a
model code for Directors of the Company. The Company has
made specific enquiries to all Directors, who have confirmed
their full compliance with the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers during the reporting
period.

Board Diversity

The Company recognizes that diversity in Board members would
be beneficial to the improvement of performance of the
Company. The composition of the Board has been based on a
range of diversified perspectives, including but not limited to age,
educational background, professional experience, knowledge and
skills.
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SPECIAL COMMITTEES UNDER THE BOARD

The Board of the Company has established four special committees,
namely the audit committee, the nomination committee, the
remuneration committee and the strategy development committee,
whose members are all Directors of the Company.

The main responsibilities of the Audit committee under the Board of
the Company are: to monitor the Company’s compliance with
accounting standards and rules of stock exchanges, to audit interim
and annual results of the Company, and to discuss any issues with the
internal and external auditors. In early 2015, members of the Audit
Committee of the Board of the Company included Mr. Liu Deng-ging,
Mr. Yu Bo and Mr. Zhang Ying-jian, and independent non-executive
director Mr. Liu Deng-ging was the chairman. On 18 March 2015, the
Company convened its 15th Board meeting of the seventh session of
Board of Directors, and made adjustments to the members of the Audit
Committee. Members of the Audit Committee following adjustments
are Mr. Liu Deng-ging, Mr. Yu Bo and Mr. Yu Wen-xing. All members
of the Audit Committee are independent non-executive directors and
Mr. Liu Deng-ging is the chairman of the committee, and is compliance
with the Listing Rules. During the year, the Audit Committee held 4
meetings and has reviewed the Group's annual and half-yearly reports
and financial statements, internal control and risk management
assessment report as well as related party transactions.

The main responsibilities of the Nomination Committee under the
Board of the Company are: to make recommendations to the Board on
its structure and composition according to the actual status of the
Company, and to make recommendations on the election of directors
and the appointment of senior management. In early 2015, members
of the Nomination Committee of the Board of the Company included
Mr. Gong Jing-kun, Mr. Liu Deng-ging and Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, and
former Chairman of the Company, Mr. Gong Jing-kun was the chairman
of the committee. On 18 March 2015, the Company convened its 15th
Board meeting of the seventh session of Board of Directors, and made
adjustments to the members of the Nomination Committee. Members
of the Nomination Committee following adjustments are Mr. Zou Lei,
Mr. Liu Deng-ging and Mr. Yu Bo. Two-thirds of the members of the
committee are independent non-executive directors and Chairman of

the Company Mr. Zou Lei is the chairman of the committee.
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The main responsibilities of the Remuneration Committee under the
Board of the Company are: to review the remuneration system and
policies of the Company, to determine, assess and evaluate the
remuneration packages of the directors and senior management of the
Company. In early 2015, members of the Remuneration Committee of
the Board of the Company included Mr. Yu Bo, Mr. Liu Deng-ging and
Mr. Song Shi-gi, and independent non-executive director Mr. Yu Bo
was the chairman of the committee. On 18 March 2015, the Company
convened its 15th Board meeting of the seventh session of Board of
Directors, and made adjustments to the members of the Remuneration
Committee. Members of the Remuneration Committee following
adjustments are Mr. Yu Wen-xing, Mr. Song Shi-gi, Mr. Yu Bo and Mr.
Liu Deng-ging. Three-quarters of the members of the committee are
independent non-executive directors and independent non-executive
director Mr. Yu Wen-xing is the chairman of the committee.

The main responsibilities of the Strategy Development Committee
under the Board of the Company are: to conduct research on the
Company's strategic development plans, significant investment and
financing plans that require the approval of the Board, capital operation
and asset operation, and to advise and make recommendations on the
above matters. In early 2015, members of the Strategy Development
Committee of the Board of the Company included Mr. Zou Lei, Mr. Wu
Wei-zhang and Mr. Shang Zhong-fu, and Mr. Zou Lei was the chairman
of the committee. On 18 March 2015, the Company convened its 15th
Board meeting of the seventh session of Board of Directors, and made
adjustments to the members of the Strategy Development Committee.
Members of the Strategy Development Committee following
adjustments were Mr. Wu Wei-zhang, Mr. Zhang Ying-jian, Mr. Shang
Zhong-fu and Mr. Yu Wen-xing, and Mr. Wu Wei-zhang was the
chairman of the committee. On 26 August 2015, Mr. Shang Zhong-fu
resigned from the position of executive director, member of the
Strategy Development Committee and Vice President of the Company
and following adjustments, members of the Strategy Development
Committee are Mr. Wu Wei-zhang, Mr. Zhang Ying-jian and Mr. Yu

Wen-xing, and Mr. Wu Wei-zhang is the chairman of the committee.
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TRAINING OF THE DIRECTORS

In May 2015, Directors of the Company participated in professional
trainings organized by the Company, where they have furthered their
understanding on the recent capital operations of the Company to
ensure that they have all the information and that they can make
contributions to the Board of Directors of the Company under the
circumstances.

SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

The Company’s Supervisory Committee consists of 5 supervisors, of
which two supervisors are representing staff and workers.

1. Meetings of the Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee held 2 meetings during the period,
the main contents of which were as follows:

The Supervisory Committee held a meeting on 19 March 2015 to
approve the 2014 annual report of the company and other
matters.

The Supervisory Committee held a meeting on 28 August 2015
to review and approve matters relating to the Company's 2015
interim financial report.
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Independent Opinion of the Supervisory Committee to the
Related Matters of the Company in the Year 2015

Operations of the Company in compliance with the law

According to relevant laws and regulations, the Supervisory
Committee has supervised and examined the convening
procedures of the General Meeting of the Company and the
Board of Directors’ Meeting in 2015, resolution matters, the
Board of Directors’ implementation of resolutions of the General
Meeting, the enforcement of the Company’'s management
system and the efficiency of the Company's operation and
management, and the Supervisory Committee considered that
the Company has operated strictly in accordance with the
relevant provisions of the Company Law and the Listing Rules;
that the Company operates with scientific and reasonable
decision making procedure; and that the Company further
enhanced its internal management and established a favourable
internal control system in 2015.

Reviewing Financial Condition of the Company

The Supervisory Committee has diligently reviewed the
Company's final financial report 2015, profit distribution proposal
for the year prepared and submitted to the Board, and the
Audited Financial Statements 2015 audited and issued by the
Company's auditors, and has listened to the reports by the
Assets and Finance Department and Audit Department of the
Company. The Supervisory Committee considered that the
Company's audited Financial Reports 2015 was true and reliable,
which objectively reflected the Company’s financial condition and
operation results. The Supervisory Committee has approved the
Company's audited Financial Reports issued by the auditor of the
Company.

Implementation of Resolutions Passed at General Meetings

The members of the Supervisory Committee attended the Board
Meetings and the General Meetings. The Supervisory Committee
supervised the implementation of the resolutions passed at
General Meetings and considered that the Board of Directors is

able to diligently implement decisions of the General Meeting.
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Supervisory Duties by the Supervisory Committee

The Supervisory Committee supervised the Directors and senior
management of the Company in accordance with the laws and
the Articles of Association of the Company, and considered that
the Directors and senior management of the Company carried
out their duties in compliance with the law, and there were no
violations against the laws and regulations and the Articles of
Association of the Company or situations which jeopardize the
interests of the Company.

Risk Management and Internal Control

The Board of Directors of the Company is responsible for
assessing and determining the nature and extent of risk which
the Company is willing to accept in reaching its strategic goals,
as well as ensuring that the Company establishes and maintains
an appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control system. The Board of Directors monitors and supervises
the management in the design, implementation and supervision
of the risk management and internal control system, while the
management provides confirmation to the Board of Directors as
to whether such system is effective.

The Company has a comprehensive risk management and
internal control system in place, where the Board of Directors is
responsible for the risk management and internal control system,
and fully implements the relevant requirements of the Internal
Control Guideline and continues to optimize the internal control
system and self-assessments and continuous improvements.
Through incentive measures and the guidance of corporate
culture, the complete internal control system of the Company
and its effective implementation are ensured.

The Company monitors and supervises the disclosure of financial
information by the Company, as well as operations and internal
control activities regularly or where necessary, so as to ensure
the transparency of information disclosure and effectiveness of

its risk management and internal control mechanism.
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During 2015, the Company has reviewed the risk management
and internal control system and has completed its self-
assessment report on internal control and risk management and
then approved by the Audit Committee of the Board and the
Board of Directors.

AUDITORS AND THEIR REMUNERATION

The financial statements included in the annual report of the Company
were prepared according to PRC Accounting Standards and were
audited by BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP,
the Company's auditors.

During 2015, the remuneration of BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified
Public Accountants LLP, the Company’s auditors, amounted to
RMB2.50 million.

The Board of Directors has recommended to the General Meeting to
re-appoint BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP as
the auditors for the Company’s 2016 financial statements.

COMPANY SECRETARY

On 15 May 2015, Mr. Gao Xu-Guang resigned as the Company
Secretary of the Company due to changes in his work and Mr. Ai Li-
Song was appointed as the Company Secretary of the Company, and
Mr. Tung Tat Chiu, Michael, Joint Secretary of the Company, will assist
Mr. Ai to carry out the duties as the Company Secretary. In 2015, Mr.
Ai participated in no less than 15 hours of professional training held by
other organizations such as the Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries.
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INFORMATION DISCLOSURE AND
MANAGEMENT OF INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company continuously enhances its information disclosure
management and promotes its investor relations management. The
Company discloses information on an open, fair, true, accurate,
complete and timely ground and strictly follows the related disclosure
requirements of relevant laws and regulations, the Listing Rules and
the Articles of Association of the Company. In our effort to enhancing
the management of investor relations, the Company issues its Interim
Reports and Annual Reports and discloses matters such as rotation and
change of directors, and profitability of the Company in a timely
manner.

The Company diligently receives its investors, in aggregate there were
over 20 visits from investors for the whole year. The Company also
convened over 100 telephone conferences and emails, organizing
activities such as press conferences, performance presentations and
road shows, with a view to updating the investors on the Company’s
latest development and prospects, and in turn strengthening the
relationship with the investors and enhancing the transparency of the
Company.

The secretariat of the Board of the Company is responsible for the
information disclosure and investor relations management. The
Company strictly performs its duties, and continuously enhances its
corporate governance structure so as to improve its management
standard by strictly following the requirements of relevant laws and
regulations of local and overseas securities regulatory organizations.
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Auditors’ Report

Xin Kuai Shi Bao Zi (2015) No. 710730

To the shareholders of

Harbin Electric Company Limited:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Harbin

Electric Company Limited (the “Company”), which comprise the

consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 December 2015,

the consolidated and company income statements, the consolidated

and company cash flow statements, and the consolidated and company

statements of changes in equity for the year then ended, as well as

notes to financial statements.

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR
THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements is the responsibility of the Company’s management.
This responsibility includes: (1) preparing and presenting fairly the
financial statements in accordance with China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises; and (2) designing,
implementing and maintaining internal control relevant to the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material

misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS’
RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with China Standards on Auditing. Those standards
require that we comply with the China Code of Ethics for
Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the certified public
accountant judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the certified
public accountant consider internal control relevant to the
Company’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's
internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management,
as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial

statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

AUDIT OPINION

In our opinion, the financial statements of the Company present
fairly, in all material respects the consolidated and company
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2015, and
of its consolidated and company financial performance and its
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with China

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP
Certified Public Accountant

Shanghai e China
Certified Public Accountant

25 March 2016
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

2015 12 A 31 H
As at 31 December 2015

KREERRMDER LA
Harbin Electric Company Limited

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HH ltems fiE HARERE FHIRT
Notes Closing balance  Opening balance
RBEE Current assets:
HHES Cash and bank balances V.(1)  18,237,006,157.72 14,609,749,541.63
EEENS Settlement funds - —
HitEe Loans to other banks - _
UARBEEEEZEHTAZH  Financial assets at fair value through
EnremEE profit or loss V.(2) — 1,909,300,000.00
TEemMEE Derivative financial assets - —
eSS Notes receivable V.(3) 2,308,409,073.94  2,144,791,891.72
JEHUIRR Accounts receivable V.4)  10,987,770,955.98 12,579,095,380.50
AR Advances paid V.(5) 5,413,917,652.83  4,657,340,955.43
JEYUR B Premiums receivable - _
FEU 5 RER R Reinsurance accounts receivable - —
[EW D REES Reinsurance reserve receivable - —
JE USRI B, Interest receivable V.(6) 22,486,820.89 2,365,481.26
U PE ) Dividend receivable V.(7) 144,453.39 915,861.81
Hfth R Other receivables V.(8) 600,565,289.38  973,181,945.13
BARESREE Reverse-REPO financial assets - —
FE Inventories V.(9) 15,491,764,808.23 16,735,193,705.41
B R Including: raw materials V.(9) 3,340,904,291.94  3,838,412,220.49
B (EK &) stock (finished goods) V.(9) 417,603,179.58  444,593,752.88
N ARBERENEE Assets classified as held-for-sale
—FREBNIERBEE Non-current assets due within one year
HitmE 8 & Other current assets V.(10) 3,067,298,497.06  333,231,192.25
RBEEART Total current assets 56,129,363,709.42 53,945,165,955.14
ERBEE: Non-current assets:
BRET BT Loans and advances paid V.(11) - 19,550,000.00



EMEEEER®@®

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

20154 12 A 31 H
As at 31 December 2015

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

KREERRMDER LA
Harbin Electric Company Limited

HH Items BsE HARERE FHIRT
Notes Closing balance  Opening balance

AHEESREE Available-for-sale financial assets V.(12) 43,291,000.00 31,291,000.00
BRI E Held-to-maturity investments - —
REEWK Long-term receivable V.(13) 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
REBERE Long-term equity investments V.(14) 233,131,424.38  242,768,965.78
KEMRFHE Investment property V.(15) 20,444,982.56 21,701,331.94
BTEERE Original price of fixed assets V.(16) 12,539,497,778.98 11,832,306,997.13
W BEHITE Less: accumulated depreciation V.(16) 6,495,336,454.10  5,912,335,898.60
ElE & EFE Net fixed assets 6,044,161,324.88  5,919,971,098.53

B BIEBERERER

Less: provision for impairment of

~
wW

fixed assets V.(16) 20,908,593.04 20,908,593.04
BETEESE Net fixed assets 6,023,252,731.84  5,899,062,505.49
EEIR Construction in progress V.(17) 386,245,262.31 772,332,891.27
TiEME Construction materials V.(18) 835,204.92 835,204.92
ETEERE Fixed assets disposal - —
EEWEMEE Biological assets — _
HREE Oil & gas assets - —
BVEE Intangible assets V.(19) 736,434,925.97  736,692,898.83
T Development expenditures V.(20) 187,057,832.68 123,949,615.92
=S Goodwill - _
RFEER Long-term prepayments V.(21) 51,345,718.80 551,937.54
RIEFEHREE Deferred tax assets V.(22) 333,842,705.26 349,579,989.24
HIEmE & E Other non-current assets - —
Hep BHEREDE Including: Special reserved materials
FRBEES Total non-current assets 8,033,881,788.72  8,216,316,340.93
BELS Total assets 64,163,245,498.14 62,161,482,296.07
REBEE: Current liabilities:
EHIER Short-term borrowings V.(23) 3,178,393,476.92  2,480,891,833.35
AR R ERATE AN Central bank loans - _
U AR EYED Absorbing deposit and interbank deposit V.(24) 1,631,433,261.33 796,680,144.59
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

KREERRMDER LA
Harbin Electric Company Limited

20154 12 A 31 A
As at 31 December 2015

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HH ltems fiE HRERE FHIRE
Notes Closing balance  Opening balance
N K Loans from other banks - —
UARBEEEEZEHTAZE  Financial liabilities at fair value through
ERfemBE profit or loss - _
THEEREE Derivative financial liabilities - —
EANES Notes payable V.(25) 5,053,437,735.55  4,162,894,485.70
JERBRR Accounts payable V.(26)  13,037,943,628.09 14,071,197,453.57
TBUWERIE Advances received V.(27) 21,467,290,314.26 20,447,912,421.51
Proceeds from sale of repurchase
EHOEEREER financial assets - —
ENFEERES Handling fee and commission payable - —
FE 1 B T 355 Employee benefits payable V.(28) 193,672,471.77  143,155,291.61
Hbp:ENIE Including: Salaries payable V.(28) 587,317.52 2,448,815.11
AR Benefits payable V.(28) -2,950.00
Heh - B THEIN Including: Staff incentive and
BHES welfare fund
EXHE Taxes and rates payable V.(29) 300,314,171.70  282,502,857.12
Hep: BRHBE Including: tax payable V.(29) 278,237,897.53  266,741,096.22
e FI S, Interest payable V.(30) 142,013,613.98 125,982,723.10
JE {5 AR Dividend payable V.(31) 5,292,426.30 3,510,257.50
Hi AR Other payables V.(32) 266,222,231.62  276,701,551.82
R D RIER Reinsurance accounts payable
RBEREES Reinsurance reserve
REEEFEHFN Deposit for agency security transaction
REAEESFK Deposit for agency security underwriting
N ARBEFENER Liabilities classified as held-for-sale
—FREHPHERBER Non-current liabilities due within one year V.(33) 118,684,860.49 507,282,820.20
HEtnatE Other current liabilities V.(34) 375,043,853.00  293,298,740.00
mEaEa Total current liabilities 45,769,742,045.01 43,592,010,580.07
FRBEME: Non-current liabilities:
REER Long-term borrowings V.(35) - 74,450,000.00
FEfHES Bonds payable V.(36) 2,996,197,500.00  2,994,442,500.00
RHAERZ Long-term payables V.(37) 12,257,889.40 56,5697,398.34
RHIFEN B T 50 Long term staff salaries payables V.(38) 88,474,620.62 97,226,823.15
BIREMR Special payables V.(39) 442,473,494.29  351,275,194.29



BEAERRHERAT

Harbin Electric Company Limited

EMEEEER®@®

Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

20154 12 A 31 H
As at 31 December 2015

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HH Items BsE HARERE FHIRT
Notes Closing balance  Opening balance
BEtaE Provisions V.(40) 726,862,346.89  760,206,911.61
Bz Deferred income V.(41) 210,355,746.66  230,220,909.56
BEMEHAR Deferred tax liabilities
Hi3EmEBE Other non-current liabilities
He: FEREES Including: Special reserved fund
FRBEEET Total non-current liabilities 4,476,621,597.86  4,564,419,736.95
&fEES Total liabilities 50,246,363,642.87 48,156,430,317.02
FEEER (BRRER) : Owners’ equity (or shareholders’ equity)
AR Share capital V.(42) 1,376,806,000.00 1,376,806,000.00
BHEXR State-owned capital V.(42) 701,235,000.00 701,235,000.00
Eih BB EAER Including: State-owned corporate capital \V.(42) 701,235,000.00 701,235,000.00
SEER Collective capital - _
REER Domestic capital - —
Hep: AAER Including: individual capital
INEE R Foreign capital V.(42) 675,571,000.00 675,571,000.00
W ERERE Less: returned investment
BWEAR (FRA) F4E Net paid-in capital (or share capital) V.(42) 1,376,806,000.00  1,376,806,000.00
HirEm TR Other equity instrument
Hep Bk Including: Preference shares
KEEE Perpetual bonds
N Capital reserve V.(43) 2,749,914,77417  2,777,725,426.88
o EFR Less: treasury shares
Hithra e Other comprehensive income V.(44) -321,038,700.14  -236,065,084.33

~
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Consolidated Balance Sheet (continued)

20154 12 A 31 A
As at 31 December 2015

BEAERBROERAR

Harbin Electric Company Limited

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HE ltems (o HRERE FHIRE
Notes Closing balance  Opening balance
Hp  pNERRITEZESE Including: Exchange difference of
statements dominated in
foreign currency V.(44) 361,101.73 -13,499.86
HIAMHE Special reserve V.(45) 11,122,854.40 7,958,663.67
BHAKE Surplus reserve V.(46) 786,529,945.86 780,503,096.67
Hp  ZEAES Including: statutory reserve V.(46) 786,529,945.86  780,503,096.67
FELES Discretionary reserve
FEES Reserve fund
TEERES Corporate development fund
FEBERE Profit returned investment
—RE B YE General risk reserve -
RABLFHE Undistributed profit V.(47) 8,104,055,926.70  7,968,943,488.04
BEREAREERERER Total equity attributable to the
parent company 12,707,390,800.99 12,675,871,590.93
PBRFES Minority interest 1,209,491,054.28  1,329,180,388.12
FiEEER (IMRER) A5 Total owners’ equity
(or shareholders’ equity) 13,916,881,855.27 14,005,051,979.05
BEMMEEED (RRER) @5t Total liabilities & owners’ equity
(or shareholders’ equity) 64,163,245,498.14 62,161,482,296.07
EERERA TEGAIEEREA BREIBREA
Legal representative: Person in charge of Person in charge of

accounting function:

accounting department:



RBEL - BRAEERRMNERAF
Harbin Electric Company Limited

EERER

Balance Sheet

20154 12 A 31 H
As at 31 December 2015

By : ARMT

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

EHE ltems BsE HARERE FHIRT
Note Closing balance  Opening balance
RBEE Current assets:
EBES Cash and bank balances 994,980,874.22 1,860,760,647.80
URABESSEEEHAEE  Financial assets at fair value through profit or
BENEREE loss - 1,909,300,000.00
THEeREE Derivative financial assets
FEWERE Notes receivable 111,137,507.00 72,036,636.00
JE U BR 7R Accounts receivable XIV.(1) 847,058,627.46 571,938,743.82
BRRIE Advances paid 2,935,614,051.73  1,565,300,701.89
JE U FI B, Interest receivable 134,013,495.11 24,633,100.49
W ) Dividend receivable 23,133,425.64 77,800,444.68
Hfth e UK Other receivables XIV.(2) 1,691,546,368.63  1,404,992,408.92
FE Inventories 1,352,329,495.09 1,579,589,058.25
N AREFENEE Assets classified as held-for-sale
—FRE R EE Non-current assets due within one year -
HiREEE Other current assets 730,000,000.00 149,196,689.41
REBEES Total current assets 8,819,813,844.88 9,215,548,431.26

~
~
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Balance Sheet (continued)

20154 12 A 31 A
As at 31 December 2015

By : ARMT

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

RBEL - BRAEERRMNERAF
Harbin Electric Company Limited

HE ltems ik HIRERER FE

ENANERUR

B GL0Z

Note Closing balance

Opening balance

FRBEE: Non-current assets:
ARLECHEE Available-for-sale financial assets 12,000,000.00 -
REZRIHIRE Held-to-maturity investments - -
= HA FE IR Long-term receivable - -
RERERE Long-term equity investments XIV.3)  4,716,222,967.28  4,689,344,057.46
REEEE Investment property - _
BTE&E Fixed assets 1,441,158,764.64 982,698,561.30
EEIR Construction in progress 18,844,245.84  447,821,714.20
IEME Construction materials - _
BEEERR Fixed assets disposal - _
EEEEYEE Biological assets - _
HREE Oil & gas assets - _
EBIVAE Intangible assets 125,674,799.35  115,522,249.29
kg Development expenditures - -
Bl Goodwill - _
REGEER Long-term prepayments - -
BIEFEHEE Deferred tax assets - _
HitEmEN & E Other non-current assets - -

FRBEES Total non-current assets 6,313,900,777.11  6,235,386,582.25

Total assets

15,133,714,621.99

15,450,935,013.51
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Balance Sheet (continued)

20154 12 A 31 H
As at 31 December 2015

RBEEN - WRBERRNBERAR

Harbin Electric Company Limited

By : ARMT

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

EHE Items BsE HARERE FHIRT
Note Closing balance  Opening balance
RBEE: Current liabilities:
HEAfE R Short-term borrowings 398,730,000.00  398,730,000.00
UAREEFERER Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
ExremBRE loss -
TEs@mas Derivative financial liabilities
ANES S Notes payable -
FETERFR Accounts payable 949,776,827.22  482,747,278.81
TBWRIE Advances received 3,856,533,658.01 2,986,557,641.91
R 1< B T 57 B Employee benefits payable 6,229,299.20 4,653,054.49
JERX T B Taxes and rates payable -7,363,281.55 -23,781,837.65
FERTAE Interest payable 121,393,849.31  121,313,244.26
JFETAR F Dividend payable 88,616.27 33,147.47
Hfth FE 5% Other payables 636,264,027.88  2,312,260,317.33
BN AEFERENEE Liabilities classified as held-for-sale
—FRIBPOERBEE Non-current liabilities due within one year
HiRnE & & Other current liabilities
REBEEAT Total current liabilities 5,961,652,996.34 6,282,512,846.62
FRBEE: Non-current liabilities:
REEN Long-term borrowings
FEfHE Bonds payable 2,996,197,500.00  2,994,442,500.00
Hep - BER Including: preference shares
KEEE Perpetual bonds
REFERT Long-term payables -
REAFE TR T B Long-term employee remuneration payables
HIRERNR Special payables - 5,000,000.00
BitaE Estimated liabilities 4,535,256.41 4,535,256.41
ELW S Deferred income 50,983,072.22 47,271,000.00
BEFBEHEE Deferred income tax liabilities
HIEnEaE Other non-current liabilities
IRBREEST Total non-current liabilities 3,051,715,828.63  3,051,248,756.41
BESs Total liabilities 9,013,368,824.97  9,333,761,603.03

~
w

GL0Z Hoday [enuuy  poliwi Auedwo) ou108|3 uigleH



- ©
BEEES oS

ENANERUR

B GL0Z

RELEM RABEERRNERA

Harbin Electric Company Limited

EESER®

Balance Sheet (continued)

20154 12 A 31 A
As at 31 December 2015

3

Bl - ARMT

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HH ltems FieE HARERE FHIRT
Note Closing balance  Opening balance

FEEER (BIRRER) Owners' equity (or shareholders’ equity):

&N Share capital 1,376,806,000.00 1,376,806,000.00

Hitigm T A Other equity instrument -

Hep - BERK Including: Preference shares -

KR Perpetual bonds

V. UNT Capital reserve 2,688,122,380.53  2,690,146,245.92

o B Less: treasury shares -

Hibir e Was Other comprehensive income -

HIRRFE Special reserve -

BRAE Surplus reserve 623,302,301.46 617,275,452.27

RABFE Undistributed profit 1,432,115,115.03  1,432,945,712.29
FiEEER (IMRER) &5 Total owners’ equity (or shareholders’ equity) 6,120,345,797.02 6,117,173,410.48

BENFEEEL (HREER) A Total liabilities & owners’ equity (or

EREAEREA

Legal representative:

shareholders’ equity)

EERHTEARA
Person in charge of

accounting function:

15,133,714,621.99

15,450,935,013.51

BAEBEREA
Person in charge of
accounting department:



BOHRIER

Consolidated Income Statement

2015 F/Z
For the year 2015

RBIEN  BREBERRNBRAF
Harbin Electric Company Limited

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HE Items HI&E KEEHE e
Note Current period  Preceding period
— - EELAWA I. Total operating revenue 25,412,387,252.80 24,258,001,497.96
He: 2l A Including:  Operating revenue V.(48) 25,097,224,542.75 24,026,534,303.55
FEBA Interest proceeds V.(49) 315,145,853.83  231,452,224.06
ERRE Premium earned - _
FEBRASEA Revenue from handling
charges and commission V.(60) 16,856.22 14,970.35
ZCERARSE Il. Total operating cost 25,441,284,999.29 25,232,445,794.81
Hrh o ¥R Including:  Operating cost V.(48) 21,770,593,897.29 20,863,527,354.19
MELZH Interest expenses V.(49) 13,626,239.13 8,534,303.83
FEERASIH Handling charges and
commission expenditures V.(60) 20,456.39 14,225.86
BRe Surrender value - —
B R Net payment of insurance
claims - —
RERBAREES Net provision of insurance
peis=] reserve - —
{REAFIZH Premium bonus expenditures - —
HRER Reinsurance expenses - —
BERS RN Taxes & surcharge for
operations 181,148,179.72 74,903,429.09
HEEH Selling expenses 678,797,253.41  661,636,703.49
EEER Administrative expenses 2,167,130,560.65 2,317,183,079.39
Heb: il s Including: research and
development
expense 319,569,546.14 370,135,952.41
B%ER Financial expense V.(51) 162,248,442.46 183,875,620.55
Hep B H Including: interest expense V.(51) 298,426,637.62 291,475,888.71
FEWA Interest income V.(51) 128,086,160.88 141,784,445.17
BE 3B K OF e A Net loss on foreign exchange
[-] 5%4R5)) (or less: losses) V.(61) -35,544,924.95 4,820,817.75
BERERE Assets impairment loss V.(52) 467,719,970.24  1,122,771,078.41

Hity

Others

(oo}
=
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Consolidated Income Statement (continued)

RBIEN  BREBERRNBRAF
Harbin Electric Company Limited

2015 F/Z
For the year 2015

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HE Items HI&E KEEHE e
Note Current period  Preceding period
e anBEZEHKE (BEAMU Add:  Gains on changes of fair value
[-] 5%3E%1)) (or less: losses) V.(53) -311,084,334.36  1,080,807,895.32
WEWE (BRI [-] 5EF) Investment income (or less: losses) — V.(54) 619,045,662.96 270,418,645.02
Hep: HHECENA S0 E Including: Investment income
H 1% s from associates and
joint ventures V.(54) 9,682,378.19 31,216,759.05
P 5 U zs (B IA [-] SR3E %)) Gains on foreign exchange
(or less: losses)
= EEIHSEU-15%EES) lll. Operating profit (or less: losses) 279,063,582.11 376,782,243.49
e EEINEA Add:  Non-operating revenue V.(55) 158,606,532.82 316,398,330.44
H 3R EEREFG Including:  Gains on disposal of
non-current assets V.(565) 21,677,180.96 7,147,971.09
FEBHEEERBFEG Gain on exchange of
non-currency assets
BT B Government grants V.(65) 111,785,344.53 92,918,453.61
EEEEFG Gain on debt
restructuring V.(55) 484,221.70 635,535.37
W BEINTH Less: Non-operating expenditures V.(56) 129,809,973.50 328,270,496.73
Heb  ERBEERERRK Including:  Losses on disposal of
fixed assets V.(56) 7,679,596.57 2,418,165.82
FEBHBEEIRBL Loss on exchange of
non-currency assets V.(56) 8,119.66
B EEBL Loss on debt
restructuring
0 - FIFBAE (BIEEE L -1 5518 50) IV. Profit before tax (or less: total loss) 307,860,141.43 364,910,077.20
B PSHE M Less: income tax V.(57) 224,572,145.72  230,744,731.21
T BABCEEENI-]8EEN) V. Net profit (or less: net loss) 83,287,995.71 134,165,345.99
BERNIRATIMEENFEFE Net profit attributable to owners of
parent company 196,211,527.85 566,409,377.53

DEBREE

Non-controlling interest income

-112,923,532.14

-432,244,031.54



Consolidated Income Statement (

RELEN : MABER

Harbin Electric Company Limited

SHANER@®

2015 F /2
For the year 2015

B BR AT

continued)

EEEE

CARKTT

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HE Items HI&E KEEHE e
Note Current period  Preceding period
A EtGREWENHREFE VI. Other comprehensive income after tax -321,038,700.14  -336,308,346.57
(=) ﬁMﬁ MEEDBEREBREN () Not reclassified subsequently to
Hipfra e profit or loss
Hip 1, B ERERH Including: 1. Changes in
EFAEK remeasurement on
FAERNZE the net defined
benefit liability/asset
2. ERETNEMKRE 2. Items attributable to
BATREENE investees under
B M E AR equity method that
alEREAEN will not reclassified
e to profit or loss
(D) ABRENBEEREN (I) To be reclassified subsequently to
Hib R A Uzs profit or loss -321,038,700.14  -336,308,346.57
Hep o1, BERETERHERE Including: 1. Items attributable to
BRAEKESD investees
HEBERAEMD under equity method
BAKETESR that may be
Rk reclassified to profit

3. HAZIHKREE
AERTHEE
TREERS

4. BEREEMER
COESPUEIDS)

5. MNEMTBRENE
=5

or loss

2. Profit or loss from
changes in fair value
of available-for-sale
financial assets

3. Profit or loss from
reclassification of
held-to-maturity
investments as
available-for-sale
assets

4. Profit or loss on cash
flow hedging

5. Translation difference
of financial
statements in

foreign currencies

-321,399,801.87

361,101.73

-336,294,846.71

-13,499.86

(o0}
«wW
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Consolidated Income Statement (continued)

REEN : BRBEIRMNERAF
Harbin Electric Company Limited

2015 F/Z
For the year 2015

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

1A Items BisE KEEHE LHeE
Note Current period  Preceding period
+ - ZEkEEE VII. Total comprehensive income -237,750,704.43  -202,143,000.58
FEANEARMBENGA R ltems attributable to owners of
Fek:c] parent company -124,827,172.29 230,101,030.96
EBERVERENGA NGB ltems attributable to minority interest -112,923,5632.14  —432,244,031.54
N BRI : VIIl.Earnings per share:
BERgRkE Basic EPS 0.1425 0.4114
mEgkE Diluted EPS 0.1425 0.4114
EERRA FESHIEEEA: SHREEREA

Legal representative:

Person in charge of

accounting function:

Person in charge of

accounting department:



A=

Income Statement

2015 FJE
For the year 2015
RBIEN  BREBERRNBRAF By AR
Harbin Electric Company Limited (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
by ltems i Nt FHeE
Note Current period Preceding period
- EHERA l.  Operating revenue XIV.(4) 1,367,634,243.58 2,037,772,191.89
B B ERA Less:  Operating cost XIV.(4) 1,266,276,472.73 1,804,710,550.76
HE S RMM Taxes & surcharge for operations 45,160,888.69 3,935,060.09
HEER Selling expenses 2,225,243.48 1,848,777.93
EEEH Administrative expenses 179,245,239.87 156,970,544 .57
BHER Financial expense 115,786,382.14 116,850,036.94
RERERR Assets impairment loss 46,943,656.54 110,806,802.40
m: ARBEESHWE(ERIAT-]5%  Add:  Gainon changes of fair value (or less:
$831) losses) -329,748,888.89  1,096,393,888.89
BB W (BEI -] B Investment income (or less: losses) XIV.(5) 729,028,948.37 378,780,226.48
Hep: S ENGERER Including:  Investment income from
RENR associates and joint
ventures 15,476,834.21 25,132,119.20
— - EERE(BE-1E) Il. Operating profit (or less: losses) 111,276,419.61 1,317,829,534.57
me EEIMNEA Add:  Non-operating revenue 4,062,249.63 13,008,543.79
Ht  ERPEERETG Including:  Gains on disposal of
non-current assets 2,201,727.85 -
BRI Less:  Non-operating expenditures 431,788.47 248,864.86
He  ERYEERERE Including:  Losses on disposal of
non-current assets 96,914.25 -
= FEAsE (FIEAEI[-1%ES]) . Profit before tax (or less: total loss) 114,906,880.77 1,330,589,213.50
B REHRER Less:  income tax 54,638,388.84 2,966,856.09
M SERECEEEU -1 5%ES) IV. Net profit (or less: net loss) 60,268,491.93 1,327,622,357.41
PEEEREA FEGITIEABA BEHEBREEA
Legal representative: Person in charge of Person in charge of

accounting function: accounting department:
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Income Statement (continued)

2015 &
For the year 2015
REEN : BRBEIRMNERAF By AR
Harbin Electric Company Limited (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
bif] Items Birzx XH&E LHeE
Note Current period Preceding period
1 HttmARENRATE V. Other comprehensive income after tax
()BT EEDBRIBREN (Il Not reclassified subsequently to profit or loss
Hiphr A Unzs
1. EFiERTEXHE 1. Changes in remeasurement on the net
ERENEEENEE defined benefit liability/asset
2. BHETMEWREEM 2. Items attributable to investees under
T ENEEEEMEM equity method that will not reclassified
BAERERZENNE to profit or loss
(Z)NRBESEEBEN (Il) To be reclassified subsequently to
Hivfra s profit or loss
1. BRZETERREEMUE 1. ltems attributable to investees under
BESBEBZNEMGE equity method that may be reclassified
WEhEEMRHE to profit or loss
2. AHESREEAAER 2. Profit or loss from changes in fair value
EHhEm of available-for-sale financial assets
3. BEZIMREAESEAT 3. Profit or loss from reclassification of held-
HEESHEERR to-maturity investments as available-for-
sale assets
4. BLREEHBEENEN 4. Profit or loss on cash flow hedging
7l
5. INEHBBRERNEER 5. Translation difference of financial
statements in foreign currencies
N RERRAE VI. Total comprehensive income 60,268,491.93 1,327,622,357 41
t - ks VII. Earnings per share:
() ERBRYE (I} Basic EPS
(D hEskls () Diluted EPS
BEEERREA FEGHIEEEA: BEREEEA -

Legal representative:

Person in charge of Person in charge of

accounting function: accounting department:



KREERRMDER LA
Harbin Electric Company Limited

EHBETRER

2015 F/Z
For the year 2015

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

M FHEHE FHeE
Note Current period  Preceding period

RETHELENRSRE !

HERR  RESHRE
MEE

B PSR NRE T MRIE
AR

A RAERTTEFUFE ISR

MELSREERAES
AR

WE R A REREERG
WRE

BB BRMR EHREF R

RPHERIREFHE I

RBENARAEEFELE
BEEAEHEED
SREEFEME

BEBFE  FEELRAR
MEE

FAE 2 FE MR

@%%?‘ﬁi@iﬂﬂ%’ﬁ

WB B &R

H&@Jﬁi\‘r@i”&@ﬁbﬁﬁﬁ
MRE

REFHRERADR

Cash flows from operating activities:

Cash receipts from sale of goods or
rendering of services

Net increase of client deposit and
interbank deposit

Net increase of central bank loans

Net increase of loans from other financial
institutions

Cash receipts of original insurance
contract premium

Net cash receipts from reinsurance

Net increase of policy-holder deposit and
investment

Net increase of trading financial assets
disposal

Cash receipts from interest, handling
charges and commission

Net increase of loans from others

Net increase of repurchase

Receipts of tax refund

Other cash receipts related to operating
activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from operating

activities

30,578,389,657.04 28,909,099,163.95

834,753,116.74 342,443,955.49
288,677,075.84 212,842,910.562
425,029,296.55 38,700,694.45
449,872,253.33 815,218,810.27

32,576,721,399.50 30,318,305,534.68
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

KREERRMDER LA
Harbin Electric Company Limited

2015 F/Z
For the year 2015

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HE Items = KEEHE e
Note Current period  Preceding period
BEAR  BEXSEBIMA Cash payments for goods purchased and
SN services received 21,734,401,563.27 22,718,381,220.97
BEPERRBFFIEME Net increase of loans and advances to
clients -19,550,000.00 -7,570,471.23
TF iR RERIT AR R Net increase of central bank deposit and
SFIE ISR interbank deposit 118,765,609.35 192,742,509.11
SR RERRA R 708 Cash payment of insurance indemnities of
HNRE original insurance contracts -
SRFE - FEBRES Cash payment of interest, handling
EopiTeny charges and commission 1,221,436.81 5,623,641.74
TRREAFINRE Cash payment of policy bonus -
NGB IAR AR I Cash paid to and on behalf of employees
nEe 2,790,513,659.66 2,931,308,445.79
XN EIATE Cash payments of taxes and rates 1,685,124,361.24  1,012,911,303.52

XNEBEEEEEER
WRE

RETHRER|LNET

RETHELENASREFR

Other cash payments related to operating

activities

Subtotal cash outflows from operating

activities

Net cash flows from operating activities

1,855,622,667.54

1,956,767,400.62

28,166,099,297.87

28,810,164,050.52

4,410,622,101.63

1,508,141,484.16
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

KREERRMDER LA
Harbin Electric Company Limited

HH

Items

2015 F /2
For the year 2015

o

Note

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

rHEH

Current period

ik

Preceding period

= REEZHELENRERE:

W Bl & U R 3E &

BSHRERERENRE

REBTEE  BYAEM
HitRHEEREN
ReF

REFRRREMEREN
WE|IMREFR

BB Bt BB R BB
WRE

REBHRSMA NG

BRETEE BYAEM

HiokPEEXNIMRS
REXNOESE
BEREFUFEIE
RS FRRREMEREN

XIMREFRE
XNEMEREEBHER

MEE

REZBHREMH NG

REFHELNRSREFR

Cash flows from investing activities:
Cash received from return of investments
Cash received from return on investments
Net cash received from the disposal of
fixed assets, intangible assets and

other long-term assets

Net cash received from the disposal of
subsidiaries & other business units
Other cash receipts related to investing

activities

Subtotal of cash inflows from investing

activities

Cash paid for acquiring fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term

assets

Cash paid for acquiring investments

Net increase of pledged loans

Net cash paid for acquiring subsidiaries &

other business units

Other cash payments related to investing

activities

Subtotal of cash outflows from

investing activities

Net cash flows from investing activities

6,238,182,671.95
664,033,091.57

1,278,699.08

2,220,797.76

6,905,715,260.36

549,615,600.20
7,040,377,524.66

9,901,351.96

3,456,291,355.562
295,778,261.91

12,305,006.24

4,339,833.33

3,768,714,457.00

751,259,273.45
2,321,626,729.94

-45,949.75

528,878.88 210,465,916.11
7,600,423,355.70  3,283,305,969.756
-694,708,095.34 485,408,487.25
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

KREERRMDER LA
Harbin Electric Company Limited

HH

Items

2015 F/Z
For the year 2015

fisE
Note

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed

rHEH

Current period

in Renminbi Yuan)

absiloa |

Preceding period

BETHELNRERE
RU R E KBRS
Hep: FRARBRLER
REBEWENH S

DS ERRE RS
BIEFRINERSE
BB E i EEEREER

MEE

BREHRBMA NG

BEEBAXMNNRS

AR - FIERENN B
XMRE

B FREXMRLBBRR
AR IR

XNEBEEERBHER
MERE
BERDREMAH NG

BERHELANBSREER

Cash flows from financing activities:
Cash received from investment by others
Including: Cash received by subsidiaries
from investment by
minority owners
Cash received from borrowings
Cash received from issuing of bonds
Other cash receipts related to financing
activities
Subtotal of cash inflows from financing
activities
Cash repayments of debt
Cash paid for distribution of dividends or
profits or for interest repayments
Including: Cash paid for
distribution of dividends or
profits by subsidiaries to
minority owners
Other cash payments related to financing
activities
Subtotal of cash outflows from
financing activities

Net cash flows from financing activities

3,178,393,476.92

3,178,393,476.92
2,946,441,833.35

348,506,778.93

6,920,251.75

3,294,948,612.28

1,409,831,480.29

1,409,831,480.29
1,318,490,5649.65

405,641,595.87

12,624,929.21

1,724,032,145.52

-116,555,135.36

-314,200,665.23
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement (continued)

BREERKRNARAR

Harbin Electric Company Limited

2015 F /2
For the year 2015

EEEMN  ARKET

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

HE Items = KEEHE e
Note Current period  Preceding period
m. EXSBHRELRES IV. Effect of foreign exchange rate changes
SEVNTE on cash & cash equivalents 16,100,883.25 -4,596,347.59
T BRERBESEEYFEME V.  Netincrease in cash and cash
equivalents 3,615,459,754.18 1,674,752,958.59
e HYReRRE Add: Opening balance of cash and
@M cash equivalents 13,563,036,710.58 11,888,283,751.99
AN HRBEESRBREZEYHE VI. Closing balance of cash and cash
equivalents 17,178,496,464.76 13,563,036,710.58
EERRA FESTIEATA: SEREBEA

Legal representative:

Person in charge of

accounting function:

Person in charge of

accounting department:
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Cash Flow Statement

- REETHELNRERE Il

WEREREMORE
BERERGEWEINRS
REBEEAE BVEENAMRY
EERENREFE
REFARAREMEFEMUEIM
ket |
WEEMEREEZDEENRE

REEBRERADG

Cash flows from investing activities:

Cash received from return of investments

Cash received from investments gains

Net cash receipts from disposals of fixed assets,
intangible assets and other long-term assets

Net cash receipts from disposals of subsidiaries
and other business units

Other cash receipts related to investing activities

Subtotal of cash inflow from investing
activities

2015 F/Z
For the year 2015
REERM  BRBERBROHBRAF By : ARBT
Harbin Electric Company Limited (Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)
ltems BiizE rHEHE LHeE
Note Current period Preceding period
- REZTHELENRERE . I Cash flows from operating activities:
HERR  RELSBRIMESL Cash receipts from sale of goods and rendering of
services 2,116,100,553.74 2,627,395,034.87
YEHERE Receipts of tax refund -
WR B B EB MRS Other cash receipts related to operating activities 77,889,676.96 76,022,391.74
K EBRER/A NG Subtotal of cash inflow from operating
activities 2,193,990,230.70 2,703,417,426.61
BERG  BXSBIANHAL Cash payments for goods purchased and services
received 2,126,246,431.42 2,634,705,230.76
YHEBTIURART S MRS Cash payments to and on behalf of employees 83,194,320.35 80,635,965.23
SRHRIERE Cash payments of taxes and rates 124,031,037.93 30,162,853.59
YHEMECLTEHEENES Other cash payments related to operating activities 2,041,274,768.33 307,125,768.57
KeFBRERL N Subtotal of cash outflows from operating
activities 4,374,746,558.03 3,052,629,818.15
RETHEANREREFE Net cash flows from operating activities -2,180,756,327.33 -349,212,391.54

1,579,551,111.11
672,076,267.66

200.00

899,098,888.89
216,005,252.61

2,251,621,578.77

1,115,104,141.50
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Cash Flow Statement (continued)

BEEMN  RRBERRNERLQR

Harbin Electric Company Limited

2015 F/Z
For the year 2015

B ARKT

(Expressed in Renminbi Yuan)

BH Items Birzx ¥ THSE
Note Current period Preceding period
BRETEE  EVEENEMES Cash payments to acquire fixed assets, intangible
BEIMMERE assets and other long-term assets 112,972,115.17 91,045,890.16
REL MBS Cash payments to acquire investments 639,804,100.00 310,000,000.00
SFREREMEEBNTAM Net cash payments for acquisitions of subsidiaries
ReFE and other business units
TREMESEEHEENES Other cash payments related to investing activities
REFDREM ANt Subtotal of cash outflows from investing
activities 752,776,215.17 401,045,890.16
REZHEANESRETRE Net cash flows from investing activities 1,498,851,363.60 714,058,251.34
= BETHEANBELRE: lll. Cash flows from financing activities:
DidevecyiEliobkn Cash receipts from investment by others
BEETNEINAS Cash receipts from borrowings
ETEFNEINAS Cash received from issuing bonds
WHEMEEEEHEENES Other cash receipts related to financing activities 38,901,333.33
EETHRLRA DG Subtotal of cash inflows from financing
activities 38,901,333.33 -
BEEBZANES Cash repayments of borrowings
SERF - MEREFMFIE A Cash payments for distribution of dividends or
Be profit or interest expenses 222,393,624.80 273,962,168.36
YHEMEEEEHEENR S Other cash payments related to financing activities
BETHRERE DG Subtotal of cash outflows from financing
activities 222,393,624.80 273,962,168.36
EETHELNEERERE Net cash flows from financing activities -183,492,291.47 -273,962,168.36

M- EXSBURERASLENNTE |

n RERRESEEMWEEMA V.
m: BRE RREEENHE

N HRASRREEENHE V1.

EREAEREA

Legal representative:

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes on
cash and cash equivalents

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Add:Opening balance of cash and cash equivalents

Closing balance of cash and cash equivalents

I B = n-l-Iﬂ;E\E\/\
Person in charge of

accounting function:

-382,518.38
-865,779,773.58
1,860,760,647.80

994,980,874.22

SRIHBRAEA

Person in charge of

accounting department:

90,883,691.44
1,769,876,956.36

1,860,760,647.80
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements
SHEEMHBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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INFORMATION ABOUT THE COMPANY

(1

Company profile

Harbin Electric Company Limited (the “Company”) was
initially and was formed through the restructuring of Harbin
Electric Corporation (“HE Corporation”) and its three
affiliates: Harbin Electrical Machinery Works, Harbin Boiler
Works and Harbin Turbine Works (the“three major power
factories”). The Company was established in Harbin on 6
October 1994. The reconstruction and listing of its shares
in Hong Kong with limited liabilities has been approved by
the State Commission for Restructuring the Economic

Systems on 5 November 1994.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
COMPANY(contmued)

(1

Company profile(continued)

The initial share capital of the Company was RMB
1,189,151,000, of which RMB720,000,000was held by HE
Corporation, representing 60.55% of its total share capital.
Offshore H Shares of RMB 469,151,000, representing
39.45% of its total share capital, was listing on the Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong on 16 December 1994. After
obtaining the approval by the resolution on the general
meeting and by the China Securities Regulatory
Commission and the approval from the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong, the Company placed a total of 93,830,000 H
Shares, including 85,300,000 new shares and the domestic
shares it held was decreased by 8,530,000 shares in 2005.
Subsequent to the completion of the placing of H Shares,
the share capital of the Company was changed to RMB
1,274,451,000. After obtaining the approval by the
resolution on the 2005 annual general meeting of the
Company and Zheng Jian Guo He Zi [2007] No.6 of China
Securities Regulatory Committee, in February 2007,the
Company issued an additional of 112,590,000 overseas-
listed foreign shares (“H Shares”), including 102,355,000
shares and the shareholding of domestic shareholders was
decreased by 10,235,000 shares. Pursuant to the approval
of the State Owned Property [2006] No.1492 issued by the
State-owned Assets Supervision and Administration
Commission of the State Council, the Company shall
transfer 10,235,000 shares of state-owned enterprise legal
person held by Harbin Electric Corporation to the National
Social Security Fund Council upon the placing of its H
shares. On 2 March 2007, the Company received an
additional share capital of RMB 102,355,000.00 paid by
overseas shareholders in their currency. Hence, the
registered capital and share capital changed to
RMB1,376,806,000.00, of which RMB701,235,000.00
were held by state-owned enterprise legal person,
representing 50.93% of the total share capital. Overseas H
shares amounted to RMB675,571,000.00, representing
49.07% of the total share capital.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
COMPANY(Contmued)

(1

Company profile(continued)

Registration Number of the legal enterprise business
license of the Company: 230100100004252(1-1)

Legal representative: Zou Lei

Registered address: Block 3, Nangang District High
Technology Production Base, Harbin

Office Address: Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road, Xiangfang
District, Harbin

Parent and ultimate controller of the Company: Harbin
Electric Corporation

The Company is engaged in manufacturing of power
generator and generator units, its principal businesses are
production and sales of power generator and turn-key

construction of power station projects.

Major business segments are: Manufacturing of large scale
thermal power, hydro power, nuclear power and its
ancillary equipment, turn-key construction of power station
projects, research and development, design and
manufacturing of major products such as power equipment
of ships and electric power equipment etc..

The financial statements was approved by the board of
directors on 25 March 2016.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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. INFORMATION ABOUT THE
COMPANY(Contmued)

()

Scope of consolidated financial statements

As at 31 December 2015, the Company’s subsidiaries
within the scope of consolidated financial statements are

as follows:

Name of subsidiaries

Harbin Turbine Company Limited
Harbin Power Technology & Trade Inc.
Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited

Harbin Power Equipment National Engineering Research Centre Co., Ltd

HE Harbin Power Plant Valve Company Limited

Chengdu Sanliya Technology Company (J.#8 =] S &L A R A )

Harbin Boiler Company Limited

Harbin Electric Power Equipment Company Limited

Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy Equipment Company Limited

HE Modern Manufacturing Service Industry Company Limited

Harbin Electric Corporation Finance Company Limited
Harbin Electric International Company Limited
Harbin Electric Corporation( ¥ #T /&1 & & 1K /A H )

Details of the scope of the consolidated financial statement for

the period and its changes were set out in “VI. Changes in the

consolidated scope” and “VII. Equity in other entities” of this

note.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
SREEMHAAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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BASIS OF PREPARATION OF FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

n

(m

Basis of preparation

Based on going concern and actual transactions and
events, the Company prepared financial statements in
accordance with the basic and specific standards of the
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises, the
Application Guidance for Accounting Standard for Business
Enterprises, interpretations of the Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises and other relevant regulations
issued by the Ministry of Finance (hereinafter collectively
referred to as “CAS"), and the disclosure requirements in
the Preparation Convention of Information Disclosure by
Companies Offering Securities to the Public No.15 —
General Provisions on Financial Reporting issued by the
China Securities Regulatory Commission.

Going concern

For the reporting period and at least 12 months since the
end of the reporting period, the Company'’s production and
operation was stable with reasonable asset and liability
structure, therefore it has ability to continue as a going
concern and there's no significant risk affecting its ability to

continue as a going concern.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(B oRERASD -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

=  EESTTBERER MG

NTRBEARERETARAREBERE
EEERHHENAR R HANE S
st

(—) BRECESTEANES

E%%%m%ﬁﬁ%ﬁ hEEt
ERWER - A - TEHRIR T H
SHARIMP IR - EERR B
EREFAEBER

O l>>

(=) 2FtHm
BEAB1AI1BE12A31MB 1A —
EestaFE -

(=) #Z£AH
NARIEEBEHRR12EAR -

(M) RERAIH
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The following disclosures cover the specific accounting policies
and accounting estimates formulated by the Company according
to the characteristics of its production and operation.

() Statement of compliance of accounting standards for
business enterprises

The financial statements have been prepared by the
Company in conformity with the China Accounting
Standards for Business Enterprises, and present truly and
completely the Company’s financial position, operating
results and cash flow and other related information in the
reporting period.

()  Accounting period
The accounting period of the Company is from 1 January to
31 December of each calendar year.

(ll) Operating Cycle

The Group's operating cycle is 12 months.

(IV) Reporting currency

The reporting currency of the Company is Renminbi
("RMB").
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
SREEMHAAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(V)

Accounting treatments for business combinations

involving entities under and not under common control

Business combinations involving entities under common
control: The assets and liabilities acquired by the Group in
business combination shall be measured at the carrying
value of the assets, liabilities of the acquiree (including
goodwill incurred in the acquisition of the acquiree by
ultimate controlling party) in the financial statements of the
ultimate controlling party at the date of combination. The
difference between the carrying amount of the net assets
obtained and the carrying amount of the consideration paid
for the combination (or total nominal value of the issued
shares) is adjusted to capital premium in capital reserve.

Business combinations involving entities not under
common control: The assets paid and liabilities incurred or
committed as a consideration of business combination by
the Company were measured at fair value on the date of
acquisition and the difference between the fair value and
its carrying value shall be charged to the profit or loss for
the period. Where the cost of combination is higher than
the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired from
the acquiree in business combination, the Company shall
recognize such difference as goodwill; where the cost of
combination is less than the fair value of the identifiable
net assets acquired from the acquiree in business
combination, such difference shall be charged to the profit
or loss for the current period.

The agency fee such as audit, legal service and evaluation
consultation and other fees which are directly related to
the above matters shall be recognised as the profit or loss
in the period when the costs are incurred; the transaction
costs for the equity securities issued for corporate
combination shall be written-off against equity.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

continued)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(V1) Preparation of consolidated financial statements

1.

Scope of consolidation

The scope of consolidation of the consolidated
financial statements of the Company is based on
controlling interests, and all the subsidiaries
(including separate entities of the investee controlled
by the Company) are included in the consolidated
financial statements.

Consolidation method

The consolidated financial statements are prepared
by the Company based on the financial statements of
the Company and its subsidiaries and in accordance
with the other relevant information. In preparation of
the Company's consolidated financial statements,
the Company will treat the enterprise group as a
single accounting entity. The Group's overall financial
condition, operating results and cash flow are
reflected based on the relevant accounting standards,
measurement and presentation requirements and in
accordance with the unified accounting policy.

The subsidiaries that are within the scope of the
consolidation shall have the same accounting policies
and the accounting periods with those of the
Company. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, where the accounting policies and the
accounting periods are inconsistent between the
Company and subsidiaries, the financial statements
of subsidiaries are adjusted in accordance with the
accounting policies and accounting period of the
Company. For subsidiaries acquired from a business
combination involving entities not under common
control, the individual financial statements of the
subsidiaries are adjusted based on the fair value of
the identifiable net assets on the date of acquisition.
For subsidiaries acquired from a business
combination involving entities under common control,
the individual financial statements of the subsidiaries
are adjusted based on the carrying value of the
assets, liabilities of the acquiree (including goodwill
incurred in the acquisition of the acquiree by ultimate
controlling party) in the financial statements of the
ultimate controlling party.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(V1) Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(continued)

2.

Consolidation method (continued)

The owner’s equity, the net profit or loss and the
comprehensive income attributable to minority
shareholders of a subsidiary of the current period are
presented separately under the owners’ equity in the
consolidated balance sheet, the net profit and the
total comprehensive income in the consolidated
income statement respectively. Where losses
attributable to the minority shareholders of a
subsidiary exceed the minority shareholders’ interest
entitled in the shareholders’ equity of the subsidiary
at the beginning of the period, the excess is allocated
against the minority shareholders interest.

(1) Acquisition of subsidiaries or business

For acquisition of subsidiaries or business due
to business combination involving entities
under common control during the reporting
period, the opening balance of the consolidated
balance sheet shall be adjusted; the revenue,
expense and profit of such subsidiaries or
business from the beginning to the end of the
reporting period when the merger occurs are
included in the consolidated income statement;
the cash flows of such subsidiaries or business
from the beginning to the end of the reporting
period when the merger occurs are included in
the consolidated cash flow statement, and the
comparative figures of the financial statements
should be adjusted simultaneously as if the
consolidated reporting entity had been in
existence since the beginning of the control by
the ultimate controlling party.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(V1) Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(continued)

2. Consolidation method (continued)

(1)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or business

An investor that may impose control over the
investee under joint control due to additional
investment shall be deemed a party
participating in the combination, and shall be
adjusted at current status when the ultimate
controlling party begins the control. The equity
investment held before gaining the control of
the combined party is recognized as relevant
profit or loss, other comprehensive income and
changes in other net assets at the later of the
date of acquisition of the original equity and the
date when the combining and the combined
parties are under joint control, and shall be
written down to the opening balance retained
earnings or current profit or loss in the
comparative reporting period.

For acquisition of subsidiaries due to business
combination involving entities not under
common control during the reporting period,
the opening balance of consolidated balance
sheet needs not be adjusted; the revenue,
expense and profit of such subsidiaries or
business from the date of acquisition to the
end of the reporting period are included in the
consolidated income statement; the cash flows
of such subsidiaries or business from the date
of acquisition to the end of the reporting period
are included in the consolidated cash flow
statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(Vi)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(continued)

2.

Consolidation method (continued)

(1)

Acquisition of subsidiaries or business
(continued)

In connection with imposing control over the
investee not under joint control as a result of
additional investment and other reasons, the
equity of acquiree held before acquisition date
shall be remeasured by the Company at the fair
value of such equity on the acquisition date
and the difference between fair value and
carrying amount shall be recognised as
investment income in current period; if the
acquiree's equity held before the acquiring
date contains other comprehensive income
and the other changes of owner's equity
except for net profits and losses, other
comprehensive income and profit distributions
under the equity method, the related other
comprehensive income and changes in other
owner's equity shall be transferred to
investment gains or losses on the date of
acquisition, excluding the other comprehensive
income derived from changes of net liabilities
or net assets due to re-measurement on
defined benefit plan by the investee.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(V1) Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(continued)

2. Consolidation method (continued)

(2)  Disposal of subsidiaries or business

1

General treatment

For disposal of subsidiaries or business
during the reporting period,the revenue,
expense and profit of such subsidiaries
or business from the beginning of the
period to the date of disposal are
included in the consolidated income
statement; the cash flows of such
subsidiaries or business from the
beginning of the period to the date of
disposal are included in the consolidated
cash flow statement.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(V1) Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(continued)

2. Consolidation method (continued)

2)

Disposal of subsidiaries or business (continued)

General treatment (continued)

Where control of the investee is lost due
to partial disposal of the equity
investment, or any other reasons, the
remaining equity investment is
remeasured to fair value at the date in
which control is lost. The sum of
consideration received from disposal of
equity investment and the fair value of
the remaining equity investment, net of
the difference between the sum of the
Company's previous share of the
subsidiary’'s net assets recorded from
the acquisition date or combination date
and the sum of goodwill, is recognised in
investment income in the period in which
control is lost. Other comprehensive
income or net profit and loss related to
the previous equity investment in the
subsidiary, changes in equity except the
other comprehensive income and profit
distribution, are transferred to investment
income of the current period when
control is lost, except the other
comprehensive income as a result of the
changes arising from the remeasurement
of the net assets and net liabilities of the
investee’s defined benefit plan.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(V1) Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(continued)

2. Consolidation method (continued)

(2)  Disposal of subsidiaries or business (continued)

2

Disposal of subsidiary achieved by stages
When disposal of equity interests of
subsidiaries through multiple transactions
until control is lost, generally transactions
in stages are treatment as a package
deal in accounting if the transaction
terms, conditions, and economic impact
of disposal of the subsidiary’s equity
interests comply with one or more of the
following:

i These transactions are achieved at
the same time or the mutual
effects on each other are
considered.

ii. A complete set of commercial
results can be achieved with
reference to the series of
transactions as a whole.

iii.  Achieving a transaction depends
on at least achieving of one of the
other transaction.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(V1) Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(continued)

2. Consolidation method (continued)

2)

Disposal of subsidiaries or business (continued)

Disposal of subsidiary achieved by stages

(continued)

iv.  One transaction recognized
separately is not economical, but it
is economical when considered

together with other transactions.

If losing control of a subsidiary in disposal
of equity interests through multiple
transactions is recognized as a package
deals, these transactions shall be in
accounting treated as loss control of a
subsidiary in disposal of equity interests
achieved. However, the differences
between price on each disposal and
disposal of investment on the
subsidiary’'s net assets shall be
recognized in other comprehensive
income in the consolidated financial
statements, and included in profit or loss
for the period when the control is lost.



— O — R F & B %5 w3k MY & ()
Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

= EEFHEERRERMEH® lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued
() BB BRRNVERSE(E) (V1) Preparation of consolidated financial statements 13
(continued)
T
2. BHEFGE) 2. Consolidation method (continued) Qz.’-
3
2) BEFRAIHER (&) (2)  Disposal of subsidiaries or business (continued) g
2 DEBREF N A 2 Disposal of subsidiary achieved by stages 2
(#&) (continued) §
o= /Ny If all transactions in disposal of equity §
REBEERITEH interests of subsidiaries until losing 5
HHSERSHTE control are not a package deals, §
R—EBFIHH accounting treatment for partial disposal >
TEXESEZ of equity investments of subsidiary E
B+ =38 KT without losing control shall be applied :T,
BRERTHDE before control is lost. When control is '§
BEHFARIHIRRE lost, general accounting treatment for i
&R HRBBBUR disposal of a subsidiary shall be used. g

TRt R
SRR
BT AT MRER
T kT B A
2 o



114

[ERASIEAUREESE Y-

B GL0Z

—O—EFEMBEHRRMET @

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
SREEMHAAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

(BRASTREEASN -

= -EEETHERE G @

(R) EHMBRRNERTE(E)

2

&oERF ()

(3)

(4)

BEFRAILBKE

ARAREBEE DB E
RGN RARERE
B 52 B T 3 5 % L ) A
EREETRAABERE
B(%A&6A)RAEFHE
AENFEENE LM
MERE ABAHEE
BERTHEARAEF
MR AR E - EARNRTE
A B A g (B R B R
- BB -

TRXEFNEABERLT
B8 7 BE B ¥ T 2 Al AR
BRE

R IE I IR
THEBOREEL TR
R E M RE
MEEERERERH
BEEEREEZEET
ARBERERAXAHA
RIGIT BT ENFEE
MEBZEWERE HE
EHEERABRTNE
RATER I RAE E -
BARDTEPHRAEE
TRMRE - HERF
W

o

Bl

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(Vi)

Preparation of consolidated financial statements

(continued)

2.

Consolidation method (continued)

(3)

4)

Acquisition of minority interest of subsidiaries

The Company shall adjust the share premium
in the capital reserve of the consolidated
balance sheet with respect to any difference
between the long-term equity investment
arising from the purchase of minority interest
and the net assets attributing to the parent
company continuously calculated on the basis
of the newly increased share proportion as of
the acquisition date (or date of combination) or,
adjust the retained earnings in case the share
premium in the capital reserve is insufficient

for write-down.

Partial disposal of equity investment in
subsidiaries without losing control

The difference between disposal consideration
of long-term equity investment in subsidiaries
partially disposed by the Group without losing
control and the share of net assets calculated
from the date of acquisition or combination
date shall be adjusted to share premium in the
capital reserve in the consolidated balance
sheet. Adjustments shall be made to retained
earnings in the event that the share premiums
in the capital reserves are not sufficient.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(VIl) Classification of accounting method and the joint

arrangements

A joint arrangement is classified as either a joint operation

or ajoint venture.

When the Company is a joint operator of joint arrangement,
which means the Company have rights to the assets, and
obligations for the liabilities, relating to the arrangement.

The Company recognizes the following items in relation to
its interest in a joint operation, and method for them in
accordance with relevant accounting standards:

(1) The Company’'s solely-held assets, and the

Company's share of any assets held jointly;

(2)  The Company's solely-assumed liabilities, and the
Company's share of any liabilities incurred jointly;

(3)  The Company's revenue from the sale of its share of
the output arising from the joint operation.

(4)  The Company's share of the revenue from the sale
of the output by the joint operation; and

(5) Its solely-incurred expenses and the Company’s
share of any expenses incurred jointly.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(VIIl) Determination of cash and cash equivalents

(IX)

In preparing the cash flow statement, the cash on hand

and deposits that are available for payment at any time of

the Company are recognised as cash. The short-term (due

within 3 months of the date of purchase) and highly liquid

investments that are readily convertible to known amounts

of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of

value change are recognised as cash equivalents.

Foreign currency transactions and translation of

foreign currency financial statements

1.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions shall be translated into
RMB at the spot exchange rate on the day when the

transactions occurred.

Balance sheet date foreign currency monetary items
shall be translated using the spot exchange rate at
the balance sheet date. The resulting exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss for the
current period, except for those differences related
to the principal and interest on a specific-purpose
borrowing denominated in foreign currency for
acquisitions, construction or production of the
qualified assets, which should be capitalised as cost
of the assets.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(IX) Foreign currency transactions and translation of

foreign currency financial statements (continued)

2.

Translation of foreign currency financial
statements

All assets and liabilities items in balance sheet are
translated based on spot exchange rate on the
balance sheet date; owners’ equity items other than
“undistributed profit” are translated at a spot
exchange rate when accrued. Revenue and expense
items in the income statement are translated at a
spot exchange rate at the transaction occurrence
date.

For disposal of overseas operation, the translation
difference as stated in the foreign currency financial
statements relating to overseas operation, is
accounted for in the profit and loss account in the

current period from owners’ equity items.

(X) Financial instruments

Financial instruments include financial assets, financial

liabilities and equity instruments.

Classification of the financial instruments

The financial instruments was classified at the time
of initial recognition as: financial assets or financial
liabilities carried at fair value through profit or loss for
the current period, including financial assets or
liabilities for trading and financial assets or financial
liabilities directly designated as measured at fair
value and its changes are included in the profit or
loss for the current period ; held-to-maturity
investments; accounts receivable; available-for-sale

financial assets and other financial liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X)

Financial instruments (continued)

2.

Recognition and measurement of financial

instruments

(1)

Financial assets or financial liabilities carried at
fair value through profit or loss for the current
period

When obtained, the financial assets or financial
liabilities shall be initially measured at their fair
value (except for cash dividends which are
declared but not distributed or interests on
bonds of which the maturity interest is not
drawn), its transaction costs are included in the
profit or loss for the period.

The interest or cash dividend which was gained
in the period are recognized as investment
income. At the end of the period, the variation
in the fair value of the financial asset or
financial liability shall be included in the profit
or loss for the period.

When the said financial assets or financial
liabilities are on disposal, the difference
between the fair value and the amount of initial
recognition shall be recognized as investment
income; meanwhile, the profits and losses
arising from the variation in fair value shall be
adjusted.



“O—EFEMBEHRRME @

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

= -EEETHERE G @

(+) ¢WMIA(E)

2 EHTANERXBENES

ZE(8E)
(2) BEZIHKRE

(3)

MERHRAEEGNR
BB B A i R B
MEZHE) MBS
ERZMERNBER
B o

FrA IR R AR AR
BB A RSt E R A
BHA - FIARE R -
BN R ARG FEE -
EZERFERERE
P 52 AR AR A

BRER - SAMREER
HZEREAKREEEZH

M ERRET AR E W ©
B FIEN IR

NSIE RIS C RS
HESTETZ R RO eI EHE -
AR RRIFFENEME
ENTRREREDS
FERENEBTADN
B BREEKERNX
Hib e YR - AR B
877 R A R ki
EBRIERRTER SR
EEmENEN ®H
REETUIRHER °

lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X) Financial instruments (continued)

2. Recognition and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

2)

(3)

Held-to-maturity investments

Held-to-maturity investments are initially
measured at fair value when obtained (except
for interests on bonds of which the maturity
interest is not drawn) plus relevant transaction
costs.

Interest income is calculated according to the
amortised cost and effective interest rate and
recorded into investment income. The effective
interest rate, ascertained when initially
obtained, shall remain unchanged within the
predicted term of existence or within a shorter
applicable term.

When disposed, the difference between the
consideration obtained and the carrying amount
of the investment shall be recorded into

investment income.

Loans and accounts receivable

The receivables that are formed in sale of
goods or rendering of services to external
parties, and the receivables, except for the
debt instruments quoted in an active market,
due to the Company from other entities,
including accounts receivable, other
receivables, etc., are initially recognised at the
consideration of the contract or agreement to
be received from the buyers. Accounts
receivable that are of a financing nature are
initially recognised at their present value.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X) Financial instruments (continued)

2. Recognition and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

(3)

Accounts receivable (continued)

Upon recovery or disposal of accounts
receivable, the difference between the
consideration obtained and the carrying amount
is charged to profit or loss for the period.

Loans are subsequently measured at amortised
cost by effective interest method. Profit or loss
arising when the loans are derecognized,
impaired or amortised is included in the profit
or loss for the current period.

A Loans by length of terms

Short-term loans: loans with terms within
1 year(including 1 year) are stated as
short-term loans.

Medium-term loans: loans with terms
over 1 year but below 5 years(including 5
years) are stated as medium-long-term
loans.

Long-term loans: loans with terms over 5
years are stated as long-term loans.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X)

Financial instruments (continued)

2.

Recognition and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

(3)

Accounts receivable (continued)

B

Loans by levels of risks

According to “Guidelines to Classification
of risks of Loans”[Yinfa(2001)No.416]
CEFRE R EEERADIIREE (2001)416
§%1) issued by the People's Bank of
China, the Company classified loans in to
five categories: ordinary, mention,
subprime, doubtful and loss.

Ordinary loans are loans of which
borrowers can perform contract and
there is no adequate reason to doubt that
the principals and interests of the loans
cannot be fully settled on time;

Mention loans are loans of which
borrowers are currently capable of
repaying principals and interests of the
loans while certain factors may adversely
affect relevant settlement;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X) Financial instruments (continued)

2. Recognition and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

(3)

Accounts receivable (continued)

B

Loans by levels of risks (continued)

Subprime loans are loans of which
capability of repayment of the borrowers
is obviously questionable. The borrowers
are unable to repay principals and
interests of the loans solely relying on its
ordinary operating income. Relevant
loans may suffer loss even guarantees
are called,;

Doubtful loans are loans of which the
borrowers are unable to repay principals
and interests of the loans. Relevant loans
may suffer loss even guarantees are

called;

Loss loans are loans of which the
principals and interests of the loans are
irrecoverable or only limited portion of
the loan can be recovered even all
possible measures and necessary legal
proceedings are taken.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X) Financial instruments (continued)

2. Recognition and measurement of financial

instruments (continued)

4)

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially
measured at fair value when obtained (except
for cash dividends which are declared but not
distributed or interests on bonds of which the
maturity interest is not drawn) plus relevant

transaction costs.

The interests or cash dividends to be obtained
during the period the available-for-sale financial
assets are held shall be recorded into
investment income. By the end of the reporting
period, financial assets are measured at fair
value, and the change in fair value shall be
recorded into other comprehensive income.
However, measurement at cost shall be used
when there is no quoted price in an active
market and the fair value of investments in
equity instruments cannot be reliably measured
and derivative financial assets is linked to
equity instruments where equity instrument
shall be settled by delivery.

When disposed of, the difference between the
consideration obtained and the carrying amount
of the financial assets shall be recorded into
investment income; meanwhile, the
corresponding portion of accumulated change
in fair value previously recorded into other
comprehensive income shall be transferred to

profit or loss.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X) Financial instruments (continued)

2.

Recognition and measurement of financial
instruments (continued)

(5)  Other financial liabilities

Other financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value plus relevant transaction costs, and
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Recognition and measurement of transfer of

financial assets

A financial asset shall be derecognised while the
Company has transferred nearly all the risks and
rewards related to the ownership of the financial
asset to the transferee, and it shall not be
derecognised if the Group has retained nearly all the
risks and rewards related to the ownerships of the
financial asset.

The substance-over-form principle shall be adopted
while making a judgment on whether the transfer of
financial assets satisfies the above conditions for
termination of recognition. The transfer of financial
assets could be classified into entire transfer and
partial transfer. If the transfer of an entire financial
asset satisfies the conditions for termination of
recognition, the difference between the two amounts
below shall be recorded into profit or loss for the
period:

(1) The carrying amount of the financial asset
transferred,

(2)  The consideration received as a result of the
transfer, plus the accumulative amount of the
change in fair value previously recorded into
the owners’ equities (in cases where the
transferred financial asset is available-for-sale
financial asset).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X)

Financial instruments (continued)

3.

Recognition and measurement of transfer of
financial assets (continued)

If the partial transfer of financial assets satisfies the
conditions for termination of recognition, the overall
carrying amount of the transferred financial asset
shall be apportioned according to their respective
relative fair value between the portion of
derecognised part and the remaining part, and the
difference between the two amounts below shall be
recorded into profit or loss for the current period:

(1) The carrying amount of the derecognised
portion;

(2)  The sum of consideration of the derecognised
portion and the corresponding portion of
accumulated change in fair value previously
recorded into owners’ equity (in cases where
the transferred financial assets are available-
for-sale financial assets).

Financial assets will still be recognised if they fail to
satisfy the conditions for termination of recognition,
with the consideration received recognised as a
financial liability.

—
N
ol

GL0Z Hoday [enuuy  poliwi Auedwo) ou108|3 uigleH



ENANERUR

B GL0Z

—O-—hAFEMBHRME @

Notes to the 20?@&? *Flr;‘anmal Statements |
GASFRIERAA -

(+) ¢WMIA(E)

4 -

EEE BRI ERIFAT

TRABENRFRE 2L
DEERERRE - IR IR
THEBERE %D AQF
HEERARE R - AAE
HEeRmBEE I ARRREER
BE AFemEERRGES
RABENSREREE ETRH
o RIRIERRBBFEREA
B YRGERHEHMEE -

|

HRGFeMaE2dBrE
EGFIEEEE &k - Al
RIFEREFeRmAERE—
o ERBERERENS
RERwEAR—EFeRAR -

TRABERMHID K ILFHER
B RIEERN SR ABERE
BEEEXNEHE(RFRELN
FREEESARENTERE
%)ZF?E’J%%@ FFAEHE

o

BX

ARAREEHEBrEMERE
) - £ i B IR BRAE B TR 0
DELI RIS HEE AR
BE BZeRaBEEENE
EEEETHR - HEGEELE
ERITEHMEEEBEREEZFH
HEBEELNIRSEE
LEENTERARE) 2B
EE o FFAEHEG -

continued)

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X)

Financial instruments (continued)

4.

Conditions for derecognition of financial liabilities

When the current obligation under a financial liability
is completely or partially discharged, the whole or
relevant portion of the liability is derecognized; an
agreement is entered between the Group and a
creditor to replace the original financial liabilities with
new financial liabilities with substantially different
terms, derecognize the original financial liabilities as

well as recognize the new financial liabilities.

If all or part of the contract terms of the original
financial liabilities are substantially amended, the
original financial liabilities will be derecognized in full
or in part, and the financial liabilities whose terms
have been amended shall be recognised as a new
financial liability.

When financial liabilities is derecognized in full or in
part, the difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liabilities derecognized and the
consideration paid (including transferred non-cash
assets or new financial liability) is recognized in profit
or loss for the current period.

Where the Company repurchases part of its financial
liabilities, the carrying amount of such financial
liabilities will be allocated according to the relative
fair value between the continued recognised part and
derecognised part on the repurchase date. The
difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liabilities derecognized and the consideration
paid (including transferred non-cash assets or new
financial liability) is recognized in profit or loss for the
current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X)

Financial instruments (continued)

5.

Method of determining the fair values of financial
assets and liabilities

The fair value of a financial instrument that is traded
in an active market is determined at the quoted price
in the active market. The fair value of a financial
instrument that is not traded in an active market is
determined by using a valuation technique. The
Company uses the valuation technique when it is
applicable under current conditions and there are
enough available data and other information to
support and the technique should maximize the use
of relevant observable. Unobservable inputs are used
under the circumstance that the relevant observable
inputs cannot be obtained or not feasible. Those
inputs should be consistent with the inputs a market
participant would use when pricing the asset or
liability.

Testing methodology and accounting for
impairment of financial assets (excluding

accounts receivable)

The Group shall assess the carrying amount of
financial assets other than those at fair value through
profit or loss at the balance sheet date. If there is
objective evidence that the financial asset is
impaired, the Company shall make provision of any
impairment.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X) Financial instruments (continued)

6.

Testing methodology and accounting for
impairment of financial assets (excluding
accounts receivable) (continued)

Impairment provision for available-for-sale

financial asset:

While the fair value of available-for-sale
financial asset falls significantly, or judged by
the Company that descending trend is not
temporary after taking into account related data
comprehensively at the end of the period, they
will be recognized as impaired, the cumulative
loss arising from decline in fair value that had
been recognised directly in the owners’ equity
shall be removed from the shareholders’ equity
and recognised as impairment or loss.

If, after an impairment loss has been
recognised on an available-for-sale debt
instrument, the fair value of the debt
instrument increases in a subsequent period
and the increase can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognised, the impairment loss shall be
reversed, with the amount of the reversal
recognised in the profit or loss for the current
period.

Impairment losses recognised for an
investment in an available-for-sale equity
instrument shall not be reversed through profit

or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X)

Financial instruments (continued)

6.

Testing methodology and accounting for

impairment of financial assets (excluding

accounts receivable) (continued)

(2)

Impairment provision for held-to-maturity

investments:

The measurement of the impairment loss for
held-to-maturity investments shall be treated
with reference to that for the accounts
receivable.

Impairment provision for loans and receivables

The carrying amount of the financial assets
measured at cost or amortized cost is adjusted
to the present value of estimated future cash
flows. The difference is recognized as
impairment loss in profit or loss in the current
period. After recognizing as impairment loss, if
there is objective evidence that the value of
the financial asset recovered and the recovery
is related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the previously
recognised impairment loss is reversed to the
financial asset. However, the reversal is made
to the extent that the carrying amount of the
financial asset at the date the impairment is
reversed does not exceed what the amortised
cost would have been had the impairment not
been recognised.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X) Financial instruments (continued)

6.

Testing methodology and accounting for

impairment of financial assets (excluding

accounts receivable) (continued)

(3)

Impairment provision for loans and receivables
(continued)

For a financial asset that is individually
significant, the Company assesses the asset
individually for impairment to ensure if there is
objective evidence of impairment. For a
financial asset that is individually insignificant,
the Group assesses the asset individually and
collectively for impairment to ensure if there is
objective evidence of impairment. If the Group
determines that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed
financial asset, whether significant or not, it
includes the asset in a group of financial assets
with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for
impairment and for which an impairment loss
is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of
impairment.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X) Financial instruments (continued)

6. Testing methodology and accounting for
impairment of financial assets (excluding
accounts receivable) (continued)

(8)  Impairment provision for loans and receivables

(continued)

The Group uses risk characteristics as a

standard for classification. Financial assets are

grouped on the basis of the same or similar

credit risk characteristics. The impairment

losses are determined, considering the current

conditions, on the basis of historical loss

experience for the groups of financial assets

with the same or the similar credit risk

characteristics of prior years as follows:

el
sH R EE il (%) ik
Provision
BERKRDE Classification of asset risks percentage Remarks
Na= Ordinary 1.5-2.25
BAx Mention 3
IRAR Subprime 30
Al &¢ Doubtful 60
P Loss 100
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X) Financial instruments (continued)

6.

Testing methodology and accounting for

impairment of financial assets (excluding

accounts receivable) (continued)

(3)

Impairment provision for loans and receivables
(continued)

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease
can be related objectively to an event occurring
after the impairment was recognized (such as
an improvement in the debtor’s credit rating),
the Company will reverse the previously
recognized impairment loss by adjusting the
provision amount, the reversed amount is
recognized in profit or loss in current period.
The reverse of the impairment provision for
loan loss offsets the recognized impairment
provision for loan loss upon completion of the
necessary recognition process. If the
recognized loan loss recovered afterwards, it
should be included in profit or loss for the
current period to offset the provision made for
the loans in current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(Xn

Provision for bad debt of the accounts receivable

1

Accounts receivable that are individually significant
and subject to separate provision Individually

significant accounts receivable:

Bases for making judgement and standard for
calculation the amount for the accounts receivable
that are individually significant The amount of
accounts receivable of more than RMB30 million
(including RMB30 million) and other receivables of
more than RMB1 billion (including RMB1 billion) are
recognized as accounts receivable that are
individually significant.

Recognition of receivables with amounts that are
individually significant and subject to separate
assessment for provision for bad debts The Company
assesses individually significant receivables for
impairment on individual basis, financial assets which
is not impaired on individual basis will be assessed
for impairment collectively with a portfolio of financial
assets which share similar credit risk characteristics.
For receivables that are individually impaired, the
receivable will not be assessed for impairment
collectively with a portfolio of financial assets which
share similar credit risk characteristics.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(X

Provision for bad debt of the accounts receivable

(continued)

2

Accounts receivable that are subject to provision by
groups based on the credit risk characteristics:

Recognition of receivables that are subject to
provision by groups based on the credit risk
characteristics

Aging Group Except the receivables with separate
impairment provision, the Company
recognizes the group of receivables
classified by specific credit risk for the
current year according to actual loss
ratio of the same or similar group of
receivables classified by aging group
with similar credit risk characteristics
as well as the prevailing condition,
and the provision for bad debt are
measured in accordance with the ratio
of the following table.
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= CEBESHBELREILET @ lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(+-) FEWFEEEREEE(E) (X1) Provision for bad debt of the accounts receivable
(continued)
2 HREARRBEEEASFTIRER 2 Accounts receivable that are subject to provision by
EREIGRIE + () groups based on the credit risk characteristics:
(continued)
MEF - RABRRD AR Where aging analysis method is used for provision of
ZAREE bad debts for groups:

EWERRERE HittEREER

Ee 5l (%) e (%)
Provision ratios Provision
for accounts ratios for other

BRER Aging receivable (%) receivables (%)
1TFUAR(E1F) Within 1 year (including 1 year) 0-5 0-5
1-24F 1 to 2 years 5-25 5-25
2-34F 2 to 3 years 50 50
3-44F 3 to 4 years 80 80
4-54F 4 to 5 years 80 80
5FLAE Over 5 years 100 100
NEEE RS TETHRER - The Company does not make provision for bad debt

for retention monies.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(Xn

Provision for bad debt of the accounts receivable

(continued)

3

Accounts receivable which are individually
insignificant but subject to separate bad debt

provision

For individually insignificant accounts receivable with
the following characteristics, if there is objective
evidence that the receivables are impaired, will be
subject to separate impairment test. The impairment
loss and the provision for bad debts are determined
based on the amount of the present value of the
future cash flows expected to be derived from the
receivables below the carrying amount.

Accounts receivable not provided for bad debt:

A. Accounts receivable between related parties.

B. For organisations such as the competent
department for the relevant industry, industry
associations, accounts receivable in guarantee
and deposit nature. For internal department of
enterprises or incurred by existing employees
for the operating of business, accounts
receivable in borrowing and reserve nature.
Except there is evidence of impairment, no
provision for impairment is required for the
above accounts receivable.
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIl) Inventories

(1)

(2)

Category of inventory

Inventories include raw materials, self-produced
semi-finished goods and work in progress, turnover
materials, Stock (finished goods), construction in
progress (completed and unsettled).

Determination of cost

Inventories are determined at the actual cost when
acquired. Cost of inventories included purchasing
cost, processing cost and other cost. WWhen acquired
and approved the subsidiaries of the Company
measure the cost by the following methods:

1. Actual cost: Cost of inventories is determined
using the weighted average method.

2. Intended cost: difference between the
intended cost and the actual cost will be
calculated by cost variance account, and the
cost difference assumed for the inventories
will be pay by installment, so as to adjust the
intend cost to the actual cost.

Inventories arising from construction contract

Construction contract costs are measured at actual
cost comprising the direct and indirect cost incurred
from the date of contract signing to the date of
contract fulfilling and relative to the contract. The
travel and biding cost incurred for the contract, which
can be identified separately and measured reliably
and is likely to sign the contract, shall be recognised
as the contract cost; if the above conditions are not
met, the cost above shall be recognised as the profit
or loss.
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SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIl) Inventories (continued)

(2)

Determination of cost (continued)

The cumulative costs incurred and cumulative gross
profits (or losses) recognised for contracts in
progress are offset against the progress billings and
the net amount is presented in the balance sheet.
Where the aggregate of cumulative costs incurred
and cumulative gross profits (or losses) recognised
exceed the progress billings for contracts in progress,
the surplus is shown as inventories. Where the
progress billings for contracts in progress exceed the
aggregate of cumulative costs incurred and
cumulative gross profits (or losses) recognised, the
surplus is shown as receipts in advance.

Basis for the determination of net realisable value
and different type of inventories

Net realisable value of held-for-sale commodity
stocks, such as finished goods, goods-in-stock, and
held-for-sale raw materials, during the normal course
of production and operation, shall be determined by
their estimated sales less the related selling
expenses and taxes; the net realizable value of
material inventories, which need to be processed,
during the normal course of production and
operation, shall be determined by the amount after
deducting the estimated cost of completion,
estimated selling expenses and relevant taxes from
the estimated selling price of finished goods; the net
realizable value of inventories held for execution of
sales contracts or labor contracts shall be calculated
on the ground of the contracted price. If an enterprise
holds more inventories than the quantity stipulated in
the sales contract, the net realizable value of the
exceeding part shall be calculated on the ground of

general selling price.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIl) Inventories (continued)

3.

Basis for the determination of net realisable value
and different type of inventories (continued)

Decline in value of inventories is made on an item-by-
item basis at the end of the period. For large quantity
and low value items of inventories, provision may be
made based on categories of inventories; for items
of inventories relating to a product line that is
produced and marketed in the same geographical
area and with the same or similar end uses or
purposes, which cannot be practicable evaluated
separately from other items in that product line,
provision for decline in value of inventories may be

determined on an aggregate basis.

Unless there is evidence clearly shows that
abnormality in market price exists as of the balance
sheet date, the net realisable value of inventories is
determined based on the market price as of the
balance sheet date.

The net realizable value of inventories at the end of
current period is determined based on the market
price of the balance sheet date.

Inventory system

The perpetual inventory system is adopted.
Amortisation of low-value consumables and
packaging materials

(1) Low-value consumables are amortised using

the immediate write-off method.

(2)  Packaging materials are amortised using the
immediate write-off method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIll) Classified as assets held for sale

The Company recognizes component (or non-current
assets) which meet the following conditions as assets held
for sale:

(1

(2)

(4)

The component must be under the current conditions
only according to the usual terms of the sale of such
part, then sell immediately;

The Company has been offered a resolution with
disposition of the components (or non-current
assets). If regulation needs to be approved by
shareholders, it has approved by the general meeting
of shareholders or relevant authority;

The Company has entered into agreement on
irrevocable transfer with the transferee;

Transfer will be completed within 1 year.

(XIV) Long-term equity investments

1.

Joint control or significant influence criterion

Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, and exists only when
decisions about the relevant activities of the
arrangement require the unanimous consent of the
parties sharing control. The Company together with
the other joint venture parties can jointly control over
the investee and are entitled to the right of the net
assets of the investee, the investee is joint venture
of the Company.

Significant influence refers to the power to participate
in making decisions on the financial and operating
policies of an enterprise, but not the power to
control, or jointly control, the formulation of such
policies with other parties. Where the Company can
exercise significant influence over the investee, the
investee is an associate of the Company.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIV) Long-term equity investments (continued)

2.

Determination of initial investment cost

(1)

Long-term equity investments formed through

business combination of entities

For business combinations involving entities
under common control: where the Company
pays cash, transfers non-cash assets, bear
debts or issue equity securities as
consideration of combinations, the initial
investment cost of long-term equity
investments are the share with reference to
the book value of the shareholders’ equity of
the acquiree in the financial statements of the
ultimate controlling party on the date of
combinations. In connection with imposing
control over the investee under joint control as
a result of additional investment and other
reasons, on the combination date, the initial
cost of long-term equity investments shall be
determined based on share of carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial
statement of the ultimate controlling party by
net assets of the combined party after the
combination. The difference between initial
investment cost and the carrying value of long-
term equity investment before combination
and the sum of carrying value of newly paid
consideration for additional shares acquired on
the date of combination is to adjust share
premium. If the balance of share premium is
insufficient, any excess is adjusted to retained
earnings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIV) Long-term equity investments (continued)

2.

Determination of initial investment cost

(continued)

(1)

2)

Long-term equity investments formed through
business combination of entities (continued)

Business combinations involving entities not
under common control: the cost of the
combination ascertained on the date of
acquisition shall be taken as the initial
investment cost of the long-term equity
investments. In connection with imposing
control over the investee not under joint control
as a result of additional investment and other
reasons, the initial investment cost when
changing to the cost method shall be the sum
of the carrying value of the equity investment
originally held and the newly increased initial

investment cost.

Long-term equity investments acquired by

other means

The initial cost of investment of a long-term
equity investment obtained by the Company by
cash payment shall be the purchase cost which
is actually paid.

The initial cost of investment of a long-term
equity investment obtained by the Company by
means of issuance of equity securities shall be
the fair value of the equity securities issued.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIV) Long-term equity investments (continued)

2.

Determination of initial investment cost

(continued)

2)

Long-term equity investments acquired by
other means (continued)

If the non-monetary assets transaction is
commercial in nature and the fair value of the
assets received or surrendered can be reliably
measured, the initial cost of investment of a
long-term equity investment received the non-
monetary assets transaction, shall be
determined on the basis of the fair value of the
assets surrendered and the related tax payable,
unless there are concrete evidence that the fair
value of the assets received is more reliable;
For non-monetary assets transaction which
does not meet the above conditions, the initial
cost of investment of a long-term equity
investment received shall be the book value of
the assets surrendered and the relevant taxes
payable.

The initial cost of investment of a long-term
equity investment obtained by the Company
through debt restructurings shall be
ascertained based on their fair value.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIV) Long-term equity investments (continued)

3.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of

profit or loss

(1)

2)

Long-term equity investment accounted for by
cost method

Long-term equity investment in subsidiaries of
the Company is accounted for by cost method,
except for the actual consideration paid for the
acquisition of investment or the declared but
not yet distributed cash dividends or profits
which are included in the consideration,
investment gains is recognised as the
Company’ shares of the cash dividends or
profits declared by the investee.

Long-term equity investment accounted for by
equity method

Long-term equity investments of associates
and jointly controlled entities are accounted for
using equity method. Where the initial
investment cost of a long-term equity
investment exceeds the investor’'s interest in
the fair value of the investee's identifiable net
assets at the acquisition date, no adjustment
shall be made to the initial investment cost;
where the initial investment cost is less than
the investor’s interest in the fair value of the
investee’'s identifiable net assets at the
acquisition date, the difference shall be
charged to profit or loss for the current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIV) Long-term equity investments (continued)

3.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of
profit or loss (continued)

(2)  Long-term equity investment accounted for by

equity method (continued)

The Company recognizes the investment
income and other comprehensive income
according to the shares of net profit or loss and
other comprehensive income realized by the
investee which it shall be entitled or shared
respectively, and simultaneously makes
adjustment to the carrying value of long-term
equity investments; The carrying value of long-
term equity investment shall be reduced by
attributable share of the profit or cash
dividends for distribution declared by the
investee. In relation to other changes of
owner's equity except for net profits and
losses, other comprehensive income and profit
distributions of the investee, the carrying value
of long-term equity investments shall be
adjusted and included in owner's equity.

When determining the amount of proportion of
net profit or loss in the investee which it
entitles, fair value of each identifiable assets of
the investee at the time when the investment
is obtained shall be used as basis, and
according to the accounting policies and
accounting period of the Company, adjustment
shall be made to the net profit of the investee.
During the period of holding investments,
when preparing consolidated financial
statements by the investee, the accounting
shall be based on the amounts attributable to
the investee in the net profit, other
comprehensive income and other changes of
the owner's equity in the consolidated financial
statements.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIV) Long-term equity investments (continued)

3.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of
profit or loss (continued)

(2)  Long-term equity investment accounted for by

equity method (continued)

The unrealized profit or loss resulting from
transactions between the Company and its
associates or joint venture shall be eliminated
in portion to the investor's equity interest of
investee, based on which investment income
or loss shall be recognized. Any losses
resulting from transactions, which are
attributable to impairment of assets, shall be
fully recognized. Transactions of the assets
casted and sold that are able to constitute an
agreement between the Company and
associates, joint venture shall be dealt with in
accordance with Note 2(V) “Accounting
method for business combination involving
enterprises under common control and not
under common control” and Note 2(VI)
Preparation of consolidated financial

statements”.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIV) Long-term equity investments (continued)

3.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of

profit or loss (continued)

2)

(3)

Long-term equity investment accounted for by
equity method (continued)

In recognition of share of losses in the
investee, the Company treats it in the following
order: Firstly, the Company will write off the
carrying value of long-term equity investments.
Secondly, in the event the aforesaid carrying
value is insufficient for write off, it shall
continue to recognize investment loss and
write off carrying values of long-term
receivables to the extent of the carrying
amount of the long-term equity which
substantively constitutes the net investment in
the investee. Finally, after the above treatment,
for the additional obligations which shall be still
assumed by entities according to investment
contract or agreement, the estimated liabilities
shall be recognized based on the obligations
which are expected to assume and included in
the investment loss for the current period.

Disposal of long-term equity investments

For disposal of long-term equity investment,
the difference between the book value and the
consideration actually received shall be
included in the current profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIV) Long-term equity investments (continued)

3.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of

profit or loss (continued)

(3)

Disposal of long-term equity investments
(continued)

For the long-term equity investment under the
equity method, when disposing of such
investment, part of amounts that shall be
originally included in other comprehensive
income shall be accounted for in proportion by
using the same basis as the investee used for
direct disposal of relevant assets or liabilities.
The owner's equity which is recognized due to
other changes of owner's equity except for net
profits and losses, other comprehensive
income and profit distributions shall be
transferred in proportion into the current profit
or loss, excluding the other comprehensive
income derived from changes of net liabilities
or net assets due to re-measurement on
defined benefit plan by the investee.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIV) Long-term equity investments (continued)

3.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of

profit or loss (continued)

(3)

Disposal of long-term equity investments
(continued)

When the Group loses the controls or material
influence over the investee due to partially
disposal of equity investment and other
reasons, the remaining equities shall be
accounted for in accordance with the standards
on recognition and measurement of financial
instruments, and the difference between the
fair value and the carrying value at the date of
losing control or material influence shall be
included in current profit or loss. For other
comprehensive income recognized in the
original equity investment due to the equity
method is adopted, it shall be treated using the
same accounting basis as the investee used
for direct disposal of relevant assets or
liabilities when ceasing to use the equity
method. All owner’s equities which are
recognized due to other changes of owner’s
equity except for net profits and losses, other
comprehensive income and profit distributions
shall be transferred into the current profit or
loss when ceasing to use the equity method.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIV) Long-term equity investments (continued)

3.

Subsequent measurement and recognition of

profit or loss (continued)

(3)

Disposal of long-term equity investments
(continued)

When the Group loses the controls over the
investee due to partially disposal of equity
investment and other reasons, the remaining
equities after disposal shall be accounted for
under equity method in preparation of individual
financial statements provided that common
control or material influence over the investee
can be imposed, and shall be adjusted as if
such remaining equities has been accounted
for under the equity method since they are
obtained. Where the remaining equities after
disposal can not impose common control or
material influence over the investee, it shall be
accounted for according to relevant provisions
of the standards on recognition and
measurement of financial instruments, and the
difference between fair value and the carrying
value on the date of losing control shall be
included in the current profit or loss.

The disposed equity interest was acquired in a
business combination as resulted from such as
making additional investment, the remaining
equity interest after disposal will be accounted
for using cost method or equity method when
preparing the separate financial statements.
Other comprehensive income and other
owners’ equity recognized when the equity
interests held on the acquisition date is
accounted for using equity method and shall be
transferred on pro rata basis; For the remaining
equity interest after disposal accounted for
using the recognition and measurement
standard of financial instruments, other
comprehensive income and other owners’
equity shall be fully transferred.
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(XV) Investment property

Investment property is held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both which include leased land use rights;
land use rights held for sale after appreciation; leased
buildings (including buildings after self-completion of
construction or development for the purpose of leasing and
buildings that is being constructed or developed for the
purpose of leasing in future).

The Company's existing investment property is measured
at cost. Investment property measured at cost — buildings
held for leasing shall adopt the same depreciation policy for
fixed assets of the company, land use rights held for
leasing shall adopt the same amortization policy for the
intangible assets.

(XVI) Fixed assets

1. Conditions for recognition of fixed assets

Fixed assets are tangible assets that are held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, for
rental to others, or for administrative purposes; and
have a useful life of more than one accounting year.
Fixed asset is recognised when it meets the
following conditions:

(1) it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the fixed asset will flow to the

enterprise;

(2)  its cost can be reliably measured.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XVI) Fixed assets (continued)

2.

Method for depreciation

Fixed assets are depreciated by categories using the
straight-line method, and the annual depreciation
rates are determined by categories based upon their
estimated useful lives and their estimated residual
values. Where the parts of a fixed asset have
different useful lives or cause economic benefits for
the enterprise in different ways, different
depreciation rates or depreciation methods shall
apply, and each part is depreciated separately.

For fixed assets leased under finance lease, if it can
be reasonably determined that the ownership of the
leased asset can be acquired upon the expiry of the
lease term, depreciation policies in line with the fixed
assets will be adopted for depreciation during the
remaining useful life of the leased asset. If it cannot
be reasonably determined that the ownership of the
leased asset can be acquired upon the expiry of the
lease term, depreciation policies in line with the fixed
assets will be adopted for depreciation during the
shorter of the lease term and the remaining useful

life of the leased asset.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XVI) Fixed assets (continued)

2. Method for depreciation (continued)

The depreciation method, useful life of depreciation,
residual value and annual depreciation rate of each

category of fixed assets are as follows:

HEHRRER
5 Category HEFR (%) FREE(%) HEHZE
Useful lives of Estimated Annual
depreciation residual depreciation Depreciation
(years) value (%) rate (%) method
EEREZEY  Buildings and structures 15-30 3 3.23-6.47 FHERZK
straight line method
R Machinery and equipment 7-15 3 647-1386 FHFRE
straight line method
BT A Transportation equipment 5-6 3 16.17-19.40 FHEFRE
straight line method
ERy Electronic equipment 5-10 3 9.70-19.40 FHERE
straight line method
FIYNS3 Office equipment 5-9 3 10.78-19.40 FHFRE

straight line method
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XVI) Fixed assets (continued)

3.

Recognition basis and measurement method of
fixed assets under finance lease

Where any one of the following conditions is
provided in the lease agreement between the
Company and the lessor, assets under finance lease
will be recognised:

(1) upon the expiry of lease, the ownership of the
leased asset is transferred to the Company;

(2)  The Company has the option to purchase the
leased asset, the purchase consideration
entered into is expected to be far less than the
fair value of the leased asset upon the exercise
of the option;

(8)  the lease term accounts for the majority of the
useful life of the leased asset;

(4)  the present value of the minimum lease
payment upon the commencement of the
lease is substantially the same as the fair value
of the leased asset.

On the commencement of the lease, the leased
asset shall be recorded at an amount equal to the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the
present value of the minimum lease payments, and
the minimum lease payments shall be recorded as
the carrying amount of long-term payables. The
difference between the recorded amount of the
leased asset and the minimum lease payments shall
be accounted for as unrecognised finance charge.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XVII)Construction in progress

Criteria and time point for construction in progress being
transferred to the fixed asset Construction in progress is
measured at all the expenditures incurred to bring the fixed
assets ready for their intended use. If the construction in
progress of fixed assets constructed are ready for their
intended use but the final account of completed project
has not been issued, it should be transferred to fixed
assets at an estimated cost according to the construction
budget, construction price or actual cost, and depreciation
should be provided according to deprecation policy for fixed
assets from the date when the assets are ready for their
intended use. When the final account of completed project
is issued, the estimated cost will be adjusted according to
the actual cost, while the original depreciation charge will
not be adjusted.

(XVIII) Borrowing costs

1. Criteria for recognition of capitalised borrowing

costs

Borrowing costs refers to the borrowing interests,
amortisation of discounts or premiums, ancillary
costs and exchange differences arising from foreign
currency borrowings, etc.

For borrowing costs incurred by the Company that
are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of assets qualified for
capitalisation, the costs will be capitalised and
included in the costs of the related assets. Other
borrowing costs shall be recognised as expense in
the period in which they are incurred and included in
profit or loss for the current period.

Assets qualified for capitalisation are assets (fixed
assets, investment property, inventories, etc.) that
necessarily take a substantial period of time for
acquisition, construction or production to get ready
for their intended use or sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XVIIl) Borrowing costs (continued)

1.

Criteria for recognition of capitalised borrowing
costs (continued)

Capitalisation of borrowing costs begins when the
following three conditions are fully satisfied:

(1) expenditures for the assets (including cash
paid, transferred non-currency assets or
expenditure for holding debt liability for the
acquisition, construction or production of
assets qualified for capitalisation) have been

incurred;

(2)  borrowing costs have been incurred,;

(38)  acquisition, construction or production that are
necessary to enable the asset reach its
intended usable or saleable condition have
commenced.

Capitalisation period of borrowing costs

The capitalisation period shall refer to the period
between the commencement and the cessation of
capitalization of borrowing costs, excluding the
period in which capitalization of borrowing costs is

temporarily suspended.

Capitalisation of borrowing costs shall be suspended
during periods in which the qualifying asset under
acquisition and construction or production ready for
the intended use or sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XVIIl) Borrowing costs (continued)

2.

Capitalisation period of borrowing costs
(continued)

If part of an asset being acquired, constructed or
produced has been completed respectively and put
into use individually, capitalization of borrowing costs
should be suspended.

If different parts of the assets acquired, constructed
or produced are completed separately, but such
asset will not be ready for the intended use or sale
until all parts have been completed, then the
borrowing costs will be capitalized until the
completion of all parts of the said asset.

Suspension of capitalisation period

Capitalisation of borrowing costs shall be suspended
during periods in which the acquisition, construction
or production of a qualifying asset is interrupted
abnormally, when the interruption is for a continuous
period of more than 3 months; if the interruption is a
necessary step for making the qualifying asset under
acquisition and construction or production ready for
the intended use or sale, the capitalisation of the
borrowing costs shall continue. The borrowing costs
incurred during such period shall be recognized as
profits and losses of the current period. When the
acquisition and construction or production of the
asset resumes, the capitalisation of borrowing costs

commences.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XVIIl) Borrowing costs (continued)

4.

Calculation of capitalisation rate and amount of
borrowing costs

Specific borrowings for the acquisition, construction
or production of assets qualified for capitalization,
borrowing costs of the specific borrowings actually
incurred in the current period minus the interest
income earned on the unused borrowing loans as a
deposit in the bank or as investment income earned
from temporary investment will be used to determine

the amount of borrowing costs for capitalization.

General borrowings for the acquisition, construction
or production of assets qualified for capitalization, the
to-be-capitalised amount of interests on the general
borrowing shall be calculated and determined by
multiplying the weighted average asset disbursement
of the part of the accumulative asset disbursements
minus the specifically borrowed loans by the
capitalisation rate of the general borrowing used. The
capitalisation rate shall be calculated and determined
according to the weighted average interest rate of
the general borrowing.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIX) Intangible assets

1.

Valuation method of intangible assets

(1)

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost
upon acquisition

The costs of an externally purchased intangible
asset include the purchase price, relevant taxes
and expenses paid, and other expenditures
directly attributable to putting the asset into
condition for its intended use. If the payment
for an intangible asset is delayed beyond the
normal credit conditions and it is of financing
nature in effect, the cost of the intangible
assets shall be ascertained based on the
present value of the purchase price.

The amount of intangible assets acquired from
debt restructuring should be recorded at the
fair value of such intangible assets, and the
difference between the carrying amount of the
restructured debt and the fair value of the
intangible assets acquired from debt
restructuring should be included in the profit or
loss for the current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIX) Intangible assets (continued)

1.

Valuation method of intangible assets (continued)

(1)

2)

Intangible assets are initially measured at cost
upon acquisition (continued)

If the non-monetary assets transaction is
commercial in nature and the fair value of the
assets received or surrendered can be reliably
measured, the intangible assets received in the
non-monetary assets transaction, shall be
measured on the basis of the fair value of the
assets surrendered, unless there are concrete
evidence that the fair value of the assets
received is more reliable; For non-monetary
assets transaction which does not meet the
above conditions, the cost of intangible assets
received shall be the book value of the assets
surrendered and the relevant taxes and
expenses payable, and the profit or loss will
not be recognised.

Subsequent measurement

The Company shall analyse and judge the
useful life of intangible assets upon acquisition.

As for intangible assets with a finite useful life,
they are amortised using the straight-line
method over the term in which economic
benefits are brought to the firm; If the term in
which economic benefits are brought to the
firm by an intangible asset cannot be
estimated, the intangible asset shall be taken
as an intangible asset with indefinite useful life,
and shall not be amortised.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIX) Intangible assets (continued)

EHETERNEFEEENE 2.  Estimated useful lives for the intangible assets
AEw i ER - with finite useful life:
B ERAES &
Estimated
useful lives
A Items (year(s)) Basis
EiqLs Software 5 TEETE AR
Expected useful lives
-t {5 P 4 Land use rights 50 1t FE A R R
Term of the land certificate
A Patent 10 HRMREHR
Patent period
FEF Rl Non-patent technology 10-15 TERHE A FR
Expected useful lives
Efth Other 5 TEETE R

BEERT  HEASHER
R E EMERH o R H
TERETE

WER - AR A
LT T T
HARBTR -

Expected useful lives

For an intangible asset with a finite useful life, review
on its useful life and amortization method is
performed at each year-end.

Upon review, useful life and amortisation method for
the intangible assets are no different from the
previous estimate at the end of this period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIX) Intangible assets (continued)

3.

Specific criteria for the division of research phase
and development phase

The expenses for internal research and development
projects of the Company are divided into expenses in
the research phase and expenses in the development
phase.

Research phase: Scheduled innovative investigations
and research activities to obtain and understand
scientific or technological knowledge.

Development phase: Apply the research outcomes or
other knowledge to a plan or design prior to a
commercial production or use in order to produce
new or essentially-improved materials, devices,
products, etc.

Specific criteria for development phase qualified
for capitalization

The expenses in the development phase are
recognized as intangible assets if the following
conditions are fulfilled, the expenses in the
development phase unable to fulfill the following
conditions are included in the profit or loss or the
current period:

1 it is technically feasible to complete such
intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or for sale;

2 there is intention to complete the intangible
asset for use or sale;
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XIX) Intangible assets (continued)

4. Specific criteria for development phase qualified

for capitalization (continued)

3

the intangible asset can produce economic
benefits, including there is evidence that the
products produced using the intangible asset
has a market or the intangible asset itself has a
market; if the intangible asset is for internal
use, there is evidence that there exists usage
for the intangible asset;

there is sufficient support in terms of
technology, financial resources and other
resources in order to complete the
development of the intangible asset, and there
is capability to use or sell the intangible asset;

the expenses attributable to the development
stage of the intangible asset can be measured
reliably.

Expenses that not classified into expenses incurred

during the research phase or incurred during the

development stage, will be accounted for in the profit

or loss for the current period when it is incurred.
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= EBEESHBREREIEET @) lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(Z1) REIEERE (XX) Impairment of long-term assets
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Long-term assets, such as long-term equity investment,
investment properties, fixed assets, projects under
construction, intangible assets that measured at cost are
tested for impairment if there is any indication that an asset
may be impaired at the balance sheet date. If the result of
the impairment test indicates that the recoverable amount
of the asset is less than its carrying amount, a provision for
impairment and an impairment loss are recognized for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and the present
value of the future cash flows expected to be derived from
the asset. Provision for asset impairment is determined
and recognized on the individual asset basis. If it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an
individual asset, the recoverable amount of a group of
assets to which the asset belongs to is determined. A
group of assets is the smallest group of assets that is able
to generate cash inflows independently.

Impairment test to goodwill shall be carried out at least at
the end of each year.

When the Company carry out impairment test to goodwill,
the Company shall, as of the purchasing day, allocate on a
reasonable basis the carrying value of the goodwill formed
by merger of enterprises to the relevant asset groups, or if
there is a difficulty in allocation, to allocate it to the sets of
asset groups. When the carrying value of goodwill is
allocated to the related asset group or sets of asset group,
the allocation shall be made based on the proportion of the
fair value of each asset groups or sets of asset groups to
the total fair value of the relevant assets groups or sets of
asset group. If there is difficulty for the fair value to be
reliably measured, the allocation shall be made based on
the proportion of the carrying value of each asset groups or
sets of asset groups to the total carrying value of the
relevant assets groups or sets of asset groups.
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(XX) Impairment of long-term assets (continued)

For the purpose of impairment test on the relevant asset
groups or the sets of asset groups containing goodwill, if
any evidence shows that the impairment of asset groups
or sets of asset groups related to goodwill is possible, an
impairment test will be made firstly on the asset groups or
sets of asset groups not containing goodwill, thus
calculating the recoverable amount and comparing it with
the relevant carrying value so as to recognize the
corresponding impairment loss. Then the Company will
make an impairment test on the asset groups or sets of
asset groups containing goodwill, and compare the carrying
value of these asset groups or sets of asset groups
(including the carrying value of the goodwill allocated
thereto) with the recoverable amount. Where the
recoverable amount of the relevant assets or sets of the
asset groups is lower than the carrying value thereof, it
shall recognize the impairment loss of the goodwill. Once
the above asset impairment loss is recognised, it will not

be reversed in the subsequent accounting periods.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXI) Long-term prepaid expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses are expenses which have
occurred but will benefit over 1 year and shall be amortized
over the current period and subsequent periods. The long-
term prepaid expenses of the Company include office
building decoration fee and technical consultation service.

1. Amortization method

Long-term prepaid expenses are amortized evenly
over the estimated benefit period.

2. Amortization period

(1) Prepaid rental for operating lease, amortized
evenly over the lease term.

(2)  Expenditures paid for improvement of fixed
assets under operating lease, amortized evenly
over the lease term or remaining useful life of
the asset, whichever is shorter.

(3)  Decoration that are qualified to be capitalized in
relation to fixed asset acquired under finance
lease, amortized evenly over the remaining
time until the next decoration, lease term or
remaining useful life of the fixed asset,
whichever is shorter.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXI)Employee Remuneration

1.

Method of accounting treatment for short-term
remuneration

During the accounting period when the staff provides
service, the Company will recognize the short-term
remuneration actually incurred as liabilities, and the
liabilities would be charged into current profits and
loss or costs of assets.

The Company will pay social insurance and housing
funds, and will make provision of trade union funds
and staff education costs in accordance with the
requirements. During the accounting period when
the staff provides service, the Group will determine
the relevant amount of employee benefits in
accordance with the required provision basis and
provision ratios.

Non-currency employee benefits will be accounted
for in accordance with their fair value if they can be
measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXII)Employee Remuneration (continued)

2.

Method of accounting treatment for retirement

benefit plan

(1)

2)

Defined contribution scheme

The Company will pay basic pension insurance
and unemployment insurance in accordance
with the relevant provisions of the local
government for the staff. During the
accounting period when the staff provides
service, the Company will calculate the amount
payable in accordance with the local stipulated
basis and proportions which will be recognized
as liabilities, and the liabilities would be
charged into current profits and loss or costs of
assets.

In addition to basic pension insurance, the
Company also established the enterprise
annuity payment system enterprise annuity
scheme according to relevant policy of national
enterprise annuity system. The Company
makes payment to local social insurance
agencies/annuity scheme based on a certain
proportion of total staff remunerations.
Corresponding expenditure is included in the
profit or loss for the current period or costs of
related assets.

Defined benefit scheme

The welfare responsibilities generated from
defined benefit scheme based on the formula
determined by projected unit credit method
would be vested to the service period of the
staff and charged into current profits and loss
or costs of assets.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXII)Employee Remuneration (continued)

2.

Method of accounting treatment for retirement

benefit plan (continued)

2)

Defined benefit scheme (continued)

The deficit or surplus generated from the
present value of obligations of the defined
benefit scheme minus the fair value of the
assets of defined benefit scheme is recognized
as net liabilities or net assets. When the
defined benefit scheme has surplus, the
Company will measure the net assets of the
defined benefit scheme at the lower of the
surplus of defined benefit scheme and the
upper limit of the assets.

All defined benefit plans obligations, including
the expected duty of payment within 12
months after the end of annual reporting period
during which the staff provided service, were
discounted based on the bond market yield of
sovereign bond matching the term of defined
benefit plans obligations and currency or
corporate bonds of high quality in the active
market on the balance sheet date.

The service cost incurred by defined benefit
scheme and the net interest of the net
liabilities and net assets of the defined benefit
scheme would be charged into the current
profits and loss or relevant costs of assets. The
changes generated from the re-calculation of
the net liabilities or net assets of the defined
benefit scheme would be included in the other
comprehensive income and are not reversed to
profit or loss in a subsequent accounting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXII)Employee Remuneration (continued)

2.

Method of accounting treatment for retirement
benefit plan (continued)

(2)  Defined benefit scheme (continued)

When the defined benefit scheme is settled,
the gain or loss is confirmed based on the
difference between the present value of
obligations and the settlement price of the
defined benefit scheme as at the balance sheet
date.

Method of accounting treatment for termination
benefits

The Company will pay termination benefits when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
termination plan or layoff proposal or when the Group
recognizes costs for restructuring which involving the
payment of termination benefits (whichever the
earliest). The remuneration incurred by the
termination benefits will be recognized as liabilities
which would be charged into current profits and loss.

Method of accounting treatment for other long-
term employee benefits

The Company provides other long-term employee
benefits for its staffs. Benefits within the defined
contribution scheme will be accounted for as defined
contribution scheme, while the other benefits will be
accounted for as defined benefit scheme.
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BEEESHEERE A @ lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,

ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
(ct=)mEstaE (XXIll) Estimated liabilities

Estimated liabilities mainly includes: loss-making contracts,
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pending litigation and quality assurance of the products.

Recognition criteria for estimated liabilities

The Company shall recognise the obligations related
to contingencies involving litigations, guarantees
provided to debts, loss-making contracts,
restructuring as estimated liabilities, when all of the
following conditions are satisfied:

(1) the obligation is a present obligation of the
Group;

(2) it is probable that an outflow of economic
benefits will be required to settle the
obligation;

(8)  the amount of the obligation can be measured
reliably.

Method of measuring the various estimated
liabilities

Estimated liabilities shall be initially measured at the
best estimate of the expenditure required to settle
the related present obligation.

Factors pertaining to a contingency such as risk,
uncertainties, and time value of money shall be taken
into account as a whole in reaching the best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of
money is material, the best estimate shall be
determined by discounting the related future cash

outflow.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXIl) Estimated liabilities (continued)

2.

Method of measuring the various estimated
liabilities (continued)

The best estimate will be dealt with separately in the
following circumstances:

The expenses required have a successive range (or
band), in which the possibilities of occurrence of
each result are the same, and the best estimate
should be determined as the middle value for the
range, i.e. the average of the upper and lower limit.

The expenses required does not have a successive
range (or band), or although there is a successive
range (or band), the possibilities of occurrence of
each result are not the same, if the contingency is
related to individual item, the best estimate should
be determined as the most likely amount; where the
contingency is related to a number of items, the best
estimate should be calculated and determined
according to the possible results and the relevant
possibilities.

Where some or all of the expenditure required to
settle an estimated liability is expected to be
reimbursed by a third party, the reimbursement is
separately recognized as an asset when it is virtually
certain that the reimbursement will be received. The
amount recognized for the reimbursement is limited
to the carrying amount of the liability recognized.
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(TR ZZ4EEE (XXIV) Production Safety Fee
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The provision of Group’s machinery production enterprise
safety production costs is based on the actual sales
revenue in last year, which is extracted monthly by taking
excess regressive manner in accordance with the following
standard:

1. Operating income of RMB10 million and below,
accrued 2%;

2. Operating income of RMB10 million to RMB100
million, accrued 1%;

3. Operating income of RMB100 million to RMB1,000
million, accrued 0.2%;

4. Operating income of RMB1,000 million to RMB5,000
million, accrued 0.1%;

B. Operating income above RMB5,000 million, accrued
0.05%.

The provision of production safety fee is recognised in
profit and loss for the current period and “special reserve”
account shown separately under owner's equity. When
using the reserve for maintaining production safety fee, the
amount will be debited from the"special reserve” if the fee
is expenses nature. When using the reserve for maintaining
production safety fee of fixed asset, the amount will be
debited from the “construction-in-progress” item for the
amount recorded in the cost of related assets. When the
status of the project is ready for intended use, the costs of
such Production safety fee should be recognised as fixed
assets. Meanwhile, “special reserve” will be offset by the
cost forming fixed asset. If the balance of “special reserve”
is inadequate for offsetting purpose, the production safety
fee will be recognised in profit and loss for the year.
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= EESHEERES:H G @ lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)
174 (Z15) R4 XA (XXV) Share-based payments
5 ARRARMBO T EETERE TR The Company's share-based payment represents
e HARFE MR P T B e A g transactions in which the Company receives services from
)ﬁ STEAAEMETHEENRLS - K employee by granting equity instruments or incurring
g NEIRRD D B ARERAE R liabilities that are based on the price of the equity
?}i DERMABR S EZERRD S - instruments to the employee or other suppliers. The
7?-{ Company’s share-based payments included equity-settled
;ﬂ share-based payments and cash-settled share-based

payments.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXV) Share-based payments (continued)

(1)

Equity-settled share-based payment and equity
instrument

As to an equity-settled share-based payment in
return for services of employees, calculation will be
based on the fair value of the equity instrument
granted to the employees. If the Company make the
share-based payment by restricted shares,
employees will subscribe the share but those shares
shall not be listed on the market or transferred before
it fulfill the unlocking condition and unlocked. If the
unlocking conditions stipulated in the equity incentive
scheme cannot be fulfilled eventually, the Company
will repurchase those shares based on the pre-
determined price. Upon obtaining the payment for
subscribing restricted shares made by the
employees, the Company will recognized the share
capital and capital reserve (share capital premium)
according to the payment it received, while fully
recognize a liability for its repurchasing obligation as
well as its treasury shares. On each balance sheet
date within the vesting period, the Company will
make the best estimation of the number of vested
equity instruments based on the subsequent
information such as the updated changes in the
number of executives and the achievement of
performance standard. Based on the above results,
the services received in the current period will be
included in the relevant cost or expense based on
the fair value on the date of grant, and the capital
reserve will be increased accordingly. The recognized
cost or expense and owners’ interest will not be
adjusted after the vesting date. However, equity
instruments vested immediately after the date of
grant will be included in the relevant cost or expense
based on its fair value on the date of grant, and the
capital reserve will be increased accordingly.
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continued)

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXV) Share-based payments (continued)

(1)

Equity-settled share-based payment and equity
instrument (continued)

For the share-based payments that are not vested
eventually, no cost or expense will be recognized,
except the vesting condition is market condition or
non-exercisable condition. Under such
circumstances, no matter whether the market
condition or non-exercisable condition can be fulfilled,
the share-based payment will be deemed as vested
as long as all the non-market conditions in the

vesting condition are fulfilled.

If the terms of the equity-settled share-based
payment are amended, the Company shall recognize
the services received at least based on the situation
before the amendment was made. In addition, any
amendment resulting in the increase of the fair value
of the equity instrument granted or changes that are
beneficial to the staff on the amendment date, will

be recognized as an increase in the service received.

If the equity-settled share-based payment is
cancelled, it will be accounted for as accelerated
exercise on the cancellation date and the
unrecognized amount will be recognized
immediately. Employees and other parties are able to
satisfy the non-vesting conditions. If the conditions
are not fulfilled during the vesting period, the equity-
settled share-based payment will be deemed as
cancelled. However, if new equity instruments are
vested and they are verified at the vesting date of
new equity instrument as alternatives vested to
cancelled equity instruments, the treatment on the
new equity instrument is in conformity with the
modified treatment on disposal of equity instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXV) Share-based payments (continued)

(2)

Cash-settled share-based payments and equity
instrument

A cash-settled share-based payment shall be
measured in accordance with the fair value of liability
calculated and confirmed based on the shares or
other equity instruments undertaken by the Group. It
is initially measured at fair value on the date of grant,
taking account into the terms and conditions of the
equity instrument granted. If the right may be
exercised immediately after the grant, the fair value
of the liability undertaken by the enterprise shall, on
the date of the grant, be included in the relevant
costs or expenses, and the liabilities shall be
increased accordingly. If the right may not be
exercised until the vesting period comes to an end or
until the specified performance conditions are met,
within the vesting period, the services obtained in
the current period shall, based on the best estimate
of the information about the exercisable right, be
included in the relevant costs or expenses and the
corresponding liabilities at the fair value of the liability
undertaken by the enterprise. For each of the balance
sheet date and settlement date before the
settlement of the relevant liabilities, fair value of the
liabilities will be remeasured and the changes will be
included in the profit or loss for the current period.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXVI) Revenue

1. Revenue from sales of goods

M

(5)

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised
when all the significant risks and rewards of
ownership of the goods have been transferred
to the buyer;

The Company does not retain either continuing
managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership or effective control
over the sold goods;

the amount of revenue can be reliably
measured,

it is probable that the economic benefits
associated will flow to the Company; and

the relevant amount of costs incurred or to be
incurred can be measured reliably.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXVI) Revenue (continued)

2.

Revenue from the rendering of services

On the balance sheet date, when the outcome of
rendering of services could be measured reliably,
related revenue from rendering of services is
recognized according to the percentage of
completion. The progress of the service transactions
is determined by the actual labor cost already
incurred divided by the total estimate costs.

The outcome of rendering of services can be
measured reliably when all of the following
conditions are met: 1 The amount of revenue can be
measured reliably; 2 It is probable that the economic
benefit associated with the transaction will flow to
the Company; 3 The percentage of completion of
service can be measured reliably 4 The cost incurred
and to be incurred for rendering the service can be
measured reliably.

When the outcome of rendering of services could
not be measured reliably, when the costs incurred
are expected to be recovered, revenues are
recognized to the extent that the costs incurred that
are expected to be recovered, and an equivalent
amount is charged to profit or loss as service cost;
when the costs incurred are not expected to be
recovered, the costs incurred are recognized in profit
or loss and no service revenue is recognized.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXVI) Revenue (continued)

3.

Revenue from the use of the assets

Revenue from the use of the assets is recognized on
accrual basis based on the relevant contract or
agreement.

Interest Income, Handling fee and Commission
Income

The income derived by the Company in providing
different kinds of financial services is recognised
when the economic benefit related to the transaction
can be flow into the company and the amount of
income can be measured reliably. Such income
includes interest income, income from financial
institute and handling fee income etc..

Interest Income and income from financial institute
are recognised based on the timing of the use right
of the principal and the actual interest rate.

Revenue from the use of assets is recognized based
on the charging time and method set out in the
relevant contract or agreement.

Handling fee and commission income are usually
recognised on the rendering of related service and
completion of the relevant transaction.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXVI) Revenue (continued)

5.

Construction Contract

(1)

(2)

Recognition of contract revenue and contract
cost

On the balance sheet date, when the outcome
of construction contracts could be measured
reliably, related revenue and cost for the
construction contract is recognized according
to the percentage of completion. The progress
of the contract is determined by the
accumulative contract cost actually incurred
divided by the total estimate contract costs.

When the outcome of a construction contract
could not be measured reliably, but the
contract cost incurred is recoverable, revenues
are recognized to the extent that the actual
costs incurred that are expected to be
recovered, and an equivalent amount is
charged to profit or loss as contract cost; when
the costs incurred are not recoverable, the
costs incurred are recognized in profit or loss
and no contract revenue is recognized. When
the factor that causes the outcome of
construction contract does not exist anymore,
the relevant revenue and cost of construction
contract is recognized based on percentage of
completion.

When the estimated total cost of the contract
exceeds total income of the contract, the
estimated loss will be recognized as expense
for the current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXVI) Revenue (continued)

5.

Construction Contract (continued)

(3)

For units producing 600MW or above (including
600MW), when the progress reach 40% or
more, calculation will be made on the
construction contract. When its progress is
less than 40% and for the other units
producing 600MW or less, calculation will not
be made on the construction contract. For
nuclear power generators, products in the
nuclear island that meet the condition of the
construction contract, calculation will be made
on the construction contract when its progress
reached 10% or above. When its progress is
less than 10%, calculation will not be made on
the construction contract.

Construction contracts are accounted for at
actual cost, which includes direct and indirect
costs incurred and attributable to the contract
for the period from the date the contract was
signed to the final completion of the contract.
The sum of accumulated costs incurred and
accumulated gross profit (loss) recognized for
the construction contract is presented in the
balance sheet after netting off against the
progress billings. Where the aggregate of
cumulative costs incurred and cumulative gross
profits (or losses) recognised exceed the
progress billings for contracts in progress, the
surplus is shown as receivables for
construction contract. Where the progress
billings for contracts in progress exceed the
aggregate of cumulative costs incurred and
cumulative gross profits (or losses) recognised,
the surplus is shown as receipts in advance.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXVI) Government grant

1.

Types

Government grants are transfer of monetary assets
or non-monetary assets from the government to the
Company at no consideration, and are classified into
government grant related to asset and government
grant related to income.

Government grants related to assets is obtained by
the Company for the purposes of constructing or
forming long-term assets in other ways including
funds allocation for purchase of fixed assets or
intangible assets, financial discount of special loans
for fixed assets. Government grants related to
revenue refer to the government grants other than
those related to assets.

Recognition time point

Government grants related to revenue is recognized
when the grant is received; government grants
related to asset is recognized when depreciation and
amortization is provided for such asset.

Accounting treatment

Government grants related to assets should be
presented as deferred income and recognized as
non-operating income evenly over the useful life of
the assets constructed or procured:

A government grant related to income is used for
compensation for related expenses or losses to be
incurred by the Company in subsequent periods, the
grant shall be recognized as deferred income, and
recognized in non-operating income over the periods
in which the related costs are recognized; if the grant
is a compensation for related expenses or losses
already incurred by the Company, the grant shall be
recognized immediately in profit or loss for the
current period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXVIl) Deferred income tax assets and liabilities

Deferred income tax assets are recognized to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which deductible temporary differences can be
utilized. For deductible losses and tax credits that can be
reversed in the future period, deferred tax assets shall be
recognized to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available in the future to offset the deductible
losses and tax credits.

Save as the exceptions, deferred income tax liabilities shall
be recognised for the taxable temporary difference.

The exceptions for not recognition of deferred income tax
assets and liabilities include: the initial recognition of the
goodwill; other transactions or matters other than business
combinations in which neither profit nor taxable income (or
deductible loss) will be affected when transactions occur.

After granted the legal rights of net settlement and with
the intention to use net settlement or obtain assets, repay
debt, the Group, at the same time, the net amount after
offsetting its current income tax assets and current income
tax liabilities shall be recorded.

The Group was granted the legal rights of net settlement
of current income tax assets and current income tax
liabilities. Deferred income tax assets and deferred income
tax liabilities are related to income tax to be paid by the
same entity liable to pay tax to the same tax collection and
management authority or related to different entities liable
to pay tax, but the relevant entity liable to pay tax is
intended to apply net settlement of current income tax
assets and liabilities or, at the same time, obtain assets,
repay debt whenever every deferred income tax assets
and liabilities with importance would be reversed in the
future, the Group records the net amount after offsetting
its current income tax assets and current income tax
liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXIX) Leases

1.

Accounting of operating lease

(1)

As the lessee of operating leases, rental
payments under operating leases are
recognised as costs or expenses on a straight-
line basis over the lease term (including rent-
free periods). Initial direct costs that are
attributable to an operating lease incurred by
the Company are charged to current profit and
loss.

When the lessor bears the lease related
expenses which should be undertaken by the
Company, the Company shall deduct this part
of expense from the rent and amortize the net

amount over the lease term.

Leasing charges received by the Company for
the assets leased out shall be amortized in a
straight-line basis over the lease term without
deducting the rent-free periods, and recognized
as leasing income. The initial direct fee related
to the leasing transactions paid by the
Company shall be charged to current expenses;
if the mount is significant, it shall be capitalized
and charged to current income evenly on the
same basis as the leasing income is recognized

over the lease term.

When the Company bears the lease related
expenses which should be undertaken by the
lessee, the Company shall deduct this part of
expense from the rent income, and amortize

the net amount over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXIX) Leases (continued)

2.

Accounting of finance lease

(1)

When the Company is a lessee, the leased
asset is recorded at the amounts equal to the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and
the present value of the minimum lease
payments at the beginning of the lease period.
The difference between the recorded amount
of the leased asset and the minimum lease
payments is accounted for as unrecognized
finance charge and is amortized using the
effective interest method over the period of
the lease. The Company, by means of the real
interest method, amortizes the
unacknowledged financial charges during the
lease term of the assets and includes them
into financing expenses. Initial direct cost
incurred by the Company will be included in
the leased asset value.

When the Company is a lessor, the difference
between the recorded amount of the leased
asset and the minimum lease receivables is
accounted for as unrecognised finance income
and is recognised as rental income over the
period of the lease at the beginning of the
lease period. Initial direct costs shall be
included in the initial accounting of the lease
payment receivables and deduct by the

revenue recognized over the lease term.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXX) Discontinued Operation

A discontinued operation is a component that either has
been disposed of or is classified as held for sale by the
Company, and is separately identifiable operationally and
for financial reporting purposes, and satisfies one of the
following conditions:

(1) represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations;

(2) is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a
separate major line of business or geographical area
of operations; and

(3) is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to

resale.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXXI) Hedge accounting

1.

Classification of hedging

M

(2)

A fair value hedge is a hedge of the exposure
to changes in fair value of a recognised asset
or liability or an unrecognised firm commitment
(except foreign exchange risk).

Cash flow hedges is a hedge of the exposure
to variability in cash flows that is either
attributable to a particular risk associated with
a recognised asset or liability or a highly
probable forecast transaction, or a foreign
currency risk in an unrecognised firm

commitment.

Hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation is a hedge of the exposure to foreign
exchange risk associated with a net investment
in a foreign operation. Net investment in a
foreign operation is the share of interest in the
net asset of the foreign operation.
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(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXXI) Hedge accounting (continued)

2.

Designation of the hedge relationship and
recognition of the effectiveness of hedging

At the inception of a hedge relationship, the Group
formally designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which the Group wishes to apply
hedge accounting, the risk management objective
and its strategy for undertaking the hedge. The
documentation includes identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged item or transaction, the
nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group
will assess the hedging instrument’s effectiveness

Hedging instrument’s effectiveness means the
degree of the change of fair value and cash flow of
the hedging instrument in offsetting the exposure to
changes in the hedged item’s fair value or cash flows
attributable to the hedged risk. The hedge is
assessed by the Group for effectiveness on an
ongoing basis and judged whether it has been highly
effective throughout the accounting periods for
which the hedging relationship was designated. A
hedge is regarded as highly effective if both of the
following conditions are satisfied:

(1) at the inception and in subsequent periods, the
hedge is expected to be highly effective in
achieving offsetting changes in fair value or
cash flows attributable to the hedged risk
during the period for which the hedge is
designated,;

(2)  the actual results of offsetting are within a
range of 80% to 125%.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXXI) Hedge accounting (continued)

3. Method of Hedge accounting:

(1)

Fair value hedges

The change in the fair value of a hedging
derivative is recognized in the consolidated
income statement. The change in the fair value
of the hedged item attributable to the risk
hedged is recorded as a part of the carrying
amount of the hedged item and is also
recognized in the profit and loss for the current
period.

For fair value hedges relating to items carried
at amortized cost, the adjustment to carrying
value is amortized through the profit and loss
for the current period over the remaining term
to maturity. Any adjustment to the carrying
amount of a hedged financial instrument for
which the effective interest method is used is
amortized to the profit and loss for the current
period. Amortization may begin as soon as an
adjustment exists and shall begin no later than
when the hedged item ceases to be adjusted
for changes in its fair value attributable to the
risk being hedged.

If the hedged item is derecognized, the
unamortized fair value is recognized
immediately in the profit and loss for the
current period.

When an unrecognized firm commitment is
designated as a hedged item, the subsequent
cumulative change in the fair value of the firm
commitment attributable to the hedged risk is
recognized as an asset or liability with a
corresponding gain or loss recognized in the
profit and loss for the current period. The
changes in the fair value of the hedging
instrument are also recognized in the profit and
loss for the current period.
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lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXXI) Hedge accounting (continued)

3. Method of Hedge accounting: (continued)

2)

Cash flow hedges

The effective portion of the gain or loss on the
hedging instrument is recognized directly as
other comprehensive income, while the
ineffective portion is recognized immediately in
the profit or loss for the current period.

Amounts taken to other comprehensive
income are transferred to the profit or loss
when the hedged transaction affects the profit
and loss for the current period, such as when
hedged financial income or financial expense is
recognized or when a forecast sale occurs.
Where the hedged item is the cost of a non-
financial asset or non-financial liability, the
amounts taken to other comprehensive income
are transferred to the initial carrying amount of
the non-financial asset or non-financial liability
(or the amounts originally recognized in other
comprehensive income will be transferred to
the profit or loss for the current period in the
same period when the profit or loss are
affected by the non-financial asset or non-
financial liability).

If the forecast transaction or firm commitment
is no longer expected to occur, the amounts
previously recognized in equity are transferred
to the profit and loss for the current period. If
the hedging instrument expires or is sold,
terminated or exercised without replacement
or rollover, or if its designation as a hedge is
revoked, the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income remain in there
until the forecast transaction or firm
commitment affects the profit and loss for the
current period.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXXI) Hedge accounting (continued)

3.

Method of Hedge accounting: (continued)

(3)

Hedge of net investment in foreign operation

A hedge of a net investment in a foreign
operation includes the hedge of the currency
item as a portion of net investment, its
treatment is similar to cash flow hedge. The
portion of the gain or loss on a hedging
instrument that is determined to be an
effective hedge is included in other
comprehensive income. The ineffective portion
is recognised in profit or loss for the current

period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

(XXXll) Change in major accounting policies and accounting

estimates

1.

Change in major accounting policies

(1)

New and revised accounting standards issued
by the Ministry of Finance in 2014

The Company has executed the following new
and revised accounting standards issued by the
Ministry of Finance in 2014

“Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises — Basic Standard” (Revised)

“Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 2 — Long-term equity

investment” (Revised)

“Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 9 — Employee Benefits”
(Revised)

“Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 30 — Presentation of Financial
Statements” (Revised)

“Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 33 — Consolidated Financial
Statements” (Revised)

“Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 37 — Financial instrument
presentation” (Revised)

“Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 39 — Fair Value

Measurement”
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

= EESHBEREFMF @ lll. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES,
ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES (continued)

Eto)EESFBERNSAEFTNEE(H)

(XXXll) Change in major accounting policies and accounting
estimates (continued)

1- EZEEHEREE(E) 1.  Change in major accounting policies (continued)
(1) BT ELR 2014 F & (1) New and revised accounting standards issued

FTRFT AR A ER (48)

(EEEFEREL00R

by the Ministry of Finance in 2014 (continued)

“Accounting Standards for Business

ENANERUR

B GL0Z
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(hxgrER
— EHMTE
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2. EZEEIAEE

113

7

Enterprises No. 40 — Joint Arrangements”

“Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 41 — Disclosure of equity in

other entity”

The main effect of the application of the above

Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises

by the Company is as follow:

Implementation of the “Accounting
standards for Business Enterprises No.2
— Long-term Equity Investments”
(Revised)

Pursuant to the “Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No.2 — Long-
term Equity Investments” (Revised), the
Company has retrospectively adjusted
the investment in entities not under
common control or without significant
influence and do not have a quoted
market price in an active market and
whose fair value cannot be reliably
measured under Long-term Equity
Investments and classified it as available-
for-sale financial assets.

2. Change in major accounting estimates

No
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(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

LR

IV. TAXATION
(—) EEHREMBE ()  Main types of taxes and corresponding rates
HE BRI BE
Tax Type Tax basis Tax rate
EEH RREHETENEEEMAER BB BERET 3% *17%

Value-added Tax (“VAT")

HIEANEE - AR E A FENEET SRR - =
HE D RRESIEEN

Output VAT is calculated on product sales and taxable
services revenue, based on tax laws. The remaining
balance of output VAT, after subtracting the
deductible input VAT of the period, is VAT payable.

BEB VR A S U A 3% 5%
Business tax Based on taxable operating revenue

YT 4 R R A REBHMNEER - BEWIEENETE 7%
City maintenance and construction tax Based on business tax paid ,VAT and sale tax

REMEH RIEMT PTG BT 15%

Enterprise income tax

GETRCEMSHBEMNT 88
m o RIS R A

Based on taxable profits

Companies subject to different income tax rates are
disclosed as follows:

FiEBH=

BRERER Name of the companies Income tax rate
RERERRNBRAT (1) Harbin Electric Company Limited(Note 1) 15%
ﬂéﬁﬁ‘éﬁiﬁ%@ﬁ REGAAREFARGE2) Harbin Turbine Company Limited and its subsidiary(Note 2) 15%
REAESNREE SRNERAT Harbin Power Technology & Trade Inc. 25%
BREBEBEREAAAREFARGE) Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited and its subsidiary(Note 3) 15%
RERERBRFIEARPLERLA) Harbin Power Equipment National Engineering Research Centre Co., Ltd 25%
RESERBEEELRMERAR () HE Harbin Power Plant Valve Company Limited(Note 4) 15%
RB=FIEREERAF Chengdu Sanliya Technology Company( S = FIZRHEEB AF) 25%
REEREREREALRREFLE () Harbin Boiler Company Limited and its subsidiary(Note 5) 15%
RAEERE NEEERAT (6) Harbin Electric Power Equipment Company Limited(Note 6) 15%
RELE(REE)ENEABRARGEY) Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy Equipment Company Limited(Note 7) 15%
RESERRYERBEEERERLT HE Modern Manufacturing Service Industry Company Limited 25%
REAREREENEERELAT Harbin Electric Corporation Finance Company Limited 25%
BREERERIRERELAR(FS) Harbin Electric International Company Limited(Note 8) 15%

REERESALNT

E=1l

Harbin Electric Corporation( B ZM EERAR) 25%
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

BRI ()
(=) BES
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REHEFNSHRMEE AR
15% AR R BRI ©
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#8)

NAE2014F8 A5 HEUS AR
TARIERIE - BEETEMK
- BREILBERBER B8
LA B R A R ERNGR
MR rEEFEE)  (BERR
GR20142300008) © A & H =
F o BBHRNERE15% T E
BURZERTSH -

2 BREESWEBEREMFARA
REFARA

BERERRERERETRAA
20148 A5 HES A ERET
BRERITE - BiEIEMK
B REIABRBER 2
BRIIEM SRS B A BN
(BHEMEEFEE)  (FER
5% © GR201423000026) * B &%
H=F  BHRER15% 1
PRGBS -

BERERRERERETRAA
FRAIGEERmEmEE T
RAERAF2014F8 A5 BEE
mEEIERENTE - 25T
B BE BERIEBERME
B BETIAMAREBEAR
BE(EIPEMEEEE)  (F
£ % % : GR201423000155)
ERE=F ARHANRR
15% RIFH BB EFTSH -

V. TAXAT'ON (continued)

(2)

Tax Preference

Under the EIT Law, high and new technology enterprises
that require key state support are subject to the applicable
enterprise income tax rate with a reduction of 15%.

1. Harbin Electric Company Limited (the Company)

On 5 August 2014, the Company obtained the High
and New Technology Enterprise certificate (Number:
GR20142300008) jointly issued by the Heilongjiang
Science and Technology Bureau (5814 B2l
[2), Heilongjiang Finance Bureau (2T & B IEE) ,
Heilongjiang State Tax Bureau(2 %1 & B X i %
/@) » and Heilongjiang Local Tax Bureau( 2 &8I & i
7 T % /B), for an effective period of three years,
pursuant to which enterprise income tax will be
charged at the rate of 15% during the period.

2. Harbin Turbine Company Limited and its
subsidiaries

On 5 August 2014, Harbin Turbine Company Limited
obtained the High and New Technology Enterprise
certificate (Number: GR201423000026) jointly issued
by the Heilongjiang Science and Technology Bureau
(BETARIERTEE), Heilongjiang Finance Bureau
(BEESTEBIEEE) , Heilongjiang State Tax Bureau( 2
BELE B R B B) - and Heilongjiang Local Tax
Bureau( BB/ TA M H T F), for an effective period
of three years, pursuant to which enterprise income
tax will be charged at the rate of 15% during the
period.

On 5 August 2014, Harbin Turbine Ancillary
Equipment Engineering Company Limited (/&5
5 M ¥ T2 5 R 2 &), the subsidiary of Harbin
Turbine Company Limited obtained the High and
New Technology Enterprise certificate (Number:
GR201423000155) jointly issued by the Heilongjiang
Science and Technology Bureau (2 #E)T 4 B &K iy
), Heilongjiang Finance Bureau (28L& B EEE) ,
Heilongjiang State Tax Bureau( 2 3T & B X i 75
f®) * and Heilongjiang Local Tax Bureau( 2§14 i
7 T B), for an effective period of three years,
pursuant to which enterprise income tax will be
charged at the rate of 15% during the period.
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V. TAXAT'ON (continued)

(2) Tax Preference (continued)

3.

Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited
and its subsidiaries

On 5 August 2014, Harbin Electrical Machinery
Company Limited obtained the High and New
Technology Enterprise certificate (Number:
GR201423000047) jointly issued by the Heilongjiang
Science and Technology Bureau ( 288514 R &3 1i7
[2), Heilongjiang Finance Bureau (2T & B IEE) ,
Heilongjiang State Tax Bureau(2 % I & B X # %
/B) ~ and Heilongjiang Local Tax Bureau( 28,1 & ith
7 T /@), for an effective period of three years,
pursuant to which enterprise income tax will be
charged at the rate of 15% during the period.

On 5 August 2014, Harbin Electrical Machinery
(Kunming) Company Limited (W EEEZE XM (EH)E
R & £ 72 7)), the subsidiary of Harbin Electrical
Machinery Company Limited obtained the High and
New Technology Enterprise certificate (Number:
GR201553000093) jointly issued by the Yunnan
Science and Technology Bureau (Ef & B 2R 1iTEE),
Yunnan Finance Bureau (£ 7 4 B B B2) , Yunnan
State Tax Bureau(EF & B K1 /) » and Yunnan
Local Tax Bureau(ZEF & it 5§57 /B), for an effective
period of three years, pursuant to which enterprise
income tax will be charged at the rate of 15% during
the period.

HE Harbin Power Plant Valve Company Limited

On 5 August 2014, HE Harbin Power Plant Valve
Company Limited obtained the High and New
Technology Enterprise certificate (Number:
GR201423000075) jointly issued by the Heilongjiang
Science and Technology Bureau (5814 B2l
E2), Heilongjiang Finance Bureau (28 I & B EEE) ,
Heilongjiang State Tax Bureau(® %L & B X i &%
/&) * and Heilongjiang Local Tax Bureau( 2 8,14 b
7 T B), for an effective period of three years,
pursuant to which enterprise income tax will be
charged at the rate of 15% during the period.
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V. TAXAT'ON (continued)

(2) Tax Preference (continued)

5.

Harbin Boiler Company Limited and its subsidiary

On 5 August 2014, the company obtained the High
and New Technology Enterprise certificate (Number:
GR201423000064) jointly issued by the Heilongjiang
Science and Technology Bureau ( 288714 &l 23 i1
[E2), Heilongjiang Finance Bureau (28T & BfIREE) |
Heilongjiang State Tax Bureau( 2 5T & B X i 75
/&) * and Heilongjiang Local Tax Bureau( 2881 & i
F B % /®), for an effective period of three years,
pursuant to which enterprise income tax will be
charged at the rate of 15% during the period.

On 15 August 2015, Harbin Boiler Preheater
Company Limited (Y58 SHIERTEZAS AR B AR
the subsidiary of Harbin Boiler Company Limited
obtained the High and New Technology Enterprise
certificate (Number: GR201523000063) jointly issued
by the Heilongjiang Science and Technology Bureau
(EBTARIBRIITEE), Heilongjiang Finance Bureau
(2B IHBIEE) , Heilongjiang State Tax Bureau(2
BE LA B R % /®) - and Heilongjiang Local Tax
Bureau(RBE/IEHFHIH ), for an effective period
of three years, pursuant to which enterprise income
tax will be charged at the rate of 15% during the

period.

Harbin Electric Power Equipment Company
Limited

On 5 August 2014, Harbin Electric Power Equipment
Company Limited obtained the High and New
Technology Enterprise certificate (Number:
GR201423000102) jointly issued by the Heilongjiang
Science and Technology Bureau (2 #E)T 4 B &K iy
F2), Heilongjiang Finance Bureau (& /T & B IE) ,
Heilongjiang State Tax Bureau(2 % I & B X # %
/&) » and Heilongjiang Local Tax Bureau( 2 &/ & i
7 T /B), for an effective period of three years,
pursuant to which enterprise income tax will be

charged at the rate of 15% during the period.
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BRI ()
(=) BES ()

7"

REXEH(FEE)EREER
RAF

REEE(FE25)SREESE
PR A 7120134 07 22 B 15
FOAdb B RS2 TE - mdbE
BB - AL EERBER
AL M T B B A B
(Pt ERE)  (BER
5% 1 GR201313000123) * A
H=F  BRHNIKRE15% 8
TR FERTER

KHEEEREKRIEEREE

AL

MREEAEREEIRERER
NI 3B 3 v i
R % & % &F FH &
JF20132300150010 * & & 81 %
(2009)63 5% X 4 + A F B &
15% HIBi R BB EFEH -

V. TAXAT'ON (continued)

(2) Tax Preference (continued)

7.

Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy
Equipment Company Limited

Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy Equipment
Company Limited received High and New
Technology Enterprises Certificate (= ¥ £l b 2 &
£) jointly issued by Hebei Provincial Department of
Science and Technology, Department of Finance of
Hebei Province, Hebei Provincial Office, SAT and
Hebei Local Taxation Bureau on 22 July 2013. The
relevant certificate number was GR201313000123,
effective for 3 years and entitled the company to pay
Enterprise Income Tax at a rate of 15% within the
period.

Harbin Electric International Company Limited

Harbin Electric International Company Limited was
recognised as Advanced Technology Service
Enterprises (¥ i7 st # # g #% 1 %). Relevant
certificate number was JF20132300150010. The
company paid Enterprise Income Tax at a rate of
15% this year in accordance with Cai Shui [2009]
No.63(B1 1 (2009)63 5% ST ).

—
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

Hep : BRSO FORERE

Among which:

aggregate amount overseas

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(—) E¥ES (1) Monetary Capital

HR&E FsE

Closing Opening
HAE Items balance balance
ERRE Cash in hand 6,202,630.84 1,830,478.82
Heh: AR Dominated in: RMB 517,978.73 405,074.71
xE7T usb 3,049,311.06 770,415.59
BT Euro 106,430.55 74,558.68
g British Pound 12,692.99
Hih Others 2,516,217.51 580,429.84
RITEN Bank deposits 16,567,171,774.78 13,566,716,018.07
Hep o ARW Dominated in: RMB 15,830,700,363.40 13,129,189,457.21
xE7T usb 624,644,854.97  332,474,504.62
BT HKD 136,217.25 76,194.67
Hit Japanese Yen — 19,770.52
BT Euro 51,782,887.45 33,559,980.49
W British Pound — 133,631.27
BBERR Swiss franc — 21.07
Hih Others 59,907,451.71 71,262,458.22
HttE¥&ES Other monetary capital 1,663,631,752.10  1,041,203,044.74
Hep o ARW Dominated in: RMB 1,663,631,7562.10  1,041,151,407.05
HAh Others — 51,637.69
& F Total 18,237,006,157.72 14,609,749,541.63

175,363,265.23

253,447,225.39




— O — R F & B %5 w3k MY & ()
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(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(&)
(—) E¥&E2(E)

HApFER  ERRRESHERE
RE - ARBRERINAESERZE
REIEEES AT

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(n

Monetary Capital (continued)

Details of monetary capital which has restricted usage due
to reasons including pledges, charges or locked up and
which is deposited overseas resulting in limited remittance
back to China are as follow:

HR&hHE FONRE
Closing Opening
A Items balance balance
RITEAEZRES Guarantee monies for bank promissory note 205,523,346.46
ERAERES Guarantee monies for letter of credit —
REARESR Guarantee monies for letter of guarantee 4,700,000.00  330,330,086.69
BaRES Guarantee monies for performance 15,637,992.79
AR ERNEHFERERANER Term deposits or demand deposits for
guarantee —
TR REITREEFREES Statutory deposit reserve kept in central bank 827,070,142.98  708,304,533.63
EBURETFR Deposits frozen by the court 5,578,210.73 8,078,210.73

HEEINEESERZ TR EHFIE  Overseas deposits of which remittance back to
China is limited

4 it Total

FREHRINNEBESRARKE
175,363,265.23 7 * BARRF A A
MEABEREBETEAREELQAE
RN TIRBISE SRR -

1,058,609,692.96  1,046,712,831.05

At the end of the year, monetary capital deposited
overseas was RMB 175,363,265.23, which was the
remaining balance of fund for overseas construction site
paid by Harbin Electric International Company Limited, a
subsidiary of the Company.

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER

(&)

(Z) UAAEEREERSBTAEDRE

BHNEHEE

1

URAREEFEBAREZE A

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(2) Financial assets measured at fair value of which

changes included in current profit or loss

1. Financial assets measured at fair value of which

EHEZHNEHEE changes included in current profit or loss
HREAEE FHEHEE
Closing Opening
EH Items balance balance
RHEERHEE Trading financial assets - 1,909,300,000.00
Hep: E5TARE Including: Investment in bond instrument -
BaITARE Investment in equity instrument - 1,909,300,000.00
THEEREE Derivative financial assets -
Hitp Others -

EERNAABEEEEE:
AEHBENEREE

Heh - 5 TAKRE
EmIARA
Hit

2

Designated as financial assets measured at
fair value of which changes included in
current profit or loss

Including: Investment in bond instrument

Investment in equity instrument
Others
Total

1,909,300,000.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(#8) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Z) EWEE (3) BILLS RECEIVABLE 203
1 EWZEESEIT 1.  Classified by types of bills receivable -
QO
BRBE FAHE S
m
Closing Opening g
HH Items balance balance 3
&
2
RITEGES Bank promissory notes 2,037,440,761.81  1,952,805,863.10 §
REAGESR Commercial promissory notes 270,968,312.13 191,986,028.62 5
=t
[oR
A&t Total 2,308,409,073.94  2,144,791,891.72 >
2 HBXLAAEEHFAENRER 2. Pledged bills receivable of the Company at the >
(]
end of the period '§
HWABERSHE 3
Amount pledged at v
EHA Items the end of the period
RITENIESZ Bank promissory notes 22,310,000.17
HEAREE Commercial promissory notes —

&t Total 22,310,000.17
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREEEBIE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
() FEWERR (4) TRADE RECEIVABLE
1 BWERFNTERE 1. Disclosure by types of trade receivables
BRBE FBE
Closing balance Opening balance
RERE ARER FABE RER
4] Type Remaining carrying amount Provision for bad debt Remaining carrying amount Provision for bad debt BERE
FHRILA(%) FAEE Remaining
3] HRIAI% 28 Provided Carrying | BB (%) 88 HRUA canying
Amount tatio%) Amount tatio(%) Value Amount ratio(%) Amount ratio(%) amount
EESEEATEBHDE  Trade roceivables which are
FEBMRIES ndvidually signfcant and
provided for bad debt separately 703,392,234.57 438 22888134051 3054 47451089406 748,713,167.02 433 16776112893 241 580,952,038.09
RERBREYAATEE  Trade receivables provided for bad
FEBNRIER debt by credit risk characteristics  15,208744,054.44 9478 478153032729 3144 10427,213727.15 1643326442830 95,09 4503755,389.95 2741 11,9295509,038.35
EESENEAEEBR  Trade receivables which are
FRERNRIES individually not signfcant but
provided for bad debt separately 134,051,478.31 084 4800514354 381 86,046334.77  99,247,691.07 058 3061338701 308 6863430406
At Tod 160461677672 | BUBBLIGEIH 1 10387,1708658 17812262869 | 4T 1890589 I 1257318538080

PREFSBEEAL EFR
SRR AE A R IR R

Trade receivables which are individually significant

and provided for bad debt separately at the end of

the period
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(BRASTREERASN -

continued)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
() FEwARRR (&) (4)

1 BRERHDEHE(E)

TRADE RECEIVABLE (continued)

1. Disclosure by types of trade receivables

(continued)

HREE
Closing balance
MRS (fREf) Trade receivables (By Unit) FEWER SRER AR HREA
Trade Provision for Provided  Reasons for
receivables bad debt ratio  provision
ERANBERKFERSD Ministry of Irigation & Water Resources of
(B&eEE) Republic of Sudan (Merowe Project) H1
(BRLRBEEZ AT ERS (BEGER) 371,149,663.63 164,534,908.29 4433 Note
ERIRERAA State Nuclear Power Engineering Corp, Ltd. REsTHE
111,588,119.52 - No guarantee provided
HEREIREERAT Hunan TaoHuaJiang Nuclear Power, Ltd. RESTHE
78,628,000.00 - No guarantee provided
REGIRARLT China Nuclear Power Enginering Co, Lid RESTiHE
59,708,981.20 — No guarantee provided
BEERENNA(HESFEE)  VietNam Electricity(Vietnam CaoNgan
Project) EEERENAF 2
(BrEEFER ) 46,375,394.22 46,375,394.22 10000 Note?2
ERENNGD(HEASH SRR Minister of Electricity & Dams of Republic of
WiEEE) Sudan (Sudan EI Gaili Fuel Reform Project
Phase 1) (BB NABH (HAEH i
—HHSEER ) 35,942,076.00 17,971,038.00 5000 Note !
At Total 703,392,234.57 228,881,340.51 |l
H1 ARREHESERE T Note 1:  On 15 June 2001, 21 September 2004 and 27

F—HATEE - HH —HI1E
B2 RIF 200146 A 15
H2004F9 821 HUARK
200512 A27H &2/ H
EERRAERARBR B
B RER]D ETRER
AMSEC010056 5 -
LSA2004026 5 A1
LSA2005045%% it 0 B 75
EERE - BAERSTR
e T B W R - 8
1F2016F12 8318 =
878 B et AR R ER 5
70,491,055.19% 7T * #T&
K I #457,740,715.98
7T —EHE B BB ER
£ (R K)85%-90% &f 7 18
Eﬁﬁ%%ﬁﬁﬁow £ VIV
N B ¥ 18 R B o FE AR 3R
R R TR B R
32,208,198.23 % 7T ©

December 2005, the Company signed import
and export credit insurance with China Export
& Credit Insurance Corporation(“China Credit
Insurance”) in respect of Merowe Sudan, El
Gaili Phase 1 and El Gaili Phase 2 projects, to
avoid certain collection risks through obtaining
guarantees . The relevant policy numbers were
MSEC010056, LSA2004026 and LSA2005045
respectively. As at 31 December 2015, the
aggregate remaining balance of trade
receivables from the three projects was USD
70,491,055.19(equivalent to
RMB457,740,715.98). The amount due from
the three projects after deducting 85% to 90%
of guarantees from China Credit Insurance was
USD 52million. The Company made provisions
for bad debts of USD32,208,198.23 for the
past due trade receivables on aging basis.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(M) PEURBRFX (&) (4) TRADE RECEIVABLE (continued)
1 ERRZSEHE(E) 1.  Disclosure by types of trade receivables

d2: WARRERE aNBHE
SEAREERIE - AH Y
B UL AR R 2 BT IR
TR -

BHSBEIEXNEFEFHEE

(continued)

Note 2: It is expected that the past due balance of
Vietnam CaoNgan Project cannot be recovered,
the Company provided bad debt reserve for
the relevant trade receivables during the
period.

Trade receivables which are individually not

BEEE Y FEREE 2K ¢ significant but provided for bad debt separately
BRGHE
Closing balance
PR (&) Trade receivables(By units) MRS RIRER A
Trade Provision Provided GHREM
receivables for bad debt ratio  Reasons for provision
ERRFINNA(HAEFIZE  National Electricity Corporation of 25,704,776.83 12,170522.59 413 1
ER) Sudan(Sudan FI Gaili Phese 2) (5 B1% S Note 1
NRFEAEHZHER)
ERAFINNA(EAEF-H  National Electricity Corporation of 24,944,199.52 14,470,687.14 801 1
28) Sudan(Sudan E! Gaii Phase 1) (REZE Note 1
DR (GAEH-HER)
ZIENE Bangladesh Power Division( & iR E /) &) 17,245371.73 1724531173 10000 FEFEEFEZNE
Expected to be
imecoverable due to
disagreement
REREHSNTRAFLEAAT  China Znongyuen Engineering Corp.(Shanghai 15,952,544.70 - RELTHE
Branch) (PELH RHS TRRAE LEARE) No guarantee provided
MEBERELAR Dahua Group Co., Ltd 2,875,000.00 - FE
Recovered in the beginning
of the year
EEETZEKEHLBREL  Yunnan Chengjiang Yunxi Hydropower 2,250,00000 2,250,000.00 10000 BEZEESELNE
NE SRk EDL) Development Limited (Zhagu hydropower Expected to be
station) irrecoverable due to
(R IZEKEREERELAR (BHK disagreement

e
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(M) PEURBRFX (&) (4) TRADE RECEIVABLE (continued)
1 ERRZSEHE(E) 1.  Disclosure by types of trade receivables

(continued)

HARGE
Closing balance
BUERS (REf) Trade receivables(By units) FRURR: RIRER A
Trade Provision Provided 3tiEEH
receivables for bad debt ratio  Reasons for provision
hERB R Nuclear Power Institute of China 2,168,500.00 T
No guarantee provided
REEBEERALA Tianjin Binhai Energy & Development Co., Ltd 939,000.00 939,000.00 10000 FEFEEHELNE
(REESHRRALE) Expected to be
imecoverable due to
disagreement
PELETRERAA China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd. 735,000.00 — RESTE
No guarantee provided
AMEBERETAIRELEHE Dahua Group Co., Ltd(Dalian Puwan New 311,800.00 —  ElE
DARELIARAE District Songmu Chemical Branch) Recovered in the beginning
(RBLENRLARBLIART) of the year
BOTEYTERATEZR)  Luguen Yulong Electricity Company Limited 308,000.00 308,000.00 10000 FEFEEGEINE
(Dujiacun) Expected to be
(EBEEETERDA BFH) iiecoverable due to
disagreement
FRENVERE Owners of project 202 in Phiippines 212,01057 21201057 10000 HFEEZEGELNE
(FRZ200%EH) Expected to be
irrecoverable due to
disagreement
ZXERENRNERATDEOER Huaneng Power International Inc(Yingkou 190,000.00 —  EhE
power plant) Recovered in the beginning
of the year
2hER Mongolia project 158,629.00 158,629.00 10000 FERZESEENE
Expected to be
irrecoverable due to

disagreement

207
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(M) EWERRR(E) (4) TRADE RECEIVABLE (continued)
1 BERRFSEHE(E) 1.  Disclosure by types of trade receivables
(continued)
HARGE
Closing balance
BUERS (REf) Trade receivables(By units) FRURR: RIRER A
Trade Provision Provided iREMH
receivables for bad debt ratio  Reasons for provision
hEBREELRERA China National General Machinery Engineering 140,000.00 —  EE
Corporation Recovered in the beginning
of the year
ZEXELIAT Anhui Tianrun Chemicals Co,, Ltd 128,609.50 128,609.50 10000 FEFZERGEZIE
Expected to be
irrecoverable due to
disagreement
EZNFHERARATEELES  Inner Mongolia Energy Corporation 80,000.00 -
2l Limited(Baotou power generation branch) Recovered in the beginning
of the year
BAmREAEARAT Guangzhou Wanglong Thermal Power 65,800.00 65,800.00 10000 FERZESEEINE
Corporation Limited (EMTREHE Expected to be
BRAT) iiecoverable due to
disagreement
ERNEERABRAT Jiamusi Electric Machine CO., Ltd 54,134.00 — BBy TiesE
No bad debt provisions
made for related parties
RRIENARR Guangzhou branch of SINOPEC 42,1200 42,120.00 10000 BEFZEGELRE
Expected to be
irrecoverable due to
disagreement
REEREEEREEN HEC Industrial Development Company 27,072.00 BEpRaEEE
(RERREERHZLLNE) No bad debt provisions

made for related parties
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

S EBRREEEEGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(&)

(m) FEwiRR (&)

1

(4) TRADE RECEIVABLE (continued)

W 7 ERE (&) 1. Disclosure by types of trade receivables
(continued)
HREE
Closing balance
EUER (R Trade receivables(By units) FEWIRE SRER HEd]
Trade Provision Provided 3REH
receivables for bad debt ratio  Reasons for provision
BIEEEHAREEAT(#FIL) Sichuan Hongchang Electricity Company 14,39301 14,393.01 10000 BHEZEESEEIE
Limited (Zhaojiashan] (1) EE N ERE Expected to be
ERR(EFWL) irecoverable due o
disagreement
Eft Others 39,504,517.45 —
it Total 134,051,478.31 48,005,143.54 I
HRGE E8E
Closing balance Opening balance
B Age FERES BRER SR ERER BRER FTHRA
Trade Provision for bad Trade Provision for bad
receivables debt  Provided ratio receivables debt  Provided ratio
1EHR Within 1 year 5,761,727,123.88  190,385,466.68 330 728110123547 236,179,521.07 32
1228 1-2years 3,045,834,676.27  463978,308.95 1523 309861151544  673419,105.57 2173
153 2-3years 1971,078876.27  759,626,960.26 3854 225484839947  860,225,232.23 38.15
KEYE 3-dyears 1,762,154,770.24 - 1,106,046,905.53 62.77 1466,042519.15  824,044,437.23 56.21
4Z5% 4-byears 969,299,735.66  666,066,005.90 68.72 1,071,021,13482  667,672,626.89 62.34
SELLE Over 5 years 1,698,648872.12  1,595,426,679.97 9392 126163962395 1,242,214,466.96 98.46
Ait 15,208744,04.44  4781,530,327.29 16,433,264,428.30  4,503,755,389.95
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
210 (m) PR (4) (4) TRADE RECEIVABLE (continued)

5 2 ZKHEIGHIE - B[O s o] ZEARE 2. Provision, transfer and recovery of bad debts in

% Eigx the period

ﬂ‘[ A REREEL S Provision for bad debts of RMB 358,520,089.89 was

E;? 358,520,089.89 7T ° made in the period.

ot

% 3 ZFHEBREZENERERER 3. Trade receivables effectively verified in the period
BH Item RS E

B GL0Z

Verified Amount

BB Z A EIER R Trade receivables effectively verified 14,250.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

S EREREEEHGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
() FEWERF (B) (4) TRADE RECEIVABLE (continued)
4 BRFTHEENHRGHBEIEE 4.  Trade receivables with top 5 closing balances
HIEWLBR 5L 18R classified by borrowers

Closing balance

HREAE
Attributed share
BAUEHE Name of Unit Trade in total trade Bad debt
receivables receivables (%) provision
R R &5t
PR AR X LAl (%) RERER
B EMBBRKFEM P Ministry of Irrigation & Water Resources
of Republic of Sudan 371,149,663.63 2.31 164,534,908.29
FERENBR AT Shenzhen Nantian Electricity Company
Limited (FIIEAEHERAF) 261,600,000.00 1.63 64,512,346.10
REBRERNABMARIRS  Beijing Gaojing Thermal Power Plant
HEER (EREHBER) of
Datang International Power
Generation Co.,Ltd 254,712,860.00 1.59 -
BEMEERRBEERRAH Tangzai Power Station Co., Ltd of
Guizhou CHD (EMNEEREREE
BRAFE) 251,126,588.39 1.57 169,907,570.71
REETRELERT CHINA NATIONAL ELECTRIC
EQUIPMENT CORPORATION
(REEIREEDHA) 220,181,426.60 137 80,434,385.37

A Total 1,358,770,538.62 8.47 479,389,210.47

N
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oA BBREERBER

(&)

(H) EMANKE

1-

Notes to the 203@? fir;ancial Statements (continued)
GASFRIERAA -

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(5) ADVANCES PAID

FE S E IR R S 1. Advances paid by age
BARBE FMHE
Closing balance Opening balance
R Age WRESE A% BRESRE Ll (%)
Remaining carrying Remaining carrying

amount ratio(%) amount ratio(%)
TEHR Within 1 year 3,988,138,375.30 73.66 3,817,811,406.50 81.97
122F 1-2 years 937,870,811.57 17.32 464,194,846.08 9.97
VEXE:S 2-3 years 244,641,455.98 452 124,586,422.31 2.68
3ENUL Over 3 years 243,267,009.98 450 250,748,280.54 5.38
EH Total 5,413,917,652.83 100.00 4,657,340,955.43 100.00

FRiEEE—FASBEERNE
FRER

Significant Advances paid aged over 1 year:

BREN BREN BARGE ik REEHER
Creditor Debtor Closing balance Age Reason for outstanding
BRRETREBERELAR HBAZZRF 310,485,834.63 128 2-3% . EEFABREAEE

Harbin Turbine Company
Limited
MEESREEIEERAR

Mitsubishi, Japan

FOSTER WHEELER ENERGY

SENE

1-2 years, 2-3 years, Not settled during

Over 3 years

92,291,817.72

MANAGEMENT (SHANGHAI)

COMPANY LIMITED
Harbin Electric International FOSTER WHEELER ENERGY
Company Limited MANAGEMENT(SHANGHAI)
COMPANY LIMITED

MELE(Z28)ENEES 7 Sandvik Materials Technology

Harbin Electric Corporation
(QHD) Heavy Equipment Sweden

Company Limited

Sandvik Materials Technology,

91,222,882.84

production progress
12F ARANGT  WAKE

1-2 years Contract under
performance, to be
settled

1-2% 1 2-3F ARRHIRE  WALE

1-2 years, 2-3 years Contract under

performance, to be
settled



oA BBREERBER V.

(&)

“O—EFEMBEHRRME @

(H) BANREGE)

1-

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(5) ADVANCES PAID (continued)

FE 7B ERE S T () 1.  Advances paid by age (continued)

BREN BREN HREE Bk AEENEE

Creditor Debtor Closing balance Age Reason for outstanding
MRESRINEEERAE  Anditz AG 89,341,956.81 126 ARKHTT  HREE
Harbin Electric Power Andritz AG 1-2 years Contract under

Equipment Company Limited

RELE(RER)ERNEESR
R

Harbin Electric Corporation
(QHD) Heavy Equipment
Company Limited

RREREREREERA

Harbin Boiler Company Limited

RRETRERERELEAR
Harbin Turbine Company
Limited

RREESREEIEERAR
Harbin Electric International
Company Limited

RREERRNDBRAT
Harbin Electric Company
Limited

RREERBEEIRERAA
Harbin Electric International
Company Limited

Valinox Nucleaire

Valinox Nucleaire

MM BB RREERAR
Hangzhou Guanghan Energy
Technology Co., Ltd.

BB RIFR AR

Greeleyville Energy Research
Company( IR MERELRHEA
al

MBS - NERRAT

Henan No.1 Thermal Power
Construction Company

REERREERAR
China Power Equipment Co., Ltd.
(PRI RERRAR)

HLEERRMERNDBRAF

Zhejiang Feida Environmental
Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd.

43,371,520.98

27,800,000.00

16,909,756.20

16,130,218.05

13,730,000.00

13,560,000.00

performance, to be
settled

1-2%F:2-3% £&F

1-2 years, 2-3 years

1-24F

1-2 years

1246

1-2 years

BENE

Over 5 years

SENE

Over 3 years

455
4-5 years

Contract under
performance, to be
settled

BRRNTT  BALE

Contract under
performance, to be
settled

BRRRITT - WAL

Contract under
performance, to be
settled

BRRIIT - WAKE

Contract under
performance, to be
settled

BRRNTT  BALE

Contract under
performance, to be
settled

BRRRTT - WAL

Contract under
performance, to be
settled

213
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

(H) BANREGE)

1-

BRI 5 ()

BREEN
Creditor

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(5)

ERER

Debtor

ADVANCES PAID (continued)

Advances paid by age (continued)

MREBE

Closing balance

R
Age

REHENRE

Reason for outstanding

RREERBEREELA
Harbin Electrical Machinery
Company Limited

RREEHBERELAA
Harbin Electrical Machinery
Company Limited

KEREREEREELR

Harbin Electrical Machinery
Company Limited

BEERESEUMHAERAR
Harbin HE Shaped Materials Co.,
Lid.(REREREMNHERD

Al

EREKNENDARAHER
Guangdong Hydropower Planning

& Design Institute

PKRILERRA AR EREE

N

China Water Northeastern
Investigation, Design &
Research Co., Ltd.

Total

12,732,038.46

12,000,000.00

11,634,404.00

751,210,429.69

126 2-3F
1-2 years, 2-3 years

1246

1-2 years

1-2%F

1-2 years

BRRNTT  BALE

Contract under
performance, to be
settled

BRRAIT  WAEE

Contract under
performance, to be
settled

BRRIIT - WAKE

Contract under
performance, to be
settled
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER

(&)
(H) BANREGE)

2. RANHREELH KGR

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(5) ADVANCES PAID (continued)

2. Advances paid with top 5 balances at the end of

AENAMNFIER the period classified by receivers
IERMR
HAREAEE
SEENEE Receivers of advances BARERER EET LA
Attributed
shares in
aggregate
Closing closing
balance balance
AA=Z2R7 Mitsubishi, Japan 410,021,881.82 7.57
GE Energy Products France SNC GE Energy Products France SNC 246,571,936.87 4.55
FOSTER WHEELER ENERGY  FOSTER WHEELER ENERGY

MANAGEMENT (SHANGHAI) ~ MANAGEMENT(SHANGHAI)

COMPANY LIMITED COMPANY LIMITED 198,875,490.00 3.67
Andritz AG 184,826,444.19 3.41
Curtiss-Wright Electro Curtiss-Wright Electro Mechanical

Mechanical Corporation(EMD)  Corporation(EMD) 160,821,703.52 2.97

1,201,117,456.40 22.17

N
—
ol

610z Hoday jenuuy palwi Auedwo?) 011108|3 ulgieH



216

EEEY

ENANERUR

B GL0Z

—O—EFEMBEHRRMET @

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(&)

(R) BRFE

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(6) Interests receivable

HiREREE FYR5E
HE Items Closing balance Opening balance
TE BT R Term deposits 22,206,412.56 2,006,436.33
LEER Entrusted Loans 280,408.33
HAh, Others 359,044.93
&t Total 22,486,820.89 2,365,481.26

(£) FEWAF (7) Dividends receivable

HiREREE FYp5E

HR (RFREHN) Items(or Investees) Closing balance Opening balance

MERBRNEMERZEEREME

NGl
MEERRBES S TREAREE
A

MEETEEEETERRAT

Harbin Dongli Property Development Co.,

Lid.("BRBER N EHEREERETAT) 144,453.39 144,453.39
Harbin Boiler & Container Company Limited

RERRRERSTIEEREERR - 720,000.00
The Harbin Xinrun Industrial Co., Ltd.("5

BETMEBRBEIEERAR) - 51,408.42
Total 144,453.39 915,861.81
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

S EREREEEHGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

(&) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(N) HibEwzk (8) OTHER RECEIVABLES 217
1 HBMEKSSERE: 1. Disclosure of other receivables classified by type:
BRnE 88
Closing balance Opening balance
B3 Type RESE RER EESE gRER
Remaining carrying amount Provision for bad debt Remaining carrying amount Provision for bad debt

] $AI (%) &8 A% RARE &8 BB (%) &8 ST (%) FARE
Amount ratio%) Amount  Provided ratio(%)  Carrying Value Amount ratio(%) Amount  Provided ratio(%) ~ Carrying Value

ERSBEATEBREE  Otherreceivables which are
FERnEpRIG ndvidually signiicant and
provided for bad debt separately 385,233,233.65 4899 13,995,000.00 363 37123823365 69987797398 5948 13,995,000.00 200 6858629739
RERBBETAAEE  Other receivables provided for bad
FEBHL BRI debt by credit isk
characteristics 219,365,726.24 2789 159,380,221.07 7266 5997550617 27512490479 238 17661498425 6419 98509,92054
ERGEREARESHE  Otherreceivables which are
pia bt d e individually not significant but

610z Hoday jenuuy palwi Auedwo?) 011108|3 ulgieH

oo for b bt separtely  181,835564.28 B 18401872 667 1693615505 20188161215 7 12898615 630 16878905061
A3 Tod TB642E17 /188U /GOS8 11766908 / HBENHETY / BIEI¥E0
HiI KB IES%EE AW B EHE Other receivables which are individually significant
IR E fh FE U R and provided for bad debt separately
HREE
Balance at the end of the period
BRI (REf) Other receivables(By Unit) e D6 BRER  TRIACH FRER
Other  Provision for Provided
receivables bad debt ratio(%)  Reasons for provision
i DER Refunded export tax receivables 139,752,701.49 - TR DR
Refunded export tax receivables
ElE bR Other tax receivables 71,036,526.15 - FliRiEH
Refunded tax receivables
REEREEEREERA HEC Industrial Development 64,076,258.38 - LE g
Company (RREREEZFEELT) No provisions for related parties
WEERAEEREERA Hrbin Boiler Industrial Company 56,544,192.72 - BBRTaHE
(RRERAERRELLA) No provisions for related parties
BEUKFIKESNTERERAR  Sinohydro Bureau§ Co, Ltd 23438893.03 - BAF
Advances
BRERY Receivables from WanDan Project 17,389,661.90 - BN
Advances
B RR AR AR Dagjng Refiau Energy Technology 13,995,000.00 13,995,000 00 EE4E
Limited AR RN EER AT imecoverable

aif Total 385,233,23365  13,995,000.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(&)
(N) Htbrewok (&)
1 RERHSEHRE: (&)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(8) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

1. Disclosure of other receivables classified by type:

(continued)

BHESETEXREEBRE
AR H (b B R

RbENE (REf) Other receivables(By Unit) e SRER
Other  Provision for

receivables had deht

Other receivables which are individually not
significant but provided for bad debt separately:

HRGE
Closing balance

PRLA  HEE

Provided ratio  Reasons for provision

Monigs including deposits and guarantee monies ~ 53,146,809.29 —

ERg Reserves 79,550,529.49 -
BREEREE Key projects for high-temperature reactors 9,900,153.43 -
EHEREENT Jiin Power Company (& =EE L) 773056853 -
E-REBAES TS EEER Demonstration series of the third generation of 5,270,051.92 -
NIBZSEERTEEAZE  key component for the processing tube plate of

the nuclear power steam generator (5 =K%

EBRTIN A A RERERNIAZIID

BEATEERSE)
AEEIRZEREIAT Daging Longjiang wind-powered Company 392000000 3,920,000.00

Limited (REREIEEARELLT)

RER - AETR

No provisions for guarantee
monies and deposits

BReTE

No provisions for reserves

BUEVE s UCEEY
JERREE
Capital for technology
development project to be
written-off with payables of
the project after delivery

- BfR
Advances
— HRZEESRRUKEZEE

Bl

Capital for technology
development project to be
written-off with payables of
the project after delivery

10000 EzkE
irrecoverable
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(&)

(N) Htbrewok (&)

1 RERHSEHRE: (&)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(8) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)

1. Disclosure of other receivables classified by type:
(continued)

HRGE
Closing balance
EfbEWs: (REf) Other receivables(By Unit) BN BRER SREE HEER
Other  Provision for
receivables baddebt  Provided ratio  Reasons for provision
BLERLE Hubei Electric Power Construction Company 3610,710.05 - Bis
(MrERRA) Advances
KARSREMERNEARHDE  Jamusi Electic Machine Co, Ltd 3,000,000.00 - BRI MAHREE
No bad debt provisions made
for related parties
hREZHEEREENT Harbin Sanlian Industrial Development Company 2,000,000.00 BB A HREE
Limited (AE=HEZHLELA) No bad debt provisions made
for related parties
EL M) ING Heilongjiang Power Corporation (ZFETTFAR)  1430,084.36 - BH
Advances
RTeHELIEERAT Shenzhen Harbin Power Huihua Trading Company ~ 1,351,93000  1,351,930.00 el
Limited (RHITREEE TRFRAT) iecoverable
Ef Others 1092472721 7212,08372 66.02
ait Total 18183556428 12,484,013.72

N
—
[de]
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER

(&)

(N) Htbrewok (&)

1-

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(8) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
BHibER 7 EHE : (F) 1.  Disclosure of other receivables classified by type:
(continued)
HED - BRSO NIATIRE In the portfolio, other receivables provided for bad
BREERE U R debt according to aging analysis are as follows:
HRBE EN6%E
Closing balance Opening balance
B Age Al BRER R Aol BRER FHRILA
Other  Provision for bad Other  Provision for bad
receivables debt  Provided ratio receivables debt  Provided ratio
1EHR Within 1 year 46,974,288.14 2,335,075.61 497 82,669,159.65 4,090,558.78 495
1528 1-2years 8,254,574.11 2,061,174.53 2497 7,406,326.54 1,842,212.68 2487
1E3E 2-3years 6,322,509.59 3,161,254.80 50.00 9,151,051.43 4,575,525.72 50.00
3R4E 3dyears 8,436,789.86 6,749,431.88 80.00 42,950,804.06 34,360,643.25 80.00
4Z5F 4-byears 2147140142 1717712114 80.00 6,007,596.45 4,806,077.16 80.00
BELLE Qver 5 years 127,896,163.12  127,896,163.11 100.00  126,939,966.66  126,939,966.66 100.00
At Total 219,365,726.24  159,380,221.07 275,124904.79  176,614,984.25

R aT 12 - HBIE 2 WK O] R AR
P

NEBHREERER2
%5-17,515,798.68 7T °

FRIE PR %35 B9 B o E W 115
x

HHE

Item

2. Provision, return and recovery of bad debts in

this period

Provision for bad debts of RMB-17,515,798.68 was
made in this period.

3. Other receivables effectively verified in this

period

SR8

Verified Amount

B IRAZ 8 A HoAd B R

Other receivables effectively verified 127,512.32
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

N
N
—

S EREREEEHGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(N) HibpEWzk(8) (8) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
4 EHMEKSZHSEMESEE 4. Other receivables classified by nature
P
BRERTE B8R EE FHEREERE
Carrying Carrying
amount amount
at the end of in the beginning
REME Nature of receivables the period of the year

e RESF

CTES
AR
RBHR
Rt

Monies including deposits and
guarantee monies

Reserves

Current account balance

Advances offered

Others

Total

53,146,809.29
79,550,529.49
520,297,261.30
40,842,712.93
92,587,211.16

27,765,164.08
103,473,288.79
433,323,449.52
396,5627,5681.10
215,595,007.43

786,424,524.17 1,176,684,490.92
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

S EREREEEHGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(&) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
() EfEWER (&) (8) OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued)
5. BIRFHEENRKRGHEIR 5. Other receivables with top 5 balances at the end
BHHEMEKRS SR of the period classified by borrowers
EEbENE
b3S CHE BRER
HEkE HREE 5@ BB %) HRGE
BR4E Name of Unit Attributed shares in
total balance of
other receivableat  Remaining balance
Nature of the end of the of Bad debt
receivables Closing balance Age period(%) provision
RABREEZMEE  HEC Industial Development R 64,076,258.36 1BA - 128+ 23 815
AF Company (RBEREEE  Cuent account FopEhE
REEAT) balance Within 1 year, 1-2
years, 2-3 years, over
5years
RERRAZTEREE  Harbin Boller Industria s 56,504,192.72 1R 706
N Company (' EERHAEE  Curentaccount Within 1 year
REERT) balance
REKAKEENIRR ShohydroBueau8Co, Lt BHF 2343889303 1EMA12F 298 -
BRAR Advances Within 1 year, 1-2
years
AERIT#EMTER  Daging Rehau Energy B 13,995,000.00 12% 178 13,995,000.00
2l Technology Limited (A% Current account 12 years
FRRMEERAT) balance
ESE RN Xinhua Control Engineering T 9,238,960.00 BENE 117 9,238,960.00
Company(FiZ 4 T12A7])  Current account QOver 5 years

balance

At Total / 46,672,853.03 / 593 23,233,960.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

AU BERREREBEE

(&)
(h) #E

1

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(9) INVENTORIES
FESHE 1. Inventories by category
HRGE EgE
Closing balance Opening balance
BEHE HEER HEEE BERE KEER KERE
ER ltems Remaining Provision for Remaining Provision for
carrying amount depreciation  Carrying value  carrying amount depreciation Carrying value
UL Raw materials 3517,056,503.65  176,783,779.10  3,340,272,72455 4,082,936,788.18  244,524,567.69  3,838,412,220.49
kER Products under production 10,380,904,737.62  340,936,434.65 10,039,968,302.97 11,568,732,166.01  397,652.919.57 11,171,079,246.44
ERER Inventory 52541044760  107,47540839 41793503921 47169346734 27,099,71446  444,593,752.88
FENH (2% BES  Ciculating materialslincluding
#ms) wrapping materials and
consumables of low values) 14,581,771.29 - 1458177129 17,140,786.92 17,140,786.92
TEBET(ERIAEER)  Construction completed but
unsettled) 171027174342 3126477921 1,679,006964.21 131375290305 4978520437 1,263 967,698.68
aif Total 16,148,225,20958  656,460,401.35 15491,764,808.23 17,454,256,111.50  719,062,406.09 16,735,193,705.41
EEMEERE 2. Provision for inventory depreciation
AHEMEE AERSEE
Increment in this period Reduction in this period
968 FiE it EngEs -0 HRBE
R [tems Opening balance Provided Others Provided Others ~ Closing balance
FRitEt Raw materials 172,91086000 1437081048 - 1049769138 - 17678377910
kEm Products under production 397,662,91957  138579,803.98 - 195296298390 - 34093643465
ERAR Inventory 9871362215 19,845,069.66 - 11,083,28342 - 10747540839
FEH(a%n- Circulating materalslincluding
EEAERS) wrapping materials and
consumables of low values) - - - - - -
TiEKT Construction (completed but
(BRIREEN unsettled) 4978500437 22,07141131 - 4059183647 - 3126477921
At Total 719,062,406.09  194,867,095.43 - 257469,100.17 - 656460,401.35

223
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

Hitt RS &EE

1HH

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(10) OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Items

HREREE

Closing balance

FUERE

Opening balance

AHHESREE
SRITIE R
BREEMER
BHIRENEEES
HAit

Available-for-sale financial assets
Entrusted loans

Bank financial products

Enterprise Income Tax paid in advance
Monetary Capital restricted in short term
Others

1,350,000,000.00
210,000,000.00
1,450,000,000.00
57,294,659.76

3,837.30

210,000,000.00
100,000,000.00
22,189,476.31
1,040,000.00
1,715.94

&t Total 3,067,298,497.06  333,231,192.25
BRETERRB&T (11) GRANT OF ENTRUSTED LOANS AND ADVANCES
1 BEHABZIBEAFLES# 1.  Loans and advances by individuals and
185 corporates
HREARE FYEREE
A Items Closing balance Opening balance
EANEFRAE Personal loans and advances - -
—EAFR — Credit cards -
— EEEH — Pledge of residential properties -
— E — Others -
EEREAK Corporate loans and advances - 20,000,000.00
— B — Loans - 20,000,000.00
— BhR — Discount -
— E — Others -
B R B Total loans and advances - 20,000,000.00

o BERIRKRER

Hep @ FIRGHEH

MAFHRE

BB REEE

Less: Provisions for loss of loans
Including:

item

Provision for group of

items
Carrying values of loans and advances

Provision for separate

450,000.00

450,000.00
19,550,000.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(%) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(1-) BHREAERRBR(E) (11) GRANT OF ENTRUSTED LOANS AND ADVANCES
(continued)
2. BRHABMZITESHELR 2. Loans and advances by industries
HABE EE 1 (%) F8E L1 (%)
Closing Opening
%01 ltems balance Ratio(%) balance Ratio(%)
BIE - B% Agriculture and fishery -
R Mining -
FHEZE Real property -
BEE Construction -
SRRRE Financial Insurance -
ECUESES Other industries - 20,000,000.00 100.00
ERMBTEE Total loans and advances - 20,000,000.00 100.00
W BRIBARE Less: Provisions for loss of loans - 450,000.00 2.25
Het: BIHGHRY Including: Provision for
separate item -
BEERY Provision for

group of

items - 450,000.00 2.25
ERRSTERER Carrying values of loans and

advances - - 19,550,000.00 97.75

N
N
ol
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

AU BERREREBEE V.

(&)

(t-) BBREXERRBR(E)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(11) GRANT OF ENTRUSTED LOANS AND ADVANCES

(continued)
3 BRABIEHESMHIER 3. Loans and advances by geographical locations
BRGBE EE 1 (%) FOHE L1 (%)
Closing Opening
B2 Geographical locations balance Ratio(%) balance Ratio(%)
EfE South China -
ERE North China -
Hipe Other regions - 20,000,000.00 100.00
ERMBTEE Total loans and advances - 20,000,000.00 100.00
W BRIBARE Less: Provisions for loss of loans - 450,000.00 2.25
Het: BIHGHRY Including: Provision for
separate item -
BEERY Provision for
group of
items - 450,000.00 2.25
ERRSTERER Carrying values of loans and
advances - 19,550,000.00



“O—EFEMBEHRRME @

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(&)

(t-) BBREXERRBR(E)

4 EBEHNBHRERLADMIE

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(11) GRANT OF ENTRUSTED LOANS AND ADVANCES

(continued)

4. Loans and advances by ways of securing

x
EARERER FERE
HE Items Closing Opening
balance balance
ERER unsecured loan - 20,000,000.00
REBEERK Guaranteed loans -
MHERME R Loans with collaterals -
Hr i EER Including: secured loans -
BHRER Margin lending -
BB TR Total loans and advances - 20,000,000.00
B BREREE Less: Provisions for loss of loans - 450,000.00
Hrp - BEIEFHRE Including:  Provision for separate
item -
HEFHRE Provision for group of
items - 450,000.00
BERMBSRERAEE Carrying values of loans and advances - 19,550,000.00

227
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

f A BERREEZTEAIRE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
() FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(+-) BRETERRBR(4) (11) GRANT OF ENTRUSTED LOANS AND ADVANCES

228
(continued)

% 5 ENEXEE 5. Provision for loss of loans
e AE4H re
tg:é Amount of this year Amount of previous year
a Eh @8a 815 @A
E‘)” EH Items Separate item group  Separate item group
S
o FBE Opening balance - 5,648,012.18 584,279.66
il REEIE Provision for this year - - -134,279.66
= AFES Transfer of this year - -
REZH Verified this year - -
AFEE Transfer back of this year - 5648,012.18
— EREEEFMET  — Transfer back due to recovery
BHME of eliminated loans and
advances - 5,648,012.18
— BYMBFANEEE  — Transfer back of loans and
g ER advances due to increase in
discounted value - -
—EtRAZRBHAER  — Transfer back due to other
factors - -
LN Closing balance - - - 450,000.00
(12) AMtHESRMERE (12) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS
1 OHRHESHEERT 1. Available-for-sale financial assets
BABE g
Closing balance Opening balance
REHE REXR 3 EmkE REER AR
Remaining Provision for Remaining Provision for
R Items carrying amount impairment  Carrying Value  carrying amount impairment — Carrying Value
AHERRTA Available-for-sale equity instrument 47,291,000.00 4,000,000.00  43,291,000.00 33,441,000.00 2,150,000.00 31,291,000.00
HfZDAEEFE  Which measured at fair value - - -
RAHE Measured at cost 47,291,000.00 4,000,000.00  43,291,000.00 33,441,000.00 2,150,000.00 31,291,000.00

At Total 47,291,000.00 4,000,000.00  43291,000.00  33441,000.00 2,150,000.00 31,291,000.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREEEBIE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(1) At ELRERE (&) (12) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
2 HIXBREAFENITHRLEES 2. Auvailable-for-sale financial assets measured at
mEE cost at the end of the period
FEHE HEER ERRERM
Balance Provision for impairment BRILBIC)
£ AN .y 0 23 £ eyl AHRD #%  Sharcholding AHELLA
Beginning of  Incrementin  Reductionin ~ Endofthe Beginningof Incrementin  Reductionin  End of the ratioin Cash bonus of
HREEN Investees theyear  thisperiod this period period theyear thisperiod this period period investee (%) this period
PEBAENRTREMITER  China Power Joint Heavy Gas Turbine
A Technology Co., Ltd (FEBAERMRS
BEGERLR) - 12,000,000.00 - 12,000,000.00 - 12.00
IEIERHERAR Shenyang Water Pump Co, Ltd. [E5 /KRB
HERA) 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00  2,000,000.00  2,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 109
EHBE(EE)ETHLARKEA  Yunnan Zaifeng(Group) Chengjiang Red Stone
RAR Hydropwer Co,, Ltd(ERIBE (£8)&T
TREKEARAR) 17,696,000.00 17,696,000.00 - 120 238737854
SETHAREFLELEER  Helongjang Xintian HE New Energy
AR Investment Co, Ltd.( BT AR Bz
RREERAA) 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 - 113
SHTHRETROABLE  Helongjang Mingjia Touping Co., Ltd(ZET
HEATRAOERAT) 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00 - 10.53
FRE=HBNTEERRT  Bejing Three Dimentional Power Construction
Co, Ld KR2=EBHIRERAR 400,000.00 400,000.00 - 262
KREETBERATEERAT  Harbin Xinrun Casting Industrial Co,, Ltd (FAT
ETERRETZARAN) 695,000.00 695,000.00 - 632
KEBSNRBMAABALRLF  Harbin Power Equipment Logistics Company
Limited (4R XENRBMAERAERF) 100000000 1,000,000.00 310
RB=HEERLERAT Tongxiang Danlya Light Alloy Co,, Lid. ({45 =
fZE4a4ERAR) 150,000.00 150,000.00 - 150,000.00 150,000.00 - 15.00
FREFMABRARTNEAE  Bejjng Huaging Combustiole Gas Turbine and
RIBRHARAR Coal Gas Joint Loop Engineering
Technology Ltd St RE MR HERER
EARBIRRIERAR) 5,500,000.00 5,500,000.00 - 1549

At Total 33,441,00000 14,00000000 15000000 47,291,00000  2,150,000.00  2,000,000.00  150,000.00 ~ 4,00,000.00 | 238731854
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
() FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
230 (1) At ELRERE (&) (12) AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)
5 3 ZXEUEHESHEERER 3.  Change in impairment of available-for-sale
% ZEIER financial assets in the period
% AHHE AHEE
tf;? BETA EBIR &t
E available-for- available-for-
% Types of available-for-sale sale equity sale debt
N AHHESREESE financial assets instrument instrument Total
S
o
ﬁ FEVEARERESSE Impairment amount provided in the
beginning of the year 2,150,000.00 2,150,000.00
RERETIR Provision in the period 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00
Hep: R EAMGRANE Including: transfer from other
gA consolidated income - -
ZNER R D Decrease in the period 150,000.00 150,000.00
Hep: B AR {EAER Including: transfer back when fair
FEEQ value rose after the period /
R RRERSE Impairment amount provided at the

end of the period 4,000,000.00 4,000,000.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(&)

(t2) REEERXK

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(13) LONG TERM RECEIVABLES

BRHE FI4E
Closing balance Opening balance

BRERE BRER FEEE BESRE SHRER FEEE

Remaining FREEH

carrying  Provision for Remaining Provision for bad Range of

BB Items amount bad debt ~ Carrying Value carrying amount debt  Carrying Value ~ discount rate
BETER Finance lease payment - - - _
2o REFRANG Including: unrealised gains from financing - - - .
ARNGHERR Installments from sales of goods - - - -
ARG Installments from labouring - - - -
it Others 18,000,000.00 - 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00
Bt Total 18,000,000.00 - 18,000,000.00 18,000,000.00 - 18,000,000.00

RHRBFREARABFARMEESR
RENEHBERDBARREBUEE
BERARETEEEESERLHER
B REXNOEHARERESR

Long term receivables are guarantee monies for long
term financing paid to Harbin Electric Power
Equipment Company Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company, by CMB Financial Leasing(#B$f & @ &
A R 2 7l for financing in sales and leaseback of
fixed assets.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SEE

IR ARKETT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

REIRERE (14) LONG TERM EQUITY INVESTMENT
AEHE E
BERE RERA FIBE ot 4] ERBE BRUBICH) RABHLA(N FRREER REER REMR
Provision for  Provision for
impairmentat  impairment
Method of Cost of Opening Balance atthe  Shareholding ~ Voting right the end of the  provided this  Cash bonus in
HREEN Investee verification investment balance Changes end of the year ratio (%) ratio(%) year year the year
it Totel - 9177145918 245,768965.78  -9,637,541.40 236,131,424.38 3,000,000.00 - 1731991959
- HILARE 1. Investment in subsidiaries
RIMRHELTEARAA Shenzhen Harbin Power Huihua Trading Company A7
Limited [ RYTRBELTEERLT) Costmethod ~ 3,000,000.00  3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 60.00 60.00 3,000,000.00
. Hﬁ%ﬁ% 2. Associates -
BEER—RBNERRK(ZES)BR General Electric — Harbin Power Services
27 (Qinhuangdaol Company Limited (BEER — &%
RENEARKZ28)ERAF) Equity method 17,739,800.00 129,965,98667  1,098.675.21 131,064,661.88 4.0 4.0 14,378,159.00
RERREIEKERENRGELER  Harbin HE Liing Hydropower Equipment New
A7 Technology Development Co, Lid (ABIEREY  #&4
FRERBTRIEREARLA) Equitymethod ~ 4,200,000.00  6,046,001.53 5379310  5,992,20843 50.00 50.00 500,000.00
ZEIRESHAEREARELLA  Helongjang Harbin Hydropower Development
Company Limited (BETAESHKERLER HEA
EER) Equitymethod ~ 2480,000.00  4,632,753.58 145,459.02 477821260 47.75 4775
BEETREMESERAR Harbin HE Petrol Station Co., Lt (AEETMREMA BE%E
SRR Equitymethod  1,000,000.00  1,220,033.99 1955200 1,239,585.99 50.00 5000 30,000.00
HESROKEANBRERLA Huludao Binhai Hydro Power Company Limited (4 #%7%
BEGKEAFEREMLR) Equitymethod  53501,659.18  54,908,178.60 -2,627,531.51  52,280,647.09 5000 50.00
SETHFRRTHLERABRAA  Helongjang Xintian HE New Energy \nvestmem Co, ik
L (ERTHRRBHAREERAA Equity method 2,000,000 2,000,00000  -2,000,000.00 -
RERERENIRARAA Harbin Huitong Power Engineering Companv Limited &%
(AABEASNIRARLA) Equiymethod 335000000 523834681 36485542 560320223 3350 350 1,691,760.59
KEBAREEASTRERELLR  Harbin Boiler & Container Company Limited (WEE  #2%
LRARABIRERERAR) Equitymethod ~ 4,500,000.00 38,757,664.60 -6,584,758.44  32,172,906.16 3000 3000 720,000.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

S EREREEEHGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(&) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(t1) REHEME (15) INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
BHAKAGTEEREMEHE Investment properties measured by cost
EE - EEY T fE A HEIR &t
Housing and Construction in
R Items buildings Land use rights progress Total
1. RERE 1. Original carrying value -
(1) F98E (1) Opening balance 40,621,532.59 - - 40,621,532.59
(2) AEEMEE (2) Increase in the period - - - -
— HME — acquired - - - -
—FE\ETEEVE — inventory/fixed assets/
BIREA transfer from
construction in progress - - - -
—REAGHEM — increase in mergers of
corporates - - - -
Q) AHR EE (3) Decrease in the period - - - -
—RE — Disposal - - - -
(4) BRHE (4) Closing balance 40,621,532.59 - - 40,621,532.59
2. BEMTERMZFr#H 2. Accumulated depreciation and
accumulated amortisation
() ENnE (1) Opening balance 18,920,200.65 - - 18,920,200.65
2) FEEMEE (2) Increase in the period 1,256,349.38 1,256,349.38
—atiegiE s — provision or amortization 1,256,349.38 - - 1,256,349.38
Q) AEE EE (3) Decrease in the period - - - -
—RE — Disposal - - - -
(4) HRHE (4) Closing balance 20,176,550.03 - - 20,176,550.03
3. AEEE 3. Provision for impairment
) FNnE (1) Opening balance - - - -
2) AEEmeE (2) Increase in the period - - - -
—iR — Provision - - - -
Q) AER EE (3) Decrease in the period - - - -
—RE — Disposal - - - -
(4) BRBE (4) Closing balance - - - -
4, HEEE 4. Carrying Value -
(1) BREEER (1) Carrying value at the end of
the period 20,444,982.56 - - 20,444,982.56

(2) FOREER

(2) Carrying value in the
beginning of the year 21,701,331.94 - -

21,701,331.94
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(16) FIXED ASSETS

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

1 BEEEERL 1. Status of fixed assets
EEREEN BER% BHIA R HOR% At
Housingand ~ Machinery and Electronic
5B Items buildings equipment  Motor vehicles equipment  Office facilities Total
1. RERE 1. Original carrying value -
(1) E5E (1) Opening balance 368581960331 691024939333 438850,712.04  541,136,845.01 25625044344 11,832,306,997.13
) TEENEE () Increase in the period 61695363391  198,359,628.91 18,160,679.17 4631751173 6,574,753.94  886,366,207.66
—BE —acquired 52,444,657 87 29,063,312.20 9,654,118.02 36,826,046.44 401907222 132,007,206.75
—ERIE — transfer from
EIN construction in
progress 564,508976.04  120,391,438.15 3,158,000.95 9,491,465.29 2,555,681.72  700,105,562.15
sl —increase in mergers of
#1 corporates - - - - - -
—%fh — Others - 48,904,878.56 5,348,560.20 - - 54,253 438.76
B REEIEE (3 Decrease in the period 16,493,892.87 45,225,437 87 73,676,779.42 13,961,405.86 2981790979 179,175,425.81
—RELRE — Disposal or retired 11,376,483.03 45,225,437 87 73676,779.42 4,196,247.60 1183951893 146,314,466.85
—Eft — Others 5117,409.84 - - 9,765,158.26 17,978,390.86 32,860,958.96
W BREE (4 Closing balance 428627934435 706338358437 38333461179 57349295088  233007,8759 12,539,497,77898
2 EiffE 2. Accumulated depreciation
() F8E (1) Opening halance 1,127,852,017.40  3960,196,125.01  311470262.34  341,643,666.94  171,17382691  5912,335,898.60
0 TEENEE {2 Increase in the period 12628857147 478,649,353.21 41,558,615.86 64,026,155.90 10,331,062.94  720,853,749.38
—itiR = Provision 126,288571.47  469,298,392.28 35,323,394.04 64,026,155.90 10,331,06294  705,267,566.63
—Eft — Others - 9,350,960.93 6,235,221.82 - - 15,586,182.75
B FEHIEE (3)  Decrease n the period 576143099 4389699306 5711496113 939953507 2168026463  137,853,193.88
—RESHE — Disposal or retired 5,195,606.64 43,896,993.06 56,720,702.35 5,062,146.52 1139371447 122,269,163.04
—%fh — Others 565,833.35 - 394,258.78 4,337,388.55 10,286,550.16 15,584,030.84
4 HRBE {4 Closing balance 124837914888  4,394,948485.16 29591391707  396,270,287.77  159,824,615.22  6,495,336,454.10
3 REEE 3. Provision for impairment
() E05E (1) Opening balance 751,795.25 19,143878.40 1,010,456 46 2462.93 - 20,908,593.04
) TEENEE () Increase in the period - - - - - -
—iR — Provision - - - - - -
—ift —Others - - - - - -
B TEEIEE (3)  Decrease n the period - - - - - -
—RELHE — Disposal or retired - - - - - -
—kfh —Others - - - - - -
W BREE (4 Closing balance 75179525 1914387840 1,010,456.46 246093 - 2090859304
4 EAEE 4. Carrying Value
() BREAEBE (1) Carying value at the end of the
period 3,037,148400.22  2,649,291,220.81 8641023826 177,220,200.18 73182,672.37  6,023,252,731.84
() EAIEAEE () Camying value in the beginning
of the year 2,557.215,790.66  2,930909,389.92 12636999324  199,490,715.14 85,076,616.63  5,899,062,505.49
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER V.

(&)

(t7) BEEEGE)

2

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(16) FIXED ASSETS (continued)

HAIEEEHEFEFHAYEZE 2. Fixed assets fully provided and continued to be
BE used at the end of the period
R1E 2FHTE BE
Accumulated

HE Items Original value impairment Net Value
FEEREEY Housing and buildings 219,351,892.74  213,159,729.39 6,192,163.35
HeERER A Machinery and equipment 2,240,064,718.17 2,173,217,397.21 66,847,320.96
BHTA Motor vehicles 152,672,576.24  148,070,451.38 4,602,124.86
BFRIE Electronic equipment 152,840,514.39  148,149,295.93 4,691,218.46
FIYNS3 Office equipment 133,976,799.85  130,183,009.62 3,793,790.23
&5t Total 2,898,906,501.39 2,812,779,883.53 86,126,617.86
BEREHEMRANEEEE 3. Fixed assets borrowed through finance leases
157

BERE RHE REER EEEE

Original ~ Accumulated Provision for
EH Items carrying value depreciation impairment  Carrying value
FEREY) Housing and buildings 73,371,587.71  14,231,968.77 - 59,139,618.94
ek Machinery and equipment 275,052,427.81  60,988,734.34 - 214,063,693.47
CHI Total 348,424,01552  75,220,703.11 - 273,203,312.41
AP EERENETEER 4. Fixed assets without property certificates
x

NEE D L E R EEE
BB FEREMRERE

s7¢
Az °

Hthar 8

R EWREMBEZIR
BB B E B EBR R
B (RTD)mE#RZEIRS
HBEE °

Certain land use rights and property ownership of the
Company were dealt separately. The properties were
not registered with property certificates.

5. Other explanatory information

For details of restricted fixed properties of which
ownership were charged and pledged, please refer
to note V. (62) Fixed assets with restricted

ownership.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

SHEEMHB/ARET)

S EREREEEHGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(&) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(tt) EEIRE (17) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS
1- HEBIERER 1.  Status of construction in progress
HRGE D88
Closing balance Opening balance
REHE REER KHEE RESHE REER HKHEE
Remaining Provision for Remaining Provision for

ER ltems carrying amount impairment  Carrying value ~ carrying amount impairment  Carrying value
REREAE HE International Trade Tower (R E

GRE) 48,986,059.67 48986,05967  17,783,12931 17,783,129.31
BYTIEER Key construction projects 46,887,447.31 4688744731 28,981,08457 28,981,08457
KOB-14-106E 34 Construction of Key Testing Station( E

S8) K06-14-106 30,950,475.69 - 30950475.69 -
ENENEE  BHAER  Properties and pier projects of

estuary((/§0) 20,986,772.00 - 2098677200 -
813-13-1-106 /1 26382/ 813-13-1-106 Zhenjiang 263 boring

machine (813-13-1-106126387%)  19,518,018.12 - 1951801812 -
DL MHEER Project of technology research base in

Jiangbei (T3t) 13,986,835.58 - 1398683558  431,126,714.20 431,126,714.20
HERH Nuclear power base 13572,282.15 1357228015 18)522,589.32 18,522,589.32
REARERD New integrated service centre 12,131,455.87 1213145587 12,083817.08 12,088,817.08
4050788 Project 4050140507 8 ) 11,080,316.07 - 11,080316.07 -
ERPER ERP Project 10,674,909.14 10,674909.14  10,674,909.14 10,674,909.14
pERRKIYE Upgrading nuclear power products 2,119,163.9 211916896 651804285 6,518,042.85
TLEDKBEERSE  Renovation and intelligent

fERILER informatisation system for office

building in Jiangbei and - - 58,214,086.11 58,214,086.11
“ETRETH Land for Factory No. 30( =5 /) - - 30389.307.00 30,389,307.00
LtES Dormitory in Jinagbei - - 13996,024.00 13,996,024.00
Eft7aR Other projects 158,360,362.07 3,008840.32  155351521.75  147,047,028.01 3,008840.32  144,038,187.69
aif Total 389,264,102.63 3,008840.32 38624526231  775,341,73159 3,008840.32  772,332,891.27
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
SEEMHBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(17) CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS (continued)

BEENERZIEEESEER 2.  Changes in key construction in progress
IEZiR
31N v 0 MEREL HSEAL  He KRS RS
REH FUBE  KEENEE  BegEeE HotH BRBE Bl IBEE giteg BA 48 RELEM) HERR
Ratio of
accumulated
contribution Accumulated Rate of
Amount transfer  Other decreased tothe amount of Including: ~ capitalisation of
Increase inthe to fixed assetsin  amount in the construction Progress of capitalised capitalised interest in the
ERAE Items Budget  Opening balance period the period period  Closing balance o budget construction interest amount if period(%]  Source of funding
KEREAE HE Interationa Trade Tower (K8 1259230000 17,783,12931  31,202930.36 - - dBB0067 388 389 441000000 234000000 BERTRRG
HERE) ERAFMR
Borrowings from
Harbin Electric
Company Limited
EYTRMER Key constucton proect 4 EHTHE 16340000000 2898108457 2196829628 408190254 B T T 1 B 1. BE 608758
WEE FET
Funding from the
state of
RMB146.70 million
and self
contribution of
36.70 millon
K0B-14-106Z 534 Construction of Key Testing 40,000,000.00 - 3095047569 - - 3095047569 738 3% e
=4 Station| B354 K06-14-106 Self contribution
HEORMEE B Propeties and pier projects of 22886000000 - 2098677200 - - 2098677200 917 917
EVE] estuaryl £i801) Self contribution
813-13-1-106 4T 81313106 Zhenjang 263b0rng  28.900,00000 - 1951801812 - - 195801812 6154 6754 E
BIER machine (813-13-1-106 11,263 Self contribution
#F)
HRELER Projectof technology researchbase. 59000000000 43112671420 10515430848 51869669710 359850000 1398683558 237 237 EE]
in Jiangoei (T3] Seff contribution
405058 Project 4050405088 ) HF0000000 54498 5627440 - 84816 108031607 2% 203% 1341816 BRER
Government grant
HEEER Noclear power base 7800000000 185228932 6424995 7871871 GAIAORTH 1367208215 17 i
Seff contribution
HEGARBRL New integrated service centre 1896000000 1208881708 46879 - - 1213145587 6398 6398 §
Seff contribution
ERPER 500000000 10674.909.14 - - - 0fMIN BN B! EE]
Seff contribution
Ef Others BOETR0814 04906 17930 TBATBTERIT 16047953108
Seff contribution
Al Total TG A6STIONT0  TOOI0GEEL15 18262986451  389754,10263 448341815 294000000
KB IEEETREREEEE 3. Impairment provision for construction in progress
P provided in the period
88 AEEM AEHY BRHE HRER
Increasein  Decrease in
R Items Opening balance the year theyear  Closing Balance  Reasons for provision
aif Totel 3,008,840.32 - - d008%40% HEREER
Unusable due to being idle
Vit Cutting machine( F1Z11%) 378,608.00 37860800 MEREHE
N N Unusable due to being idle
hETR Liquefied oxygen project RE 12 499,252.56 419925256 HEBEHEE
Unusable due to being idle
ATEHBIRAZS Testing system for Liushiwan 668,570.61 66857061 HERZEA
experiment stations(7~ T & B k# Unusable due to being idle
AZg)
BRAL
HEETUHELE Repair of machine base and positioned 54384313 54384313 HEEERA
. Ay o
dils( B R HEEE) Unusable due to being dle
Mt Dryers( iz 144,000.00 14400000 EEEZRA
Unusable due to being idle
ifr Others 774,566.02 7456602 REEEER

Unusable due to being idle
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(#8) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
238 (th) IEYE (18) CONSTRUCTION MATERIALS
5 HREA%E FHIAEE
%} EH Items Closing balance Opening balance
&
A
;E; TR Machinery and equipment for construction 835,204.92 835,204.92
ot
% A& Total 835,204.92 835,204.92

B GL0Z
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

(#8) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(th) BEFREE (19) Intangible assets
B iHERE B FEREN e 2 &t
R Items Non-patent
Software  Land use right Patent  technology  Concession Others Total
1. RERE 1. Original carrying value -
(1) ENBE (1) Opening halance 5212995512 714,460,18331  3454,375.00 253,743,367.08 170,832500.54  5,155,344.26 1,199,775,726.31
2 FHENLE {2 Increase in the period 13,197,337.14 4599147113 774000  1,643,657.52 - 73592.23  60,913,798.02
—EZ —acquired 1157736835 25,697,881.13 - 1,643,65752 - 73592.23  38992,499.23
— R — internal research and
development 1,619,968.79 - 7,740.00 - - - 1627,708.79
—REAHEN — Increase in mergers of
corporates - - - - - - -
—Hft —others - 20,293,590.00 - - - - 20,293590.00
B FHEILE (3)  Decrease n the period 5,068,799.12 - - - - - 5068799.12
—RE — Disposal 5,068,799.12 - - - - - 5068,799.12
—Hfh — Others - - - - - - -
) HRBE {4} Closing balance 60,258493.14  760,451,654.44 346211500 255,387,024.60 170,832,500.54  57228,936.49 1,255,620,724.21
2 EiER 2. Accumulated amortisation
N EN8E (1) Opening balance 201800170 20693423022 312068451 16032461107 SHR42767.14 444000013 45468031477
(2 FEENEE (2l Increase n the period 593154542 2170405689 32666312 1281477761 15428,245.44 4091674 56,246,205.22
—itiE — Provision 5931,545.42  21,704,056.89 326,663.12 1281477761  15428,245.44 40,916.74  56,246,205.22
—Hfh — Others - - - - - - -
B FEEILE (3)  Decrease n the period 3796326 10527020 - - - - 14323346
—RE — Disposal - - - - - - -
—Hft — Others 37,963.26 105,270.20 - - - - 143,233.46
) HRBE (4] Closing balance 2991158386 22853301691  3447347.63 173,139,388.68  71,271,01258  4,480936.87 510,783,286.53
3 HEEE 3. Provision for impaiment
(1) EN8E (1) Opening balance - - - 840251 - - 84051
(0 APENLE (2 Increase in the period - - - - - - -
—i — provision - - - - - - -
— &t —Others - - - - - - -
@) AHRIEE (3)  Decreasein the period - - - - - - -
—RE — Disposal - - - - - - -
—Hfh — Others - - - - - - -
) HRBE {4 Closing balance - - - 84051 - - 84051
4 BAEE 4. Camying value -
() BREEEE (1) Carying value at the end of
the period 30,346,909.28  531,918,637.53 14,767.37  73,845,124.21  99,561,487.96 74799962 736,434,925.97
2 FNFEEE () Carying value in the
beginning of the year 28,111,953.42  507,525,953.09 33369049  85,016,244.30 114,989,733.40 71532413 736,692,898.83

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

(&) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Z1) AR H (20) COST OF DEVELOPMENT
THHLER
ABENSE Decrease in the period
EO8E  AIMEXL BIAEVEE  HAEMER BIAEREE HAHE
Increase in the
period  Recognised as Included in
Opening  Cost of internal intangible  current profit  Recognised as Closing
ER ltems balance  development assets and loss fixed assets balance
ERZETHR —CPA1400 EHE Key Specific ProjectCPA1400 Research
YR(EH)STHERME  and manufacture of altemative
B materials for axis of covered electronic
pumplmachineryl EAZET
B-CPAOEEEDR (Bl B8
BRIHTR) 111,706,35021  74,159,153.46 - - 1394210030 171,923.403.37
AP1000 43I IRA 5157 % IEE Research on technology and local
Elt production of explosion valves of
AP1000 units (AP1000 A BB
WEREEL) 6,680,502.60 - - - - 6,880,500
600-1000MW 2255 A4 23 Introduction of key technology of
il SUE high-end valves| /5% 7 FY BB 54 for
600-1000MWultra-supercritical
generating unit 3,744,000.00 - - - - 3,744,000.00
HRER 003 ultra-supercritical 003( A HE.7.003) 1,692,307.72 - - - - 169230772
RRERTZATR2HHSRE Research and production of experimental
JEZBHAREBHRE  testand assess system for
% ultra-supercriical main steam safety
valves( BREEA 2 %2 M) and
research on testing techniques 25,178.63 - - - - 2517863
gt Software 1619,96879 161996879
i Others 101,276.76  7,950,644.90 7,74000 - 505174130 2992440.36
Bt 12394961592  83729767.15  1,627,708.79 - 1899384160  187,057,832.68
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

S EREREEEHGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(CH-REGHER (21) LONG-TERM EXPENSES TO BE AMORTISED

RS AHENEH rHRHCE AbEseE HRBE
Increase inthe  Amortisedinthe  Other decreased
ER ltems Opening balance period period amount  Closing balance
kBB Repair fee 251,937.54 58,118,675.22 7,024,893.96 - 51,345,718.80
LR Technical advisory services 300,000.00 - 300,000.00 - -
At Tota 56193754 58,118,676.02 7,304,893.98 - 5134571880
(CTD)EEFEHREENELMEHERE (22) DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED
INCOME TAX LIABILITIES
1 KREEHEHWELZFSHEE 1.  Deferred income tax assets not yet eliminated
BREGBE FMHRE
Closing balance Opening balance
AN R AEME R
EE BERBHEE ER2 BEMBHEAE
EH Items Deductible Deferred Deductible
temporary income tax temporary Deferred income
differences assets differences tax assets
ETEERELEE Provision for impairment of fixed
assets 20,897,245.54 3,134,586.83  20,897,245.54 3,134,586.83
HRTEREEE Provision for impairment of
construction in progress 3,008,840.32 451,326.05 3,008,840.32 451,326.05
B EERELEE Provision for impairment of
intangible assets 8,402,511.71 1,260,376.76 8,402,511.71 1,260,376.76
ZEREE Provision for bad debt 1,239,882,757.63 191,945,648.93 1,480,789,627.46 225,845,110.71
FEHRELEE Provision for depreciation of
inventories 147,283,617.02  22,092,542.55 148,479,903.75  22,412,859.73
SAEMEAEZHOEST Change in fair value of hedging
ENAREEED instruments included in other
consolidated equity 378,117,413.93  56,717,612.09 277,707,746.43  41,656,161.96
EHEE Estimated liabilities 331,674,509.10  49,751,176.36 310,303,014.89  46,545,452.23
BERTEA Termination benefits 56,596,237.81  8,489,435.69  55160,766.49  8274,114.97
CH Total 2,185,863,133.06 333,842,705.26 2,304,749,656.59 349,579,989.24

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEEASE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(&) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
242 (CH)EEREHEEMELHREHEE (22) DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS AND DEFERRED
(&) INCOME TAX LIABILITIES (continued)
o
% 2. KEREEFEHEEHRH 2. Breakdown of unrecognized deferred income tax
i
i .
X HAREREE FYIRRER
= EHA Items Closing balance Opening balance
=N
a
3
E)” AR ER Deductible temporary difference 5,524,119,977.91 4,448,286,770.44
N AEEE Deductible loss 3,382,824,299.36 3,140,530,985.85
o
&
ﬁ CE Total 8,906,944,277.27 7,588,817,756.29
3 REREEZFEHEZEENATHE 3. Deductible loss of unrecognized deferred income
HIEBHARU T EEZE tax assets due next year
HRERE FHERER Bix
F4 Year Closing balance Opening balance Notes
20154 2015 - 180,899,629.17
2016 F 2016 180,335,775.85  163,196,958.74
2017 F 2017 625,486,223.87 513,718,040.42
20184 2018 536,555,050.86 515,721,687.82
20194 2019 1,451,099,263.36 1,766,994,669.70
20204 2020 589,347,985.42

= Total 3,382,824,299.36 3,140,530,985.85
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(&)
(Zt=)
1 EHEHTE

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(23) SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

1. Type of short-term borrowings

HREAEE FIHREE
EHA Items Closing balance Opening balance
EIRER Pledged borrowings -
EIE K Secured borrowings 11,000,000.00 11,000,000.00
IRFEE K Guaranteed borrowings 519,488,000.00 520,115,000.00
EREXR Unsecured borrowings 2,647,905,476.92 1,949,776,833.35
A5 Total 3,178,393,476.92 2,480,891,833.35

2. BEHFER 2. Secured borrowings
BB EKFY
Balance of

BEREN Creditor borrowings Collaterals

PRER R IRTT IR BT

Chengdu Rural Commercial Bank

11,000,000.00 +iifEH#E F=E

Co.,Ltd(Xindu Taixing branch(#1#&Z=

Land use right,

F5717)) housing
A&t Total 11,000,000.00 -
3 (REEE 3. Guaranteed borrowings
BRERE ERA
Balance of
BREN Creditor borrowings Guarantor
HE# O ERTT The Export-Import Bank of China ~ 519,488,000.00 MH/AE&XNDBRA A

Total

519,488,000.00

Harbin Electric Company
Limited

243
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(24) Deposits received and interbank deposit

BREMEE FHERTE
HE Items Closing balance Opening balance
V& BATF R Demand deposit 1,317,495,761.33  482,491,213.85
Hep R Including: corporate 1,317,495,761.33  482,491,213.85
TEBITER Term Deposit 13,100,000.00  13,234,757.74
Hep o RF] Including: corporate 13,100,000.00  13,234,757.74
BAFER Call deposit 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
Hep R Including: corporate 300,000,000.00 300,000,000.00
IREH letter of guarantee 837,500.00 954,173.00
Hrp - QF] Including: corporate 837,500.00 954,173.00

Hibfrsk (BEHIET - EFFIEFN) Other deposits(including outward

remittance and remittances outstanding)

Total

CE Total 1,631,433,261.33  796,680,144.59
(ZtR)ENRE (25) Bills payable

BARERER FHEREE

pg] Type Closing balance Opening balance

SRITERNES Bank promissory notes 4,562,398,513.21 510,629,187.85

A EE Commercial promissory notes 491,039,222.34 3,652,265,297.85

5,053,437,735.55

4,162,894,485.70
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER V.

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(26) TRADE PAYABLES

1 EMEZSTR 1. List of trade payables
HREAEE FHIE
BERE| Items Closing balance ~ Opening balance
1F AR Within 1 year 9,717,159,710.65 11,388,767,473.57
1229 1-2 years 2,098,735,142.36  1,637,502,176.05
2E3F 2-3 years 624,274,436.20 536,953,447.97
3FE Over 3 years 597,774,338.88 507,974,355.98
= Total 13,037,943,628.09 14,071,197,453.57
2. FRBEB—FHEEZEMNES 2. Significant trade payables aged over 1 year
REER
HREAEE HENERERE
Reason for being
outstanding or
A Items Closing balance carried forward

TEIE - EREMRBN A F]

“EEREE

BRAF]

INNOVIA CONSULTANTS LTD INNOVIA CONSULTANTS LTD

BRZERMARAR

A B R T B IR A
BREEAT

Company

Equipment Maintenance Company
Limited (PR EEZERE H BILRE

China First Heavy Industries

State Nuclear Power Technology

&% Harbin Huagiang Electric Power

324,527,171.53 & RHITH
Contract under

performance

[5) BAVEERY (D China Erzhong Group(Deyang) Heavy  103,621,053.12 & R#ITH
Industries Co., Ltd.

Contract under
performance

77,923,200.00 AR#ITH
Contract under
performance

74,550,432.00 AR#ITH
Contract under
performance

59,323,298.23 AR#ITH
Contract under

performance

EEAEREEAR)

N
~
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER

(&)

(Z+A) A RRRR ()

2

RSB — FHEBREMNRA
(&)

BH

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(26) TRADE PAYABLES (continued)

2. Significant trade payables aged over 1 year

(continued)

HREREE

Items Closing balance

REES

FENREAE
Reason for being
outstanding or

carried forward

BB ERARAR

REM RSB ER QA

REEIRBEREER AR

MEDERTER MIAR AR

REREBMRREGERAF

MM E R BR AR

PEFERFESBMAER

27

RENHETEETBEEE
REEAR

Shanghai Heavy Machinery Plant Co.,  46,271,419.99

Ltd.

Dalian Marine Diesel Co., Ltd 42,989,274.50

Luoyang Sunrui Casting Titanium Co.,  26,455,906.88

Ltd.

Harbin Turbine Blade Processing 24,995,478.42
Company Limited (M E/EMR AEH
MITARAF)

Dalian Energas Gas-System Co., Ltd 24,306,450.45

Hunan Xiangtou Goldsky New 19,984,408.87

Materials Co., Ltd
Shanghai Yuyang Special Metal 17,898,768.75
Materials Co., Ltd.
Wuhan Steel Construction 16,033,137.00
Engineering Group Metal
Component Company Limited (& &
MERTEEeBEBEREER
Al)

EREITH
Contract under
performance
EREITH
Contract under
performance
aREITH
Contract under
performance
aREITH
Contract under
performance
aREITH
Contract under
performance
aREITH
Contract under
performance
aREITH
Contract under
performance

IR EERERE

RBBE R
The outstanding

amount is retention

monies within

retention period.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Z+R) EE{TERR(4B) (26) TRADE PAYABLES (continued)
2 KRBEB—FHNEEEMNEHN 2.  Significant trade payables aged over 1 year
(&) (continued)
REEDS
BRERE HENERER
Reason for being
outstanding or
HA Items Closing balance carried forward
BERIRNDERDA SEC Electric Machinery Co., Ltd. 11,814,519.64 A RH7TH
Contract under
performance
SRR TR (L/E)ABR  Kasion Tech Engineering (Shanghai) 11,694,000.00 FIRE&EAEIRE -
NE Company Limited (Slgg@EHE T2 RIBERE

LR ERE THMELESR

27

BB AREE AR

EHERRTRERBHAR

27

mitsubishi heavy industries
(ZZE&ET)

NSNSTRE S

1=

o

=

~

MR SWRAR

TREEEER

(E&8)BRAF)

Shenyang LiaoYE Heavy Machinery
Co., Ltd

Ansteel Heavy Machinery Co., Ltd.
Wouxi Huashen Thermal Power
Equipment Company Limited (£ 5

ERATRERERERAR)
mitsubishi heavy industries (=2 & T)

Shanghai Clyde Bercemann
Machinery Co., Ltd.

Jiangsu Huaneng Construction
Engineering Group Co. Ltd.

Total

10,600,860.91

9,180,696.73

9,047,565.23

8,891,6568.97

7,910,257.89

6,970,000.00

The outstanding

amount is retention

monies within
retention period.
EREITH
Contract under
performance
EREITH
Contract under
performance
EREITH
Contract under
performance
EREITH
Contract under
performance
EREITH
Contract under
performance
EREITH
Contract under
performance

934,989,459.11
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

S EREREEEHGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(8) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
218 (Ztt) /R E (27) Advances received

5 1  FAUFERZRE IR 1. Advances received by age
ﬁ
E% HREAEE FHIE
jﬁh BHH Items Closing balance ~ Opening balance
=]
E
= 1F AR Within 1year 12,971,864,208.06 12,528,433,935.28
‘L;j 1224 1-2 years 4,724,692,795.15 3,665,290,415.67
N 2E3F 2-3 years 1,667,563,597.00 1,201,374,687.12
2 3EM L Over 3 years 2,103,169,714.05  3,052,813,383.44
s
-

= Total 21,467,290,314.26 20,447,912,421.51

2. FREEBE—FHWEERENNE 2. Significant advances received aged over Tyear:

RE1ENLE  KEER
¢8 FEHRR
Reasons for
Amount aged  outstanding or carried

ER Items over 1year forward
FEZIEERAT China Nuclear Power Engineering Co., Ltd. 656,564,569.79 JEEA7ZL
Construction in progress
hEBERERROBRAR China Shenhua Energy Company Limited 318,722,00000 EEARTL
Construction in progress
REENREEELT China Power Investment Corporation( FEIE /3%  268,998,980.91 MHEAX7%L
BEERF) Construction in progress
TR BEEERARLWA TaoHuaJiang Hydropower Co., Ltd. Fengman 264,112,284.88 EEARZL
BERIERER Dam reconstruction department(1A7ET7K 7% Construction in progress
EERARERAGERIREER)
mIAEBEBREHUKEHEER Sichuan Datang International Ganzi Hydropower ~ 263,711,668.12 BB AZL
NS Generation Co., Ltd.(F)I[ REBIRHFUKER Construction in progress
BERAF)
ZFZEBRLT Sanmen Nuclear Power Co., Lid(ZPI#2EHR  249,172,70357 HEEARTT
NS Construction in progress
FEARENTRERAR LS China Zhongyuan Engineering Corp. (Shanghai 242,743,400.00 JEEATT
GUNG Branch) (FEIF RESNTIRBRAA Construction in progress

LBDRE)
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

i EHBRREEEBIE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
() FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(o) Ak R (E)

(27) Advances received (continued)

2 KREEB-—FHWEEAWUFNE 2. Significant advances received aged over Tyear:
(&) (continued)
RER1ELLE  REERS
8 HENRERE
Reasons for
Amount aged  outstanding or carried
ER Items over 1year forward

TEERBEREEKolin A7 Owners of Turkey Suma Project, Kolin 200,175,92050 EEAZL
Company( T HEREFEREF Kolin A7) Construction in progress

India Coastal Energy Company(ENE /8 =88R AF)  197,812,904.68 TEEATL
Construction in progress

172,294,244.00 EEATTL

Construction in progress

EBRERRA

BEXNETRFRKERLER State Power Daduhe Houziyan Hydropower
A7 Construction Co., Ltd.(EIEXE TR FEKE
BEERRA)

Shenhua(Fuzhou)Luoyuan Bay Harbour Electricity ~ 169,104,000.00 EHARET
Co., Lid.(#E (BN BREEZBRATF)

Hebei Weizhou Energy Integrated Development  168,600,000.00 MHE%X7%T
Co., Lid.CTILE N e R A RERRAE) Construction in progress

Guangdong Yudean Bohe Coal Power Co., Ltd.(E  158,736,600.00 MEHAXZET

BE (BN BREEEABR AT
Construction in progress
AR M REAREERAF

EHENBRNBRAT]

REBBERBERAA)
Jilin Electric Power Co., Ltd.

151,330,000.00

Construction in progress
HEATT
Construction in progress

BMBEREDEHERAF Guangzhou development Nansha Power Co., Ltd. ~ 146,910,000.00 JEEA%L
(BENBREPENBRAF) Construction in progress

BZIRERDA State Nuclear Power Engineering Corp, Ltd. 139,456,775.62 EEBATL
Construction in progress

AEGERRAR Hainan Nuclear Power Co., Ltd(/§E# B 5K 138,817,977.19 HEEAZT
NE]) Construction in progress

FRENTERERAH China National Electric Engineering Co., Ltd. 129,106,309.08 WEAX7TIT
Construction in progress

CHESHHNEESEREART Anhui Huadian Wuhu Power Generation Co., Ltd. ~ 106,468,000.00 HEA%T

(REEBTRAREERELLR)

Construction in progress

N
S
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AR REEEEIE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

(%) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
250 (Z+t) A RE (&) (27) Advances received (continued)
5 2 KREREB-—FHWEEAWNNE 2. Significant advances received aged over Tyear:
% (&) (continued)
! BRIENL  REES
= $8  EENAR
af Reasons for
FS Amount aged  outstanding or carried
|
ER Items over 1year forward
§
o
il HEESENRA India Aisha Power Company(EEEBENRE)  102,787,562.88 EEATL
= Construction in progress
AYNHKEEBUETEHELK Power generation machines and ancillary 99,055,683.13 HEARTL
ERGES equipment purchase contract of Shenzhen Construction in progress
Pumped Storage Power Station( R 3I k& 8L
Fih)
REHEBEESERAR Wuhan Century Hungshing Trading Co., Lid(Z ~ 98,100,00000 JBEX7%L
i BEESBRAR) Construction in progress
T03FRF AT Research Institute No.703(703 152 FT) 96,525,177.80 HEARTTL
Construction in progress
EEEEMERR AR Huadian International Materials Company Limited ~ 91,023,250.00 JBEAX%L

Construction in progress

RN ERE—fBLEE — Preparation office for coal and power system 83,109,222.24 HEEARZL
HIRERE unification project in Henan Zhuzhou You Construction in progress
County (IR R E —BItER—HT2
ERE)
LANCO INFRATECH LIMITED LANCO INFRATECH LIMITED 80,124,979.70 EEARZTTL
NS COMPANY(LANCO INFRATECH LIMITED A &]) Construction in progress
EAMAENBREERRMM Helin Power Plant of North Joint Power Co., Ltd. ~ 78,520,000.00 BEAXRL
BER (EFBAEENEREARANMKEER) Construction in progress
BMNEIREROERAT Binzhou High-New Aluminum Power Co., Ltd.&8 ~ 72,752,000.00 JBEA%T
MNEFinERNERAT) Construction in progress
BREATENRNERRAIESR Guangxi Fangyuen Electric Co., Ltd.(Luzhai 62,696,000.00 EEAZT
BEHRAF Thermal Power Branch)(EFE /5 L& SR 13 B R Construction in progress
ARERBESHDA)
FEHERATKERRAT Huaneng Lancang River Hydropower Co., Ltd(#  58,452,72000 JEEAZL
EEATKERRAA) Construction in progress
Lanco Enterprise Pet Ltd Lanco Enterprise Pet Ltd 56,964,505.50 BEAXTTL

Construction in progress
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

i EHBRREEEBIE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
() FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(o) Ak R (E)

(27) Advances received (continued)

2 KREEB-—FHWEEAWUFNE 2. Significant advances received aged over Tyear:
(%) (continued)
RER1ELE  REES
&8 HE0FE
Reasons for
Amount aged  outstanding or carried
ER Items over 1year forward
EMENRDBERDDRERE Southeast Changchun Thermal Power Preparation  54,396,000.00 TR A%L
HESER office REREAEHERE of Jilin Power Construction in progress
Co Ld(FEMENRNDBRAA)
WRERHEMHERAR Sahndong Honggiao New Materials Co., Ltd(Ll® ~ 50,700,000.00 EEA%ET

RERTRER

BRI HERAT)
Guangdong Heyuan Power Plant( & 57 R E )

48,462,137.70

Construction in progress
HEATI
Construction in progress

ARG RE RN ERAF Inner Mongolia Jinlian Aluminum Co., Ltd(A5 % 48,000,000.00 JERARTL
WEEMBRAF) Construction in progress
BB T RERATF Zhanhua Binbei New Materials Co., Ltd.(’i{t 878 45,600,00000 JEEARZTL

REFHRERNERAE

LEMEERRA)
NARI Technology Co., Ltd.

42,105,299.10

Construction in progress
HEATI
Construction in progress

BEABREERRAR Baise Mining Group Co., Ltd. 41,775,000.00 BEARZET
Construction in progress
REEHBHBHEBTEREEFR Inner Mongolia Xilingol Baiyinhua Coal Power Co.,  36,030,000.00 EEAX%L
BEFRAIRENRBESAF Ltd(Chifeng New Town Thermal Power Branch) Construction in progress
(AWEEBNDIRSEESERETARRE
TRAREHAF)
TMTHEERBEEZRER Jiangmen Xinhui Shuangshui Power Plant No.3 35,250,000.00 BEARZET
N Co., Ld. (IMMFTBERKEE=HRERLA) Construction in progress
BMILERMHBRLF Binzhou North Sea New Materials Co., Ltd(&/M ~ 30,440,000.00 EEAZT
ILEFHRBRAR) Construction in progress
WRBERSERAA Shangdong Weigiao Aluminum Electricity Co., 30,060,000.00 EEATTL
Ltd. (1L RBEBEERR LA Construction in progress
TRAEEERTIRERAH Beijing Zhongnengda Electric Engineering Co., 30,000,00000 EEXRZT

HAABBABAT

Ld.(Jt R ER TRERAH)
Minister of Dam of Sudan Thermal Power
Company (B RBHAELE))

29,180,611.12

Construction in progress
EEATT
Construction in progress

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Z+t) A RE (&) (27) Advances received (continued)
2. FEREBS—FHWEEFEWKEIE 2. Significant advances received aged over Tyear:
(&) (continued)
RER1ENLE  KEER
8 HENRERE
Reasons for
Amount aged  outstanding or carried
ER Items over 1year forward
BEAERBEEERAR Urumpaqi Binlu Agricultural Machinery Co., Ltd.(& ~ 23,000,00000 BEAX%L
EAERREBERAR) Construction in progress
WREZEBREEAH Shandong Nuclear Power Co., Ltd(IURZEAR  22,409544.87 BEATL
BEIAR) Construction in progress
BIIEERK Baishan Power Plant( 5 L& B ) 1345042558 IBEARTI
Construction in progress
EEMEELODRNHERAR Yunnan Native Produce IMP. & EXP. Co. Ltd.(E 12,462,282.06 BEARETL
MEELOROBBRAR) Construction in progress
REEHRNEERESR Daxing Hanwei Wind Power Equipment (Daxing) 12,394,000.00 JEEEEAFABE
(RE) BB AR Co., L (REZARNEENERE (KE)E Under litigation
RAA)
FILEHERMBRAF] Pingshan Jingye Board Co., Ltd.(FILIGMERY ~ 11,024,00000 EERZTL
BRATF) Construction in progress
RIEENBRAT Zhongkong Power Co., Ltd.(F2E HERAF]) 10,554,619.65 EEAZTT
Construction in progress
&t Total 5,750,243,349.66 |
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

1 BB TEHMHSR

(28) Staff Remuneration Payable

1. Staff Remuneration Payable

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FHHE REEM bt} HREE
Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing
EH Items balance period period balance
EEEM Short-term Remuneration 123,851,009.44 2,395,892,870.13 2,374,214,716.20 145,529,163.37
BB %285 — R IR7F5TEl Post-employment benefit-
established withdrawal and
deposit scheme 813,198.10  442,947,471.39  443,760,449.78 219.71
BHREM Termination benefits 18,491,084.07  63,465,981.10  33,813976.48  48,143,088.69
—ERNE BN EAEF Other benefits due within 1 year - - - -
EH) Total 143,155,291.61 2,902,306,322.62 2,851,789,142.46 193,672,471.77
2.  GHEME R 2. Short-term Remuneration
FNHE REEM KD BRBE
Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing
ER ltems balance period period balance
(1) T %% ZBMH (1) Salary, inducement, allowance
i and subsidies 2,448,815.11 1,699,881,268.25 1,701,742,765.84 587,317.52
2) BIEFZ (2) Employee benefits fee - 167,689,079.05 167,692,029.05 -2,950.00
B) HERRE (3) Social insurance fee -2,470,066.62  166,607,734.82  166,579,455.55  -2,441,787.35
H BERKRE Including: medical insurance fee -2,471,794.62 140,165,345.88 140,135,338.61  -2,441,787.35
TERRE Work injury insurance fee 1,080.00  16,911,125.79  16,912,205.79 -
55 1%5;?% Maternity insurance fee 648.00  9,531,263.15  9,531,911.15 -
(4) EEAT (4) Housing provident fund 22,072.00  191,5622,579.33  191,543,571.33 1,080.00
(5) E,ﬁ%%ﬂﬂiIﬁxi«( (5) Staff Union fee and Staff
= training cost 123,850,188.95  61,118,431.55  38,260,378.71 146,708,241.79
6) REHHHREY (6) Short-term paid leave - - - -
(7) BEFESZE (7). Short-term profit sharing
scheme - - - -
(8) Efbm sz (8) Other short-term
remuneration 109,073,777.13  108,396,515.72 677,261.41
CH Total 123,851,009.44 2,395,892,870.13 2,374,214,716.20 145,529,163.37

N
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER

(&)

(CHNENETHM (&)

3 REEFAET

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(28) Staff Remuneration Payable (continued)

3. Established Withdrawal and Deposit Scheme

FO8E REE M TER D HREE
Opening Increase in the Decrease in the Closing
ER ltems balance period period balance
AERELZRR Basic retirement Insurance -94,467.23  349,444,680.50 349,349,993.56 219.71
KERKRE Unemployment insurance fee 752,397.09  25411,194.70  26,163,591.79 -
TEFEHE Corporate annuity 155,268.24  68,091,596.19  68,246,864.43 -
At Total 813,198.10  442,947,471.39  443,760,449.78 219.71
(CTthEXRBE (29) Tax payable
HIREREE FYIAREE
Closing Opening
HEEE Tax Items balance balance
EER Value-added tax 144,092,922.04  96,439,795.45
BER Business tax 34,917,847.93 1,037,436.15
TEMER Enterprise income tax 49,910,424.65 130,644,080.58
TRIAFTSHL Individual income tax 22,950,778.27  22,240,691.31
T A T R AR Urban maintenance and construction tax 23,976,741.42 15,662,702.67
FBEM Property Tax 2,141,688.41 563,668.90
HE BM M Educational Surtax 10,274,159.42 6,711,018.65
T AR Land use tax 247,494.81 152,721.16
77 2E BN Local educational surtax 6,849,439.62 4,474,012.43
EA Others 4,952,675.13 4,576,729.82
At Total 300,314,171.70  282,502,857.12
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(Z1) EERE (30) Interests payable
BARERER FAERER
HE Items Closing balance Opening balance

2B B EIEE AR R EE A S Interests for long-term borrowings
repayable with interests accrued in

installments 77,345.28 234,000.00
REEHFE Interests of corporate bond 120,866,666.66 120,366,666.66
AR E SR B Interests payable of short-term borrowings ~ 11,806,883.62 1,676,701.98
FE 17 5K F) B Interests payable of deposits 9,262,718.42 3,205,354.46
&t Total 142,013,613.98 125,982,723.10

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
256 (Et-) IR A (31) Dividend Payable
% BB1ER
% HREAEE EMHRE XHRE
& Reasons for
= Closing Opening outstanding for
?}i BUAE Name of Unit balance balance over 1 year
3

a BIske Employees’ Shareholding Society ESBR
§ (BIske) 2,767,274.60 2,767,274.60  Funding difficulties
_‘;'.f FREENEEEER AT China Great Wall Asset Management W AR B
& Corporation 1,726,700.00 To be claimed

REERERA NEMLRE Harbin Development Area Joint
BREARAT Infrastructure Development Co., Ltd. BSER
(MRERZERS NARZEERERAF) 297,135.61 297,135.61  Funding difficulties
NHEHETEBRAT Xindu Atefeng Industrial and Trading Co., BeER
Ltd.(FE D FETEERAF) 217,506.73 217,506.73  Funding difficulties
RRAREMIIENERAR Harbin Asia Micro Arc Technology Co., Ltd. BSBR
(BEERTHIRMBRAF) 150,471.74 150,471.74  Funding difficulties
Hi& AR B E Unclaimed H share dividends BE L
88,616.27 33,147.47 To be claimed
BREEMESREAGENEZE  Subdistrict office in Liming Street, AR B
Xingfnag District, Harbin 44,138.00 44,138.00 To be claimed
S Jin Naipeng( & &) f#) & B EN
318.52 318.52 To be claimed
=H Jin Ke(£%}) EESGEEN
264.83 264.83 To be claimed

At Total 5,292,426.30 3,510,257.50 -
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

(Zto) B At AR

1-

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(32) Other Payables

H b S 5L BR B 5 1. Other payables by age
HREAEE FIHREE
EHA Items Closing balance Opening balance
1FEUR Within 1 year 128,064,708.70 89,252,788.16
18224 1-2 years 20,991,935.01 93,955,940.88
28 3F 2-3 years 75,163,899.62 21,956,481.28
3FLALE Over 3 years 42,001,688.29  71,5636,341.50
A&t Total 266,222,231.62 276,701,551.82
R EB - FHWEZEMEN 2. Significant other payables aged over 1 year
=
iR iR AEERR
Outstanding Reasons for
BRENEH Creditors amount Age outstanding
MHRRBES Inducement fund for City Finance (1 8% WAREE
REEHES) 12,060,000.00 2-34F To be settled
HBERER Financial entrusted loans Mk aEE
11,700,000.00 3ENLE To be settled
MBERSESMIARAAF  Harbin Turbine Blade Processing
Company Limited("s BI/& /T2 H 1 MAREE
TIERAR) 10,592,000.00 3EE To be settled
IRRREEAT Harbin Environmental Hydrogen EeBR
Company(BERRHITAR) 6,818,750.00 3FLAE  Funding difficulties

Total

41,170,750.00

257
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

(&)

Etz)—FRIBNIFRBEE

HE Items

(33) Non-current liabilities due within one year

HREREE

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FUERE

Closing balance Opening balance

—FRIHHRHER
— RN EMNES
—FRIHNRIEAR

AFr Total

CEtRAEMRBEE

Long-term payables within one year

44,234,860.49

Long-term borrowings due within one year  74,450,000.00 465,550,000.00
Bonds payable due within one year -
41,732,820.20

118,684,860.49 507,282,820.20

(34) Other current liabilities

HAREREE FIRE
HE Items Closing balance Opening balance
RPAEHNERER Forward contracts hedges 375,043,853.00 293,298,740.00

A&t Total

375,043,853.00 293,298,740.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(&)
(Z+E) REAEK
1 REEHSE

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(35) Long-term borrowings

1. Classification of long-term borrowings

BARERER FERE
EHA Items Closing balance Opening balance
EIRER Pledged loan -
HIRIERN Secured loan -
IRFEE K Guaranteed loan 74,450,000.00 540,000,000.00
EAER Credit loan -
NE Sub-total 74,450,000.00 540,000,000.00
B —FAEIEE S Net: loan due within one year 74,450,000.00 465,550,000.00
CEl Total - 74,450,000.00

2. REEH 2.  Guaranteed loan

BREN BREREE BHRA
Borrower Amount Guarantor
B H O ERTT 74,450,000.00 BEEBEBEEEHLEIIERAF

The Export-Import Bank of China

A5 Total

(EtR N ES
1 EAEFHH

HE Harbin Power Plant Valve
Company Limited

74,450,000.00 -

(36) Bonds payable

1. Breakdown of bonds payable

HAREREE FAIRRE
EHE Items Closing balance Opening balance
1204E 01 12 HE 01 2,996,197,500.00 2,994,442,500.00
A& Total 2,996,197,500.00 2,994,442,500.00

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

continued)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER

(&)

(EtAENES (E)

2

EAEFHERER (T8
R RnEMEENEBER - K
AESAMEMIA)

'54R Name

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(36) Bonds payable (continued)

2.

i BIA8

Nominal value ~ Value date

EEER ko | EN8E

Term amount balance period value premium

Changes in bonds payable: (excluding other
financial instrument classified as financial
liabilities, such as Premium share, Perpetual
bond)

KRR REEHRAE  EAEEE AheE BABE
Interest credited Repayment

Principal Opening Issue duringthe ~ on nominal Amortisation of during the

period Closing balance

121E01 12HE01

i
=

Total

201342 A 18 AP EFEES N
[ & ES 3 AT (2013116955 | STt
B OREARRAIMATE AR
THEERE T BBELOBTHA
AIfEH © 2013F3 A1 BAR
AR EAREITRREER
B AERRQE2012F R EES
(F—H) HEEEZES30E
T BFREFNER4.9%
BFE3IANMBRME  FTEHR
A2013F 311 B E=2018%F
SANMBE - AHBESFHAER
REFHE - NEHEFR - BFH
B—X EH—REXR - &%
—HAMEEASNHAN—EBX
e REAES AWM EEERME
SREEGETIHENETE
ERFBHER ©

3,000,000,000.00 2030311

/ /

Ett REIENR

HH

5% 3,000,000,000.00 2,994,442,500.00 14700000000 1,795,00000 147,000,000.00 2,996,197,500.00

5years

/3,000,000,000.00 2,994 442,500.00 14700000000 1,795,00000  147,000,000.00 2,996,197,500.00

On 18 February 2013, the China Securities Regulatory
Commission issued “Zhengjianxuke [2013] No. 159",
in which the public issuance of Corporate Bonds of
not exceeding RMB4 billion by the Company has
been approved. On 11 March 2013, the Company
launched the public issuance of 2012 Corporate
Bonds (First Tranche). The issuance amount of the
Bonds is RMB3 billion and its coupon rates is 4.9%.
The interest payment date should be every 11 March
from 11 March 2013 to 11 March 2018. The coupon
rate of the Corporate Bonds is calculated annually by
simple annualized interest rate without any
compound interest. Interest will be payable annually,
and principal will be repaid upon maturity together
with the interest payable for the last period. The
current bonds will be wholly and irrevocably
guaranteed by HE Group.

(37) Long-term payables

Items

MR EREE FHERE

Closing balance Opening balance

ENEEEERERER

HEEERERARER

finance lease payables in respect of fixed

asset

Contribution of Harbin Electric Corporation

Total

11,257,889.40 55,697,398.34
1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00
12,257,889.40 56,597,398.34
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREEEBIE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

(&)

(Z+N) R BB T 5 B

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(38) Long-term employee benefits payables

HREA%E FHIAEE
EHA Items Closing balance Opening balance
— - BERRBEA — REXImATE] 1. Post-employment benefits
FEE
R EF| 2. Termination benefits 88,474,620.62  97,226,823.15
= HibRHEEFH 3. Other long-term employee benefits -
CE Total 88,474,620.62  97,226,823.15
(Zth BEEMRK (39) Special payables
B rEEm AHHD HRGE ERER
Increase during  Decrease during
ER Items Opening balance the period theperiod  Closing balance Reason
ROBREAEES Minkou key scientific research project funds BFETRA
233,185,000.00 96,473,700.00 - 329,658,700.00  Government grants
AR RLERERIME  Technology research on steam generator FERBA
manufacturing 53,590,000.00 - - 53,590,000.00  Government grants
(REMKEEBATERTEREN Special fund for introducing local production
TEREIEEEEEE to large-scale pumped-storage water BFETRA
turbine manufacturing 22,420,000.00 - - 22,420,000.00  Government grants
BREYTHREERIEEERE  Technology project for high-end digita
&8 control machine tools and basic BRERRA
manufacturing equipment 7,783,400.00 800,000.00 2,918,400.00 5,665,000.00 Government grants
b Others BFETRA
34,296,794.29 2,700,000.00 5,857,000.00 31,139,794.29  Government grants
At Total 351,275,194.29 99,973,700.00 8,775,400.00 442,473 494.29

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
SHEEMHBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(&)

(mt) BFEE

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(40) Estimated liabilities

FEOHE REEM RERD

Increase during Decrease during

HARERE

HAR Items Opening balance the year the year Closing balance

RRFFARGED) Pending litigation (note 1) - 12,022,611.77 - 12,022,611.77

EmBERE(H2) Product warranty (note 2) 74,272,952.20  224,661,018.92  224,173,253.55  74,760,717.57

FRTHEREAR (E3) Onerous contracts (note 3) 605,038,115.31 107,082,192.77 152,971,226.63 559,149,081.45

Hit (554) Others (notes 4) 80,895,844.10 34,092.00 - 80,929,936.10

At Total 760,206,911.61 343,799,915.46 377,144,480.18  726,862,346.89

1 RARFARARAFTFARBEA Note1: The provision for pending litigation is made for the
BHBER ST D BT FA litigation related to the Group's subsidiary Harbin
B TRREFEABARETHRRYTAES AL - Electrical Machinery Company Limited and the loss

arising from construction litigation.

H2 EREERBAKRATIRE R Note2: Product warranty is provided at the rate of 0.3%-0.5%
EW AB03%-05%TIRAE on the sales revenue of products.

BREE -

H3: FHTHNEBAREAATEE Note3: The provision for onerous contracts is made for the
SIEARATTHER(FERXE loss of the contracts entered into but not yet executed
REAR - HEEREAR - FE (mostly contracts related to nuclear power equipment,
BAmEAEAR)FEFEK AKX boilers products and steam turbines with a capacity of
R A S EEMEHRATEETEK - 1,000 MW), whose expected total cost exceed

revenue.

T4 HMWIBE ZARN A FARIKERE Note4: Other provision is made for the loss of the Group's

BREBRIEZHARPOLAERRD
BIAHETHROTRAT RRERR -

subsidiary Harbin Power Equipment National
Engineering Research Centre Co., Ltd during the
period.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(1) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(M+-)3E ZE U 25 (41) DEFERRED INCOME
ENaE AEE AEHD BRGHE JeRRE
Increase duringthe ~ Decrease during
ER ltems Opening halance period the period  Closing balance Reason
B Government grants 230,220,909.56 35,014,125.00 5487928790 210,355,746.66
At Total 230,220,909.56 35,014,125.00 5487928790 210,355,746.66 /
F R EERIER - Projects involving government subsidies:
HEERE/
ENRE  FEENEE FAEEMALE EfEY HRGE B G
Credited to related to an
Non-operating asset/related to
LR Liabilities items Opening balance Increase income ~ Other movements ~ Closing balance income
THRTENEERELSSES  Grants for the technology research base 40,907,000 - 227,261.11 - 4067973889 HEERR
and ancillary in Jiangbei related to an asset
ZIRER 2 A HE4820-00-1104 Three gorges large-scale air-cooled units 39,375,000.00 - 5,625,000.00 - 33,750,000.00 HmIEE
820-00-1104 related to income
BOOMW BT % ST Development of 600 MW hydro power 18976,063.34 - 36,544.62 - 1893951872 lgnyal]
generators related to income
RRNAEY Grants for construction cost 12,103,846.15 - 484,153.85 - 1161969230 HEERR
related to an asset
FERBEERETHERE  Large tubine rotor welding equipment 8,346,800.00 - - - 8,346,800.00 B IEE
related to income
EER Q01455 T HBR RN Znenunke (2014) No.5 related to the 8,100,000.00 - - - 8,100,00000 EYiiag
EAMHBEZEESMET  applioation for the special fund for key related to income
technology projects
HEEBZGRERERZSEME Power management system and reform 7,400,000.00 - - - 7,400,000.00 llienyiiz]
of power management system related to income
CAP1400 B REAE TSR Development of CA 1400 half-speed - 6,092,800.00 215,211.50 - 5,877,588.50 BB
IES saturated steam turbines related to income
EREPRISEBE BB Grants for the land for valves technology 6,364,000.00 - 1,060,666.67 - 5,303,333.33 HEERS
reform in power stations related to an asset
60 IR A B B Research and Development of water- 5,290,000.00 - - - 5,290,000.00 HEERS
RIFA{ERE lubricating thrust bearing technology related to an asset
with no maintenance for 60 years, high
radiation-resistance.
EXEREIEEEN Grants for the localization of major - 5,000,000.00 - - 5,000,000.00 HEERS
equipment related to an asset
At Others 8335820007  23921,32500  33483650.15 1374680000  60,049,074.92
Bt Total 23022090956 3501412500 4113248790 1374680000  210,355,746.66
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(B R A (42) Share capital
REESE(+)A(-)
Changes during the period (increase(+), decrease ()
EgE 2R BB DBeER AORMEER 15t HRGE
Conversion of  Conversion of
the accumulation the undistributed
KR2R Name of shareholders QOpening balance  Capitalincrease ~ Bonus share funds into shares profit into shares Sub-total Closing balance
RREEREENR Harbin Electric Corporation 701,235,000.00 - 701,235,000.00
B EmRBRA Overseas-listed shares 675,571,000.00 - 675,571,000.00
Aif Tota 1,376,806,000.00 - - - - - 1,376,806,000.00

(mt2)EAXRTE

(43) Capital reserve

FHE ARHEBE I TERD HRERE

Increase during Decrease during

A Items Opening balance the period the period Closing balance
EXRE (RARE) Capital surplus (share premium) 2,773,404,416.44 27,810,652.71 2,745,593,763.73
HiEARRR Other capital surplus -
At Total 2,773,404,416 .44 - 27,810,652.71 2,745,593,763.73

RERRTERDRA T ERAH
BAR—ZH TEERBAEREER
AR EPRBRNEARE - KB
e e

The decrease in capital surplus for the period is
mainly due to the acquisition of Harbin Electric (HE)
Corporation under common control, prospective
adjustment to the capital surplus in the beginning of
period, reversal during the period.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(mtm) Efh4RE W (44) Other Comprehensive Income
THYELE
Current period
W AEEA
AHFE  RRAkE i Fg RESER ResRR
FHE RAgtE  EMEAER RER 807 SERR BREE
Net income Net income
Current period  Less: OCI carried attributableto  attributable to
cumulative before forward transferred parent company  minority interest
EE Items Opening halance income tax to profit or loss ~ Less: Income tax after tax aftertax  Closing balance
1o DETEBNEEBERMEMRS 1. Other comprehensive income not
ahE reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss — - — — - — _
A B ER TR AT Including: ~ Changes in
HFRENTEEN remeasurement on the
# net liability and net asset
defined benefit scheme - - - — — - -
BRETERRAEN e Items of other comprehensive income
ENBERENENES attributable to investees under equity
Yt EEHHE method that are not reclassified to
profit or loss - — — _ _ _ _
2 NEBENEREANEMSA 2 Other comprehensive income to be
ey reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss -236,065,084.33  -204,139,356.10  -119,165,740.29 — — — -321,038,700.14
b ERETARRAE Including:  Items of other
fiblkpEnEEE comprehensive income
REAMFE RET attributable to investees
SRINE under equity method
that may be reclassified
to profit or loss - - = — — — _
AfHESREEAER Profitor loss from changes in fair value
29iEs of available-for-sale financial assets - - - - - — _
FEEHBRAENERT Profitor loss from reclassification of
HHESRERES held-to-maturity investments as
available-for-sale assets — — — — — — _
BeESEHRENER Effective portion of the profit or loss on
B cash flow hedging -236,051,584.47 20451395769 -119,165,740.29 — - —  -321,399,801.87
SEHBRENEEE Translation difference of financial
statements in foreign currencies -13,499.86 374,601.59 - - - - 361,101.73
B AREAT Total other comprehensive income -236,065,084.33  -204,139,356.10  -119,165,740.29 — - — -321,038,700.14

N
D
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(#8) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
266 (M+E)BIEFS (45) Special reserve
5 FHE EREE AN AERL P 33
% Increase during Decrease during
;ﬂ HAR Items Opening balance the period the period Closing balance
[
EPE
&5
at ZEHES Production safety charges 7,958,663.67  23,634,131.12  20,469,940.39  11,122,854.40
S
all .
Ch Total 7958,663.67  23,634,131.12  20,469,94039  11,122,854.40
N
o
I
E (R BENTE (46) Surplus reserve

FHE RHEmM REE D MREBE

Increase during  Decrease during

EHAR Items Opening balance the period the period Closing balance
EERRDE Statutory surplus reserve 780,503,096.67  6,026,849.19 786,529,945.86
FERBRAR Discretionary surplus reserve -
FERES Reserve fund -
PEERES Enterprise development fund -
Hith Others _

At Total 780,503,096.67  6,026,849.19 - 786,529,945.86
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(%) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(M++) & 2 B K 55 (47) Undistributed profit 267
¥ 5 T
HE Items Current period Preceding period Q;-)j
3
FEER_EERA D BFE Balance before adjustment at the end of =
preceding period 7,973,264,498.48 7,645,440,826.25 e
HAEBFUNADENEAFE Add: Increase due to adjustment (or less: §
(@ + - ) decrease) 4,321,010.44 2
FAREFNRDECAE Opening balance after adjustment 7,973,264,498.48 7,649,761,836.69 3
o ARESBNEARIMAENF Add: Net profit attributable to owners of a
aIbE! the parent company 196,211,527.85 566,409,377.53 >
B RAVEERRAR Less: Appropriation of statutory surplus 5
reserve 6,026,849.19 132,762,235.74 F3
REEERRAE Appropriation of discretionary surplus -§_
reserve N
IR — AR R 21 Appropriation of general risk reserve  70,992,361.50 &
FE A S AL AR ) Dividend payable on ordinary shares ~ 55,072,240.00  110,144,480.00
BEER A BB A AR Dividend on ordinary share converted
to share capital
EAh Others

iR AR 2 Be M) Closing balance 8,037,384,575.64 7,973,264,498.48
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(8) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(LEINEE 3 ON I 3% (48) OPERATING REVENUE AND OPERATING COST

1 EXUA - EEKEXFH 1. Breakdown of Operating revenue and Operating
cost
THBER THREE
Current period Preceding period
WA A LON R
EH ltems Revenue Cost Revenue Cost
TEER Main operation 24,926,169,195.45 21,618,225,597.35 23,795,813,104.74  20,654,600,296.44
%= Nuclear power 1,723,865,024.67  1,532,215,517.70  1,367,023,224.13  1,200,717,429.93
KETHR Main thermal power equipment 9,331,655,577.92  7,337,454,851.26 10,943,146,061.00  9,292,132,187.74
KEFHR Main hydro power equipment 2,705,715,002.37  2,658,379,475.87  2,906,874,135.86  2,518,158,943.05
ELARES Y Engineering services for power stations 6,819,315,182.61  6,328,715,914.11  3,894,369,063.19  3,593,764,383.25
BUHEREE Ancillary equipment for power stations ~ 1,747,543,909.54  1,466,606,265.57  1,556,342,681.06  1,195,727,675.39
TERBMREMERERYE  AC/DC motors and other products and
services 2,598,074,498.34  2,294,853572.84  3,128,057,939.50  2,855,455,446.37
Hiv¥% Other operation 171,055,347.30  152,368,299.94  230,721,198.81  208,927,057.75
HEME Selling materials 126,599,079.96  127,677,24565  191,622,06150  180,501,425.26
KRG E Technical service fees 11,989,056.32 1,306,030.43 667,047.33 448,800.00
RERA Rental Income 11,804,646.85 10,827,464.27 10,640,095.56 3,006,685.83
BAYA Advisory fees 549,559.98 118,287.40
BEFERE Wharfage 3,481,907.55 482,217.27 8,309,447.87 3417,036.38
BEEMEH Waste materials amount 869,767.96 1,854,133.21
it Others 15,761,328.68 12,075,342.32 17,510,125.94 21,553,110.28
&3t Total 25,097,224,542.75 21,770,593,897.29 24,026,534,303.55  20,863,527,354.19
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

(&)

(M0 & ERATNE R A ()

2. EEAH

REERRASBRRARA+
HERRIBRIT

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(48) OPERATING REVENUE AND OPERATING COST

(continued)

2.

Contract work

recognized in the year are as follows:

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

Top ten contract works with highest revenue

5N RN ) 233 EHBAN BN
ARALE L EIEE(%) ARRA AR BAEH SEER ARRA AR
Accumulated Accumulated Revenue
Contracted value  Total Cost of the Progress of revenue Accumulated cost gross profit A lated izedin  Cost recognized
ARER Project ltem of the project project  Completion (%) gnized ized i progress billings ~ current period  in current period
- ETEELR Fixed-price contract 52,267,932,722.52  48,336,627,311.20 33,999,020,615.56 31,745,030,988.17  2,263989,627.39 35,501,424,717.29 10,798,990,329.98 10,063,393,873.50
TEEEEHER Project in Zetas, Turkey 382423960279 3,738275,225.77 69.64 266313457374 2,603270,46261 59,864,111.13  2,310,955,521.16  2,130,938,214.13  2,067,031,377.18
ENSE0KBEES 500KV ultra high vohiage:
2TEE electricity transmission
project in Ecuador 3798735,736.79  3,617,637,656.54 4833 18359231239  1,748,398,701.48 8752442247 1813527,02640  1,361,264,40681  1,285,343,687.11
HEEAAEER Thermal power project in
Banten, Indonesia 4,049.801,271.75  3,660,263,056.13 6389 258747648226 233220574987 25527073239 3261595211.03 1219,938477.40  1,093895,739.20
2X1000MW “Replacing Small
Capacity Generating Units
with Large Capacity ones”
construction project in
HuaNeng Laiwu Power
Plant ** 57750000000  536914,371.73 10000 49358974359 53691437173 4332462814 49461000000 49358974359  536,914,371.73
BHNRHERREAR Project in Angren, Uzoekistan  1,435,887,711.09  1,331,373,501.33 4750 682,091568.13  632,444,049.96 4964751817 596,009,995.86 46237574824  423,382,356.50
A China Nuclear Tianwan ** 72541452991 778410,000.00 5500 39897799145 42654509464  -27567,103.19  638026191.37 39897799145  426,545,094.64
EANRETNGEE Electricity transmission
B8 project in Nile, Sudan 1,569,663,891.53 1,442,288 836.44 3689  579,072,03243  532,081,506.35 46,990526.08  601,508896.08  391,079,329.83  356418,601.51
SHEHREBEXI000MN 2X1000MW "Replacing Smal
[LREN TR Capacity Generating Units
with Large Capacity ones”
construction project in
HuaNeng Laiwu Power
Plant # 577500,00000  536914,371.73 7499 37015874359  402649,13868  -32490395.09 49547000000  370,158,74359  402,649,138.68
ENSBXAHKEER Hydro power project in Minas-
San Francisco, Ecuador ~ 3,032,511,895.98  2,955,985,352.16 4648 1409,652517.94 137407942247 3567309547 1736,181,71086  359,713319.78  329,567,044.73
KEii Dananhu?* 300,600,000.00  197,680,241.22 10000 25692307692  197,680,241.22 5924283570 24948000000  256,923076.92  197,680,241.22

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER

(&)

(BN & SERATNE SR A ()

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(48) OPERATING REVENUE AND OPERATING COST

3. BESRREMRX

(continued)

3. Expected loss for contract work

BEXEH BHBEARE B
Amount of expected
BEEE Project loss Reason for expected loss Remarks
ERREER 2X1000MW "Replacing Small
2X1000MW Capacity Generating Units with
[ EXEE/N] TR Large Capacity ones” construction BEHERAARERKA
project in HuaNeng Laiwu Power Expected project cost exceeds
Plant # 10,835,489.50 contract revenue
RZEE China Nuclear Tianwan BRHBRAARERIKA
Expected project cost exceeds
44,900,413.69 contract revenue
& Tianwan # BEHERAARERBA
Expected project cost exceeds
35,719,961.70 contract revenue
HE" Miaowei BRHBRAARERIKA
Expected project cost exceeds
10,869,923.47 contract revenue
HRE Miaowei # R AKARRE FRA
Expected project cost exceeds
9,471,398.51 contract revenue
HE Miaowei BRHBRAARERIKA
Expected project cost exceeds
9,471,398.51 contract revenue
HRE Miaowei R AKARRE FRA
Expected project cost exceeds
9,471,398.51 contract revenue
SEET Yl Inner Mongolia Jinlian ™ BRHBRAARERIKA
Expected project cost exceeds
544,682.01 contract revenue
W5 SR Inner Mongolia Jinlian 2 SERE NN

ElZREGENERERA

41,507.37
Thermal power project in 147,471,284.35

Esmeraldas, Ecuador

Expected project cost exceeds
contract revenue

FFHARRAERA RRA
R EBMERERE
FEARWANTESE

Expected project cost exceeds
contract revenue resulting in
loss and the fluctuation in
currency exchange rate
affects the contracted price
leading to exchange losses

Total 278,797,457.62
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AR REEEEIE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

N
~
N

(%) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(@A) FEWARNF B H (49) INTEREST INCOME AND INTEREST EXPENSE
RERER EFRAERE
EHA Items Current period Preceding period
FIE WA Interest income 315,145,853.83  231,452,224.06
S Interbank deposit 308,536,536.85 211,600,856.83
TFERp RERTT Deposit in central banks —
HEES Loans to other banks 1,083,055.55 43,750.00
BEIRER B Loans and advances paid 5,526,261.43  19,807,617.23
Hep o @ ABEFRFEIR Including: Individual loans and advances -
RAERAMEK Company loans and advances 1,223,333.33 1,183,333.34
ZEREANIE Discounted notes 4,302,928.10 18,624,283.89
BEARESHEE Reverse-repo financial assets —
BEHIRE Bond investments -
HAth Others -
Heh: BRESREENEWA  Including: Impaired financial asset interest
income —
FELZH Interest expense 13,626,239.13 8,5634,303.83
R ZEFR Interbank deposit —
M RERITIE R Borrowings from central bank —
wKAES Borrowings from other banks 18,861.11
USTIEESA Absorbing deposit 13,607,378.02 8,529,198.40
BEHOESREE Proceeds of REPO financial
assets -
BIIES Issue of bonds -
Hity Others - 5,105.43
FIEFHA Net interest income 301,519,614.70 222,917,920.23
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I EHUBBRRERZRBEERE

(&)

(It) FEERASRANFEERAS

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(50) HANDLING CHARGES AND COMMISSION INCOME,

FH AND HANDLING CHARGES AND COMMISSION
EXPENSES
RERER TEEAERE
Current Preceding
HE Items period period
FEERASWA Revenue from handling charges and
commission 16,856.22 14,970.35
EEREETFES Settlement and clearing fees -
RIBEKFES Agency services fees —
ERAFEFEELRAS Credit fees and commission -
BITRFEE Bank card fees -
EERIMBAE Advisory fees —
ZRERHMZEEB AR Custodian and other fiduciary
service fees —
Hith Others 16,856.22 14,970.35
FEERASXZH Handling charges and commission
expenses 20,456.39 14,225.86
FEE Handling charges 20,456.39 14,225.86
ik Commission expenses —
FEERASFURA Net handling charges and commission
income -3,600.17 744.49
(Et- )& XEBERMM (51) TAXES AND SURCHARGES
AHIRERE THAS AR
Current Preceding
EHA Items period period
BEM Business tax 37,707,866.88 3,950,912.13
W R R City maintenance and construction tax 83,579,433.24 41,108,485.08
HE &M Education surcharge 35,905,917.50  17,901,155.84
7520 E BTN Local education surcharge 23,936,662.12  11,934,103.90
Hith Others 18,299.98 8,772.14
&t Total 181,148,179.72 74,903,429.09
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER

(&)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(B+o)gsEEH (52) SELLING COSTS

REAR AR CERE AR
EHA Items Current period Preceding period
BEREFE Quality warranty expenses 221,791,648.77 166,782,144.77
A TR Salary cost 187,030,599.09 176,194,420.50
EIRE Traveling expenses 108,189,584.19  91,590,877.36
= Transportation expenses 65,873,155.51  79,669,438.77
k= Advisory Fees 23,949,881.98 45,788,315.32
KB Tender fees 18,870,862.77  34,891,175.15
MAER Office-related expenses 8,116,495.91 7,783,587.64
HEBHBFE Entertainment expenses 8,009,751.33  14,519,487.69
EEEEE Promotion expenses 5,764,431.65 4,812,522.50
TEE Depreciation 4,663,530.27 5,072,434.31
RBE Travel expenses 4,184,844.12 6,483,578.67
LENREER Labor insurance fees 142,634.57 376,075.97
ERE Conference fees 1,137.00 57,333.04
HAth Others 22,208,696.25 27,615,311.80
CE Total 678,797,253.41 661,636,703.49
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

JEEER
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(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(53) ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

REBAER EHIZAEER

Items

Current period

Preceding period

AL

W EREE A
FEBEER
BEES
BHEIRE
N =
R & 4
EKBEE
BB
IEYSE
BB

BETNHEER

KEE
BE
BENREE
=]
Hith

Salary expenses

969,581,395.40

1,039,277,450.20

Research and development expenses 319,569,546.14 370,135,952.41
Depreciation and amortization expenses 191,353,000.79 171,168,606.02
Maintenance expenses 152,120,287.52 169,562,786.62
Travelling expenses for conferences 89,604,637.91 94,220,330.83
Administrative expenses 56,390,249.81 38,354,570.86
Service contracts 54,787,449.20 51,783,127.39
Entertainment expenses 24,216,380.87 45,148,501.09
Labor expenses 21,511,872.43 28,177,597.36
Property and heating charges 19,244,574.05 35,380,365.22
Transportation expenses 12,579,080.18 6,996,783.57
Agency fees 9,185,467.48 9,061,225.15
Utility charges 3,168,081.85 5,387,910.88
Freight expenses 3,098,061.89 13,947,976.98
Labor insurance fees 1,816,809.21 3,097,403.99
Rental 1,342,950.86 1,974,938.24
Others 237,560,715.06 233,507,552.58
Total 2,167,130,560.65 2,317,183,079.39
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER

(&)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(Btm) B & A (54) FINANCIAL EXPENSES
AHRER THEASE AT
=5l Items Current period Preceding period
B Interest expenses 298,426,637.62 291,475,888.71
R FLEMA Less: interest income 128,086,160.88 141,784,445.17
P& 5 B Exchange gain and loss -35,544,924.95 4,820,817.75
FES Handling charges 27,452,890.67  29,363,359.26
ast Total 162,248,442.46 183,875,620.55
(EtR)EEREERX (55) Assets impairment loss
REAE AR FHEAEE AR
EHE Items Current period Preceding period
ZERIBX Bad debts 329,717,744.44 660,286,319.85
GFEBKEERLX Inventory write-down loss 136,002,225.80 462,619,038.22
AIEHESREERBEERX Impairment loss of available-for-sale
financial assets 2,000,000.00

FAZFMRERERSK

RERERERERK

REUEFEMERBERR
Bl EERERK
TRYERERRX
ERTRRERSK
BEERERK
AERERK
EIRRER

Hity

Impairment loss of held-to-maturity
investments

Impairment loss of long-term equity
investments

Impairment loss of investment property
Impairment loss of fixed assets
Impairment loss of construction materials
Impairment loss of construction in progress
Impairment loss of intangible assets
Impairment loss of goodwvill

Loan impairment

Others

—-134,279.66

Total

467,719,970.24 1,122,771,078.41
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
276 (BtR) AREEZ B WS (56) Gain on changes of fair value
E REABAERR EREE AR
%} The source of gain on changes Current Preceding
ﬂ‘[ EXEAAEBESBRENRIER of fair value period period
EE
t‘ﬂj AR EBEFEMNEEEE AE Financial assets at fair value through profit
= HERNEREE or loss -311,084,334.36 1,080,807,895.32
a B TESm T AESMARE Including: gain on changes of fair value in
§ BB derivative financial liabilities 18,664,554.53 -15,590,993.57
; UAREBENEMNEEZE AE Financial liabilities at fair value through
# HiEENemasE profit or loss -

BAREEFENREESMHE  Investment property at fair value -

A&t Total -311,084,334.36 1,080,807,895.32
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(&)

(Bt RE Kz

HH

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(57) Investment income

Items

REBAER

Current period

HRE AR
Preceding period

R EZZE N RIIER B
RERMEREEELNRE RS

NAR(EEFERREEHTAEH
BEmeREEERAHRNKR
Blas

BRENRABAEFELEZHTA
EHRENEREENSNRE
Yz

RERIPREERAPRENERE
Y et

AHHESREETEREHMMHNER
Bl

BREAHKESREENSHRE
Yz

EAIE IR - RRBERAN(E
EEHMABEENNE

HAth

Income from long-term equity investments
under equity method

Gains on disposal of long-term equity
investments

Gains on holding financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Gains on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss

Gains on holding held-to-maturity
investments

Gains on holding available-for-sale financial
assets

Gains on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

After the loss of control, gains from
remeasuring the remaining equity at fair
value

Others

Total

9,682,378.19

-264,729.87

873,688.28

591,001,087.79

69,983,520.98

2,174,794.52

-54,405,076.93

31,216,759.05

67,300,000.00

112,228,349.24

31,621,747.43

998,132.01

24,162,068.25

2,891,5689.04

619,045,662.96

270,418,645.02
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

S EBRREEEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(8) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(BTN &SI A (58) Non-operating income
HAEH
FEFER
FHBAEE FHiEE AR ofenkc|
Amount included
in non-recurring
HAE Items Current period Preceding period profit or loss
FRDEEREFNGAE Gains on disposal of non-current assets ~ 21,677,180.96 7,147,971.09  21,677,180.96
Heh BAREERENE Including: Gains on disposal of fixed
assets 21,677,180.96 2,272,933.33  21,677,180.96
BYEERENG Gains on disposal of
intangible assets - 4,875,037.76 -
BEEEAFE Gains on debt restructuring 484,221.70 635,535.37 484,221.70
FEBEBERIEFE Gains on trading of non-cash assets - -
BEX B Donation received - -
BB Government grants 111,785,344.53  92,918,453.61  111,785,344.53
Hith Others 24,659,785.63 215,696,370.37  24,659,785.63
&t Total 158,606,532.82  316,398,330.44  158,606,532.82
st A BRI 28 B9 BRF B Government grants recognized into profit and loss in
the current period
HEEEE/
FEBESE  CHRLSE  AUGEHE
#HEER ltems Related to assets/
Current period  Preceding period  related to income
B TREMRH(ER) Duty-free access of key engineering 24,243,630.39 HIRIER
products (military products) Related to income
RIBRIT R Science and technology awards 11,608,938.57 1,000,000.00 WA
Related to income
NERBEIEILMEMEIFT L Demonstration project of energy 7,500,000.00 6,500,000.00 EUrzEiaR

EECRETRE

saving technology innovation and
industrialization of thermal power
turbine

Related to income
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER V.

(&)

(BTN &EEIBRA ()

TTAEREE BT ()

#EER

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(58) Non-operating income (continued)

the current period (continued)

Items

THBESH

Current period

THBREEE

Preceding period

Government grants recognized into profit and loss in

HEEEE/
B AR
Related to assets/
related to income

AREURRHERANTER
REFIREMAFERERE
T

ZRER 2R KAE

HET20125BNNBRERER
BR5|8EE

2015 F RN EETE O

ek
ZETHE [2014 EEBIE R 65
Erashs]

BETBERREEES

TAsHE =28 AA B EREM
R

2014FEHOPEREES

TRBERE BT RS
EAfEF

2015 F LM T EHAF T

EHTXREREEMR

2014 FEHT¥IEE

Demonstration project of high-level
technology innovation for
comprehensive utilization of flue gas
waste heat from boilers in large-
scale power stations

Three gorges large-scale air-cooled
units

Leading fund for Zhenjiang 2012
Runzhou emerging industries
development

2015 export subsidies in respect of
services outsourcing and technology

2014 interest subsidies for 65 current
loans from province financial office

Special fund for oceanic renewable
energy

Recruitment Program of 1,000 Global
Experts- home-visit and living
allowances for 2 talents

Rewards for import and export
corporations 2014

Development and application of optical
binding technology for panel display

Provincial subsidies for industry
transformation and upgrade 2015

Rewards for key industrial project
investment 2014

Key industrial project 2014

6,500,000.00

5,625,000.00

5,601,435.45

5,000,000.00

4,930,000.00

3,000,000.00

2,815,000.00

3,282,000.00

2,540,000.00

2,354,000.00

2,000,000.00

2,000,000.00

5,625,000.00

1,500,000.00

Tt

Related to income

ey sl
Related to income
el gayiEl

Related to income

B A AR
Related to income
B AR
Related to income
eyl
Related to income
LA AR

Related to income

B A AR
Related to income
B AR
Related to income
alheayiil]
Related to income
B A AR
Related to income
B AR

Related to income

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

oA BBREERBER V.

(&)

(BTN &EEIBRA ()

TTAEREE BT ()

#EER

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(58) Non-operating income (continued)

the current period (continued)

Items

THBESH

Current period

THBREEE

Preceding period

Government grants recognized into profit and loss in

HEEEE/
B AR
Related to assets/
related to income

SRR AT A
TIREFUCNARZRER

1MW E SRR ZEA

AR B R BB RS AR

B —CAP1400 B E£E 5

HETRBELDRAMHR

KRKEGHETE) NERE

BUMPIR MBS R AR

mREERER

RERBRENERER LB

1000MW — X B 2B RRG R ERIE
AR AR FE £ F %

MEZRA AR
CAP1400 482 aA1 % )7/ i

it
ARHKEREREXERBIR

Development and application of
ordinary processing components for
turbine and gas turbine

1.5MW direct-drive wind turbine

Research on cooling technology for
CAP1400 nuclear power half-speed
turbine in large-scale pressurized and
high temperature gas-cooled nuclear
power plant

Research on dynamics of rotor for
pump and waterwheel

Grants for the land for valves
technology reform in power stations

Mayor quality award

Subsidies for industrialization of
leaching and anti-dizzy optical glass

Research and development of key
technology for 1000MW double
reheat supercritical boilers

Grants for construction cost of new
district

Development of CA 1400 half-speed
saturated steam turbines

Development of large-scale pumped-
storage water turbines

1,420,737.09

1,310,000.00

1,176,735.20

1,173,167.10

1,060,666.67

1,000,000.00

1,000,000.00

666,667.00

551,569.24

215,211.50

1,433.00

1,333,333.00

10,551,669.24

11,640,000.00

9,224,937.68

Tt

Related to income

Ll gayiEl
Related to income
ey sl

Related to income

B A AR
Related to income
EEERM
Related to assets
eyl
Related to income
LA AR
Related to income
B AR

Related to income

EEERM
Related to assets
alheayiil]
Related to income
B A AR

Related to income
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(BTN &EEIMBA () (58) Non-operating income (continued)
FFA B BE S BT () Government grants recognized into profit and loss in
the current period (continued)
EEERE/
AHRESE  FHBAeE  SUEEE
#WEER ltems Related to assets/

Current period  Preceding period  related to income

AP1000 7 % B BUE R TR T B
XEAEHR

MECEH SRR

014FTEPEERES

MEETIHB2013F4E4
EEMER

ARBALERA KB EEHA

BREANERAEREMTS

AT
L
FRERIAS

1000MW #5 B EG AR IE HiflT ik
EIEH

State key project of research on 8,220,000.00 Ll gayiEl
AP1000 evaporator manufacturing Related to income
technology

Deficit enterprise subsidies 3,578,958.00 Ll gayiEl

Related to income

Industrial enterprises development 3,000,000.00 il gayiEle
funds 2014 Related to income

Rewards for the first series of product 2,000,000.00 el gayiEl
from Harbin Economic Development Related to income
in2013

Xiangjiaba large-scale mixed-flow water 2,000,000.00 ezl
turbine generators Related to income

Development of valves for ultra- 1,910,000.00 Ll gayiEl
supercritical thermal power Related to income
generators

Well-known trademark award 1,500,000.00 Ll gayiEl

Related to income

Funds for development and 1,300,000.00 il gayiEle

industrialization of high performance Related to income

electric motors for new energy
automobile

Technology reform for 1000MW 1,000,000.00 Ll gayiEl
low-rank coal supercritical boilers Related to income

N
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(&)

Notes to the 20?@? *Fir;‘ancial Statements (continued)
GASFRIERAA -

(BTN &EEIBRA ()
TTAEREE BT ()

#EER

—O—EFEMBEHRRMET @

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

Items

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(58) Non-operating income (continued)

Government grants recognized into profit and loss in

the current period (continued)

THBESH

Current period

Preceding period

o5

THBREEE

BEEER/
R Eatitl

Related to assets/

related to income

ABEREMAT5%E - KB Research on key general technology 1,000,000.00 el eyl
AREEREREERANR for equipment such as large-scale Related to income
% half-speed saturated steam turbines

and large-scale steam turbine
generators
Hith Others 13,209,153.32 20,034,655.69
ait 111,785,34453  92,918,453.61
(ETh) &R (59) Non-operating expenses
STAEH
ERFEURER
TERERE AR o]
Amount included
Current Preceding  in non-recurring
A Items period period profit or loss
FERBDEEREBRLAF Total loss on disposal of non-current
assets 7,679,596.57 2,418,165.82 7,679,596.57
He: BAREERERX Including: Loss on disposal of fixed
assets 7,679,596.57 2,418,165.82 7,679,596.57
BYEERERX Loss on disposal of intangible
assets - -

EEMREX Loss on debt restructuring

FEBHEEERBIBL Loss on trading of non-cash assets 8,119.66 8,119.66

¥HMBEE Donation to external parties - -

Hit Others 122,122,257.27  325,852,330.91  122,122,257.27

At Total 129,809,973.50  328,270,496.73  129,809,973.50

HitsxHE2R=H"—

EBRXM -

Other expenses mainly represent the transfer

expenditures of “three supply in one industry”.



oA BBREERBER

(&)

(751)

—0O—

T FE IR RMEE @

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

FEHER

1HH

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(60) INCOME TAX EXPENSES

REBAER FHBLEE

Items Current period Preceding period

BEOE RARRRE R ERE B

Current income tax calculated based on tax

155 law and related regulations 193,786,106.61 241,301,310.30

EEFTIST A% Adjustment to deferred income tax 30,786,039.11  -10,556,579.09

&t Total 224,572,145.72  230,744,731.21

(A BEHRhEXRBTER (61) Supplementary information of cash flow statements
1 BEREXRAZER 1. Supplementary information of cash flow
statements
RERR A AR
HA Items Current period  Preceding period

1 BENERS AL EDRSE

1.

Reconciliation of net profit to cash flow

mE of operating activities
e Z Al Net profit 83,287,995.71 134,165,345.99
n:BEREEE Add: Provision for assets impairment 467,719,970.24  1,122,771,078.41
ETEENE  hREE Depreciation of fixed assets, depletion
Ik EEMEMEE of oil and gas assets, depreciation of
e productive biological assets 706,523,916.01 687,786,976.08
B EEEE Amortisation of intangible assets 56,246,205.22 47,460,682.86
REBFREBREE Amortisation of long-term deferred
expenses 7,324,893.96 862,795.22
REETEE BFEEM Loss on disposal of fixed assets,
Hih REPEEMBEL intangible assets and other long-term
(MezabA [-] 5738E51) assets (or less: decrease) -13,997,584.39 -5,423,432.86
El5E & EmEE R (e Loss on scrapped fixed assets
[-]5738E%) (or less: decrease) 693,627.59
ARBEEZEEX (WE Loss on change in fair value
(-] 5E5)) (or less: decrease) 311,084,334.36 -1,080,807,895.32
B8 B (YR AT - J5RES)) Financial expenses (or less: decrease) 298,426,637.62 279,280,695.72
BEBK(WaEAI-]9ES])  Investment loss (or less: decrease) -619,045,662.96  -270,418,645.02

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

oA BBREERBER

(&)

Ft-RERERBEEN (B)

1

RBEnBRwEx AR (E)

HH

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(61) Supplementary information of cash flow statements

(continued)

1.

Items

statements (continued)

THBER

Current period

Supplementary information of cash flow

i ik

Preceding period

BEMBHREERD
(SN T 5R3EF1)
ERFASH A EE M
OB A T-] 573E751)
FERR D CBIA [-] 5%
E7)
R EAIA R FR D
(SN T 5R3EF1)
R RAIE R AIE AN
OB A T-] 573E51)
Hit
RETHELNRSRE
R

BELH

BEHEBRER
—ERIPHAIERNRIES

BMEBABTEE

C RE LR EEMFEHERL 3

RemBRHRE
B RENETSRE
m: ReSEYNERGE

B ReEENNESRE

Re kR SZEWFHENR

Decrease in deferred tax assets

(or less: increase)

Increase in deferred tax liabilities

(or less: decrease)

Decrease in inventories

(or less: increase)

Decrease of operating receivables

(or less: increase)

Increase of operating payables

(or less: decrease)
Others

Net cash flows from operating activities

C AHFRIBEWTHEAREM 2. Significant investing and financing
activities that do not involve cash
receipts and payments

Conversion of debt into capital
Convertible company bonds due within

one year

Fixed assets held under finance leases
Net movement in cash and cash

equivalents

Cash at the end of the period
Less: cash at the beginning of period
Add: cash equivalents at end of the

period

Less: cash equivalents at beginning of

the period

Net increase in cash and cash

equivalents

15,737,283.98

1,306,030,901.92

693,164,981.97

1,098,118,227.99

4,410,622,101.63

17,178,496,464.76
13,563,036,710.58

-52,225,866.05

-17,689,987.45

-1,773,429,092.72

622,411,651.09

1,812,703,5650.62

1,508,141,484.16

13,563,036,710.568
11,888,283,751.99

3,615,459,754.18

1,674,752,958.59
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(58) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
AM-RERERBRER(8) (61) Supplementary information of cash flow statements

(continued)
FHENHREFRANES 2. Net cash paid for acquiring subsidiaries during
JFE the period
k-
Amount

AEREE A A R A EE X (S #93R £ 3l Cash and cash equivalents paid for business

REFEY combination in the current period 27,804,100.00
B AFATARSANES Less: cash and cash equivalents held by
MIREEEY subsidiaries at purchasing date 17,902,748.04
I LARTHAR A M EAH Add: Cash and cash equivalents paid for business

MRS MRS KIREEEY  combination in the prior period

BEFRARZAHREFE Net cash paid for acquiring subsidiaries 9,901,351.96
THKFWEEFAAHES 3. Net cash received for disposal of subsidiaries
JHEE during the period
X
Amount

ANEFRRE T A Al R AU B #) 2R 4 53R & Cash and cash equivalents received from disposal

=By of subsidiaries for the period 2,800,000.00
B RKITHIER T AR AMIEE  Less: cash and cash equivalents held by
REEEED subsidiaries at the date of loss of control 579,202.24
o ARTHAREIRR B A AR AHAULEIR)  Add: Cash and cash equivalents received for
RedREFEY disposal of subsidiaries in the prior period

BETFRAaRANREFRE Net cash received for disposal of subsidiaries 2,220,797.76

N
@
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

I EHUBBRRERZRBEERE

(&)

(xt-

(A=

JRERERFBAEN (B)

4 BLHBELEZEBYHEK :

V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(61) Supplementary information of cash flow statements
(continued)

4. The composition of cash and cash equivalents:

HARERE FHIART
HH Items Closing balance  Opening balance
— B 1. Cash 17,178,496,464.76 13,563,036,710.58
Heh: EFEHEE Including: Cash on hand 6,202,630.84 1,830,478.82
A RERE AR I RRTT Bank deposit available for
% payment at any time 2,844,191,080.65  2,694,330,654.87
AEERARS MREME Other monetary funds
KES available for payment at
any time 92,263.44
AR BT R R R Deposits in central banks
115038 available for payment 605,122,059.14 2,476,160.98
TFHR %508 Deposit in other banks 13,722,980,694.13 10,864,307,152.47
FIRERIE Loans to other banks
Z -ReEEY 2. Cash equivalents

Hep: ZEARNIB0EFRE

= WMRRENREFEMHRE 3

VAR EREZERFINEE

Including: Bond investment due in three
months
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of

the period 17,178,496,464.76 13,563,036,710.58

(62) Assets with title or use right restrictions

ENEAEE RERNE AERSIE HAREEE
Closing
Opening carrying Increase during Decrease carrying
FERZERFAMNEEER  Type of assets with title restrictions amount the year during the year amount
— ARERNEE . Assets for guarantee: 147,101,696.26 - 1942877881 121,672,917.45
1 BTEEREEEM). fixed assets(property) 97,482,481.79 - 328,888.08  97,153,593.71
2 BYEE(MERE)2.  Intangible assets(and use right)  30,580,966.54 - 61,642.80  30,519,323.74
3 BEFEE(KEHRE) 3. fixed assets(machinery and

equipment) 19,038,247.93 - 19,038,247.93 -

~ o HMRRERAAESE Nl Restricted assets due to other
Rlg & E reason 8,078,210.73 - 250000000  5578210.73
H - B¥ES Including: cash and bank balances ~ 8,078,210.73 - 250000000  5578,2210.73
aaf Total 155,179,906.99 - 2192877881 133,251,128.18
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

A ERREEZFEAGE V. NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
(&) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(RTI)MEEHEMIER (63) FOREIGN CURRENCY MONETARY ITEMS 287
HARITE T
FRINERRER FHER ARMEHE g
Foreign l?_n
currency at Converted into §_
the end of the RMB at the end %
HE Items year Exchange rate of the period g
3
c
gEe Cash on hand 3.
E usD 96,663,5609.61 6.4936 627,694,166.03 2
BT Euro 7,313,298.85 7.0952  51,889,318.00 >
s HKD 20,977.15 6.4936 136,217.25 2
e British Pound 1,320.00 9.6159 12,692.99 §
Hit Others 2,315,577,618.81 62,423,669.22 '§
3
&t Total 2,419,576,724.43 742,156,063.49 v
FEUTAR K Trade receivables
E usD 80,645,145.46 6.4936 523,677,316.55
Hth Others 1,285,856.05 1,370,555.39
aat Total 81,931,001.51 525,047,871.94
H Uk Other receivables
ETT usD 13,325,044.21 6.4936  86,527,5607.10
Bt Euro 52,145.00 7.0952 369,979.20
A, Others 3,814,500,155.04 24,442,774.94
&t Total 3,827,877,344.25 111,340,261.24
PSEEIEEN Short-term borrowings
EY usD 80,000,000.00 6.4936 519,488,000.00
AN

a&t Total 80,000,000.00 6.4936  519,488,000.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(&)

(AR EERE (8)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

AU BERREREBEE

NOTES TO KEY ITEMS IN CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(63) FOREIGN CURRENCY MONETARY ITEMS (continued)

FRIMNEERE
Foreign
currency at
the end of the

BMRITE
HEER ARMEREE
Converted into
RMB at the end

EHE Items year Exchange rate of the period
FETBR SR Trade payables
ESS Usb 17,658,117.73 6.4936 114,664,753.27
HAth Others 111,220,255.10 568,575.75
A&t Total 128,878,372.83 115,233,329.02
H R Other payables
ESD usD 1,633,782.48 6.4936  10,609,129.90
EHAh Others 3,666,334,132.00 1,903,708.24
A&t Total 3,667,967,914.48 12,512,838.14




“O—EFEMBEHRRME @

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

N BHEENRE
(=) HE—ZHTEEAH

(=) R—EFTEESH

1 FXEBREWE—FHTEFEES

VI. CHANGES IN THE CONSOLIDATED SCOPE

(1) Business combination not involving enterprises under

common control

Nil.

(2) Business combination involving enterprises under

common control

1. Business combination involving enterprises

5 under common control in current period
AHERSNZE  AHERDIZ
PEAHIRE BHE-BHTLE SHBRANT  ANBRAHS HBEEEAH LEEERAH
HabnER WERLE AfHfE 2B AHANRERE LON HERE FHEA FHEAE
Merged party's ~ Merged party's
income from  net profit from
Basis of business the beginning  the beginning  Merged party's  Merged party's
Equity ratio of  combination involving period of period of  income during net profit during
Name of business enterprises under combinationto  combination to comparing comparing
merged party combination common control ~ Merger date Basis of merger date merger date  merger date period period
hRAEREER 100 REBRERESEN 201511 FEME BERAHA 237557581 84385588 1,420,769.29 697,663.80
A A7 EERARE
Harbin Electric The subsidiary of Settlement of payment,
Corporation parent company obtain effective control
HE Group of the merged party
2. ABfHRE 2. Combination cost
X a 7N Combination cost 27,804,100.00
—H4 — Cash 27,804,100.00
— B EENEREEER — Book value of the non-cash assets

— BITHAENEHNREEE
— BITHRREMEESFOEE
— KB EHE

— Book value of liabilities incurred or assumed
— Par value of Equity Securities Issued
— Contingent consideration

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

N EHEENEE @ VI. CHANGES IN THE CONSOLIDATED SCOPE
(continued)
(=) FA—E4To2a6(48) (2) Business combination involving enterprises under

common control (continued)

[ERASIEAUREESE Y-

B GL0Z

3 AMABSHLSEE BFE&H 3. Book value of the assets and liabilities of the
EEERE merged party on merger date
KEERESRLA
Harbin Electric Corporation
BEH EFHIEIR
HAB Items At the end of
Date of  the preceding
purchase period
BE - Assets: 35,577,172.96  33,229,483.03
&S Cash and cash equivalents 17,902,748.04  17,047,491.83
e F 1B Trade receivables 14,869,461.66 14,942,524.60
FE Inventory
BEE&E Fixed assets 27,807.81 23,429.11
mEEE Intangible assets
=L Liabilities: 9,796,938.35 8,293,104.30
&k Borrowings
FET 7RI Trade payables 7,779,791.59 7,964,480.84
FEE Net assets 25,780,234.61 24,936,378.73
A DEIR RS Less:minority interests
WMEHFEE Net assets acquired 25,780,234.61 24,936,378.73
(=) RAEE (3) Reversed Purchase

@ o Nil.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
SEEMHBARET)

(BRASTREERASN -

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

t EHMEBPHES
(=) EFARP M

1

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES

(1) Interests in subsidiaries

PEEFNEL 1. Structure of the Group
FARER TEQLER s XKHE FRLEEB (%) REAR
Principal place Place of Proportion of
Name of subsidiaries of business registration Business nature shareholdings (%) Way of procurement
H# k3
Direct Indirect
RAERERERELAR BEE BEE BuE% 92.08 (&S IN
Harbin Boiler Company Limited Harbin Harbin Manufacture Contribution from
shareholders

REEERBERALAR REA A g% 89.63 FRERIBA

Harbin Electrical Machinery Harbin Harbin Manufacture Contribution from
Company Limited shareholders

RREABERERETRR BERE REE SUEE 7091 AREIRA

Harbin Turbine Company Limited ~ Harbin Harbin Manufacture Contribution from

shareholders

RREERERIREREALR BRE A BhE% 100 RE

Harbin Electric International Harbin Harbin Manufacture Investment
Company Limited

RERERBERIERR REA A FR# % 75 RE
FOBRAE

Harbin Power Equipment National ~ Harbin Harbin Service Investment
Engineering Research Centre
Co., Ltd

BB NNRE SRR REE RERE HOE5 55.56 M8  HBE
BRAR (1)

Harbin Power Technology & Harbin Harbin Export trading Investment
Trade Inc. (Note 1)

RESE(RER)ELRA RER RER g% 11.28 7832  ®E
BRAA(5E2)

Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD)  Qinhuangdao Qinhuangdao Manufacture Investment
Heavy Equipment Company
Limited (Note 2)

RAEERIDNERERRR BEE BEE % 100 RE

Harbin Electric Power Equipment  Harbin Harbin Manufacture Investment

Company Limited

N
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=
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ EHMERBIHESR® VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

(=) EFRAAFHER(E) (1) Interests in subsidiaries (continued)
292 1 EEFHEL(E) 1. Structure of the Group (continued)
T FARER TERE s (KHE BRI (%) BEAR
g*
i Principal place Place of Proportion of
'dyﬂ Name of subsidiaries of business registration Business nature shareholdings (%) Way of procurement
ﬂ E# k3
X2 Direct Indirect
=
ot
f\‘? REEERMETNEMNERAR WRE IBRE BuE% 100 RE
‘Dj HE Harbin Power Plant Valve Harbin Harbin Manufacture Investment
Company Limited
S
pr REEERRBERBES REA IBRE FR7 % 100 ®E
H BREERA
# HE Modern Manufacturing Service  Harbin Harbin Service Investment

Industry Company Limited

RREEREENBERAR REE REE 2R 55 3316  E—HEHITREAN
A (7E3)
Harbin Electric Corporation Finance ~Harbin Harbin Finance Business combination
Company Limited (Note 3) under common
control
RB=MEHEEREMERF (F4) K#B AR g% 40.7 BEIUF
Chengdu Sanliya China Clay Chengdu Chengdu Manufacture Settlement

Company Limited (Note 4)

FHRBEETEERAR(GES) A N 25 60 ®RE
Shenzhen Harbin Power Huihua Shenzhen Shenzhen Trading Investment

Trading Company Limited
ORYITRBEETEERAR)

(Note 5)
MEEREEARA BEE IRHE E R A R 100 A5 TR E Ak
BEFEMILE
Harbin Electric (HE) Corporation Harbin Harbin Wholesale of other Business combination
machineries and under common
equipment and control

electronic products
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

t  -EHEMGEBDHES @)
(=) EFATP M (F)
1 PEEEMHWA (E)

HEFRBWF R AR &
SRIELLBIE R ER

1 WREBOBREESR
MERARNRELRE
778N B FFA% 55.55% -
AREFRAAIGRESR
RERIEAEREEL
RN 27.77% WA
BEBMAREMELRRA
MERARERERET
UNGIRILCY NPt 3
EREARAZHER
5.56% @ NN A G HFEF
[1%97.38% -

2 WMEEE(RES)EH
B IR~ A #) IR i 45
PN/ S
34.15% * NAEF R A
BREEKEmERET
AR BRERERSE
RETABMEEEAR
HRBMAEREEAAS
#%21.95% « AAEE
HH150%89.60% °

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

(1

Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

1.

Structure of the Group (continued)

Descriptions on the difference between the
proportion of shareholdings in subsidiaries and the
proportion of voting rights

1. Harbin Power Technology & Trade Inc. is
owned as to 55.55%, 27.77%, 5.56%, 5.56%
and 5.56% by the Company, Harbin Electric
International Company Limited, Harbin
Electrical Machinery Company Limited, Harbin
Boiler Company Limited and Harbin Turbine
Company Limited (subsidiaries of the
Company), respectively. The Company owns
an aggregate shareholding interest of 97.38%
in Harbin Power Technology & Trade Inc.

2. Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy

Equipment Company Limited is owned as to
34.15%, 21.95%, 21.95% and 21.95% by the
Company, Harbin Electrical Machinery
Company Limited, Harbin Boiler Company
Limited and Harbin Turbine Company Limited
(subsidiaries of the Company), respectively.
The Company owns an aggregate shareholding
interest of 89.60% in Harbin Electric
Corporation (QHD) Heavy Equipment Company
Limited.

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

t  -EHEMGEBDHES @)
(=) EFATP M (F)

1

TEKEAEL (E)
3- MMEEREEVKE

RETARNBRELEE
78X A FFAR 55.00%
KRB FRBIGHESE
RERIRAERETA
A% 18.00% © MEE
BERBEREELA
BERERERERET
7 A A G BR VA T R
ERETRAESHER
6.00% * AR A A HH
f%88.16% °

B FHEATRRE BN
BB R URFHF¥H
A FRABETIZEGIHIREE
LRI

BRE=NTEHREGRE
FRABIMBRELEE AR
NEFRA070% 0 B
FORBELL B R 40.70% -
EAARAFK L EELE
EZGREFEN L
HEH AR o

YR BEETES
BARIREGEEABEAR
Al¥E R 60% + BB E
BARNAEHHEE -

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

(1

Interests in subsidiaries (continued)

1.

Structure of the Group (continued)

3.

Harbin Electric Corporation Finance Company
Limited is owned as to 55.00%, 18.00%,
6.00%, 6.00% and 6.00% by the Company,
Harbin Electric International Company Limited,
Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited,
Harbin Boiler Company Limited and Harbin
Turbine Company Limited (subsidiaries of the
Company), respectively. The Company owns
an aggregate shareholding interest of 88.16%
in Harbin Electric Corporation Finance Company
Limited.

Basis for the control of an investee while holding its

half or less than half voting rights, and the non-

control of an investee while holding its more than

half voting rights

Chengdu Sanliya China Clay Company Limited
is owned as to 40.70% by the Company, and
therefore 40.70% of voting rights is held by the
Company. As the Company is entitled to
appoint more than half of the members of the
board of directors of Chengdu Sanliya China
Clay Company Limited, the Company has
control over Chengdu Sanliya China Clay
Company Limited.

Shenzhen Harbin Power Huihua Trading
Company Limited CRYITaBIEETZEHR A
A]) is owned as to 60% by the Company.
However, it is not included in scope of
consolidation due to rectification.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

(=) EFDATHER(E)

2 EEWFEREFLRA

INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

(1) Interests in subsidiaries (continued)
2. Significant non-wholly owned subsidiaries

DBRR FHEER  AHRSHRR BROBERR

BRIES  SBRENES  SEIRNKRF EENE
Dividend

Loss attributable attributable to Balance of

Proportion of to minority minority interests minority interests

minority interests in the in the current at the end of

FARER Name of subsidiaries shareholdings current period period period

RRASHBRARELLT Harbin Electrical Machinery 1037 -15,234,520.65 - 53574851017
Company Limited

BREREREREAAF Harbin Boiler Company Limited 792 26,619,412.61 5,085,125.12  408779,885.01

WREIBERMARELAT  Harbin Turbine Company Limited 2909 -113,610,830.73 - -39,396,175.59

WEBAEREEYHARETAE Harbin Electric Corporation Finance 1184 15,006,155.23 1855,126.63  206,837,144.46
Company Limited

3 EEFREFRAANETENHK

3. Key financial information of significant non-

=8 wholly owned subsidiaries
BREBE
Balance at the end of period
RBEE FRBEE BEA RBAE FRBEE BRAH
Current Non-current Total Current Non-current Total
FTARERE Name of subsidiaries assets assets assets liabilities liabilities liabilities
BREEHEER Harbin Electrical 10,976,126,103.12  2,162,727,424.82  13,128,853,527.94  7,567,313,304.31 292,411,128.74  7,859,724,433.05
EGON! Machinery Company
Limited
BRERERER Harbin Boiler Company 18,606,310,948.64  1,673,873,860.15  20,280,184,808.79  14,882,462,358.15 227,609,560.90 15,110,071,919.05
G| Limited
RREARER Harbin Turbine 10,992,135,518.01  1,580,817,401.95 12,5672,952,919.96  12,513,707,354.92 193,232,365.14  12,706,939,720.06
BREMAR Company Limited
WEEEREEEH  Harbin Electric 15,856,142,346.84 83,770,831.17  15,939,913,178.01  14,197,922,055.11 14,197,922,055.11
BREMAR Corporation Finance

Company Limited

N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

t EEtGERPHER @

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

(=) EFATDRER(E) (1) Interests in subsidiaries (continued)
3 EEREFRAAWNETERHK 3. Key financial information of significant non-
8 (48) wholly owned subsidiaries (continued)
FNHE
Balance at the beginning of year
RBEE FRBEE BEAH RBaE FRBAR ClchH
Non-current Current Non-current Total
FRARER Name of subsidiaries ~ Current assets assets Total assets liabilities liabilities liabilities
IWEETHEAR  Harbin Electrical 11,569,285,480.86  2,256,380,821.88 13,825,666,302.74  8,152,814,124.30  217,022,98840  8,369,837,112.70
G| Machinery Company
Limited
ISEESABMBMR  Harbin Boiler Company 18,441,91144524  1,758,270,784.23  20,200,182,229.47 14,993,688796.11  309,607,664.36 15,303,296,460.47
/N Limited
IWEESBREEAR  Harbin Turbine 10,726,329,81320  1,708575588.02 12,434,905,40122 11,977,505,859.34  202,278,688.90 12,179,784,548.24
EGN! Company Limited
WEESRERNE  Harbin Electric 11,575,151,940.67  245,662,883.60 11,820,814,82427 10,184,952,359.24 10,184,952,369.24
BREMAH Corporation Finance
Company Limited
FHBRER
Current period
8%
EELION BHE  GAKEAE  FDRERE
Total Cash flows
Operating comprehensive  from operating
TARER Name of subsidiaries income Net profit income activities
WMEBEMMAREAR Harbin Electrical Machinery 4,658,746,647.31 -186,861,817.04 -186,861,817.04 1,048,885,752.79
Company Limited
WEERIEMAREMAR Harbin Boiler Company Limited 8,006,062,128.31  337,205,720.74  337,205,720.74 2,227,600,052.99
BREAREMAERERE  Harbin Turbine Company Limited  4,237,321,463.63  -390,549,435.32  -390,549,435.32 1,196,116,672.86

NG
REAEREENBAR

5
ERR

jeall]

Harbin Electric Corporation
Finance Company Limited

324,907,229.64

126,741,176.94

126,741,176.94

4,178,550,032.89
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

Company Limited
WMEEREHRARAMTAR Harbin Boiler Company Limited 7,666,525,059.14  353,652,714.56  353,652,714.56  257,817,648.72
WREAWERMAREM  Harbin Turbine Company Limited  4,089,968,401.17 -1,270,319,023.22 -1,270,319,023.22  65,186,278.11
NS
BEEEREENBEAER  Harbin Electric Corporation 236,404,973.26  103,062,590.34  103,062,590.34 4,772,594,399.50
EGNG Finance Company Limited

+ EEMEEFNERE) VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)
(=) EFRAAFHER(E) (1) Interests in subsidiaries (continued)
3 EBEEF2EFRANFEHNH 3. Key financial information of significant non- 297
8 (48) wholly owned subsidiaries (continued) -
QO
LR 5
m
Preceding period )
e &
I
EEWA FHE FEWBAE EHRETE S
Total Cash flows §
Operating comprehensive  from operating f,—
FARER Name of subsidiaries income Net profit income activities %
o
1
MEESHBARETLA  Harbin Electrical Machinery 5,249,461,849.28  -294,107,052.99  -294,107,052.99 1,246,186,969.66 3
Y
P
D
T
=]
=3
N
S
al
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

BB CERNER (2) INTERESTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENT OR
ASSOCIATES
BENLEPXERBERE 1. Significant joint ventures or associates
HagL%
RHELE
REME
RELEGBEOEER FTERE atff EBHE BREH (%) BERE
Accounting
Proportion of treatment for
shareholding (%) investment in
Name of joint Principal place  Place of B B  joint ventures
ventures or associates of business registration Business nature Direct Indirect or associates
BAER —RYHERES 225 2258 AR IR 4 E&A
(REB)BRAF
General Electric — Harbin Power  Qinhuangdao Qinhuangdao Energy 41 Equity method
Services (Qinhuangdao)
Company Limited
(BRER-RENERRE
(REB)BRATF)
HESEEKEAMEREELR HES HES g% 50 BaA
Huludao Binhai Hydro Power Huludao Huludao Manufacture 50 Equity method
Company Limited
(BESEBKIANER
BERA)

BE20% A TRAREARSE
B REFE20% AL
RREBTEBERFENK
% -

Basis for having significant influence while holding

less than 20% of voting rights, or not having

significant influence while holding more than 20% of

voting rights
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Notes to the 20?@? flrglanmal Statements (continued)
SORTEEASN

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

RS (o)

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

EZRETENTEHBER

(2)

INTERESTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENT OR
ASSOCIATES

2. Key financial information of significant associates

RER — BB HEE

RE%(RER)ERAR

General Electric — Harbin Power Services

(Qinhuangdao) Company Limited
(BRER — KB HEERRE
(REB)ARAT)
HRGRE AHREE FURE/ LHREE

Closing balance/

Opening balance/

1EH Items current period preceding period
REEE Current assets 292,001,517.86 302,473,384.18
Heh - | MBEZEY  Including: cash and cash equivalents 638,061.15 61,174,975.00
ERBEE Non-current assets 87,958,976.12 92,369,465.07
BEAH Total assets 379,960,493.98 394,842,849.25
mEEE Current liabilities 58,975,591.97 76,537,643.97
ERBEE Non-current liabilities
aE&as Total liabilities 58,975,591.97 76,537,643.97
DERR R ER Minority interests
BERSARREERS Equity attributable to owners of parent

company 320,984,902.01 318,305,205.28

HEZR

—AE

— ABRHRERMNE
—Hft
HRELRERREN
FREEE
BELHBENAE
CERERENDAEE

Proportionate share in net assets

Adjustments
— Goodwill

—Unrealized profit in internal trading

—Others

Carrying amount of investments in joint

ventures

Fair value of equity investments in joint

ventures in association with quoted price

131,603,809.82

131,064,661.88

130,5605,134.16

129,965,986.67

N
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(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

t EEtGERPHER @

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

() EAERHERES %S (E) (2) INTERESTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENT OR
ASSOCIATES (continued)

2 EEBECENFEHRKEE 2. Key financial information of significant associates
(&) (continued)

BRER - WEH&

ERR (RER)BRAH

General Electric — Harbin Power Services

(Qinhuangdao) Company Limited
(BRESR — REHERERE
(REB)ARAR)
HIRGAEE AHIRER FURE/LHREE

Closing balance/

Opening balance/

HA Items current period preceding period
BERA Operating income 223,700,565.59 267,249,854.75
B7EE R Financial expenses -2,373,607.29 -2,441,118.77
FTSHE MR Income tax expenses 12,532,508.64 20,039,850.15
FE Net profit 37,748,376.12 62,612,847.11
BRI E R FRE Net profit of discontinued operations

Hivsra Uz Other comprehensive income

AW ESE Total comprehensive income 37,748,376.12 62,612,847.11
AEEWD KRS Dividend from joint ventures received

B ERRF in the current year

14,378,159.00

25,132,119.81
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ FEEHMFEPPEDS @ VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)
(Z) EEERHRBEeEDER (8) (2) INTERESTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENT OR
ASSOCIATES (continued)
2 EEBECENFEHRKEE 2. Key financial information of significant associates
(&) (continued)
HEEBBKEAMGERETAT
Huludao Binhai Hydro Power
Company Limited
(HEEEBKERGEREETAT)
HREREE FEARE
REAR AR LTHAR AR
Closing balance/ Opening balance/
HA Items current period preceding period
mMBNEE Current assets 73,935,814.50 82,116,516.44
ERBEE Non-current assets 33,317,423.61 39,204,607.27
BEASE Total assets 107,253,238.11 121,321,123.71
mEEE Current liabilities 2,691,943.93 11,504,766.52
EREAGE Non-current liabilities
BEEs Total liabilities 2,691,943.93 11,504,766.52
DER R R Minority interests

EHE)SSYNCIE R £

HegR AR L B B B AR 5
BEEE
— R

— AR B RERNE

— Hft

BB ECFERRED
FREEE

FHEAFRENBELE

EERENDAER

Equity attributable to owners of
parent company

B Proportionate share in net assets

Adjustments
— Goodwill
— Unrealized profit in
internal trading
— Others
Carrying amount of investments in
associates
Fair value of equity investments in
associates in association with

quoted price

104,561,294.18
52,280,647.09

52,280,647.09

109,816,357.20
54,908,178.60

54,908,178.60

w
o
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ EEMEEFNERE)

(Z) EAERYRBELEPHES (F)

2 EEBECFENTEHKER

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

(2) INTERESTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENT OR
ASSOCIATES (continued)

2. Key financial information of significant associates

(&) (continued)
HESBEEKEAMEREELT
Huludao Binhai Hydro Power
Company Limited
(BESEBKERGEREMELA)
HiReREE, FHE
REAAER LHBAER
Closing balance/ Opening balance/
HA Items current period preceding period
=E LPN Operating income 44,494,991.24 48,364,202.55
FERE Net profit -5,255,063.01 893,555.69
AR Y FE T E Net profit of discontinued
operations
EfbaiRE WS Other comprehensive income
REWE R Total comprehensive income -5,255,063.01 893,555.69
REFIREIR R 5 B Dividend from associates received
== =olibel in current period 1,290,000.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

t EEtGERPHER @

VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES (continued)

(Z) EEETHRBELEPNESR(B) (2) INTERESTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENT OR

ASSOCIATES (continued)

3 TEENRERPENBELE 3. Combined financial information of immaterial

HY BB 48 57 15 15 2

joint ventures and associates

HAREREE
REBAER

Closing balance/

FARES
FHBERE

Opening balance/

HH Items current period preceding period
i Associates:
REFEmEBEA Total carrying amount of

TS TRIRFF A LL B
SHEMEEE
— FFE
— Hib4RE W
— AW

investment 49,786,115.41
The followings were calculated by

the proportion of shareholding

— Net profit -3,886,924.51

— Other comprehensive income

— Total comprehensive income -3,886,924.51

57,894,800.51

2,056,422.55

2,056,422.55

w
o
w
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

N\ EeRT EEBNERR

RAARELERIBPHESES M—LA:
EREK  mBRRMTE MR - AT
EEErHEERBEE B IEMBRAE
E o WHEREREEMNBERAERKRE
FeRARRERBERNE ERERR
Ml zs 2 MEGEE R TE - BREREKE
EEBENEEZERFRERIZEKT  £K
RREMEREEENNEEAE c £ F
ZEBEEBR  AAFRERERENER
REEEHEEMAM A FTEENSERRE -
BUAE N RBAR EETETRRE IR
WEEISEHESERRETES  #&R
PRt HER EREE 2 A ©

(—) ERRR

ERRREEESRIAN - TET
B% - ERS —HEEMBIELNE

o RAREEMERRIHETHNEP
1+}EHJ—W“ o EEEIFNER A - AR
Al YRR P 15 AR e TR A
BIEINEB(E R AT R ANFE S LB R T Y

RITEEFR (8 L5 S ERE) -

NAHE—REPHERE TRERE -
ZRBLABRTRSHEIMUENZ KR
JZ o

VIII.RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS

The Company is exposed to a variety of financial risks in its
operations: credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. The Board of
the Company is fully responsible for formulating risk
management objectives and policies of and undertakes ultimate
responsibility for these objectives and policies. The risk
management objectives of the Company are to get balance
between risk and earnings, minimize the negative effects of
these risks on the operation performance, and maximum the
benefit of shareholders and other equity investors. Therefore the
basic risk management policies of the Company are to confirm
and analyze various risks faced by the Company, determine the
bearing limit, manage the risks, supervise all risks in a timely
manner and in a cautions way, and control the risks to be within
a specific extent.

() Creditrisk

Credit risk refers to the risk that the counterparty to a
financial instrument would fail to discharge its obligation
under the terms of the financial instrument and cause a
financial loss to the Group. The Company’'s credit risk
primarily relates to the credit sales to customers. Before
signing new contracts, the Company assesses the credit
risk exposure of the new customers, including obtaining
external credit ratings and bank certificates under certain
circumstances (if available). The Company sets credit sales
limit to each customers, and such limit is the maximum
limit without additional approval requirements.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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N-Ee@T BEEENERE VIII.RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (continued)

(=) ERRRE) () Credit risk (continued)

RAEBHEBTFPERFARNETE
B REBERSERER DT A&
ZORFER R R BB (E R A 2
MEEAN - EEREPNERRR
B R EPMERSHEESAE -
wF R RRAR] BRINEFERE
XRHIEFHRER - WHRBEREI
RAERRERT - AR AIEAR KR
N ERE  TRIVAZREERX
FHRERIR

™iH R

eMIANTIZER  fEEMIA
WARBEIKRKEEREATISE
& BB M ERENER - BIEIME
Bk FMERBR ARIEEERE
201612 A31H - RRIMEZES
TERMFHEERNMSERMKO - 8
EREEGREREEEENER

The Company ensures the overall credit risk of the
Company is limited to a controllable extent by monitoring
the credit ratings of the existing customers on a quarterly
basis and reviewing the ageing analysis of trade receivables
on a monthly basis. When monitoring the credit risk
exposure of customers, the Company divides the
customers into groups according to their credit risk
characteristics. Customers with “high risk” rating are
included in the list of restricted customers. The Company
could grant credit sales to the restricted customers in
future periods only when additional approval is obtained,
otherwise the Company should demand the restricted
customers to pay the relevant amounts in advance.

Market risk

Market risk in financial instruments refers to the risk arising
from changes in the fair value of financial instruments or
future cash flows as a result of the fluctuation of market
price, including exchange rate risk, interest rate risk. In the
opinion of the Company's management, as at 31 December
2015, there is no significant market risk exposure in the
Company’s major financial instruments, but the

management will timely monitor the relevant risk.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

N -EemTEHEHBNERBRS®)

(=) mEmEE(E)

(1)

(2)

FEm B

MERR  RETBIAND
AEEIRKRSARERATS
MERBETE LRI R
AR B R R E AL T ERTT
ERRENESSEEE -
FPNENERABEEARE
mREREMNEER - EEH
EMERABEEAREBERS
EEMERR AREREE
Ry B T 35 3R 5 SROR TE 8] 7€ ) K
KFEHEEROBEE LG -
ARBENEESH 5| LEFT
ARSREZDMERETEM
FENEBITERER - AR
BB R AR 15 18 L B SRE %
BFIE - LUBRMEZFHHA
A EBERR

SHE B BE

SMNERR - REEBMITAND
REEZRFERRERINE
PE R BT B AR B AR o
AR R A SNE [ B I B R SR
BT BELRREER
W BRARRTBTFRAARH
BERBIRTRBER A RIAZE
T BT B MRS ETT
REMEEIN  RAREME
BEEKFPIUARELEE -

VIII.RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

() Market risk (continued)

(1)

(2)

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk arising from
changes in the fair value of financial instruments or
future cash flows as a result of the fluctuation of
market interest rates. The interest rate risk of the
Company is caused by bank loan and interest-bearing
liability relating to bonds payables. The financial
liability with floating interest rate will cause cash flow
interest rate risk, and the financial liability with fixed
rate will cause fair value interest rate risk to the
Company. The Company determines the proportion
between fixed-rate and variable-rate contracts based
on the prevailing market environment. The risk of
cash flow changes of financial instruments caused by
interest rate change relates mainly with bank loans
with floating interest rate. The policy of the Company
is to maintain the floating rate of the loan to reduce
the risk of fair value changes caused by interest rate
change.

Exchange rate risk

Exchange rate risk refers to the risk arising from
changes in the fair value of financial instruments or
future cash flows as a result of the fluctuation of
foreign exchange rates. The exchange rate risk faced
by the company mainly related to USD, Euro, HKD
and British Pound. Except Harbin Electric
International Engineering Company Limited, the
subsidiary of the Company, mainly use USD, Euro,
HKD and British Pound to settle its purchase and
sale, other principal business activities of the
Company are settled in RMB.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
SREEMHAEAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

N -ESRT BABRERR (5)

(Z) REHRER
mEEE

(BRASTREERASN -

VIII.RISKS RELATED TO FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (continued)

EREFEBITARZNER

SREMEREENT AGENER
REEETERAAR - AARAIK
RERRAEBRENR S N EETH
B o RBDIER R f 78~ =) A 7% 5D
FIsER M| - M EF I BEEITIRE
A ERERNEEESARY
ARNZEARSRENRBIEAR
R A REMA R EIRRAMER T U

BREMESERETR

RAFENEHEENSREBIZR
FRRERE FEBEODHHR S0

T

A REENKE

N

-

=Y
RIS

(EEFEMERNBAEI S R=1E

—  S—ERBAERENE A ARG
i R A B (A B8 RS

HERHRE

— F_ERBAERRF-ERBAE
SMER B EX REERNER AR

HE AR

— F-EBRXBAERHEBEEXAEN

THERBAE-

RRABEAEERMBOER  BHAR
EEAERRMEAREEEENHAER

BB RIEE IORTE -

(1)

Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an enterprise will encounter
difficulty in meeting obligations that are settled by
delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's
policy is to ensure it has sufficient cash to settle the debts
when they fall due. The Company's finance department
centralized control on liquidity risk. Through monitoring
cash balance, readily realizable marketable securities and
the rolling forecasts of cash flow for the next 12 months,
the finance department will ensure it has sufficient fund to
settle its debts under all reasonable foreseeable

circumstances.

The maturity profile of the Company’s financial assets and
financial liabilities at each balance sheet date based on
contractual undiscounted payments is analysed below:

FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE

The inputs used to measure fair value are categorized into three

hierarchies:

Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the Company
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 inputs are inputs other than quoted prices included
within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,
either directly or indirectly.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The level of fair value measurement is determined by the lowest

level inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement as

a whole.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T BEBEAIRBEHRS X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS
308 (=) XATNBATER () Details of parent company
5 BARHAAF HERDFAH
% BARER it B4 AMER(Br) 0OEREH (%) RRELH (%)
g&i Holding  Voting right
% Registered proportion proportion
%\ capital over the over the
RE Name of parent company  Place of registration Business nature (tenthousand) ~ Company (%)  Company (%)
‘D_)”
§ BRREEREELA RRE BubRERE BT 198,818.10 50.93 50.93
_‘;; Harbin Electric Corporation Harbin Manufacture and sales of
] power station equipment
(Z) XAFNFARER () Details on the Company’ s subsidiaries
AEEFRARNBERLFRAMTL Please refer to (1) Interests in subsidiaries under Note VIII.
EEMERFOER L (—)ETR INTERESTS IN OTHER ENTITIES for details on the
AR AR o Company’s subsidiaries.
(Z) KATWEENHELERBR () Details on the Company’ s joint ventures and
associates
AEESENSLYHESDEFSR KN Please refer to (2) INTERESTS IN JOINT ARRANGEMENT
Misr+ - EEM R Ry (2) OR ASSOCIATES under Note VII. INTERESTS IN OTHER
EERELH L DERARER - ENTITIES for details on the Company’s significant joint

ventures and associates.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

w
o
[de]

T BB A REHR S @) X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
() HbREEAIER (IV) Details on other related parties
HitEs G 28 H A BAR 5 R D R E
Name of related parties Relationships with the Company
MEAREEENERAT A—BARAEHNTAT
HEC Industrial Development Company Controlled by the same parent company
MEBERIBEEMEANA A —&RARIEHEFRA]
Harbin Boiler Industrial Company Controlled by the same parent company
MEER S EEMEE DT A —&RAREHEFRA]
Harbin Electric Industrial Development Company Limited Controlled by the same parent company
MBI EEMEE LA A — &N A F R A
Harbin Sanlian Industrial Development Company Limited Controlled by the same parent company
MEBE LB S AR A — &N B ) F 2 F]
Harbin Industrial Kiln Associate Controlled by the same parent company
MBEEREEMMEEREGRETAA A —&RAREHEFRA]
Archeng Relay Company Limited Controlled by the same parent company
BREEGEIMERNAERAF A — &N A F R A

Harbin Qingyuan Electric Material Co., Ltd. Controlled by the same parent company
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

() BBXIZER (V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

+ BEAIRBEBRS @

AR 2 AN HERHE
RBETT R ER - EIFRB TR

The transaction prices of the related party transactions
were agreed by the Company and related parties, and were

ENANERUR

B GL0Z

SHEBR—H

B#EER  BRNEZEHY
BHXs

REmm EXEBERR

)y

Related parties

in line with the transaction prices of non-related party

transactions.

1. Purchase and sales of goods, rendering and

receiving services

Purchase of goods/receiving of services

BHISZAR
Content of
transaction

REBAER

Current period

EEIEEAERR

Preceding period

MEBBEELEIMHRNO AR REEm 24,473,182.29 35,070,903.33
Harbin Qingyuan Electric Material Co., Ltd. Purchase of goods
MEREREMELHERT REE R 22,598,678.52 23,637,469.25
Harbin Electric Material Trading Purchase of goods

(holding) Company
MERERIRE XAEERT BREH% 33,662,298.20 16,868,135.10
HBC Industrial Development Company Receiving of services
MERARIMEMEBHERETAT R 31,660,915.56 33,110,955.02
Harbin Boiler Company Limited Purchase of goods
MERERREUEGFAREETAR BE B 780,974.40 544,449.06
Harbin Boiler Company Limited Receiving of services
MBI EEERE AR REEE 1,149,854.37 2,256,519.14
Harbin Industrial Kiln Associate Purchase of goods
MBI EERE AR BEX B 331,068.37
Harbin Industrial Kiln Associate Receiving of services
MRERESBERBHAREETIAR REEm 29,758,528.58 46,317,104.66
Harbin Electric Metal Component Purchase of goods

Company Limited
BREERSEEMNNEEEFREELNT REEm 405,032.48 9,691,018.80

Archeng Relay Company Limited
RRERAEERERAT
Harbin Electric Industrial

Development Company Limited

Purchase of goods
BRB%

Receiving of services

13,876,752.14

20,093,594.03
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(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

+ BEMAIRBERS @ X.

(R) BBXZER(E)

1. [B#HER - RBEAERIEHDH
FHx 5 (1E)

HEmMR RESHEREK
o)y

Related parties

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

1. Purchase and sales of goods, rendering and
receiving services (continued)

Purchase of goods/receiving of services (continued)

BHIXSZAE
Content of

REAB A EHEAERR

transaction Current period Preceding period

MEBRERIBMEERETEAF
Harbin Boiler Property Company Limited
RRERESMEEEEREMEAR

BRBB

Receiving of services

7 o Juk
%X 55 1%

265,781.89 1,821,050.12

Harbin Electric Property Management Limited Receiving of services

MEB =B EEMBEENT

Harbin Sanlian Industrial
Development Company Limited

BMREREMEEEAREEIAR

BERBH

Receiving of services

2,537,407.65 2,231,508.73

%1% 7,743,040.84 7,106,460.80

Harbin Electric Property Management Limited Receiving of services

MEERIBRESR IIEAREMERA
Harbin Boiler & Container Company Limited
MBEREBEEMERARA
HEC Industrial Development Company
MEEMEEEMBEENT
HEC Industrial Development Company
e B 918 B R 2 e
Harbin Boiler Maintenance Hospital
MEERIBEEREQRERDA
Harbin Boiler Industrial Development
(Catering Service) Company Limited
MEAEERERRBEBEREEAA
Harbin Berg Electrical Structure
Company Limited
BRAERRIBE TR ERA R
Harbin Boiler Industrial Technology Limited
MEAEEREEEARTERIRNOERDA]
Jiamusi Electric Machine Company Limited

At

Total

R m

Purchase of goods
X%

Receiving of services
REEm

Purchase of goods
BRE%

Receiving of services
X%

Receiving of services

19,488,180.24

25,492,688.39 25,594,372.08
1,729,354.17 6,505,786.56
1,683,465.10
17,423,396.11

REEE M

Purchase of goods

1,314,511.87 1,409,439.62

R
Purchase of goods
AR @

Purchase of goods

16,819,892.40

1,111,111.11

198,891,180.83 287,573,700.15
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T BEEARBEBRS @) X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
312 () BBXIZERGE) (V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
5 1 BiHEEm RUHAESEBLY 1.  Purchase and sales of goods, rendering and
% BEHX5 (4E) receiving services (continued)
it
;}' R R IR SR E R & Sale of goods/rendering of services
E%
=
af B BHIZAE REREEAER EREE AR
ng Content of
2 Related parties transaction Current period Preceding period
2
o KEEREREMEALF PER 45,275.22 9,300.43
] HEC Industrial Development Company Sales of goods
MEEMEEEMBEENT RIS 319,125.40
HEC Industrial Development Company Rendering of
services
BRBEREMELIHE AT HEMM 4,249,602.13 5,450,050.19
Harbin Electric Material Trading Sales of goods
(holding) Company
MBAEMECEEBNHEREELAA $HE 3,151,875.96 20,365,570.71
Harbin Electric Metal Component Sales of goods

Company Limited
MEERRRERS TIRGREERR heft 85 7% 23,256.54
Harbin Boiler & Container Company Limited  Rendering of

services
MERERIRE XAEEAT R 327,731.51
HBC Industrial Development Company Rendering of
services
MEEMRIRRE TRBRMER AR HEREm 2,210.68
Harbin Boiler Industrial Technology Limited  Sales of goods
MM IDIRE TR ER AR R 1,034,044.60
Harbin Boiler Industrial Technology Limited ~ Rendering of
services
MEERREREHTARETAR heft g5 20,000.00
Harbin Boiler Company Limited Rendering of
services
BRERAEERERLAT HE R o 2,017,094.00 76,923.08
Harbin Electric Industrial Development Sales of goods
Company Limited
A&t 9,483,847.31 27,608,213.14

Total




“O—EFEMBEHRRME @

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

"BEBRAIRBEBRS @)

(H) BBXZER(E)
2. EHEXMHFE

X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

2. Interest on borrowings

FHBEH ab i) g
Current period Preceding period

HRERS ERERS

)y BEXZRE S SEMLH(%) ®E  SEMLH(%)

Proportion of Proportion of

similar similar

Content of transaction transaction

Related parties transaction Amount amount (%) Amount amount (%)

RREEREERA XA 96,798,038.51 3244  97,153,543.29 30.81
Harbin Electric Corporation Payment of

interest
At 96,798,038.51 32.44  97,153,543.29 30.81

Total
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BERAIRBERS @

(H) BB ER(E)

3

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(V)

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

R 7754 3 S ATHI FILE 3. Interest on deposits received
FHBRERE LHIBAE
Current period Preceding period
ERERS ERERS
)b ) B IAkS €8 SENLH (%) SR SEALLA (%)
Proportion of Proportion of
similar similar
Content of transaction transaction
Related parties transaction Amount  amount (%) Amount  amount (%)
BREREESREENAT FEFLE 12,743,377.80 93.52  7,887,503.88 92.48
Harbin Electric Corporation Interest on
deposits
MEEEREEMNEE S 2ol 740.74 0.01 11.14 <0.01
BREERR
Archeng Relay Company Limited Interest on
deposits
IBEREELEIMERG FHAR 34,363.76 0.25 18,445.32 0.22
BRAT]
Harbin Qingyuan Electric Material Interest on
Co., Ltd. deposits
MERERREXRBTERT FHA 2 79,373.85 0.58 67,325.48 0.79
HBC Industrial Development Interest on
Company deposits
REERRAEERERAR BRI 2,951.15 0.02 2,863.07 <0.01
Harbin Electric Industrial Interest on
Development Company deposits
Limited
MEREREEERBTART EZvil)s, 22,151.08 0.16 25,895.09 0.30
HEC Industrial Development Interest on
Company deposits
MM M EEMEANT EZvil)s, 137,596.87 1.01 169,527.57 1.99
Harbin Sanlian Industrial Interest on
Development Company deposits
Limited
MEBEBNRBYRER e ek 521.10 <0.01
BEAT
Harbin Power Equipment Interest on
Logistics Company Limited deposits
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BERAIRBERS @

(H) BB ER(E)

3

R4 77 5% 7 S AT YRR (48D

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3. Interest on deposits received (continued)

FHBAER LHIBAEE
Current period Preceding period
ERERS ERERS
)b BHIXZAE S8 SENLH (%) SR SEMLLA (%)
Proportion of Proportion of
similar similar
Content of transaction transaction
Related parties transaction Amount  amount (%) Amount  amount (%)
BRIMESKBRERR el 12,396.69 0.15
AEAT
Heilongjiang Harbin Hydropower Interest on
Development Company Limited deposits
BRERERMELLER TERAE 676.12 <0.01
BEAT
Harbin Electric Real Estate Agency  Interest on
Company Limited deposits
MEERBNEEREEIAT FHAE 279.81 <0.01
Harbin Boiler Property Company Interest on
Limited deposits
WERBE R R FHFE 18,951.32 0.22
Harbin Electrical Machinery Hospital Interest on
deposits
MRETXZEHENT FHAE 1,468.22 0.01
Harbin Industrial Kiln Associate Interest on
deposits
MRERBELRERERE FHAE 1,182.88 0.01
BRLE
Harbin Boiler Power Station Interest on
Equipment Company Limited deposits
IRAEEREEEARTERRN FHFR 40,258.06 0.30
BRDE
Jiamusi Electric Machine Company  Interest on
Limited deposits
IBRERREWLETAR TERAE 2,837.05 0.02

BERT
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BEAIRBERS @

(H) BB ER(E)

3

R4 77 5% % S AT YRR (48D

X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

3. Interest on deposits received (continued)

FHBRERE LHIRAEE
Current period Preceding period
HERERS ERERS
)b BHXZAE £ SENLH (%) S SEMLLA (%)
Proportion of Proportion of
similar similar
Content of transaction transaction
Related parties transaction Amount  amount (%) Amount  amount (%)
Harbin Boiler Company Limited Interest on
deposits
REERRAERGARBER BRI 925.55 0.01
BRLA
Harbin Turbine Industrial Integrated  Interest on
Services Management Company deposits
Limited
ME B R R R TERFE 577.50 <0.01
Harbin Turbine Hospital Interest on
deposits
MEBERENFEREREELE  HFHRME 724.33 0.01
Harbin Electric Property Interest on
Management Limited deposits
IRBE L) R E TERAE 980.35 0.0
Harbin Electrical Machinery Interest on
Kindergarten deposits
Me B SRR R B TERAE 5,840.24 0.04
Harbin Boiler Maintenance Hospital  Interest on
deposits
WREB AR AR TERAE 1,038.90 0.0
BEAT
Harbin Turbine Logistics Company  Interest on
Limited deposits
&5t 13,076,305.36 95.96  8,204,479.56 96.16

Total
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BEERLIREBEXZ @

(H) BBXZER(E)

X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
4 EBFHEFEKA 4. Discounted interest income
FHBRERE LB
Current period Preceding period

HERERS ERERS

)b BHXZRE S8 SEMNLH (%) SR SEMLLA (%)

Proportion of Proportion of

similar similar

Content of transaction transaction

Related parties transaction Amount  amount (%) Amount  amount (%)

MREEREEMSES S HEBA 523.57 0.01 17,910.31 0.09

BREELT

Archeng Relay Company Limited Interest income

At 523.57 0.01 17,910.31 0.09

Total

317
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BERAIRBERS @

(H) BB ER(E)

X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

FEERAZUA 5.  Handling fees and commission
FHBRERE LHIBAE
Current period Preceding period
ERERS ERERS
)b BHIXZAE €8 SENLH (%) SR SEALLA (%)
Proportion of Proportion of
similar similar
Content of transaction transaction
Related parties transaction Amount  amount (%) Amount  amount (%)
MEREREEERBTANRT FEERASRA 1,800.00 10.68 400.00 2.67
HEC Industrial Development Handling fees and
Company commission
REERAEERERLR FEERASRA 1,030.50 6.11 843.50 5.63
Harbin Electric Industrial Handling fees and
Development Company Limited commission
BRIMESRKERE FEERASRA 13,726.85 91.69
BAREERAT
Heilongjiang Harbin Hydropower Handling fees and
Development Company Limited commission
At 2,830.50 16.79 14,970.35 99.99

Total
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BEMAIRBERS @

X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

() BABXBER(E) (V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
6 RBHESUWAHFEKRA 6. Interest income for providing funds
FHBRERE LHBAERE
Current period Preceding period
HRERS ERERS
BB BHXZAE &8 SENLH (%) S8 SEMNLLH (%)
Proportion of Proportion of
similar similar
Content of transaction transaction
Related parties transaction Amount  amount (%) Amount  amount (%)
REAEREEXREANAF FEHA 65,679.17 119 261,333.33 1.39
HEC Industrial Development Interest income
Company
RRERREXREERT FEBA 1,223,333.33 2214 5,045,083.34 26.87
HBC Industrial Development Interest income
Company
an 1,289,012.50 2333  5,306,416.67 28.26

Total
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=
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BERAIRBERS @

(H) BB ER(E)

X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)
ZEEMNFE KA 7. Interest income for providing entrusted loans
PN G g LHBER
Current period Preceding period
ERERS EEERS
)y ) B IAkS S8E SEOEH(%) 28 SEHEH(%)
Proportion of Proportion of
similar similar
Content of transaction transaction
Related parties transaction Amount  amount (%) Amount  amount (%)
MRERBEEMATALNT FLEHA 11,259,558.33 8.79 37,575,250.00 26.50
HEC Industrial Development Interest income
Company
At 11,259,558.33 8.79 37,575,250.00 26.50
EAREHEERH 8. Entrusted management fees
FHBER i e
Current period Preceding period
ERERS HEERS
B A BHIZAE S SEMLH(%) SE SEMLLA (%)
Proportion of Proportion of
similar similar
Content of transaction transaction
Related parties transaction Amount  amount (%) Amount  amount (%)
MEREEREERNRA ZHARESE 3,280,000.00 100.00  3,280,000.00 100.00
Harbin Electric Corporation Entrusted
management
fees
B 3,280,000.00 100.00  3,280,000.00 100.00

Total
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BERAIRBERS @

(H) BB ER(E)

9-

10

X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND

TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(V) RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

BEEHREKA 9.  Trademark royalty income
FHBRERE LHBER
Current period Preceding period
ERERS ERERS
)y ) B IAkS €8 SENLH (%) SR SEALLA (%)
Proportion of Proportion of
similar similar
Content of transaction transaction
Related parties transaction Amount  amount (%) Amount  amount (%)
BRATR — BB HEERRE L EdE = 1,359,033.62 100.00
(RES)BREERA
General Electric — Harbin Power Trademark royalty
Services (Qinhuangdao) Company ~ income
Limited
CE 1,359,033.62 100.00 - -
Total
B EHE AN S 10. Key management’s emoluments
HH REAAR LI AL
Current Preceding
Item period period
RS E I A B E 9,693,075.48  7,505,636.00

Key management’'s emoluments

wW
N
—_
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BEELIREBEXZ @ X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(7R) AT FE W e A3 5RTR

1-

EYEE

HE AR

Items

(Vi)

BEs

Related parties

BALANCE DUE TO OR FROM RELATED PARTIES

1.

Balance due from related parties

BARBE

Closing balance

IREEE
Book
balance

BRER SR ERE

Provision for
bad debts  Book balance

FOHE

Opening balance

BRER
Provision for
bad debts

FEWER
Accounts
receivable

FBRER
Advances paid

REBERBRETIRRERA R

Harbin Boiler Industrial Technology Limited
MRERBREARIREREEAF
Harbin Boiler & Container Company Limited
RREEREEEATERRHERAF
Jiamusi Electric Machine Company Limited
RREREEXREARA

HEC Industrial Development Company

RREREENETEREEAR
Harbin Boiler Company Limited
BREREREIARELAR
Harbin Electric Metal Component
Company Limited
MREREEERBANA
HEC Industrial Development Company
BRELEZREHE T
Harbin Industrial Kiln Associate
RREEREEMNEERERAMLA
Archeng Relay Company Limited
RREEAEIMERNERAR
Harbin Qingyuan Electric Material Co., Ltd.
BREREMAREERT
Harbin Electric Material Trading (holding)
Company
MREREREARIREREEAF
Harbin Boiler & Container Company Limited
BRRERREEREANA
HBC Industrial Development Company

54,134.00

27,072.00

20,999,000.00

588,210.00

15,000.00

10,549,240.00

4,871,100.60

3,417,570.00

12,404,336.93

20,000,000.00

131,700.00

20,522,284.30

849,000.00

2,200,000.00

22,643,000.00

54,134.00



“O—EFEMBEHRRME @

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BERAIRBERS @ X.

(%) R 77 FE W 9 5K0R (48

1- FEWKHEHE)

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(Vi) BALANCE DUE TO OR FROM RELATED PARTIES
(continued)

1. Balance due from related parties (continued)

BRGE FNRE
Closing balance Opening balance
HEER )y BEGE BRER RESE HRER
Book Provision for Provision for
Items Related parties balance bad debts  Book balance bad debts
bR
Other receivables "B EE £ EAF 64,076,258.36 54,002,548.26
HEC Industrial Development Company
RERERBRERSIRAREERF 261,032.26
Harbin Boiler & Container Company Limited
REERAEEFREARR 56,544,192.72 5,411,612.27
HBC Industrial Development Company
AT RPEETIERRAA 1,351,930.00 1,351,930.00
Shenzhen Harbin Power Huihua Trading
Company Limited
MEECHMEEREENT 2,000,000.00 2,300,000.00
Harbin Sanlian Industrial Development
Company Limited
RRAERAEEREARF 4,400,000.00
Harbin Electric Industrial Development
Company Limited
REEERENIRERAR 1,240,161.25
Harbin Huitong Power Engineering Company
Limited
REEEREEEANERRHERAA 3,000,000.00
Jiamusi Electric Machine Company Limited
RREEREEMHEESEREERTA 3,000,000.00

Arching Relay Company Limited
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BEAIRBERS @

(%) R TT FE W A3 5008 (48)

1- FEWKHEFE)

X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(Vi) BALANCE DUE TO OR FROM RELATED PARTIES
(continued)

1. Balance due from related parties (continued)

BARGHE FNRE
Closing balance Opening balance
HE AR )y BEGE BRER RESE BEER
Book Provision for Provision for
Items Related parties balance bad debts  Book balance bad debts
B M B
Dividend
receivable
RRERRREASTRAREERT 720,000.00
Harbin Boiler & Container Company Limited
JEUTHE,
Interest
receivable
BEERREXAREAT 280,408.33 365,750.00
HBC Industrial Development Company
EiRBEE
Other current
assets
RRERREEREARA 210,000,000.00 210,000,000.00
HBC Industrial Development Company
&
Loans
RERERAEEMEARR 20,000,000.00

HBC Industrial Development Company



“O—EFEMBEHRRME @

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BEELIREBEXZ @ X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
(7%) BRI FEWE{S 7RI () (V) BALANCE DUE TO OR FROM RELATED PARTIES
(continued)
2. [EffHEE 2. Payables
BREEAER
Book balance
HE A E2)-ba HREAEE FHREE
Items Related parties Closing balance Opening balance

REERME R
Short-term
borrowings

IR W 7R
Absorbing
deposit

BREERERE AR
Harbin Electric Corporation

BRREEREEAT

Harbin Electric Corporation

BERBELEIMEROERAA

(Harbin Qingyuan Electric Material Co., Ltd.*)

MBI EEMEA AR

Harbin Boiler Industrial Company

MM AEEREEDNT

HTC Industry Development Company

MRBEREEERMEENT

HEC Industrial Development Company

RRE =B EERERNR

Harbin Sanlian Industrial Development Company
Limited

MEEERSEMMESRER
EEAF]

Archeng Relay Company Limited

MEEDNREBYWRAREEIAF

Harbin Power Equipment Logistics Company
Limited

RREIMEZKEFEAR
EEAF]

Heilongjiang Harbin Hydropower Development
Company Limited

2,5629,078,408.88

1,443,444,464.98

8,426,541.15

94,558,985.49

3561,395.97

18,139,716.85

5,601,157.58

1,840,738,408.88

696,449,741.40

5,788,203.66

48,818,918.82

729,586.17

16,065,583.46

5,234,763.10

6,976.80

22,212.97

3,638,287.68

wW
N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

—O—EFEMBEHRRMET @

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BB A RS @) X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
() BEEBSERERNRE(E) (Vl) BALANCE DUE TO OR FROM RELATED PARTIES
(continued)
2 [EMREHF () 2. Payables (continued)
IR &RER
Book balance
HREER 2k -y BARERER FHEREE
Items Related parties Closing balance Opening balance

R B B E BT
Harbin Electrical Machinery Hospital
MEE T EEERE AT
Harbin Industrial Kiln Associate
MREREMEEEEREMTLNA
Harbin Electric Property Management Limited
REREAREYREREEAR
Harbin Turbine Logistics Company Limited
KB ERSEERTERRG
BRAF
Jiamusi Electric Machine Company Limited
W B SR R R BR B
Harbin Boiler Maintenance Hospital
MEBEMAERGERBER
BRAT]
Harbin Turbine Industrial Integrated Services
Management Company Limited
MEERIMEWMETERETLQA
Harbin Boiler Company Limited
MERBMEMELHENT

Harbin Electric Material Trading (holding) Company

BRI E I IRIER E R S
BRAR

Harbin Boiler Power Station Equipment Company

Limited
MERBRIBMEEREEAF
Harbin Boiler Property Company Limited
MREREFMESLAERET
NG|
Harbin Electric Real Estate Agency Company
Limited

8,997,840.10

218,428.70

1,974,901.55

1,002,637.62

18,038,235.84

4,381,999.12

2,651,638.35

1,834,596.44

1,090,000.00

851,182.88

387,698.27

270,676.12

6,5618,951.32

800,000.00

1,960,000.00

312,006.54



Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

“O—EFEMBEHRRME @

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BEHAIRBERS @

(7%) BT FE W B3 7KE (48)

2

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(V1) BALANCE DUE TO OR FROM RELATED PARTIES

(continued)
FEAEE (8) 2.  Payables (continued)
IR &R %R
Book balance

BHREER 22k -y HARERER FHERE
Items Related parties Closing balance Opening balance

BB E R 7R 60,980.35

Harbin Electrical Machinery Kindergarten
FERTERR
Trade payables

BREEREBNRESRER

/N 2,092,810.90 2,571,806.70

Archeng Relay Company Limited
MREMECEEMHEREMTLA
Harbin Electric Metal Component Company
Limited
MEREEREEEARTERRGD
BRAT]
Jiamusi Electric Machine Company Limited
MEBE T X EERERF
Harbin Industrial Kiln Associate
REREREMELHENT

Harbin Electric Material Trading (holding) Company

MBBELEIMKROAERDA
Harbin Qingyuan Electric Material Co., Ltd.
MRBMEEEMEMENT
HEC Industrial Development Company
BRREREMEEEEREMETLA
Harbin Electric Property Management Limited
MBI EEMEA AR
Harbin Boiler Industrial Company
MEBRERIMEWLETERET DA
Harbin Boiler Company Limited
BRI ENRIERERE
BRAT]
Harbin Boiler Power Station Equipment Company
Limited

14,357,353.71

220,558.51

742,239.61

763,471.47

3,931,818.50

489,350.53

1,136,328.96

356,000.00

5,689,5665.31

1,692,256.42

14,548,816.06

90,558.51

74,700.00

1,219,687.19

5,479,882.55

1,781,253.03

580,176.96

356,000.00

5,603,315.31

1,692,256.42
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ B A RE#HRZS @ X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
328 (73) BAWT5 PEWE{S3RIE (58) (V) BALANCE DUE TO OR FROM RELATED PARTIES
(continued)
o
)% 2. [EMER(E) 2. Payables (continued)
! A
tg:é Book balance
% HE AW B HRERER FHERE
E\)IJ Items Related parties Closing balance Opening balance
N
2 BEEY T ELARAAT 939,077.30 4,207,662.30
# Harbin Electric Industrial Development Company
& Limited
MBERRERRBEBEAR
BEHERF 43,450.00 23,685.00
Harbin Berg Electrical Structure Company Limited
MEERBEERMRERBR AR 12,508.00

Harbin Rayleigh Technology Development
Company Limited

MEERRYERRETAR 146,266.10
Harbin Boiler Property Company Limited
M EEN RRE TR AR AR 12,300,004.35

Harbin Boiler Industrial Technology Limited

REERIRIBER SR TIRAR

BEERTA 20,823,517.99
Harbin Boiler & Container Company Limited
REEEBRE N IRARAR 11,302,882.41
Harbin Huitong Power Engineering Company
Limited
HREEREEAR 41,021.33
Harbin Electric Corporation
e SRR
Bills Payable
MEE L EEERE AR 317,524.56 424,202.50
Harbin Industrial Kiln Associate
E TR
Other payable

BREEREE AT 9,853,700.00 9,710,870.40
Harbin Electric Corporation



“O—EFEMBEHRRME @

Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

T BBRAIRBEBHRIS

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

(&) X.

(%) R 77 FE W 9 5K0R (48

2. [EEE (B

HEHR

Items

2}
Related parties

RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(Vi) BALANCE DUE TO OR FROM RELATED PARTIES
(continued)

2. Payables (continued)

BREEARR
Book balance
HREAEE FHEREE

Closing balance Opening balance

REIERR
Long-term
payable

BIEERR
Special
payable

FERTFILE
Interest
payable

MERERIEXMEARNF

247,459.07 6,087,477.60

Harbin Electric Industrial Development Company

Limited

YT BIEETEGR AR 159,461.10
Shenzhen Harbin Power Huihua Trading Company

Limited
BRAER — BEHERRE
(REB)ERRATA

600,000.00

General Electric — Harbin Power Services

(Qinhuangdao) Company Limited

MEREEREEAR

Harbin Electric Corporation

BREERER QA
Harbin Electric Corporation

BREEREEAQT
Harbin Electric Corporation
MBI EEREENR

1,000,000.00 1,000,000.00

2,500,000.00 2,500,000.00

2,600,135.41 3,805,772.73

34,787.82

Harbin Sanlian Industrial Development Company

Limited

wW
N
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRIFEREERRSN - ©RRBMNHABARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

+ BEAIRBERS @ X. RELATED PARTY RELATIONSHIPS AND
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
330 (t) BEEER &G (VIl) Commitments of related parties
3 i3 None
2
g () Eft (VIll) Others
= fiis None
ot
pxii
i - BROXZMS XIl. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
§ i3 None
T
ﬁ T2 EABREEEE XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
(—) EERFEEE 1. SIGNIFICANT COMMITMENTS

i3 None.



— O — R F & B %5 w3k MY & ()
Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(continued)

T2 AERIESEH®

wW
wW
=

(=) HEEE 2. CONTINGENCIES
1 HEERX - FEIMERER 1. Internal and external guarantees
ERYE
Guarantee A REHE
F$ BRER 2] LEHE  ERAA HRER  RERAR ERfEREE EREE  BRYSER RAGH REER
Including:
Increase of
Way of actual
guarantee Actual guaranteed
joint-liability ~ Typeof  Counter guaranteed amount Status of Any
No.  Guarantor Name Nature  guarantee guarantee  guarantee amount during the year guarantee Overdued? litigation?
ait(HgERn)
Totalfinteral)
1 REEEHEERAR BRASHE B6) FRELAR A5k EREERE EMER  ERER 100,000,000.00 70,000,000.00 Rz 5 &
A
Harbin Electrical Machinery Harbin Electrical Machinery (Kunming) ~ State holdingjoint-iabilty ~ Loan No counter In operation No No
Company Limited Company Limited quarantee Quarantee  guarantee
1 REESREERAL LERSHE BH) ARELAR ek ERERMRE ARER ERER 100,000,000.00 it g &
27l
Harbin Electrical Machinery Harbin Electric Power Equipment State holdingjoint-iability ~ Other No counter In operation No No
Company Limited Company Limited quarantee Quarantee  guarantee
3 REEERBEENHM RRRERE NERERAR AEEk EREERE EMER  ERER 74,450,000.00 74,450,000.00 ERiE & 5
BRAA
HE Harbin Power Plant Valve  Harbin Electric Power Equipment State holdingjointiabilty ~ Loan No counter In operation No No
Company Limited Company Limited quarantee quarantee  guarantee
4 RERERBRENHN BRRER NEEERAR AEER EREERE BOER  ERER 4,290,000.00 Rz 5 &
BRAA
HE Harbin Power Plant Valve  Harbin Electric Power Equipment State holdingjoint-iability ~ Performance No counter In operation No No
Company Limited Company Limited quarantee Quarantee  guarantee
5 KERERERSUAR LERSRENREERAR ek EREERE ROER ERER 522085200 it g &
BRAA
HE Harbin Power Plant Valve  Harbin Electric Power Equipment State holdingjoint-iability ~ Performance  No counter In operation No No
Company Limited Company Limited quarantee Quarantee  guarantee
6 REEERBEENHM RRRERE NREERAR RERE  EREMRE RORR ERER 727,741.00 ERiE & 5
BRAA
HE Harbin Power Plant Valve  Harbin Electric Power Equipment State holdingjointiabilty ~ Performance No counter In operation No No
Company Limited Company Limited quarantee quarantee  guarantee
7 RERERBRENHN BRAER NEEERAR A5k EREERE ROER  ERER 47,000,00000 47,000,000.00 Rz 5 &
BRAA
HE Harbin Power Plant Valve  Harbin Electric Power Equipment State holdingjoint-iability ~ Performance No counter In operation No No
Company Limited Company Limited Quarantee Quarantee  guarantee
8 REETEREEREL RRERERERELLT ek EREERE ROER ERER 174,870,80000 7% g g
27l
Harbin Turbing Company Limited Harbin Boiler Company Limited State holdingjoint-iability ~ Performance No counter In operation No No
guarantee guarantee  quarantee
9 BEEIRRHERAT EEETRERLEARERLA RERE  EREMRE RORR ERER 433,880,000.00 ERiE & 5
Harbin Electric Company Limited Harbin Electric International State holdingjoint-iability ~ Performance No counter In operation No No
Company Limited quarantee Quarantee  guarantee
0 BEEERRAERAR EEEIRERLEARERLA RERE  EREMRE  ARER ERER 2,839,668,478.00 827,510,000.00 ERiE & 5
Harbin Electric Company Limited Harbin Electric International State holdingjoint-iability ~~ Other No counter In operation No No
Company Limited quarantee Quarantee  guarantee
N BEEERRAERAR EEEIRERLEARERLA GEEk EREERE EMER  ERER 520,000,000.00 520,000,000.00 ERiE & 5
Harbin Electric Company Limited Harbin Electric International State holdingjoint-iability ~ Loan No counter In operation No No
Company Limited quarantee Quarantee  guarantee
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T2 AERIESEH®

(=) IEFEE)

2

RRFAER

(1)

RARZRFRAIGHRE
BHBAERETAA (A
T ST [EALRR ) 72 2006
F2H23R EF MBI
EREHRE_HER A
TR [ A e ]) 55T
TIXREBEAR BE
HAERBOONEE 2B
BE# 18 AREXR
8688 JT * # i #2006
FE2009F i Bt
& R713778 T
BB RIZER B
FHARPZAERES
R A YNCI-E 3
1& - {(BRZIBEMADT 4L

BER - BTTIHEL
E 20093 H26H -
B TNy e
HiRBEREBR AR
HIEER - BEREHRERE
B - HIEBHEIEE 150
BT THXMIFHAR]
T 4 B IF164.238 J0 ¢
g YNCIES N ARENEE = i)
AmALER ARERE
SERFFE - FREEE
- 3| 5 § 30154.238 7T
WAEGES A R TS -
# 44 286.448 7T H
ETEF K E MR S 1 5RE
440678 7T - 201348
AT AL IE R AR ERT
B EEBRIRITIT 3250
BT - BB ZFFAR
T EE A mAERE AR
EbT R RER - 2RI
RNAGRNBIREENS
208.32 &L ' 4 EIEE
R#EIEE 150 8 TS %
KIS B KR FEAFL
o

XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(continued)

2.

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

2.

Pending litigation

(1)

On 23 February 2006, Harbin Electrical
Machinery Company Limited ("HEM"), a
subsidiary of the Group, entered an industrial
products sales and purchase contract with
Xinxiang Second Lifting Equipment Sales
Office G ML E R MRS —$HE Bz, “Xinxiang
Company”) to purchase a 500tons double-
girder crane at a contract sum of
RMB8,680,000. The Parties agreed that an
accumulative equipment fee of RMB7,137,700
shall be paid from 2006 to 2009. Xinxiang
Company failed to deliver the crane in a timely
manner and the crane had lots of defect. The
crane was out of function although it had been
repaired by the Xinxiang Company for several
times. To ensure no production interruption,
HEM entered in to a maintenance contract
with Dalian Daiqi Jiayi Port Lifting Equipment
Company Limited (RKiE R Tz 8 M EERE
ABRZAF]) on 26 March 2009 for the provision
of maintenance services by HEM at total
maintenance fees of RMB1,500,000. As HEM
discontinued paying the remaining outstanding
instalments of RMB1,542,300 to Xinxiang
Company, Xinxiang Company filed a litigation
to Henan Provincial Xinxiang City Hongqi
District People’'s Court against HEM claiming
for an amount of RMB4,406,700, including the
remaining outstanding instalments of
RMB1,542,300 and default interests of
RMB2,864,400. In August 2013, Henan
Provincial Xinxiang City Honggi District
People’'s Court granted a freezing order over
HEM's bank deposits of RMB2,500,000. HEM
made an application to Henan Provincial
Xinxiang City Honggi District People’s Court to
appeal against the decision and brought a
litigation against Xinxiang Company claiming
for an amount of approximately RMB2,083,200
as the default payment for the delay in the
delivery of the goods, RMB1,500,000 for the
repairs and maintenance costs spent together
with the maintenance cost and the litigation
fees for the appeal litigation in the future.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T2 AERIESEH®

(=) IEFEE)

2

RRFAER ()

(1

(%)

2014F 108118 » F45
AL AR R A R IERT i
RFRFHR HRE
BHEREERR —X
14 [ 27 486 T B & BR 4B R
BRAREZNTRER
1650 BT A8 o B
THREZ #IR - 7R 20145
10 A29 BRA B 48
FRARZERER LR
ik e 2015F6 A19H -
MM AR RBRITEM
HAEEAERMGS — R
5 3% (2015) T 1 R — 4%
FEISHEREHRE
2 B E MR IR 1T IF
542,512,208.96 7t ( & 4
A4 1,500,0007T 0 F B
955,301.96 7T © T ¥
B 39,1160 ATTHE
17,7917 B & B A1 -
ZERUEBEEEEESH
EBT AR AR o

XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(continued)

2.

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

2.

Pending litigation (continued)

(1)

(continued)

On 11 October 2014, Xinxiang City Hongqi
District People’s Court made judgement on the
appeal litigation, pursuant to which Harbin
Electrical Machinery Company Limited was
liable to pay the outstanding amounts of
RMB1,500,000 with interests to Xinxiang
Lifting Equipment Company Limited (45 2

RERAER AR in alump sum. HEM made
an application to Henan Provincial Xinxiang City
Intermediate People’'s Court to appeal against
the decision on 29 October 2014. On 19 June
2015, Xinxiang Company applied to execute
the ruling based on the count statement (2015)
Xin Zhong Min Er Zhong Zi No.78 (FTF R — 4%
F 278%F) in relation to the contracting
agreement by HEM, to appropriate
RMB2,512,208.96 (including principal
payments of RMB1,500,000, interests of
RMB955,301.96, litigation fee of RMB39,116,
execution fee of RMB17,791) from HEM's
bank deposits. Up to now, the dispute has not
been finalized.

wW
wW
w
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T2 AERIESEH®

(=) IEFEE)
RRFAER ()

2

(2)

KRG ZRMFARIRE
FERBERIEWE
ROERAE (AT
[T ]) 72007 F4
REEHRE HNEEKRE
B (RE)BRAR A
TR 2R A ])EET
7106 1.6MWE HEE
WEHEER - ARE
$%8/46,900 & 7T ° 2007
F1M1A EHXNERT
Wrhs aRBEE
¥ 57,4848 T ° 2010
Fe AR L EZEE
AR BEIRTFRE
EEMBERAT (A TETHE
[THgF AR - KESEIL
REER AR EAEE]
THIEWZE RBEEH
RABFEEBI0ARAE

40 H) 5 [ HE R 0 2% 75 D
RS IR AR 2012
F6/  ITRPLEERLT
NEIXEF] T 38R
EEEmZ(ATSE
1,866 & JT) * % i TE
4RI A2 11,3995
BT FlRM466.58 T
BEEMRT QG RES
MHEIRPLHERF
M SRR IEFRDL
RZERARREHRNI08RA
BRARNIEE TN -
Z o TREFPLERLT
~NEIHEARATAE
1.6MW &, 1] 3 E A o

XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(continued)

2.

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

2.

Pending litigation (continued)

(2)

In April 2007, Harbin Power Equipment
National Engineering Research Centre Co., Ltd.
(the "Research Centre"), a subsidiary of the
Group, entered into a supply agreement with
Hanwei Wind Power Generators (Daqging)
Compamy Limited (E#R N EHEREZH (K
B) AR AT, “Hanwei Company”) for 10 sets
of 1.5MW wind power generators units at a
contract sum of RMB69,000,000. In November
2007, the parties entered into a supplementary
agreement to revise the contract sum into
RMB74,840,000. In June 2010, the Research
Centre entered into another supplementary
agreement with Hanwei Company,
Heilongjiang Ruihau Technology Group Limited
(BRI RHEEEBRAF, the “Ruihau
Company”) and Daging Longjiang Wind Power
Co., Ltd. (KEBIREAFRRAF), pursuant to
which the parties agreed the transfer of the
rights and obligations under the agreement
related to the 10 sets of 1.5MW wind power
generators units from the Henwei Company to
the Ruihau Company. In June 2012, the
Research Centre entered into a problem
handling agreement with Ruihau Company for
3 sets of wind power generators at a sum of
RMB18,660,000, pursuant to which the
Research Centre shall pay RMB13,995,000 to
Ruihau Company and the remaining balance of
RMB4,665,000 shall be settled by way of
deducting the purchase amounts which the
Ruihau Company shall pay to the Research
Centre, as if 3 sets out of 10 sets of wind
power generators units had been supplied by
the Research Centre under the original
agreement. Up to now, the supply agreement
between the Research Centre and Ruihau
Company is related to 7 sets of 1.56MW wind
power generators units.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T2 AERIESEH®

(=) BEEHEE)

2

RRFAER ()

()

(%)

B 2007410 AR E#4E
bEEZER TREPDL
—HEBHMHREH
HETZEAAB BER
38 500-800KW T35 £ A
B RAEETT - 6501448
fE2013F9 A KRB # A
EFH T1.63MWIE & &
BTN - BE LB A
AREBTENTERNEE
WAETEBERAP BRI
BIREZAER -

XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(continued)

2.

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

2.

Pending litigation (continued)

(2)

(continued)

Since the installment of wind power generators
units in October 2007, commissioning activities
have been ongoing to each wind power
generators unit by the Research Centre. The
operation of wind power generators units in
500-800KW under non-manned situation was
satisfactory. The operation of No.6 unit under
electrical overload in 1.63MW was successful
in the commission in September 2013.
However, up to now none of the 7 sets of wind
power generators units under the agreement
has been delivered upon the check and
acceptance of the user.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T2 AERIESEH®

(=) IEFEE)

2

RRFAER ()

()

(%)

20134F10 A8 H + In &f
RAIARERREES
RRXTEBERIREHRD
[, 5 #% 48 & [ ) R A 1
HEBFE  FKIAHE
B E B AE 52007 F =
SRR R IUE A TE
EAE] MIRPLE
HEEE1.92187L - T2
o0 2013411 A 28
HRAEMHRRARE
Prer B teEsR [ 7 Ea &
BHAEES RYUH M
Hipm|ER] - KEmF
WIEBT 20144 4 A 23
BYEL [REMBIHES
R IR o TRRAPOE
HEFrEER BNRESE
TABBARER RN
B o RERR201457
R1sBmE&EFEKERE
TROMNWERIRETESE
BHEREEHES - M
REMHEHEHE R
EMEpEER - BAT
RS FIERTE—
WRIPRER o

XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(continued)

2.

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

2.

Pending litigation (continued)

(2)

(continued)

On 8 October 2013, Rehau Company (3 & 2
A]) submitted an arbitration application to
Daging Arbitration Commission regarding the
contract issue of wind turbine generators with
Research Centre, appealing against “unable to
start commissioning arising from the failure in
the delivery of wind turbine generators ordered
since 2007", and filed a claim for an amount of
RMB192 million against Research Centre in
this regard. On 28 November 2013, Research
Centre made an application to Daging
Intermediate People's Court for the
confirmation of “invalidity of the arbitration
agreement in respect of disputes over the
supply contract of wind turbine generators for
both parties”. On 23 April 2014, Daging
Intermediate People’'s Court adjudicated on the
arbitration agreement valid. Research Centre
appealed to Supreme People’s Court of
Heilongjiang Province forthwith upon its receipt
of the adjudication. On 15 July 2014, a civil
judgment of “(2014)Hei Li Min Jian Zi No. 28"
((2014) B 37 R B F §285%%) was filed to both
parties by the Supreme People's Court of
Heilongjiang Province in accordance with the
applicable laws of the PRC to revoke the
judgment from Daqging Intermediate People’s
Court and declared the arbitration agreement
invalid. Currently, both parties are in the
process of further negotiation for such case.



Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements |
SREEMHAEAREIT)

—O—AFEMBHRRME @

(BRASTREERASN -

continued)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T EAERIEEER

(=) IEFEE)
RRFAER ()

2

()

(%)
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A R A 59,169.45
gor o HepEEGEE
BRAB(ATETEE
BT EBEE6AR
NWBEEHBEAR A H
+ % 536188 (B A
PREARZA) - EBAF
E&A4AH%%@E§
o HR2AMEET I
DE e SH B RE
Fi e 5w (DA T RS TR
[2MR ) T2
ARNEEREHRES
Al &R<%8EA1,4408
T(BRIZEARZAMN) -
& [A 4 5E £ # 42168/
FalETEEErRls
TRBNF 2014 F B E
BmEHEARERR
BREBEREREERT
B RFLBERQFE
B 1% 2 "R 1T 1R
2,780,830.737T °

XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(continued)

2.

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

2.

Pending litigation (continued)

(2)

(continued)

The total investment of equipment from
Research Centre in this project was RMB
91.6945 million. Research Centre has entered
into a contract with Hua Hai Wind Power
Limited (¥ /& & 8¢ & R 2 7)) (hereinafter
referred to as “Hua Hai Company”) for the
purchase of 6 wind turbine generators with a
contract sum of RMB36.18 million (currently
not yet settled in full). 4 out of 6 wind turbine
generators have been installed while Hua Hai
Company only provided parts of the
components for the remaining 2 generators.
Further, Research Centre and Beijing Xinghang
Electromechanical Equipment Factory (it ;= 2
fn # E & # W) (hereinafter referred to as
“Xinghang Equipment Factory”) have entered
into a supply contract for 2 wind turbine
generators with a contract sum of RMB14.40
million (currently not yet settled in full),
pursuant to which, it was provided that the
payment shall be made after the 168-hour pilot
operation of the generators as well as the
check and acceptance of owners. In 2014,
bank deposit amounting to RMB2,780,830.73
made by Harbin Power Equipment National
Ltd in a
financial company was frozen by People's

Engineering Research Centre Co.,

Court of Xiangfang District of Harbin.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T2 AERIESEH®

(=) IEFEE)
RRFAER ()

2

()

(%)

# 1E2016%12A31H
TR0 8 IH TR AR
HH 7 e AR KBRS
TEMZE  BEHEX
& % /480,895,844.10
T AREME—HE
RFARMEBERERR
RAPEBEEE  TES
DEZEERTIREER
f8 % {476,735,175.26
T BN BRI E
AR AEME RIEE
FA1,791.508 Tt B & %
Y - >R RERE
e ZEHBHIEGE
X & B & &
175,5646,019.36 JT °

XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(continued)

2.

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

2.

Pending litigation (continued)

(2)

(continued)

As of 31 December 2015, Research Centre re-
verified the damage particulars of its 7
generators provided to Rehau Company and
the estimated loss was RMB80,895,844.10.
Due to the fact that the wind turbine
generators have been in the debugging stage
but failed to pass user’s examination, Research
Centre has made a provision for inventory
impairment against such generators amounting
to RMB76,735,175.26. Furthermore, the
handling fee of 3 wind turbine generators in an
amount of RMB1,791.50 paid to Rehau
Company was irrecoverable, therefore, a
provision for bad debts has been made in full.
Such matter resulted in an estimated loss of
RMB175,546,019.36 in aggregate.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T2 AERIESEH®

(=) IEFEE)
RRFAER ()

2

3)

RNARFABIREEE
BREBBRITEFEF L
BRAB(ATERBIT
A ]) R2007 42 A
130 Z2008%3A5H
BN EREKERES
REFA R (AT
BRI ER T 480K
RN HEREETE
AR)°2009%5H25H
TN N HEEEAQ A
BRI T(FREAREW
1X6500KW & 7% # 48 &
Fl) - &RKTEHRmHER
AT E®ILLE T E
o ) B 2 KA FE R R
T o BB 2 A |l
ERELBEINEFE
REHHE  TRF LK
KARK o

I 8 A R 2014F 2 A
25 H [0 B A F & A
RZERRBHVERZ S
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EREWETRP LR
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Al
R

FERENHMEARE

XIl. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

(continued)

2.

CONTINGENCIES (continued)

2.

3.

Pending litigation (continued)

(3)

Harbin Power Equipment National Engineering
Research Centre Co., Ltd (hereinafter referred to
as "Research Centre”), a subsidiary of the
Company, entered into a purchase contract for 4
permanent magnet wind turbine generators with
Henan Ruifa Hydropower Equipment Company
Limited Gl Eg i K BEHREH R & E 2 7))
(hereinafter referred to as “Ruifa Company”)
during 13 February 2007 to 5 March 2008. In 25
May 2009, Research Centre entered into a
contract for 1X6500KW axial compressor of Yili
People’s Power Station with Ruifa Company. The
contract set out that the equipment shall be
processed and customised by Ruifa Company,
and stipulated the product quality and relevant
payment conditions. As the equipment produced
by Ruifa Company did not meet the agreement
thereto of both parties, Engineering Centre has
not settled the balance.

On 25 February 2014, Ruifa Company made an
application to People’s Court of Xixia County of
Henan Province for property preservation. The
application was accepted by Xixia Court, and
Engineering Centre, as the defendant, was
adjudicated to be frozen with its bank deposit
amounting to RMB2,797,380.00.

As of 31 December 2015, there are no other material
contingent matters required to be disclosed.
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T BEERERARSER

RARELEE-_TRNAETSERRA
2015 FEFBOMIESR  BRHERE K
FAR®0.0157T °

BEABREHERHA > ARAEFER
BEMEMEERBERAKREER-

TR BRARUBBRREBZRBTE

(—) EUWERR
1 BREFDERE

XIILEVENTS AFTER BALANCE SHEET DATE

After the passing of profit distribution proposal for 2015 at the
26th Board meeting of the seventh session of Board of Directors
of the Company, the cash dividend per share was RMB0.015.

As at the date of this report, there are no other events after
balance sheet date required to be disclosed by the Company.

XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

()  Accounts receivable

1 Disclosure of accounts receivable by categories

4] Categories

BR8E 2l
Closing halance Opening balance
REBE BRER FEBE FRER
Book balance Provision for bad debts Book balance Provision for bad debts

il LA
28 A 8 (%) RERE &8 #hlm &8 %) FafEE

Provision Provision

Proportion proportion Proportion proportion
Amount (%) Amount (%) Carrying amount Amount (%) Amount (%) Carrying amount

BESEERTEEHBIRE Receivables of individually significant
[ENRNER amount and with provision made on an
individual basis
FEBEREHEAATBEEE Receivables with provision made ona
GEDEES collective basis using portfolios with
similar credit risk features
BESETEREEET AR Receivable of individually insignificant
EENREER amount but with provision made on an
individual basis

At Total

1,002,825,177.38 10000 155,811,549.92 1554 847,01362746 71728720944 9974 147,188,559.77 2052 570,098,669.67

45,000.00 - - 45,000.00 1.840,074.15 0.26 - 1,840,074.15

1,002,870,177.38 /15581154992 | 847,058,62746  719,12730359 | 147,188559.77 | 57193874382
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BRARUHRBERETERBIEE

XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

m

Accounts receivable (continued)

1. BEWERD D EHEE(E) 1 Disclosure of accounts receivable by categories
(continued)
BIESHEIE N BEBEHTIZEE Receivable of individually insignificant amount but
BREFREBRIR ¢ with provision made on an individual basis:
ARG
Closing balance
FEW R TR BRER TR FTRER
Accounts receivable Accounts Provision for Provision Reason for
FERERR (REQ) (based on entity) receivables bad debts proportion provision
FREA
QE=
No provisions
KREERERIR Harbin Electric International are made
BREFAR Company Limited 45,000.00 for subsidiary
& Total 45,000.00 - / /
HEF  RERB O ITETIRE In the groups, provision for bad debts for accounts
BRZEE M FEURBR X receivable are made using aging analysis:
HReE ENEE
Closing balance Opening balance
ERER BRER SR B SRER SHHRILAI
Accounts Provision for Provision Accounts Provision for Provision
Bk Age receivable bad debts proportion receivables bad debts proportion
1EHR Within 1 year 577542,384.98 - - 446,085,952.40 - -
1528 1102 years 242,571,307.98 12,128,565.40 5.00 3342338411 1671,169.21 500
1538 2103 years 33,399,968.85 16,699,984.43 5000  163,173,004.74 81,586,502.37 50.00
3B4E 3104 years 111,642,577.38 89,314,061.90 80.00
4Z5% 4105 years - - 53,370,000.00 42,696,000.00 80.00
SELLE Qver 5 years 31,668,938.19 37,668,938.19 100.00 21,234,888.19 21,234,888.19 100.00
At Total 1,002,825,177.38  155,811,549.92 71728122944 147,188,559.77
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Notes to the 20?@&? *Fir;‘ancial Statements (continued)
GASFRIERAA -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

BRARAMBBRRTERATERE

(=) BWERR(E)

2

AH IR - Yol 2R ] L AR
F1ER

AHARERERES R
8,629,440.15 7T ©

TR BRI B SR 157

XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

()  Accounts receivable (continued)

2. Provisions made, collected or reversed in current
period

Provision for bad debts made in current period
totaled RMB8,629,440.15.

3. Actual write-off of accounts receivable in current

period
ZiHeRE
Amount of
EHE Item write-off
B R AZ I 00 IR AR AR Actual write-off of accounts receivable 6,450.00
B B B K B BT E 4. Particulars of the top five of accounts receivables
£ B FE W 21557 at the end of the period
HRERE
Closing balance
HEWRRES
FEWLBR X LB (%) BRER
BuEE Name of unit Percentage
of the total
Accounts accounts Provision for
receivable receivable (%) bad debts
AELERM AR ARILR  Datang Power Company Limited
SHFEER Beijing Gaojing Thermal Power
Plant 254,712,860.00 25.40 -
WEREZEEREFEAT Shandong Nuclear Power Company
Limited 113,702,026.85 11.34 -
=FIREERAA Sanmen Nuclear Power Co., Ltd 110,284,966.41 11.00 -
MERKEBZEREAR  CPl Zhuhai Henggin Cogerneraiton
NG| Company Limited 86,964,250.00 8.67 4,348,212.50
MINEEBFILEEER AT Hangzhou Huadian Banshan Power
Company Limited 69,016,168.85 6.88 12,174,584.43
A&t Total 634,680,272.11 63.29  16,522,796.93
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREERASN -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

BRARUHRBERETERBIEE

&)

M=

XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(=) HibpEuEk ()  Other receivables
1 HBMEKSSERE: 1. Disclosure of other receivables by categories:
BRGE FIBE
Closing balance Opening balance
REBE FRER FEBE BRER
Book balance Provision for bad debts Book balance Provision for bad debts
il BgiA]
&F WA &8 (%) RERE 2 B[] Fi %) FAEE
Provision Provision
Proportion proportion Proportion proportion
&% Categories Amount (%) Amount (%) Carrying amount Amount (%) Amount (%) Carrying amount
EBSEEALEFRTHE Other receivables of individually significant
[t d e amount and with provision made on an
individual basis 1,664,985,424.83 98.26 - 166498542483 12379810,769.06 98.04 - 1379810,769.06
RERAREMAATTEE Other receivables with provision made on
[t d e a collective basis using portfolios with
similar credit risk features 3,027,616.28 018 3,007,467.88 9933 2014840 2,356,930.00 0.17 2,356,930.00 -
ERGETERBERRER Other receivable of individually
RENEHBENT insignificant amount but with provision
made on an individual basis 26,540,795.40 157 - 2654079540 2518163986 179 936 2518163986
A Total 1,694,553,836.51 / 3,007,467.88 | 1,691,546,368.63  1,407,349,338.92 / 2,356,930.00 | 140499240892
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

BRARUHRBERETERBIEE

(=) HtbrEwok (&)

1-

HttER 2 BT - ()

HARERD FHEAL EH I
BREE R R L JEN A

XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

() Other receivables (continued)

1.

Disclosure of other receivables by categories:

(continued)

Other receivables of individually significant amount
and with provision made on an individual basis at the

end of the period
HARERE
Closing balance
AR BRER fREA  GHRER
HiEW (&) Other receivables Other  Provision for Provision  Reason for
(based on units) receivables bad debts proportion  provision
WELE(Z28)ERERBRAT Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy B R IREE
Equipment Company Limited No provisions are made
630,105,617.12 for related parties
REETREHERERLA Harbin Turbine Company Limited B THRER
No provisions are made
431,911,137.30 for related parties
RREERDNEBERAT Harbin Electric Power Equipment Company BRI
Limited No provisions are made
323,152,399.69 for related parties
RREEHEBREALR Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited BRI
No provisions are made
163,000,000.00 for related parties
WEEYNRRESRHBMRARF  Harbin Power Technology & Trade Inc. BRI
No provisions are made
70,168,577.33 for related parties
RERERERXIERAPL Harbin Power Equipment National Engineering BRI
BRAF Research Centre Co., Ltd No provisions are made
30,359,976.00 for related parties
KB=FEPEBREFAR Chengdu Sanliya China Clay Company Limited BRI
No provisions are made
16,287,817.39 for related parties

fif Total

1,664,985,424.83 -
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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BRARUHRBERETERBIEE

XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

() Other receivables (continued)

1 BMEKZZERE: (B) 1.  Disclosure of other receivables by categories:
(continued)
HED - BRSO NIATIRE In the groups, provision for bad debts for other
B 2 5 1O EL A R LR - receivables are made using aging analysis:
HReE ERE
Closing balance Opening balance
Al BRER FHRILA EforY SHEE FTHRILAI
Bk Aging Other Provision for Provision QOther Provision for Provision
receivables bad debts proportion receivables bad debts proportion
15 Within 1 year 8,293.45 - - -
1228 1102 years 12,345.00 617.25 5.00 -
153% 2103 years - - -
3B4F 3todyears 636.00 508.80 80.00 -
4E5E 4105 years - - -
BELLE QOver b years 3,006,341.83 3,006,341.83 100.00 2,356,930.00 2,356,930.00 100.00
At Total 3,027,616.28 3,007,467.88 2,356,930.00 2,356,930.00
2. FHEFtiE - Wb EEERE 2. Provisions made, collected or reversed in current
E1gx period
T REREE2SE Provisions for bad debts made in current period
655,537.88 7T ° totaled RMB655,537.88.
3 FHEBREZHVEMERLE 3. Actual write-off of other receivables in current
x period
BEH BEHE
Item Amount of write-off
B PR A% 8 A E fh FE R Actual write-off of other receivables 5,000.00
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

TN AR HRRETEERGE XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY

(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
26 (=) HfbEWRK (&) () Other receivables (continued)

5 4 EHMEWKFEZEFEMLESEHE 4. Other receivables categorized by nature

= %

)ﬁ% o

& ,

A BAREREIBRER FYUREREE

gg Book balance Book balance at

% at the end the beginning

3 FIEME Nature of receivables of the period of the year

i)

S

o e RESS Deposit and security 14,142,758.38  13,112,728.38

E #HHRe Petty cash 2,622,436.68 3,873,876.23
R Current account 1,676,098,797.17 1,388,681,183.48
REGK Advance 14,158.00 14,158.00
A Other 1,675,686.28 1,667,392.83

BEF Total 1,694,553,836.51 1,407,349,338.92
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

(=) HtbrEwok (&)

5.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(n

Other receivables (continued)

XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY

BRA T EBENRI KGR 5. Particulars of the top five amounts of other
EHEMERFIIELR - receivables at the end of the period:
AL
BRBEAHY BRER
Efiti SUERE HAHE  BR BB (%) HAGE
Proportion to
the total  Closing amount
Nature of balance of other  of provision for
Name of unit receivables  Closing balance ~ Age receivables (%) had debts
hE5E(R28)ELRBRRAR AR 63010551712 VMR 125 : -35 5 345F 40 N B 3118 -
Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD) Heavy Current Within 1year: 102 years : 2to 3 years : 3104 years : 4
Equipment Company Limited account t0 5 years + over b years
RARSRRARELAA ERR BI9N113730 125 23 345 HFU b 2549 -
Harbin Turbine Company Limited Current 1102 years : 2103 years : 3to 4 years : over b years
account
RERERDNKBRRAR AR 30315239969 1EHA 125 1 235 45F 1 HFULE 19.07 -
Harbin Electric Power Equipment Company ~ Current Within 1 year; 1102 years : 2to 3 years : 4to b years :
Limited account over b years
RERERERRELAA AR 163,000,00000  1EHA 962 -
Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited ~ Current Within 1 year
account
RERDIHEE SR ERAT AR 7016857733 1EMA: 235 5FME 414 -
Harbin Power Technology & Trade Inc. Current Within 1 year : 2 to 3 years : over 5 years
account
ait / 161833763144 | %.50 -

Total
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

T BARMBHRRERZEBERE

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY

(&) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(=) REERERE () Long-term equity investments
BRGE L2
Closing balance Opening balance
RERE HEER KEEE RESE REEE BHEE
BB ltem Book Impairment Carrying Book Impairment Carrying
balance provision amount balance provision amount
HRARE Investment in subsidiaries 4,588,158,305.40 3,000,000.00 4,585,158,305.40  4,562,378,070.79 3,000,000.00  4,559,378,070.79
HEE RELERE Investment in associates and joint ventures  131,064,661.88 131,064,661.88  129,965,986.67 129,965,986.67
Bt Total 4,719,222,967.28 3,000,000.00 4,716,222,967.28  4,692,344,057 46 3,000,000.00  4,689,344,057.46
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BRAFTRTRASN - @B ABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

1N B A ERREEEHGERE XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY
(48) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(=) REBERE(HE) () Long-term equity investments (continued)
1 ¥FRAFRE 1.  Investment in subsidiaries

AR AEER
FHE ABEm KB HRBE HEER BRBE

Provision
forimpairment  Closing balance
Opening Closing made in of provision
HREER Investee halance Increase Decrease balance  current period  for impairment
REREREENE Harbin Electric Corporation Finance
BEREMLA Company Limited 837,122,531.11 837,122,531.11
REERELE Harbin Turbine Company Limited
BEREMLA 692,422,891.68 692,422,891.68
WEEBAMRESRG  Harbin Power Technology & Trade Inc.
BRAA 15,000,000.00 15,000,000.00
REEERABRIE Harbin Electric International Company
BEREMLA Limited 500,000,000.00 500,000,000.00
WEETBEEREMLT  Harbin Flectrical Machinery Company
Limited 678,546,878.74 678,546,878.74
WELEAEEFTRNE  Harbin Power Equipment National
LERAR Engineering Research Centre Co,
[td 120,004,550.35 120,004,550.35
BEEERBETURT  HE Hertin Power Plant Valve
BRAA Company Limited 97,002,844.08 97,002,844.08
AA=FIZHEERDE  Chengdu Sanliya China Clay Company
Limited 14,268142.47 14,268,142.47
AEBERERAMTLF Harbin Boiler Company Limited 716,178,892.28 716,178,892.28
EEE@JE%@ Harbin Electric Power Equipment
ﬁ BAR Company Limited 687,206,900.00 687,206,900.00
KWESH(Z28)EWEE  Harbin Electric Corporation (QHD)
ﬁ BRAd Heavy Equipment Company Limited ~ 171,624,440.08 171,624,440.08
BEEARYERBEE  HE Moder Manufacturing Service
ﬁ REALT Industry Company Limited 30,000,000.00 30,000,000.00
RImESEZTE Shenzhen Harbin Power Huihua
BRAA Trading Company Limited 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00
REERSERLTA Harbin Electric Corporation 25,780,234.61 25,780,234.61

A Total 4562,378,070.79  26,780,234.61 - 4588,158,305.40 - 3,000,000.00

w
S
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(BRASTREEASN -

SHEEMHB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY

(8) FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
(=) REBRERE(HE) () Long-term equity investments (continued)
2. ¥EE . SEPXERE 2. Investment in associates and joint ventures
vt i)
Increase/decrease
EETERN L SERHRLR iR HEER
EBE EnRE BORE RERE hERE  HtEREE BER -0 HA%E HEER BRBE
Investment
income orloss  Adjustment Provision for Closing
recognized in other Other Dividends impairment balance
Opening  Investments  Investments  under equity comprehensive changes or profits Closing madein  of provision
HREER Investee balance increased decreased method income in equity declared others balance - current period for impairment
BErE Associates
BEE — L8 /18BRE General Electric — Harbin Power
(%28)8RA7 Services (Qinhuangdaol
Company Limited 129,965,986.67 15,476,83421 14,378,159.00 131,064,661.88
Ad Total 129,965,986.67 - 1547683421 - - 1437816900 - 131,064,661.88
(M) #EWRATEERAE (IV) Operating income and operating cost
1 EXEWRAFEERLK 1.  Operating income and operating cost
THRER ITHEREER
Current period Preceding period
WA RA WA KA
EHH ltems Income Cost Income Cost
TEER Principal business 1,344,085,518.19  1,249,083,201.68  1,934,387,902.10  1,768,289,776.56
KEZHR Main thermal power equipment 639,865,677.93  544,863,361.42
AL Nuclear power projects 704,219,840.26 704,219,840.26 311,165,826.72 311,046,168.60
SUBEREE Ancillary equipment and products for
power stations 1,623,222,075.38  1,457,243,607.96
bR Other business 23,548,725.39 17,193,271.05  103,384,289.79 36,420,774.20
REWA Leasing income 18,153,779.85 17,193,271.05 31,804,290.20 34,284,538.20
EELION Advisory income 66,037,735.82
Hih Others 5,394,945,54 5,542,263.77 2,136,236.00
aif Total 1,367,634,243.58  1,266,276,472.73  2,037,772,191.89  1,804,710,550.76
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T BARMBHRRERZEBERE

(&)

() BEWH

1HH

(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

XIVNOTES TO ITEMS OF PARENT COMPANY

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

(V) Investment income

Items

REBAER EHIZAEER

Current period Preceding period

AR E 0 R EBRRAE IR A s
R E O RIS S s
REREREREESNRE RS
AR EETEBREES:TAEH

BRneREEERSAHRNE
Alas

EEUAAEEGEAEEHIHA
HEBRNEREERGHRE
e

RAEZIMREEREHMENERE
Y gs

RERIEN b2 s LR
Al

BREAHHESREENSHRE

s
S - MARERALE
A B IS

Htt

it

Investment income from long-term equity
investments under cost method

Investment income from long-term equity
investments under equity method

Gains on disposal of long-term equity
investments

Investment income generated from
financial assets measured at fair value,
with the change in fair value included in
the profit or loss for the year during its
holding period

Investment income generated from
disposal of financial assets measured at
fair value, with the change in fair value
included in the profit or loss

Investment income generated from held-
to-maturity investments during its
holding period

Investment income generated from
available-for-sale financial assets during
its holding period

Gains on disposal of available-for-sale
financial assets

Income generated from revaluation of
remaining equity measured at fair value
upon loss of control

Others

Total

118,829,803.84 224,555,124.07
15,476,834.21 25,132,119.20
873,688.28 67,300,000.00

591,001,087.79 58,642,349.24

2,847,534.25

359,044.93

2,891,589.04

729,028,948.37

378,780,226.48

w
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements

(BRETRERIN - SREMBB/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

ERECES e

(=)

EHFEEHEHEAMAR

HE
Items

XV.SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

(1) Breakdown of non-recurring profit and loss for the

period

=8

Amount

continued)

398
Note

FRBEERERR

g
RiE

F”a B

RS

Gain or loss on disposal of non-current

assets

#eokdE S E SRR Tax refund or exemption with

unauthorized approval or no formal

approval document

AR BESERTEE (%% Government grants included in profits or

BEUIERE  mRERG—1RE
ERLTEEZZNBUTRHBIRIN

FPAEHBRENE IFE R KER
MESHRE

RERGFAR  BECEREE
ﬁ%ﬁ'\]&’ﬁﬁz’»ﬂ REVS I & B
EEERRESBMAHREEE
AR BEEENRE

FEBHEERRER

ZRMARENEBEENER

BN EE - Il R E
st R & A& PR

B EE AR

CEBEBA  MERBRIHTH -
BABME

Q%F‘T&?&EE’E’A CHIR HELERE
BARBEIDOER

losses (excluding those government
grants that are closely relevant to the
Group " s business and are received
with fixed amounts or with fixed
percentage based on unified standards
promulgated by government)

Capital use fee received from non-

financial enterprises recognized as gain
or loss for the period

Gain on the difference between

investment cost of acquiring
subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures and the share of the fair value
of the investee " s identifiable net
assets, where investment cost is less

than the share of the fair value

Gains or losses on exchange of

non-monetary assets

Gains or losses on entrusted investment

or management of assets

Provision for impairment of assets due to

force majeure such as natural disasters

Gains or losses on debt restructuring
Expenses for reorganization such as

expenditure for staffing and integration
expenses, etc.

Gains or losses on the excess beyond fair

value in the transaction with unfair price

13,997,584.39

111,785,344.53

-8,119.66

484,221.70



Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
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(BRETRERIN - SREMEBARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T #RER®
(—) BHECEMERPAE(E)

HH

Items

XV.SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)

(1) Breakdown of non-recurring profit and loss for the

period (continued)

=

Amount

B
Note

R —ZH TEEAHELEN T AR
BONEGHENERFRE

HNRERKEXRBEMNLES
HEL MR

BRIAR ESRLEBHEBNER
ERRERBI HEXZER
MEE RFIUTHBBEELN
ARBEZHED  UREER
ZUEHMEE XHUETHAE
MAEHESREERSHIRE
Yz

B (TR P B R
(G

HHNRFEERRIGHER

REAABERNETRESED
KREUEHEARBEEDHESE

CokisFas
REBHU - BFFFERE  EZRNE
SRETE BB 1T — IR MR EE B
EHERNPE
RELERSHZREBRA

Current gains or losses of subsidiaries
from combination of enterprises under
common control from the beginning of
the period till the date of combination,
net

Gains or losses on contingencies that is in
no connection with the normal
operation of the Company

Gain or loss on changes in fair value 280,790,441.71
arising from trading financial assets and
trading financial liabilities held
(excluding the valid hedging of the
Company in its ordinary course of
business), as well as investment gains
received from disposal of trading
financial asset, trading financial
liabilities and financial assets available
for sale

Reversal of provisions for impairment of
trade receivables individually subjected
to impairment test

Profit or losses from external entrusted 2,847,534.25
loans

Gains or losses on changes in fair value in
the investment property that are
subsequently measured at fair value

Effects of one-off adjustments as required
by taxation, accounting laws and
regulations on the gains or losses for
current period

Trustee fee income from entrusted
operations

w
(&3]
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)
(BREFTRFTRAIN - @REEBEMNHYABAREIT)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

T #mRER® XV.SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION (continued)
(=) EHELEHEERMARE) (1) Breakdown of non-recurring profit and loss for the

period (continued)

HE +H He
Items Amount Note
B Fall ZTEZ SN E A EZE NI Other non-operating income and -97,462,471.64
M expenses other than the
aforementioned items
HhAIEEFEHIBIFFEMIELZ  Other items of gain or loss in accordance
EH with the definition of non-recurring gain
or loss
BB EAHRETEN Total effect of the non-recurring gain or ~ 312,434,535.28
&5t loss on total profit
S fis 258 Impact of income tax 48,087,886.93
DR RS AR Impact of minority shareholders” interests ~ 33,973,968.94
EENERARIMIEL T ERY Impact of non-recurring profit and loss 230,372,679.41
2y attributable to the parent company
(Z) FEERBERSRKE (2) Return on net assets and earnings per Share:
Rk ()
nEFEEFE Earnings per share (RMB)
EEREE (%) ExgRkE wmEsRkE
Weighted
average
Profits of the return on
R HIRE reporting period net assets (%) Basic Diluted
BEN AR BRERS  Net profit attributable to
b ordinary shareholders of the
Company 1.54 0.1425 0.1425

BRI B EIBZRE R B Net profit after deducting non-
N AR AR R A F A recurring profit and loss
attributable to ordinary

shareholders of the
Company -0.27 -0.0248 -0.0248
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Notes to the 2015 Financial Statements (continued)

(B oRERASD -

SHEEMH/ARET)

(Unless otherwise stated, all amounts are denominated in Renminbi)

TR RRERVBEHEERE

NEMAR
2009412 A29H » BMER M A A EfH
BRIBITROER AR BEIEDTTIERR]

TREE RS WEERSAENKREN h
AR FRAAGBEERBMAREAR
Z%%W&%W%@ﬁﬁ%%@ﬁ@ﬁ&
NAEI83ITH MR HEERDANAAR
# 5,888 8 JT #115,480 & 7T * 20094 12 A
SNBBRERMARE DR Ll iR
BN ZBERGBRBRIEAEERSF
DNTER  WIRERERZ S H O F AR © &
1E2015F 12 A31H - WEREMHNIHE
SEE FEMARTER

MERNOAFEHKEN R EEERER
&R F]2.26% 9 AR 1 TG 7R &8 )9 R
BRELRARL37% HAE 2015 F51E
R B W = o 5l A-3320,155.907T
#1-32,688,987.74 7T * 2010 F £ 2014F &
AT #E R A Uk 2 9 Bl A53,572,593.39 7T
#1-181,781,889.72 7t °

MEEERRNARAF

—O—XR"*F=A=-+HAH

XVI. OTHER DISCLOSURES PURSUANT TO

RELEVANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

On 29 December 2009, HE Company (¥ & % 13 72 7)) entered
into an equity transfer agreement with China Construction Bank
Corporation, Heilongjiang branch, to acquire the 2.26% equity
interest of Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited and the
8.37% equity interest of Harbin Turbine Company Limited, both
of which were the subsidiaries of HE Company (M E DA A
held by China Construction Bank Corporation, Hellongjlang
branch, with the transfer price of RMB 58,880,000 and RMB
154,800,000 respectively, which have been fully settled by HE
Company (% & & 19 & 7l) as at 31 December 2009. The
transactions have been completed and approved by Heilongjiang
Property Right Exchange Center. As at 31 December 2015,
changes in industrial and commercial registration for the
acquisition of equity interest have not been completed.

For the acquisition of 2.26% equity interest of Harbin Electrical
Machinery Company Limited and the 8.37% equity interest of
Harbin Turbine Company Limited by HE Company (*3 &%) A &
revenue recognized in 2015 were RMB-3,320,155.90 and RMB-
32,688,987.74, and the accumulative revenue recognized in 2010
to 2014 were RMB53,572,5693.39 and RMB-181,781,889.72.

Harbin Electric Company Limited

25 March 2016

w
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Disclosure of Significant Events

(1) 20164551508 » AAFBH
014FERREFREG » Bk
BBRTARRLAFEEES
HEE EREREE LF
ZER B - AR RIR A
AREI0UEEREEZERE
1B AREERARGESSH
REEEES  BEZEA &
FEEERFRIEE -

(2 2016%8A28H * ARR AR
BRRAFRIAE » HEREE IR
RERNERBERBRRAE -
ERABBTREARFESS

EEARRMDEE -
2. EB=Eg
(1) 2015%F1H68 ' A"RAaAH
FLEEEEETNASH

FEHRIMA T ARE 2014 F
MR TIERE - 2015 FE 56
B BREEMBMAERA
A B E R I 5] i 18 B
BTESIFRESE -

SIGNIFICANT MEETINGS CONVENED

1.  General Meetings

(1)

(2)

On 15 May 2015, the Company convened the 2014
Annual General Meeting, whereupon ordinary
matters including the Company's Report of the
Directors, Report of the Supervisory Committee,
audited accounts and auditors’ report for 2014 as
well as the distribution of 2014 dividends of the
Company; and special matters including the
authorization to the Board of Directors of the
Company for the temporary appointment of directors,
appointment of auditors and appointment of directors
were considered and approved.

On 28 August 2015, the Company convened the
Extraordinary General Meeting, the H shares class
meeting and the domestic shares class meeting,
whereupon matters in relation to the authorization to
the Board of Directors of the Company for the
repurchase of the Company's shares were
considered and approved.

2. Board Meetings

(1)

On 6 January 2015, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its 14th meeting,
whereupon it considered and approved matters
including the 2014 Report of the President of the
Company; the 2015 integrated plan; the investment
in E MR B i1 A R A Al and the provision of capital
assistance in respect of the project for promoting E
class fuel generating units.




(2)

(3)

(4)

BEEEEHE @

Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)

201563 A18H  AAAIBH
FLtEEFEETRREH
BRYPZEERARAES
£ ZETXERERARA
BIYFRTES  ERLEE
THEBARAESFEREXS
BEXEMEIR -

2015438208 » AAF AR
BELEESEETNREE
FEa B T ARE 20145
HIABAAS - 2014 FERERA
FREBEAN  MBRARFRES
EREAFRAFEBELTRER
BT - AMEREEEEA
BHEEMEEEEHASA
AIRINEEIE o

201565158 - XAAIBH
FrtEEFEE+LREH
BRUBBTERARME
HEEBEREREERR
A ARREREXESTIE
ABRERRERGERIRES
I8 o

(2)

(3)

()

On 18 March 2015, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its 15th meeting,
whereupon Mr. Zou Lei was elected Chairman of the
Company, Mr. Yu Wen-xing was appointed
independent non-executive director of the Company;
and matters on the modifications of the composition
of the special committees of the Board of the
Company were considered and approved.

On 20 March 2015, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its 16th meeting,
whereupon it considered and approved matters on
the topics in relation to the 2014 annual report of the
Company, notice of annual general meeting of
shareholders of 2014, the commencement of
marketable securities business and entrustment
investment wealth business by the Finance
Company, as well as the issue of a parent company
guarantee for HE International’s Hawa project and
Dewan project in Pakistan.

On 15 May 2015, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its 17th meeting,
whereupon it considered and approved matters
including the replacement of the company secretary,
the agreement on the acquisition of Harbin Electric
(HE) Corporation, the commencement of integration
with the environmental protection industry, and the
adjustment of the nuclear power equipment design
institute in Beijing.
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(6)

(7)
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)

201596 A48 » X7 BH
FtEEFEFE T/ RGH
HHRWAA T REBERIEE M
# Hassyan AR E B BOO IE B
ESE

2015678108 * ARAIBR
FLEEFEE TSR
ERULBBTEBAAREN

i -

201568 A28H ' A2 AIAM
FErtEEESE_TAEH "
FEZWEB T AAR2015FH
BB ISR - 2006 F R HES
BWEE  MEAFRFER
MEXEETERRAZTEIE -

2015610 A12H » A2 7]
HE+TEEEFE_+—K
HOBERIBATRAMERR
EEHABABHIKKIZER B AFA
A IR B BB QAR E
C{CAP1400 [ il T 1 = R L)
R MEGEEXETEE
®E(—H)RE - BHEAAM
BREARERARRRE BH
RRBREENRAEEES
1A o

% oy

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

On 4 June 2015, the seventh session of the Board of
the Company convened its 18th meeting, whereupon
it considered and approved matters regarding the
investment by HE International in the Hassyan coal
power plant BOO project in Dubai.

On 10 July 2015, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its 19th meeting,
whereupon it considered and approved the proposal
to repurchase shares of the Company.

On 28 August 2015, the seventh session of the
Board of the Company convened its 20th meeting,
whereupon it considered and approved matters
including the Company's 2015 interim financial
report, 2015 interim report of the Directors, and the
application by the Boiler Company to extend the term
for entrusted loan for Harbin Boiler Industrial.

On 12 October 2015, the seventh session of the
Board of the Company convened its 21st meeting,
whereupon it considered and approved matters
including the issue of a parent company guarantee
for HE International’s BHIKKI project in Pakistan,
commencement of the Company’s commitment to
the research and manufacture of CAP1400 shielded
power main pump ((CAP1400 5 i B £ RATEL)),
the enhancement of the phase 1 planning of fixed
asset investments in nuclear power industry, the
installation of key nuclear pump and the
enhancement in the production capacity of long-
distance pipes and key equipment for natural gas.
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)

201512 A1 8 » AREIERH
FrtEEFEF_T-4KE
& B @B T #2015
EMBRE B S E B
BT ER QA RARRHEREA
BAER DAREGABRARET
ERFEREMREIERR  BE
B AEEATEREEE 27
FARE - AWEREE RS
BALLOKIIE B £ A& 2 &R K
£=15 o

201512 A1 H » AR A
RELEZEFEE-_T=R
®OBERIBEATARAKRE
EIRPEEL - 2014 FERBEL
EEERSE  BAREBKARE
BOREZ - AR RIRERERIAR
BRMEEIE -

-

ZEABEREESRERER

1 EXEH

(1

2006 1A ARAlRES
R FMTEZRREBEES
FAZETMBAARRBREAR
BB IHPIRE - THEMT
RABERKRREREEERS
BRAREZEERREZELR
% RENEBEHTIARRES
R EMTEZRREBEES
F{EE8 201543 H188 -
ARrlBRtEEEEE TR
REH PREERBEERR
NAFEEEER -

(9)

(10)

On 1 December 2015, the seventh session of the
Board of the Company convened its 22nd meeting,
whereupon it considered and approved the selection
and engagement of the accountant firm for the final
audit of the 2015 financial statements, the re-
instalment of HTR steam generator, reheater and
main body testing development and manufacturing
project; the setting up of a subsidiary by HE
International for its wind farm project in Pakistan; the
issue of a parent company guarantee in respect of
HE International’'s BALLOKI project in Pakistan.

On 11 December 2015, the seventh session of the
Board of the Company convened its 23rd meeting,
whereupon it considered and approved matters
including the Company’s investment management
measures, 2014 environmental and social
responsibility report, proposals in respect of
amendments to the Articles of Association and
circular of the extraordinary general meeting of the
Company.

Il. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AND MATERIAL
CONTRACTS

1.  Significant Events

(1)

In January 2015, former chairman, non-executive
director and chairman of the nomination committee
of the Company, Mr. Gong Jing-kun, ceased to be
Chairman of the Company’s controlling shareholder,
Harbin Electric Corporation, and party secretary in
accordance with the decision of state cadre
management, and at the same time tendered to the
Company his resignation from the position of
chairman, non-executive director and chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company. On 18
March 2015, the Company convened its 15th Board
meeting of the seventh session of Board of
Directors, whereupon Mr. Zou Lei was elected as the
new Chairman of the Company.




(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)

201563 A18H  AAAIBH
tEEFEETREREH T
NEXREBZERRNRAREL
FRTES WEEARAE
EZeFHMEESIAZE &
REZEBaREBERZESER

mn

y
A

2015654158 - AAAIEBH
tEEFEE+LREH &
NERRPMESBALEH
RIS RABEIE AR
ERTS NUMELREZER
RARRAWE °

20155 A16H * XAARIBH
tEE=FEFTTLAAgE
HBRTARTKERRES
REBRRAMFAENRRER
EER AT ERESIE -

201568 H 148 » KARRE
BYEREREERBELATE
IRE R BT H BT -

201568 A26 H » ARG R
TEF BREEZESZE
8 Bl R Rt ERER
B o

201568 A28 R  AAAIBH
BRERFFRIRE - HRERIBR
RERAEBRERBRRRS
BRBETREARFEES
ClfE AR EIE -

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

7)

On 18 March 2015, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its 15th Board meeting,
whereupon Mr. Yu Wen-xing was appointed
independent non-executive director of the Company,
as well as chairman of the Nomination Committee
and member of the Audit Committee and Strategy
Development Committee under the Board of
Directors of the Company.

On 15 May 2015, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its 17th meeting,
whereupon former company secretary of the
Company, Mr. Gao Xu-Guang, resigned from the
position of the Company Secretary of the Company
due to changes in his work and Mr. Ai Li-Song was
appointed Company Secretary of the Company.

On 15 May 2015, the seventh session of the Board
of the Company convened its 17th meeting,
whereupon matters in respect of the acquisition by
the Company of the entire equity interest in Harbin
Electric (HE) Corporation held by Harbin Electric
Corporation were considered and approved.

On 14 August 2015, former vice president of the
Company, Mr. Han Jian-wei, retired from his position
due to having reached the statutory retirement age.

On 26 August 2015, former executive director,
member of the Strategy Development Committee
and vice president of the Company, Mr. Shang
Zhong-fu, resigned from his position.

On 28 August 2015, the Company convened the
Extraordinary General Meeting, the H shares class
meeting and the domestic shares class meeting,
whereupon matters in relation to the authorization to
the Board of Directors of the Company for the
repurchase of the Company’s shares were
considered and approved.




(8)

9

(10)

(11)

BEEFHBR®

Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)

201512 A1 8 - AAAIBH
TtREEFEFE_TREH "
BRBB TEBERRD R REE
= MIEEETENER (5
KREBAR)EBERARTF
2015 F[Z B TS HMK O ERED o

2015412 A23H » AR =] &2
ARAER(PE)BRARER
T(EERELESRMERR
FERARERE BRERLE
BB BREDESRKERR
MR & 1B IR 38 B 2B I MR A BK
BE & 1EIER e B M 175k ©

20154 + AR B RFTE
BEMBREREMEAR KR
ERERAEREELT - MR
BAmEEREREERAR B
BMEBRAEEER AR
RESERREEWMEMAR
RRAEREES T S HE
XMENRAT BEE=ZX
15% MR ZEFTISRESR K o

20154 + A A EIME A FS R
BB AR E TR BRI
HE [BAERNEEEKE
EHHIETRER] KEEX
RHEE SR —E8 -

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

On 1 December 2015, the seventh session of the
Board of the Company convened its 22nd meeting,
whereupon it considered and approved the
engagement of auditors of the Company, and BDO
China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public Accountants LLP
was engaged as the auditors of the Company in
respect of the 2015 financial statements.

On 23 December 2015, the Company entered into
the framework and confirmation of the principal
terms of the Joint Venture Agreement with GE
(China) Co., Ltd., pursuant to which, and an
agreement in stages was reached for the co-
investment in the establishment of a joint venture to
seek the in-depth strategic cooperation in the field of
power generation utilizing combined-cycle gas-
turbine technology.

In 2015, the Company and its affiliates, including,
Harbin Electrical Machinery Company Limited, Harbin
Boiler Company Limited, Harbin Turbine Company
Limited, Harbin Electric Power Equipment Company
Limited and HE Harbin Power Plant Valve Company
Limited were re-recognised as High and New
Technology Enterprises, and shall continue to enjoy a
15% preferential enterprise income tax rate.

In 2015, Harbin Electrical Machinery Company
Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, has been
granted the State Scientific and Technological
Progress Second Class Award in respect of its
technological research project of key Technological
Breakthrough and Engineering Application of Giant
Full Air-cooling Hydro Generating Unit.




(12)

(13)

(2)

(3)

(4)

EEZEEBER@

Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)
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(13)

In 2015, Harbin Boiler Company Limited, a subsidiary
of the Company, has participated in the completion
of the research and development and application of
600T ultra-supercritical generating units steel pipes,
and was granted the State Scientific and
Technological Progress First Class Award; and was
approved by the Ministry of Science and Technology
to construct the first state laboratory for high-
effective clean fuel coal plant boilers.

In December 2015, Harbin Electric International
Company Limited, a subsidiary of the Company,
formally entered into a strategic cooperation
agreement with ACWA Power and an investment
cooperation agreement and financing agreement of
intention in relation to the Hassyan power project in
Dubai.

Material Contracts

(1)

()

(3)

(4)

In March 2015, the Company entered into a supply
contract for 2x350MW pump storage units in
Dunhua, Jilin.

In March 2015, the Company entered into a supply
contract for 6x300MW pump storage units in
Fengnin, Hebei.

In May 2015, the Company entered into a supply
contract for a 9FB one-on-one multi-shaft combined
cycle generator units in Jiangsu Huadian Kunshan.

In May 2015, the Company entered into a contract
for 4x230MW hydraulic generators and ancillary
equipment for XZES of Huaneng Lancangjiang Co.,
Ltd. (EEERRITARER M AR AE]) and 4x247 5MW
power generators and ancillary equipment for &7F8E.
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)
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(6)

7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(11)

(12)

(13)

In June 2015, the Company entered into a supply
contact for 2x660MW supercritical boiler equipment
in Sahiwal, Pakistan.

In June 2015, the Company entered into a supply
contract for 2x1000MW ultra-supercritical, reheating
boiler equipment for Datang Leizhou ( XEE M ).

In August 2015, the Company entered into a
8x1000MW engineering preparation and embedded
components contract for China Three Gorges
Corporation at Baihetan (= #5#).

In September 2015, the Company entered into a
supply contract for 2x1000MW three ultra-
supercritical host facilities (reheating) for the
expansion project of Phase 3, Fengzheng (£ =)
in Jiangxi.

In September 2015, the Company entered into a
turnkey contract in respect of the 1180MV combined
cycle power plant project in Bhikki, Pakistan.

In September 2015, the Company entered into a
supply contract for 2x1000MW ultra-supercritical
(reheating) boiler equipment for CHD in Jurong.

In October 2015, the Company entered into a supply
contract for 2x660MW three ultra-supercritical host
facilities for Z=ME /1 ($3/1) BR A A

In November 2015, the Company entered into a
turnkey contract for 1223MW combined cycle power
station in Balloki, Pakistan.

In December 2015, the Company entered into a
supply contract for 2x660MW three ultra-supercritical
host facilities for the expansion project for fHZEHER
B at ERAFE, Xinjiang.
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Disclosure of Significant Events (continued)
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(14) In December 2015, the Company entered into a
supply contract for 2x1000MW three ultra-
supercritical (reheating) host facilities for the new
project for HEEE B R EFR .

Save as the aforementioned, the Company does not have any other
discloseable matters which are not disclosed.
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Information on the Company

REGISTERED NAME OF THE COMPANY
RREERKRMNERAR

ENGLISH NAME OF THE COMPANY

Harbin Electric Company Limited

REGISTERED ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block 3

Nangang District High Technology Production Base
Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Registration No. 230100100004252(1-1)

OFFICE ADDRESS OF THE COMPANY

Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road
Xiangfang District

Harbin

Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China
Postcode: 150040

Tel: 86-451-87998510 or 82135727
Fax: 86-451-82162088

Website: www.hpec.com

PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Room 1601, 16th Floor
LHT Tower

31 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

Mr. Zou Lei
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Information on the Company (continued)

RERE AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES
RIBESLE Mr. Wu Wei-zhang

BB 2kE Mr. Liu Zhi-quan

NRIWE COMPANY SECRETARY

NI Mr. Ai Li-song

BEATRWE JOINT COMPANY SECRETARY
S Mr. Tung Tat Chiu, Michael

= EEm AUDITORS

JEEMEEM (BHREESN) BDO China SHU LUN PAN Certified Public Accountants LLP
b R PR AL = 3R R BK 29 5B 28th floor, Maotai Building, Yard 29,

FaAKE28E Middle of North 3rd Ring Road Xicheng District, Beijing, China
AR © 100029 Postcode: 100029

EEER LEGAL ADVISORS

B AR as to PRC Law

BREMERAT HAIWEN & PARTNERS

REE AR HEAME Room 1016, Beijing Silver Tower

bl No. 2, Dongsanhuan North Road

Y Chaoyang District

H=IRIEFK 258 Beijing

MIRAE 1016 E People’s Republic of China

EmES LISTING INFORMATION

H A H Shares

BERBMERZMBR AT The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

& D #ms%E : 1133 Stock Code: 1133
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Information on the Company (continued)

AR D HEE
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22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

ROBEELE
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£ £ 9:00-11:00

T & 2:00-4:00

3% 86-451-87998510 3% 82135727
{5H : 86-451-82162088

DEPOSITARY

The Bank of New York
American Depositary Receipts
22nd Floor West

110 Barclay Street

New York, NY 10286 USA

SHARE REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Hong Kong Registrars Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wan Chai

Hong Kong

INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

Available at the Secretariat of the Board of Directors of
Harbin Electric Company Limited

Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road

Xiangfang District

Harbin

PRC

SHAREHOLDERS RECEPTION TIME

On 8th, 18th, and 28th (the following day in case a holiday)
From 9:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m. and

From 2:00 p.m. to 4:00 p.m.

Tel: 86-451-87998510 or 82135727

Fax: 86-451-82162088
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Documents Available for Inspection

1. AR ZE—AFERELER 1. The original copy of the 2015 Annual Report of the Company

2. ANAREEZZMEHRRIER 2. The original copy of the Company’s audited financial statements
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1. BREUBAEARATARE-_Z-AF+=A
SH-BALFENEESRES

2. BHYMEAAABRE-T—AE+—A
S AL FENEEEREE

3. EHUHEARR-_ZT—HFE—HA—BZE
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B AAZEENRE

4, BEWMRBEAQAFT-_Z—HEERSERA
R¥0015n(BEERE)  KEFHEAZ
T—RNFLA=Z+N\H:

5. BERUESFMEHMUEREBRAVOR
ARBZF—RNFEMERROZEKED
VIREARREEGEEEANE -

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Annual General Meeting of Harbin
Electric Company Limited (the “Company”) for the year of 2015 will be
held at Conference Room, 17th Floor, Block B, 39 Sandadongli Road,
Xiangfang District, Harbin, Heilongjiang Province, the People's Republic
of China on Friday, 27th May, 2016 at 9: 00 a.m. for the following
purposes:

AS ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To consider and approve the Report of the Directors for the year
ended 31st December,2015;

2. To consider and approve the Report of the Supervisory
Committee for the year ended 31st December,2015;

3. To consider and approve the audited accounts and the auditor’s
report for the period from 1st January, 2015 to 31st December,
2015;

4. To declare the 2015 dividend of RMBO0.015 per share (appropriate
tax included) to be paid on 28th July 2016;

5. To re-appoint BDO China Shu Lun Pan Certified Public
Accountants LLP as the auditors of the Company for the 2016
financial statements of the Company and authorize the Board of

Directors of the Company to fix their remuneration.
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AS SPECIAL BUSINESS

To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company to appoint
any person to fill casual vacancy in the Board of Directors or as
an additional director, his term of office shall expire at the
conclusion of the next general meeting of the Company;

To authorize the Board of Directors of the Company, in
compliance with applicable laws and regulations and at times
they deem appropriate, to allot, on one or more occasions as it
deems appropriate, H-shares or domestic shares with an
aggregate nominal amount not exceeding twenty percent (20%)
of the aggregate nominal amount of the Company's issued
shares as at the day of the passing of this resolution. The
authorization will be valid for a period of 12 months commencing
from the day of the passing of this resolution or remain valid until
the conclusion of next following annual general meeting or until
its revocation or alteration by a special resolution at a general
meeting, whichever is the earliest. Conditional upon the above
resolution to allot new shares being passed and implemented,
the Board shall be authorized to make necessary amendments to
clause 15 and clause 16 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, so as to reflect the alterations to the Company'’s share
capital structure and registered capital arising from the allotment

of new shares.

By Order of the Board
Ai Li-song
Company Secretary

Harbin, PRC, 6 April 2016
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Notice of Annual General Meeting (continued)

Registered Address:

Block 3, Nangang High Technology Production Base Harbin,
Heilongjiang Province

People’s Republic of China

Correspondence Address:

Block B, No. 39 Sandadongli Road Xiangfang District
Harbin, Heilongjiang

Province People’s Republic of China

1. For the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to
attend and vote at the AGM, the register of members of the
Company will be closed from 27 April 2016 to 27 May 2016 (both
dates inclusive) during which period no transfer of shares will be
registered. Shareholders whose names appear on the register
before book closure shall be entitled to attend and vote at the
AGM. Persons buying shares of the Company during book
closure shall not be entitled to attend and vote at the AGM. In
order to be qualified for attending the AGM, all duly completed
transfers of shares together with the relevant share certificates
must be lodged with Hong Kong Registrars Limited, the
Company's share registrar in Hong Kong, at Shops 1712-1716,
17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wan
Chai,Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 26 April 2016.
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For the purpose of determining Shareholders’ entitlement to the
2015 final dividend, the register of members of the Company will
be closed from 2 June 2016 to 6 June 2016 (both dates inclusive)
during which period no transfer of shares will be registered.
Shareholders whose names appear on the register of members
as at 2 June 2016 are qualified for the final dividend which will be
paid on 28 July 2016. In order to be qualified for the 2015 final
dividend,all duly completed transfers of shares together with the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with Hong Kong
Registrars Limited, the Company's share registrar in Hong Kong,
at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s
Road East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong not later than 4: 30 p.m. on 1
June 2016.

Shareholders intending to attend the AGM shall give written reply
to the Company at its correspondence address by 5: 00 p.m. on
6 May 2016.

A Shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the AGM is entitled
to appoint one or more persons (whether or not a Shareholder)
as his proxy to attend and vote on his behalf.

To be valid, the form of proxy, together with a notarially certified
power of attorney or other document of authority, if any, under
which the form is signed, must be deposited at the
correspondence address of the Company not less than 24 hours
before the time appointed for holding the AGM.
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